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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report, including in the sections titled "RB&ctors,” "Management's Discussion and AnalysiBinancial Condition and Results of
Operations" and "Business," contains, in additiorhtstorical information, forward-looking statementWe may, in some cases, use words su
as "project," "believe," "anticipate," "plan,” "e®gt," "estimate," "intend," "continue," "should,Wbuld," "could," "potentially," "will," "may"
or similar words and expressions that convey uraiety of future events or outcomes to identify ¢hfesward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements in this Annual Report on ForrKlihay include, among other things, statements abou

. the progress of, timing of and amount of expensesaated with our research, development and comiaization activities;
. the success of our clinical studies for our prodeentdidates;
. our ability to obtain U.S. and foreign regulatorpgroval for our product candidates and the abibifyour product candidates to

meet existing or future regulatory standards;

. our expectations regarding federal, state and fgmaiegulatory requirements;

. the therapeutic benefits and effectiveness of mdyrt candidates;

. the safety profile and related adverse events ppooaduct candidates;

. our ability to manufacture sufficient amounts ofiiparatide, RAD1901 and RAD140 for commercial@athctivities with

target characteristics;

. our plans with respect to collaborations and licesselated to the development, manufacture or&fabeir product candidates;
. our expectations as to future financial performaregiense levels and liquidity sources;
. our ability to compete with other companies that ar may be developing or selling products that@mpetitive with our

product candidates;

. anticipated trends and challenges in our potentialrkets;
. our ability to attract and motivate key personresid
. other factors discussed elsewhere in this report.

The outcome of the events described in these fdrwaking statements is subject to known and unhkmisks, uncertainties and other
important factors that could cause actual resultsliffer materially from the results anticipated tnese forward-looking statements. These
important factors include our financial performaneeair ability to attract and retain customers, alevelopment activities and those other
factors we discuss in Item 1A of this Annual ReporEForm 1K under the caption "Risk Factors." You should réaeke factors and the oth
cautionary statements made in this report as bajmgjicable to all related forward-looking statemgmtherever they appear in this report.
These risk factors are not exhaustive and otheiaes of this report may include additional factevhich could adversely impact our business
and financial performance.

You should read the following discussioroaf financial condition and results of operatiomsonjunction with our financial statements
and related notes set forth in this report.




CURRENCY AND CONVERSIONS

In this report, references to "dollar" 8t ‘are to the legal currency of the United States] references to "euro” or "€" are to the single
currency introduced on January 1, 1999 at the efdlte third stage of European Economic and Magdtkion, pursuant to the Treaty
establishing the European Communities, as amengléukebTreaty on European Union and the Treaty okemdam. Unless otherwise
indicated, the financial information in this repbes been expressed in U.S. dollars. Unless otberstated, the U.S. dollar equivalent
information translating euros into U.S. dollars bagn made, for convenience purposes, on the diasie noon buying rate published by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve as oééer 31, 2013, which wad ©0 = $1.3779. Such translations should not bstcoed as
representation that the euro has been, could hes dr could be converted into U.S. dollars ar#ite indicated, any particular rate or at all.

Trademarks appearing in this report argptioperty of their respective holders.
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Unless otherwise provided in this report, all refeces in this report to "we," "us," "our companiqur," or the "Company" refer to
Radius Health, Inc. after giving effect to the Margnd the Sho-Form Merger (each as defined under "Corporate tnfation" below).

Overview

We are a science-driven biopharmaceutioalpany focused on developing novel differentiatestdapeutics for patients with osteoporosis
as well as other serious endocrine-mediated dise@se lead product candidate is abaloparatide @8)\0a bone anabolic for the treatment of
osteoporosis delivered via subcutaneous injectitrich we refer to as Abaloparatide-SC. We are aitiyén Phase 3 development of
Abaloparatide-SC and expect to announce top-lin@ flam this study in late 2014. If the results positive, we plan to submit a new drug
application, or NDA, in the United States, and akating authorization application, or MAA, in Eumpgn mid-2015. We hold worldwide
commercialization rights to Abaloparatide-SC, otthem in Japan, and with a favorable regulatorgamie, we anticipate our first commercial
sales of Abaloparatide-SC will take place in 200& are leveraging our investment in Abaloparati@et&develop Abaloparatide-TD. We
expect this line extension will provide improvedipat convenience by enabling administration oflaparatide through a short-wear-time
transdermal patch. We have recently completed eesstul Phase 2 proof of concept study.

Our current clinical product portfolio alseludes a novel oral agent, RAD1901, a sele@steogen receptor down-regulator/degrader, o
SERD. We are developing RAD1901 at higher dosethftreatment of breast cancer brain metastas®&_;BM, and at lower doses as a
selective estrogen-receptor modulator, or SERMtHertreatment of vasomotor symptoms such as astds. In 2014, we expect to commenc
a Phase 1 clinical trial to evaluate RAD1901 far tireatment of BCBM, and we previously completediecessful Phase 2 clinical trial of
RAD1901 for the treatment of vasomotor symptoms.

Abaloparatide

Abaloparatide is a novel synthetic peptidalog of parathyroid hormone-related protein, DiHAP, that we are developing as a bone
anabolic treatment for osteoporosis. Osteoporesasdisease that affects nearly 10 million peapklaé United States, with an additional
approximately 43 million people at increased riskthe disease. It is characterized by low bonesmas structural deterioration of bone tis:
which leads to greater fragility and an increasfanture risk. Anabolic agents, like Forteo (taratide), are used to increase bone mineral
density, or BMD, and to reduce the risk of fractiiée believe abaloparatide has the potential teeamse BMD and bone quality to a greater
degree and at a faster rate than other approvess dou the treatment of osteoporosis. We are deugdotwo formulations of abaloparatide:

. Abaloparatide-SGs an injectable subcutaneous formulation of atsdatide. In August 2009, we announced positive ®Ras
data that showed Abaloparatide-SC produced fasttgeeater BMD increases at the spine and the hipsubstantially less
hypercalcemia than Forteo (teriparatide), whicthésonly approved subcutaneous injectable anabgkat for the treatment of
osteoporosis in the United States. A subsequergePhalinical trial announced in January 2014 atsafirmed the results of our
first clinical trial by demonstrating that Abalop¢ide-SC produces BMD increases from baselinea@rsgiine and hip that are
comparable to our earlier Phase 2 clinical trialApril 2011, we commenced a Phase 3 clinical tfaAbaloparatide-SC.
Enrolliment was completed in March 2013, and we ekfmeannounce top-line data at the end of thetfoguarter of 2014.
Assuming a favorable outcome, we plan




to use the results from this Phase 3 clinical toadupport a new drug application, or NDA, witle t.S. Food and Drug
Administration, or FDA, and believe we could obtapproval of the NDA in 2016.

. Abaloparatide-TDis a line extension of Abaloparatide SC in the fafha convenient, short-wear-time (approximatehe fi
minutes) transdermal patch. In a recent Phasenalitrial, Abaloparatide-TD demonstrated a statidly significant mean
percent increase from baseline in BMD as comparqdacebo at the lumbar spine and at the hip. Tresdts demonstrated a
clear proof of concept by achieving a dose deperiderease in BMD. Following additional formulatiolevelopment work, we
intend to advance an optimized Abaloparatide-TOdpod in additional clinical studies and to a Phageidging study and to
subsequently submit for approval. We hold worldwidenmercialization rights to Abaloparatide-TD teclugy.

RAD1901

RAD1901 is a SERD that we believe croskedtood-brain barrier and that we are evaluatimgtfe treatment of BCBM. RAD1901 has
been shown to bind with good selectivity to theagtn receptor and to have both estrogen-like atrdgen-antagonistic effects in different
tissues. In many cancers, hormones, like estraignulate tumor growth and a desired therapeutat ggoto block this estrogen-dependent
growth while inducing apoptosis of the cancer c8ERDs are an emerging class of endocrine thexéipée directly induce estrogen receptor,
or ER, degradation, enabling them to remove th@gsh growth signal in ER-dependent tumors wittadlowing ligandindependent resistan
to develop. There is currently only one SERD, Faeio(fulvestrant), approved for the treatment aihlane-receptor positive metastatic breast
cancer; however, for patients with brain metast@8€8M), there are no approved targeted therapiasdross the blood-brain barrier. We
believe there is a significant opportunity for RAMIL to be the first ER-targeted therapy that croise blood-brain barrier to more effectively
treat ERpositive BCBM and potentially reduce both intradeand extracranial BCBM tumors. We intend to coemee a Phase 1 clinical tr
in 2014 to evaluate high-dose RAD1901 for the treatt of BCBM.

We are also developing RAD1901 at loweredass a selective estrogen receptor modulatofBVS for the treatment of vasomotor
symptoms. Historically, hormone replacement therapyHRT, with estrogen or progesterone was consitlthe most efficacious approach to
relieving menopausal symptoms such as hot flasth@sever, because of the concerns about the pottéantigrterm risks and contraindications
associated with HRT, we believe a significant nexidts for new therapeutic treatment options tattvesomotor symptoms. In a Phase 2 proc
of concept study, RAD1901 at lower doses demorgstratreduction in the frequency and severity of enatd and severe hot flashes. We
believe RAD1901 is an attractive candidate for adement into Phase 2b development as a treatmevdagomotor symptoms.

Our Opportunity
Osteoporosis

Osteoporosis is a disease characterizéovibpone mass and structural deterioration of h@mseie, which leads to greater fragility and an
increase in fracture risk. All bones become maoagife and susceptible to fracture as the diseasmpgsses. People tend to be unaware thai
bones are getting weaker, and a person with ostesigsccan fracture a bone from even a minor fdike @ebilitating effects of osteoporosis h
substantial costs. Loss of mobility, admissionuosing homes and dependence on caregivers arenathon consequences of osteoporosis.
The prevalence of osteoporosis is growing and,raaeg to the National Osteoporosis Foundation, @M\is significantly under-recognized
and under-treated in the population. While the ggifithe population is
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a primary driver of an increase in cases, oste@i®is also increasing from the use of drugs thdié¢e bone loss, such as chronic use of
glucocorticoids and aromatase inhibitors that acedasingly used for breast cancer and the horrti@nepies used for prostate cancer.

The NOF, has estimated that 10 million pedapthe United States, composed of eight millimamen and two million men, already have
osteoporosis, and another approximately 43 miliane low bone mass placing them at increased sisksteoporosis. In addition, the NOF
has estimated that osteoporosis is responsibladoe than two million fractures in the United Ssadach year resulting in an estimated
$19 billion in costs annually. The NOF expects thatnumber of fractures in the United States dugsteoporosis will rise to three million by
2025, resulting in an estimated $25.3 billion istsceach year. Worldwide, osteoporosis affectssiimated 200 million women according to
the International Osteoporosis Foundation, or |&t causes more than 8.9 million fractures annualhjch is equivalent to an osteoporotic
fracture occurring approximately every three sesoiithie IOF has estimated that 1.6 million hip fuaes occur worldwide each year, and by
2050 this number could reach between 4.5 millioth &3 million. The IOF estimates that in Europenalathe annual cost of osteoporotic
fractures could surpass €76 billion by 2050.

There are two main types of osteoporosigslcurrently available in the United States, aggibrptive agents and anabolic agents. Anti-
resorptive agents act to prevent further bonebgsshibiting the breakdown of bone, whereas anatagients stimulate bone formation to b
new, high-quality bone. According to industry sagcsales of these drugs in the United StatesnJamhthe five major markets in Europe
exceeded $6 billion in 2011. We believe therelarge unmet need in the market for osteoporosirirent because existing therapies have
shortcomings in efficacy, tolerability and converge. For example, one current standard of carphbs&phonates, an anti-resorptive agent, he
been associated with infrequent but serious advamsats, such as osteonecrosis of the jaw andcatyfpactures, especially of long bones.
These side effects, although uncommon, have créateshsing concern with physicians and patientnyvphysicians are seeking alternatives
to bisphosphonates. The two primary alternativdsigphosphonates that are approved for the treatofi@steoporosis, Lilly's Forteo and
Amgen's Prolia, had reported sales of approxima&#&l2 billion and $700 million, respectively, in28 Forteo, a 34 amino acid recombinant
peptide of human parathyroid hormone, is the ongbalic drug approved in the United States fortteatment of osteoporosis. We believe
there is a significant opportunity for an anabalgent that is able to increase BMD to a greateregegnd at a faster rate than other approved
drugs for the treatment of osteoporosis with adahdantages in convenience and safety.

Our Solution—Abaloparatide

Abaloparatide is a novel synthetic peptidalog of PTHrP that we are developing as a boabdit treatment for osteoporosis. PTHrP,
unlike parathyroid hormone, is critical in the fation of the skeleton, is involved in the regulataf bone formation and is able to rebuild
bone with low associated risk of inducing the pneseof too much calcium in the blood, known as hyaleemia, as a side effect. We believe
that abaloparatide is the most advanced PTHrP grldinical development for the treatment of ogterosis and that it can provide the
following advantages over other current standarcboé treatments for osteoporosis:

. improved efficacy—greater bone build at hip apéthe;
. faster benefit for building bone;

. shorter treatment duration;

. less hypercalcemia;

. no additional safety risks; and




. no refrigeration required in use.

Abaloparatide-SC. In August 2009, we announced positive Phasa tthat showed Abaloparati® produced faster and greater B
increases at the spine and the hip with substynkiss hypercalcemia than Forteo, the only appdaueabolic agent for the treatment of
osteoporosis in the United States. Specifically,study demonstrated that total hip BMD showed aentiban five-fold benefit of
Abaloparatide-SC at a dose of 80ug over Forteo aftaveeks. Abaloparatide-SC at 80pg increased husalpar spine BMD by 6.7% at
24 weeks, compared to 5.5% with Forteo, and by%2048 weeks, compared to 8.6% with Forteo. Aegbent Phase 2 clinical trial
announced in January 2014 also confirmed the mestithe first clinical trial by demonstrating thdbaloparatide-SC produces increases in
BMD from baseline in the spine and hip that are parable to the earlier Phase 2 trial. In April 20d/# began dosing patients in a pivotal,
multinational Phase 3 clinical trial designed towhhat Abaloparatide-SC prevents new vertebratin@ compared to placebo. We completec
enrollment in this Phase 3 clinical study in Magfi13 and expect to report top-line 18-month fracuata at the end of the fourth quarter of
2014. If the data from this Phase 3 clinical teed positive, we plan to submit the NDA and the M#A Abaloparatide-SC in mid-2015. We
expect commercial launch to follow in 2016 in theitdd States, if and when the FDA approves the N@AAbaloparatide-SC, and in the EU
if and when an MAA for Abaloparatide-SC is approved

Abaloparatide-TD. Abaloparatide-TD is a convenient, short-wearetitransdermal patch formulation of abaloparatidh ®hase 2
clinical results suggesting efficacy, safety andrability in the treatment of osteoporosis. Inuany 2014, we reported positive results from a
Phase 2 clinical trial of Abaloparatide-TD whictosled at each dose there was a statistically saamifimean percent increase from baseline i
BMD, as compared to placebo, at the lumbar spimglithonally, at the 100 pg and 150 pg doses, therea statistically significant mean
percent increase from baseline in BMD, as compargiacebo, at the hip. In addition, there wasrsisient dose effect observed with
increasing doses of Abaloparatide-TD, with a dfiafly significant dosing trend seen for changebath spine and total hip BMD. As a result,
we believe that by offering an alternative to dailjections, Abaloparatide-TD, if approved, couldther improve patient outcomes by
increasing patient acceptance.

We currently plan to optimize Abaloparatiti® to achieve efficacy comparable to that of Alpamatide-SC. If Abaloparatide-SC is
approved by the FDA, we believe that we will onBed to conduct a single namferiority Phase 3 clinical trial comparing theatige in lumbe
spine BMD at 12 months for patients dosed with Apafatide-TD to patients dosed with Abaloparati@et& show that the effect of
Abaloparatide-TD treatment is comparable to thailmdloparatide-SC. If our clinical trials of Abalam@tide-SC and Abaloparatide-TD are
successful, we expect to seek marketing approvabafoparatide-TD as a line extension of AbalopdeaSC. The FDA approval of
Abaloparatide-TD, and the timing of any such apptpis dependent upon the approval of AbaloparzfiGe

Metastatic Breast Cance

According to the World Health Organizatibneast cancer is the second most common cantles imorld and the most prevalent canci
women, accounting for 16% of all female cancer® tajor cause of death from breast cancer is naststmost commonly to the bone, liver
lung and brain. About 5% of patients have distaetastases at the time of diagnoses, and thesatsaii@ve a Year survival rate of only 249
compared with a greater than 98% survival rateédients with only local disease. Importantly, epatients without metastases at diagnosis
are at risk for developing metastases over time.




Approximately, 70% of breast cancers expthe estrogen receptor, or ER, and depend orgestisignaling for growth and survival.
There are three main classes of therapies for Efiyp®tumors available: aromatase inhibitors, ¢8;/ SERMs; and SERDs. Als, which block
the generation of estrogen, and SERMs, which seddgtinhibit an ER's ability to bind estrogen, hditlock ER-dependent signaling but leave
functional ERs present on breast cancer cellstiisreason, although these classes of drugs faetieé as adjuvants for breast cancer,
patients' tumors often acquire resistance to thehelveloping the ability to signal through the ERailigand-independent manner. SERDs, in
contrast, are an emerging class of endocrine thesdlpat directly induce ER degradation. Thereftirese agents should be able to treat ER-
dependent tumors without allowing ligand-indeperndesistance to develop, and they should also leetatact on Al- and SERM-resistant ER-
positive tumors. Symptomatic BCBM occur in 10% &% of patients with metastatic breast cancer aadissociated with particularly high
morbidity and mortality. Current standard of caredlves a combination of whole-brain radiotheragyrgery or stereotactic radiosurgery,
depending on the clinical context. These treatmargften only marginally effective, and are thelwss associated with significant morbidity
and mortality.

There is currently only one SERD approverlie treatment of ER-positive metastatic breaster, but there are no approved targeted
therapies that cross the blood-brain barrier amdtiegat patients with ER-positive BCBM. We believsignificant opportunity exists for a
SERD that can cross the blood-brain barrier to neffiectively treat ERpositive BCBM and potentially delay or eliminatetheed for radiatic
or surgery.

Our Solution—RAD1901

We are developing RAD1901 as a high-dosR[3 an oral formulation in Phase 1 clinical deyghent for the treatment of BCBM.
RAD1901 has been shown to bind with good selegtigitthe estrogen hormone receptor and to havedsitbgen-like and estrogamtagonis
effects in different tissues. In cell culture, RAMIL does not stimulate replication of breast canelis, and antagonizes the stimulating effect:
of estrogen on cell proliferation. Furthermorebieast cancer cell lines a dose dependent dowtateguof ER, has been observed, a process
we have shown to involve proteosomal mediated didien pathway. In a model of breast cancer in tvhigman breast cancer cells are
implanted in mice and allowed to establish tumarsesponse to estrogen treatment, we have showtré¢atment with RAD1901 results in
decreased tumor growth. Studies with RAD1901 hatabtished the pharmacokinetic profile, includirggrinstration of good oral
bioavailability and the ability of RAD1901 to crogse blood-brain barrier, with therapeutic leveddattable in the brain. We believe that
RAD1901 could offer the following advantages overes current standard of care treatments for BCBM:

. ability to penetrate the blood-brain barrier;
. oral administration; and
. treatment of hormone-resistant breast cancers.

In late 2014, we intend to advance the ibgpreent of high-dose RAD1901 for the treatment Bf jgositive BCBM with the initiation of a
Phase 1b clinical trial.

Vasomotor symptoms

Vasomotor symptoms, such as hot flashesaid sweats, are common during menopause, witio 85% of women experiencing them
during the menopause transition, for a median thnadf four years. In 2010, approximately 11.5 millwomen in the United States were in
the 45 to 49 year age range upon entering peringrsgimenopause. In addition, most women receivisigsiic therapy for breast cancer
suffer hot flashes, often with more severe or prgid symptoms than
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women experiencing natural menopause. These symnsptamdisrupt sleep and interfere with qualityifef IAn estimated two million women
go through menopause every year in the United Stafi¢h a total population of 50 million postmenapal women.

Historically, hormone replacement theramylHRT, with estrogen and/or progesterone was densd the most efficacious approach to
relieving menopausal symptoms such as hot flasth@sever, data from the Women's Health Initiative\WHlI, identified increased risks for
malignancy and cardiovascular disease associatadeairogen therapy. Sales of HRT declined suliatBnafter the release of the initial WHI
data, but HRT remains the current standard of fraremany women suffering from hot flashes. Howewre to concerns about the potential
long-term risks and contraindications associatatd WRT, we believe that there is a significant neschew therapeutic options to treat
vasomotor symptoms.

Our Solution—RAD1901

We are developing RAD1901 as a low dose8HiRan oral formulation for the treatment of vasgior symptoms. We conducted a
Phase 2 proof of concept study in 100 healthy pamopausal women using four doses of RAD1901—102%gng, 50 mg and 100 mg—and
placebo. While a classic dose-response effect wadamonstrated, at the 10 mg dose level RAD196ieaed a statistically significant
reduction in the frequency of moderate and sevetdldshes both by linear trend test and by consparto placebo and in overall hot flashes &
either the two-, three- or four-week time-pointssifilar reduction in composite score—frequencyevesity of hot flashes—was identified at
all time-points, with a statistically significanifférence from placebo achieved at the two-, thmrdour-week time-points.

We anticipate our next clinical study vii# a Phase 2b study conducted in approximatelyp2@ithenopausal women experiencing a higt
frequency of hot flashes at baseline. The mainysaimtipoints would be an assessment of the charnye finequency and severity of moderate
and severe hot flashes.

Our Strategy

Our goal is to become a leading providethefapeutics for osteoporosis and other seriode@ime-mediated diseases. To achieve this
goal we plan to:

. Advance the development and obtain regulatory appneal of Abaloparatide-SC. We are evaluating Abaloparatide-SC in an
ongoing Phase 3 clinical trial for the treatmenbstieoporosis and expect to report top-line 18-mdnatcture data at the end of
the fourth quarter of 2014. If the results are pesj we plan to submit an NDA for Abaloparati8€& in the United States, and
MAA in the European Union, in mid-2015.

. Extend the lifecycle of abaloparatide through the entinued development of Abaloparatid-TD. We are developing
Abaloparatide-TD as a short-wei@me transdermal patch and we anticipate, pendifagy@rable regulatory outcome, commer
launch two to three years after the first comméade of Abaloparatide-SC. If Abaloparatide-S@jgproved by the FDA, we
believe that we will only need to conduct a singba-inferiority Phase 3 clinical trial comparingetbhange in BMD for patients
dosed with Abaloparatide-TD as compared to patidased with Abaloparatide-SC. If our clinical teaf AbaloparatidésC ant
Abaloparatide-TD are successful, we expect to seglketing approval of Abaloparatide-TD as a lineagion of
Abaloparatide-SC.

. Establish internal sales and marketing capabilitieso commercialize our product candidates in the Uned States. We
currently plan to commercialize any of our appropeaduct candidates by developing an internal dalee focused on
specialists in core strategic markets in the




United States. We believe that we can effectivalgét those markets using a sales force of appaiglgn150 representatives
and that by doing so we can achieve a greatemretuour product investment than if we license maducts to third parties for
sale. We plan to expand the use of our produgtsiteary care physicians through selective co-praomgpartnerships. Our
management team has experience commercializingipt®th these core strategic markets, and undeisthe relevant sales,
marketing and reimbursement requirements.

. Selectively pursue collaborations to commercializeur product candidates outside the United StatesVe intend to seek to
enter into one or more collaborations for the comuiaéization of our approved product candidatestmtegic markets in Euro
and in other countries worldwide.

. Continue to expand our product portfolio. We plan to leverage our drug development expettigliscover and develop
additional product candidates focused on seriods@me-related diseases and conditions, inclutieglevelopment of
RAD1901 as a potential treatment for ER-positiveBBL We may also consider opportunistically expagdiur product
portfolio through in-licensing, acquisitions or perships.
Our Product Candidates

The following table identifies the prodweindidates in our current product portfolio, th@wposed indication and stage of development:

Preclinical Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3

Abaloparatide-SC

Subcuraneaus Injection

Abaloparatide-TD ;
!hl.d.:uru:-mxi:ﬁ
Trensdermal Paich | H

RAD1901 ;

Breast Cancer Brain Metastases
vl

[ Te——

RAD1901

Vasmalor Symploms

Cheard

I S

RAD140 |

Cachexia / Frailly / Breast Cancer
Cheal !




Abaloparatide
Overview

Abaloparatide is a novel synthetic peptidalog of parathyroid hormone-related protein, DiHAP, that we are developing as a bone
anabolic treatment for osteoporosis. PTHrP, urifikél, is critical in the formation of the skeletamjnvolved in the regulation of bone
formation and is able to rebuild bone with low asated risk of inducing the presence of too mudhiga in the blood, known as
hypercalcemia, as a side effect. Human PTHrP (grof 139 to 173 amino acids) is different fromHP(a protein of 84 amino acids) in its
structure and role. In 2009, the medical journatu¥e Chemical Biology, published the results sfualy indicating that PTH (which primarily
regulates calcium homeostasis and bone resor@imhPTHrP activate the same parathyroid hormorepter, or PTHR1, but produce
divergent effects in bone due to differences irepdor conformation selectivity, receptor localipatand downstream cell signaling. Forteo is ¢
34 amino acid recombinant peptide of human parattdyrormone. We believe that abaloparatide is tbetradvanced PTHrP analog in clini
development for the treatment of osteoporosis. @giiged and maintain exclusive worldwide rightsglaging Japan, to certain patents, data
and technical information related to abaloparaticteugh a license agreement with an affiliate selp Pharma SAS, or Ipsen.

We are developing abaloparatide for thergméon of fractures in postmenopausal women &tafdracture from severe osteoporosis.
Recognizing both the therapeutic potential of apatatide in this indication as well as the drawlsaickerent in self-injection therapies in this
population, we are also developing Abaloparatidefditransdermal administration of the product gsinmicroneedle technology from 3M.
We plan to develop and register Abaloparatide-S@uadead product, with Abaloparatide-TD as a kEx¢ension that provides greater patient
convenience. We believe the ability of Abalopam{itD to capitalize on the more extensive fractiuels data of Abaloparatide-SC will allow
the patch product to be accelerated through ldtas@ development without requiring its own fracttredy.

AbaloparatideSC

We are developing Abaloparatide-SC as & aladly sub-cutaneous injection of abaloparatidetfe treatment of osteoporosis. We have
completed two Phase 2 clinical trials of Abalop@aetSC. We announced results from our first Phagd@nal trial in August 2009, which
showed that Abaloparatide-SC produced faster agatgr BMD increases at the spine and the hip witistaintially less hypercalcemia than
Forteo, the only approved anabolic agent for teatinent of osteoporosis in the United States. 8paity, our study demonstrated that total
hip BMD showed a more than five-fold benefit of Adgzaratide-SC at a dose of 80ug over Forteo aftex@eks. Abaloparatide-SC at 80ug
increased mean lumbar spine BMD by 6.7% at 24 wemmpared to 5.5% with Forteo, and by 12.9% awd8ks, compared to 8.6% with
Forteo. In January 2014, we reported positive ttata a second Phase 2 clinical trial of abalopdeatConsistent with our Phase 2 clinical trial
of Abaloparatide-SC completed in 2009, our secdimical trial demonstrated that patients who reedia 80 g dose of Abaloparatide-SC
experienced increases in BMD from baseline in timebar spine (5.8% increase from baseline) and hipal2.7% increase from baseline). In
addition to the BMD results, these study results tadthe safety data from the prior Phase 2 clirstady with Abaloparatide-SC, which
demonstrated that abaloparatide is generally safenell tolerated.

Based upon guidance we have received fhenDA in 2012, we believe that a successful, sipgtotal placebo-controlled, comparative
Phase 3 fracture study will be sufficient to suppqproval of Abaloparatide-SC for the treatmenbstEoporosis in the United States. In April
2011, we commenced our ongoing Phase 3 trial, wtochpleted enrollment in March 2013 with 2,463 satg. The trial was designed to
enroll 2,400 subjects that would be randomized Bytmreceive daily doses of one of the followir8 g of abaloparatide, a matching
placebo, or the approved dose of 20 ug of Forteo fo
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18 months. The study is designed to test our bedafabaloparatide is superior to placebo for @néen of vertebral fracture and to Forteo for
greater BMD improvement at major skeletal sites fand lower occurrence of hypercalcemia. We belithe study will also show that BMD
gains for abaloparatide patients will occur eatliem for Forteo patients. The study will also irt# a 6-month extension period during which
patients will receive an approved alendronate thena order to obtain 24-month fracture data retpaby the FDA.

Before we submit an NDA to the FDA for Abparatide-SC as a treatment for osteoporosis, wst camplete our pivotal Phase 3 clinical
trial based upon 18-month fracture data, a car@nimity study in rats, and bone quality studiesaits and monkeys. We also may need to
complete several additional studies including,adbgh QT Phase 1 study, a Phase 1 pharmacokine®, study in renal patients, a Phase :
absolute bioavailability PK study and several dntgraction studies. Assuming we do not encountgrumforeseen delays during the cours
developing Abaloparatide-SC, we expect to presgtine 18-month fracture data at the end of thetfoquarter of 2014. If the data from this
Phase 3 clinical trial are positive, and we havagieted the other necessary trials, we plan to #ubhe NDA for Abaloparatide-SC in mid-
2015. We expect commercial launch to follow in thated States, if and when the FDA approves the N@¥AAbaloparatide-SC.

We understand that Phase 3 clinical trath similar size, design and endpoints as our Badinical trial have been sufficient to supy
registration with the European Medicines Agencyther EMA, for other bone anabolic drugs used tattveomen with osteoporosis in the
European Union, or the EU. In December 2012, wewrithtthe Swedish Medical Products Agency, or theéAito review the design and the
overall progress of the Phase 3 clinical trial. Mi@A confirmed that the program, based on the cdisimgle pivotal trial design, could supp
the submission and potential approval of an MAAhi@ EU, depending on the results of the PhasenRalitrial.

AbaloparatideTD

We are developing Abaloparatide-TD as a értension of Abaloparatide-SC in a short-weaetiransdermal patch formulation. In
January 2014, we reported positive data from oasPI2 clinical trial of Abaloparatide-TD. The rdsudemonstrated that for each
Abaloparatide-TD dose there was a statisticallpifitant mean percent increase from baseline in BAEhe lumbar spine, as compared to
placebo. For the 100 pg and 150 pg Abaloparatidedd$es, there was also a statistically significa@an percent increase from baseline in
BMD at the hip, as compared to placebo. The highbatoparatide-TD dose of 150 pg produced increasB8D from baseline in the lumbar
spine and total hip of +2.9% and +1.5%, respectivampared to changes in the placebo group of4#0.8nd -0.02%, respectively. In
addition, there was a consistent dose effect sétbninereasing doses of Abaloparatide-TD, withatistically significant dosing trend seen for
changes in both spine and total hip BMD. Furtheeg,dverall tolerability and safety profile was gutedble, there were no clinically significant
signs of anti-abaloparatide antibodies, and patitirigs of patch adhesion and local skin resptmé#ee transdermal patch technology were
also acceptable.

In order to further enhance BMD efficacye aurrently plan to modify the pharmacokinetic peobf Abaloparatide-TD to more closely
resemble that of Abaloparatide-SC. If Abaloparattdeis already approved by the FDA, we believe wetvill only need to conduct a single
non-inferiority Phase 3 clinical trial comparingetbhange in lumbar spine BMD at 12 months for paédidlosed with Abaloparatide-TD to
patients dosed with Abaloparatide-SC to confirnt tha effect of Abaloparatide-TD treatment is conajde to that of Abaloparatidec. If our
clinical trials of Abaloparatide-SC and AbalopadlatiTD are successful, we expect to seek markeppgpaal of Abaloparatide-TD as a line
extension of Abaloparatide-SC. The FDA approvahbéloparatidefD, and the timing of any such approval, is depehdgon the approval
Abaloparatide-SC.
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Clinical Developmen
Pivotal Phase 3 Clinical Trial of Abaloparatide-SC

In April 2011, we commenced our ongoing $&ha trial, which completed enrollment in March 20The trial completed enroliment with
2,463 patients at 28 medical centers in 10 cowini¢ghe United States, Europe, Latin America asthAPatients in the trial are randomized
equally to receive daily doses of one of the foiloyvfor 18 months:80 g of abaloparatide; a maggiplacebo or the approved dose of 20ai
Forteo.

On February 15, 2012, we received a |éttan the FDA stating that, after internal considiena, the agency believes that a minimum of
24-month fracture data are necessary for apprdvadw products for the treatment of postmenopaosigoporosis. Our ongoing
Abaloparatide-SC pivotal Phase 3 clinical studgiésigned to produce fracture data based on an I8hnpoimary endpoint. The FDA's letter
solicited a meeting to review the status of ourdehclinical study and discuss options for fiiffidl the FDA's new request for 24-month
fracture data in the context of the ongoing Phasei@y. We subsequently met with the FDA on Marth2D12 to discuss satisfying the 24-
month data request while preserving the curremnd&th primary endpoint. Based upon our discussiitin tie FDA, we believe that continu
use of the 18-month primary endpoint will be acebf#, provided that our NDA includes the 24-momé#tfure data derived from a 6-month
extension of the abaloparatide 80 ug and placetapgrin our Phase 3 study that will receive an@pgat alendronate (generic Fosamax)
therapy for osteoporosis management. We intendlimi the NDA with the 24-month fracture data.

Study population-The study enrolled otherwise healthy ambulatory woraged 50 to 85 (inclusive) who had been postnaarsa for a
least five years, met the study entry criteria had provided written informed consent. Osteoporissitefined as when a patient'sdere is les
than or equal to -2.5, meaning that the patienhBMD that is two and one-half standard deviatioa®w the mean BMD of an ethnically
matched thirty year old man or woman, as applicalibe women enrolled in the study have a BMD t-8e0+2.5 and >-5.0 at the lumbar spine
or hip (femoral neck) by dual energy x-ray absampietry, or DXA, and radiological evidence of tworoore mild or one or more moderate
lumbar or thoracic vertebral fractures, or histofyow trauma forearm, humerus, sacral, pelvic, fémoral or tibial fracture within the past
five years. Postmenopausal women older than 65métahe above fracture criteria but had a t-scére-8.0 and >-5.0 could also be enrolled.
Women older than 65 who did not meet the fractuiteréa could also be enrolled if their t-score wa$.0 and >-5.0. All patients were to be in
good general health as determined by medical pispdrysical examination (including vital signs) acithical laboratory testing. We believe
this study population contains a patient populat&ftective of the type of severe osteoporosisgudsi that specialists will treat in their
practices.
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Study design

abaloparatide
80pg, QD
N = 800 » Reduction in new
vertebral fractures in
abaloparatide-treated at
EOT vs. placebo

Secondary Endpoints

#» Changes in spine, total
hip, fermoral neck and
wrist BMD in
abaloparatide-reated at
EOT vs. Forteo

¥ Difference in
hypercalcemia rates inin
abaloparatide-treated at
EOT vs. Forteo

¥ Mew non-vertebral
fractures in in
abaloparatide-treated at
EOT vs. placebo

Primary Endpoint

Inclusion Criteria

¥ Healthy postmenopausal
women, 50-85 years old
with severe osteoporosis

¥ -5 <BMD T-score <-2.5
at the lumbar spine (L1-
L4} or femoral neck

¥ Fracture criteria

Exclusion Criteria

¥ History of more than 4
spine fractures

¥ Prior treatment with
bisphosphonates in the
past 5 years

¥ Chronic iliness or other
bone diseases
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The 2,463 eligible patients were randomieedally to receive one of the following for 18 ntias

. abaloparatide at a dose of 80 ug;
. a matching placebo; or
. Forteo at a dose of 20 ug.

The study drug was blinded to patients medical personnel until the randomization proceas eompleted. Treatment with abalopare
at a dose of 80 pg or placebo will remain blindedlt parties throughout the study. Forteo comes pioprietary prefilled drug and device
combination that cannot be repackaged. Thereftrélentity cannot be blinded to treating physisiand patients once use begins. Study
medication will be self-administered daily by sutameous injection for a maximum of 18 months. Altaled patients will also receive
calcium and vitamin D supplementation from the tiofienroliment until the end of the treatment périkh will be recommended to patients 1
they also continue these supplements through themamth follow-up period.

Primary efficacy endpointsThe primary efficacy endpoint will be the numbépatients treated with Abaloparatide-SC that sinew
vertebral fractures at end-of-treatment when coeghéo placebo as evaluated by a blinded assessonmdiing to a standardized graded scale o
severity of the vertebral deformity. The samplegizr treatment arm provides 90% power at adided alpha to detect a superiority differe
on vertebral fracture incidence between placebiepiatand those who receive Abaloparatide-SC atsa df 80 ug.

Secondary efficacy endpoirtsSecondary efficacy parameters will also includdurtion in the incidence of non-vertebral fractuehe
wrist, hip and rib, for example, and reduction inderate and severe vertebral fractures from bas#diend-of-treatment. Other secondary
efficacy endpoints will include changes in BMD bétspine, hip, femoral neck and wrist from baseiinend-of-treatment as assessed by DX/
and as compared to Forteo, as well as the number of
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hypercalcemic events in Abaloparatide-SC treatdiegmz when compared to Forteo at end-of-treatment.

Additional secondary endpoints will inclucleange in standing height and changes in serum tmomation markers across treatment, ¢
as P1NP, osteocalcin and bone-specific alkalinesphatase.

Extension study design.

Each of the abaloparatide 80 g and plagetops in our Phase 3 study will be eligible tatawue in an extension study and will receive
an approved alendronate (generic Fosamax) theoamsfeoporosis management. A key endpoint of xtension study will be the reduction
new vertebral fractures at up to 24 months inaidiomized patients, including abaloparatide-treatetiplacebo-treated patients who are
treated with alendronate at the end of treatment.

Abaloparatide |:> Alendronate Endpoint FDA/EMA
Eﬂ”g’ QD PO Reduction in new We expect to file the
vertebral fractures in results in 2015 for
abaloparatide-treated approval,

patiznts, followed by
alendronate at EOT vs.

Placebo Alendronate placebo-treated patients,
QD PO followed by alendronate

[ 6 Months >

Safety outcomesSafety evaluations to be performed will includggibal examinations, vital signs, 12ad electrocardiograms, or EC
clinical laboratory tests and monitoring and redogcdf adverse events. Specific safety assessmaélhiaclude post-dose (four hours)
determination of serum calcium, determination efatinine clearance, post-dose ECG assessmentiectesdevisits and assessments of postur:
hypotension (60 minutes post-dose) at selectedtalisits.

Bone biopsy of the iliac crest will be perhed in a subset of patients receiving abalopmeatt a dose of 80 g and placebo for
assessment of bone quality and quantitative basterhbrphometry which is the quantitative studyhaf microscopic organization and struc
of the bone tissue, and will be read blinded tatireent by an independent blinded assessor. Reflety sdll be further evaluated in a subset of
approximately 100 patients in each treatment gimupenal computed tomography, or CT, scan.

Overall study safety is being monitoreddnyindependent DSMB.
Abaloparatide-SC Phase 2 Clinical Trial

We conducted a randomized, placebo-coetiplparallel group dose-finding Phase 2 study (5B#A058-05-002) in the United States,
Argentina, India and the United Kingdom. A total2)0 patients (mean age: 65 years) entered theeatetent period, 222 patients were
randomized, and 221 patients received study tre#tare were analyzed in the intent-to-treat, or,Ipdpulation with 55 continuing into an
additional 24 weeks of treatment. A total of 15%5igrats were included in the efficacy populationr(peotocol) in the initial 24 weeks of
treatment. The purpose of the study was to evathatsafety and efficacy of daily injections of Adggaratide-SC in women with osteoporosis.
Postmenopausal women between the ages of 55 afinictsive) who had a BMD t-score-2.5 at the lumbar spine or hip (femoral neck) by
DXA or a BMD t-score< -2 and a prior low trauma fracture or an additiaiek factor were candidates for this study. Thalgtevaluated the
effects of
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Abaloparatide-SC at multiple doses (placebop 29 40 g and 8Qu g) on recovery of BMD, a marker of fracture riskdaon biomarkers of
anabolic and resorptive activity in bone. The stalip included a Forteo treatment arm for refereAéter the initial 24 weeks of treatment,
eligible patients were offered a second 24 weekbaif assigned treatment. Safety was assessaagtiwat the study and reported on at both
24 weeks and 48 weeks. Abaloparatide-SC and plazeb® self-administered using a prefilled cartrittya pen-injector device. Forteo was
self-administered as the marketed product at tpeoapd dose of 20 ug per day by subcutaneous injedtour weeks prior to start of
treatment, patients began taking calcium and vitabnsupplements that continued throughout the study

Initial 24 weeks of treatmertThe following tables depict the percent changmial BMD-spine and BMD-hip at 12 and 24 weeks for
each of arm of the trial.

In the ITT population, the mean percentngeafrom baseline at week 12 in lumbar spine BM&iya treatment—placebo) for
Abaloparatide-SC 40 pg and 80 pg groups were statily significant (p = 0.0013 and p < 0.001, restively). The difference was not
statistically significant in the Abaloparatide-SC j2g group, in the placebo group or in the Forteaig (p = 0.055). At week 24, the mean
percent change from baseline continued to incrandewvas statistically significantly proportionaldose (p < 0.001) as shown in Figure A
below. Again, the mean gain in total spine BMD wtistically significant for Abaloparatide-SC 49 (p < 0.001) and 80 pg (p < 0.001)
groups. The mean BMD gain at week 24 was alscstitatily significant for the Forteo group (p < 0190The difference was not statistically
significant in the Abaloparatide-SC 20 ug groupnathe placebo group. The response of lumbar SpMB to Abaloparatide-SC was dose
dependent, and the 80 ug Abaloparatide-SC doseipedda larger percentage increase in BMD at thédurspine than the approved 20 ug
Forteo dose.

Figure A—Mean Standard Error of the Mean (SEM) RatcChange from Baseline at weeks 12 and 24 inl Bpiame BMD (ITT
Population, N =221
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An even greater proportional response inCBiMas elicited in the hip region. By week 24, meancent changes in total hip BMD were
0.4%, 1.4%, 2.0% and 2.6% for the placebo, abatjuker at a dose of 20 pg, abaloparatide at a do4e jog, and abaloparatide at a dose of 8
g groups, respectively. Mean percent change ifrtin2o (0.5%) group was similar to placebo as shiowFigure B below. The change in
total hip BMD showed a dose response to Abalopmee®iC and a more than five-fold benefit of abalapde at a dose of 80 ug over Forteo. A
similar relative benefit of abaloparatide at a dos80 g over Forteo was seen in all regions eftip.

Figure E—Mean (SEM) Percent Change from Baseline at we2lend 24 in Total Hip BMD (ITT Population, N=221)
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Abaloparatide-SC also induced a dose-degr@mnise in major markers of bone anabolic actjitgluding PANP, bone specific alkaline
phosphatase, or BSAP, and osteocalcin. The resposmteo was somewhat greater for anabolic mar&ked bone resorption markers (C-
telopeptides of type | collagen crosslinks, or CaKd N-telopeptides of type | collagen crosslinkaNTX), consistent with published data,
suggesting a close of the anabolic window and aéton in the anabolic benefit of continued Foreministration. While elevated over
baseline, the Abaloparatide-SC patient group miaiathlower levels of resorption markers (CTX) thgbout the study period as compared to
Forteo. We believe abaloparatide may demonstritegihening of the anabolic window as comparedoxg®.

Abaloparatide-SC was well tolerated atlabes and safety events were consistent with nsedical events in a study population of this
age and gender. The safety profile was also siroléinat of Forteo and there were no treatmentedlaerious adverse events, or SAE's.
Adverse events were reported by 74% of patientiserfirst six months of treatment, with a similacidence across all treatment groups. The
majority of on-treatment events were mildftepderate in severity and there were no deathsteghd®even subjects discontinued due to ad
events: one in the abaloparatide
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20 pg group, one in the abaloparatide 40 pug gribuipe in the abaloparatide 80 g group and twherForteo group. Eight patients (four
percent) experienced at least one SAE and thedéncelof such events was similar across treatmenpgr Five SAEs, unrelated to treatment,
were reported in three patients. Local tolerandbeatnjection site was similar across treatmentigs and fewer than 20% of subjects reporte
any symptoms, such as redness at the injectiomasitss the many months of injections.

The level of calcium in the blood, knownsasum calcium levels, were monitored throughoetdtudy and clinically significant elevated
levels (greater than or equal to 10.5 milligramsgeiliter, or mg/dL) were observed in 40% of Bateo group while also observed in four
percent, 12%, 19% and 18% of the placebo, AbaldigierSC at doses of 20 pg, 40 pg and 80 pg groappectively. Most elevations were
noted at the four-hour post-injection time point.

Blood pressure was assessed throughostuldg for postural change. Postural changes indopwessure (predetermined level of chang
systolic or diastolic from lying to standing) weaeported in seven patients, including 0%, 5%, 2%,adhd 7% of patients in the placebo,
Abaloparatide-SC 20 pg, 40 pg, 80 pg and Forteopggorespectively. Pre-dose postural changes odigdoessure were similar across
treatment groups. There were no clinically meanihdifferences in ECG parameters between the ptaeel active treatment groups.

Sixteen patients had low titer antibodigaiast abaloparatide after 24 weeks of treatmehthé€e, five were in the abaloparatide 20 pug
group, six were in the abaloparatide 40 pug groupfaue were in the abaloparatide 80 g group. Theee no associated safety events or
attenuation of treatment efficacy. One antibodysitiee patient in the Abaloparatide-SC 40 pg grags found to have possible evidence of
neutralizing activity using an in vitro assay atwdeks without evidence of attenuation of drugceffy; the patient achieved a 9.3% gain in
total spine BMD at the week 24 assessment.

Extended 24 weeks of treatmerRatients who completed the initial 24 weeks ddittmeent and continued to meet eligibility criteriare
offered participation in the 24-week extension gtindwhich they would continue their assigned tneatt. On completion of the regulatory
process to approve the study extension, 69 patientained eligible and 55 participated, includirdg 10, 7, 11 and 14 patients in
Abaloparatide-SC 20 g, 40l g, 80 g, placebo and Forteo groups, respectively. Faghteatients completed the extended treatmenbgeri

BMD continued to increase during the extehé4 weeks of treatment, with the largest perceméases in total spine BMD, femoral neck
BMD and total hip BMD observed in the Abaloparatsle 80 ug group, as shown in Figure C below. BykvE:s mean percent changes in
spine BMD were 0.7%, 5.1%, 9.8% and 12.9% for thegbo, Abaloparatide-SC 20 ug, Abaloparatide-SQg@nd Abaloparatide-SC 80 ug,
groups, respectively, while mean percent changa fraseline in the Forteo group was 8.6%. At weeki8mean femoral neck BMD in the
Abaloparatide-SC 80 ug group gained 4.1% comparéiget mean of the Forteo group at 2.2%. The tatal o hip BMD was 0.7%, 2.0%,
2.1% and 2.7% for the placebo, Abaloparatide-SQ@Q0Abaloparatide-SC 40 g and Abaloparatide-S@@@roups, respectively, compared
to 1.3% for the Forteo group.
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Figure C—Mean (SEM) Percent Change from Baseline at we2k&4land 48 in Total Spine BMD (Extension PopalatN=55)
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No treatment-related SAEs or deaths waverted during this time period. Two patients didgowred treatment, one for bilateral femoral
hernias (Abaloparatide-SC 80 pg) and one for madesgncope (Abaloparatide-SC 40 pg). Study-relatherse events occurred in a similar
proportion of patients in each treatment group s€tbe 52veek study period and the majority of events weitd or moderate in severity. Tl
profile of events was not different during the set@4 weeks of study treatment.

Non-Head-to-Head Comparison of Abaloparatide-SC Antyen Anti-sclerostin Antibody Phase 2 Study Resul

Our Abaloparatide-SC Phase 2 clinical stuskyd substantially similar patient inclusion ardl@sion criteria as a study completed by
Amgen of the use of a human anti-sclerostin angtboaimosozumab or AMG 785, for the treatment o€opbrosis. A comparison of the 6-
month and 12-month spine BMD results of the AMG g8&ly at the 210 mg once-monthly subcutaneousdasgimen, including both
patients treated with AMG 785 and a control grofipatients treated with Forteo, and our Abalopde$C study at the 80 mcg single daily
subcutaneous dose are set forth in the followibtgtaVhile we believe the comparison is usefulvialeating the results of our Phase 2 clinica
study of Abaloparatide-SC, the Abaloparatide-SC Akt 785 studies were separate trials conductetiff@rent sites, and we have not
conducted a head-to-head comparison of the drugsingle clinical trial. Results of an actual hdadhead comparison study may differ
significantly from those set forth in the followiigble. In addition, because the Abaloparatide-8&CAMG 785 studies were separate studies
and because the Abaloparatide-SC Phase 2 clinigly ;wvolved a lesser
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number of patients, differences between the resiilise two studies may not be statistically oniclally meaningful.

Abaloparatide-SC Phase 2(1 AMG 785 Phase 2(2

Product Abaloparatid Fortec AMG 78E Fortec
Dose 80 mc¢ 20 mce 210 m¢ 20 mce
Dosing frequenc Daily Daily Monthly Daily
No. of Injections per dos 1 1 3 1
Type of Injection Sell Sell Physicial Sell
Spine Mean Percent BMD Change from

Baselin—24 weeks / 6 montt +6.7% +5.5% +8.2% +4.£%
Spine Mean Percent BMD Change from

Baselin—48 weeks / 12 montt +12.% +8.€% +11.5% +7.1%
Femoral Neck Mean Percent BMD Chang

from Baselin—48 weeks / 12 montt +4.1% +2.2% +3.7% +1.1%

Q) Abaloparatide-SC Study n=221 (24 weeks) arebn@8 weeks), 5 arms

(2) AMG 785 Study n=419 (12 months), 9 ar
Abaloparatide-SC Phase 1 Clinical Trials

We have completed three Phase 1 clinicdbtof Abaloparatide-SC. Together with our Phasérfical trials and ongoing Phase 3 clinical
trial, over 1,300 patients have received the dfing results of our Phase 1 clinical trials sugtfest Abaloparatid&sC is safe and well tolerat
at doses of up to 1Q0g administered once daily. These studies also dstradad that abaloparatide was 100% bioavailabéanimg it was
absorbed completely, when administered subcutahe@msl that it was rapidly cleared from the ciatidn.

Abaloparatide-TD Phase 2 Clinical Trials

We conducted a randomized, double-blind¢c@bo-controlled, Phase 2 clinical trial of abataide administered via a coated transderme
microarray delivery system in healthy postmenoplawsanen with osteoporosis. This study was condutedne centers in the United States,
Denmark, Poland and Estonia. The primary objeaivihis study was to determine the clinical safatg efficacy of Abaloparatide-TD as
assessed by changes in BMD when compared to alenanal placebo and Abaloparatide-SC. Postmenopausaken between the ages of 55
and 85 (inclusive) who had a BMD t-scare2.5 at the lumbar spine or hip (femoral neck) B¢ADor a BMD t-score< -2 and a prior low
trauma fracture or an additional risk factor wesiadidates for this study. Abaloparatide-TD was auistéred via a sprinfpaded applicator ar
Abaloparatide-SC was administered by a multi-useipgctor into which a multi-dose glass cartridggs inserted. Four weeks prior to the
start of treatment, subjects began taking calcindhnatamin D supplements which were continued tgrmut the study. The study drug was to
be administered once daily for a total of six manth

A total of 372 subjects were screened @@vEere randomized to treatment in one of fivetimemt regimens: transdermal placebo,
Abaloparatide-TD at doses of 50 pg, 100 pg, anduidg0r Abaloparatide-SC at a dose of 80 pug. Twalheshand forty-nine subjects were
included in the safety population and 231 subjeetee included in the modified intent-to-treat, dffim, population.

In the mITT population, the mean percerarae from baseline in total spine BMD after six thsrof treatment increased with
Abaloparatide-TD dose (0.04%, 1.87%, 2.33% and%.856the placebo, Abaloparatide 50 ug, 100 ug &tdulg groups, respectively). The
test for a dose response
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was statistically significant (<0.0001). The medfiedences (active treatmentptacebo) of the percent change from baseline &l sgtine BML
at six months were 1.83%, 2.29% and 2.91% in thaldgdaratide-TD 50 pg, 100 pg, and 150 pg grouppedively. The results for all
Abaloparatide-TD dose groups were statisticallyniigantly better than placebo (p=0.0066, 0.000% «0.0001, respectively).

Figure C—Mean (SEM) Percent Change from Baseline at Sixtihéan Total Spine BMD
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Similar to the findings in the spine, thean percent change from baseline in total hip BNtBraix months of treatment also increased
with Abaloparatide-TD dose (-0.02% and 0.97%, 1.3#% 1.49% in the placebo, abaloparatide 50 pgutpand 150 ug groups. The mean
differences (active treatment—placebo) of the parchange from baseline in total hip BMD at six riimwere 0.99%, 1.33% and 1.51% in
the abaloparatide 50 pg, 100 pg, and 150 pg groepgectively; the results for the 100 pg and 1@ paloparatide-TD dose groups were
statistically significantly better than placebo Q3056 and 0.0018, respectively).
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Figure E—Mean (SEM) Percent Change from Baseline at Sixthéan Total Hip BMD
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Analysis of adverse events was performetteatment-emergent adverse events, or TEAES. Were no apparent differences between
the TEAE profiles across the five treatment gro@pgerall, nasopharyngitis, headache, and influevene the most frequently reported TEA
There were 9 serious TEAES reported, one in thegpla group, two in the 100 pg group, two in the t§Group and four in the
Abaloparatide-SC group. No subjects died duringctherse of this study. All of the events were ceiesit with medical events in women with
postmenopausal osteoporosis, and none of the ewentésconsidered to be related to treatment wittlystnedication.

Assessment of local tolerance consistethdy self-evaluation by the subject of any dermegction for two months during the course of
the study using scales that ranged from 0 to 3 with O indicating no effect. In general, the tgpd symptoms reported were similar acros:
treatment groups, with dermal response and swdbl@ing the effects most frequently reported. lingial analysis, detectable antibodies
against abaloparatide were noted in a subset @rpst However, these antibodies were of low téed there was no evidence of an effect on
safety or attenuation of treatment efficacy.

Abaloparatide-TD Phase 1 Clinical Trials

We have completed three Phase 1 clinicbtthat collectively evaluated the safety, Pidicourse of delivery and dose ranging.
Abaloparatide-TD was characterized by a rapid sded abaloparatide with a faster time to reaclk geacentration as well as more rapid
elimination in plasma compared to Abaloparatide-B€ak transdermal drug levels were consistent Aliddoparatide-SC. An optimal wear
time of five minutes or less was identified as vealleffective sites of application. Abaloparatid@-dhowed an increase in the bone-formation
marker P1NP in serum after seven days of exposarssjstent with bone-building activity, and waswhdo be safe and well tolerated in all
doses studied.
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Preclinical Pharmacology of Abaloparatide
We have completed several preclinical issidif abaloparatide, and the following has beewsho

. Abaloparatide is a potent selective agonist ofthiman PTH type 1 receptor (PTHR1), with bindingesgVity for the RG vs RO
receptor conformation compared to PTH(1-34) anatgreselectivity than PTHrP(1-34);

. In models of calcium mobilization, abaloparatide kagnificantly less calcium mobilizing activity laigher doses than the native
PTHrP(1-34), and less activity than PTH(1-34);

. Abaloparatide-SC stimulates the formation ofmal; well-organized bone and restores BMD in ovdamized (OVX),
osteopenic rats and primates. Mechanical testirgpoés from OVX rats after treatment with AbalopiaexSC revealed a
significant increase in femur and vertebral bomersgith. Similar studies in rats with Abaloparatiti@-show comparable
restoration of bone;

. Abaloparatide-SC was generally well tolerated avairide range of doses in two species, rats andapesnfor up to six months
and nine months, respectively; and

. Safety pharmacology studies demonstrated no réspirgastroenterologic, hematologic, renal or c@mervous system effec

A two-year subcutaneous injection carcinogeniditydg of abaloparatide in Fischer 344 albino rats wsa@nducted to assess the carcinogenic
potential of abaloparatide. The study was conduatedrding to the provisions set forth in Guidal€l-S1A, ICH-S1B, and ICH-S1C(R2),
and the design was accepted by the FDA on Juld®. This study evaluated three abaloparatide idosés. The doses were selected based
upon findings and tolerance in completed long-teaitrtoxicology studies and the anticipated toleeamweer a two-year dosing period.
Furthermore, the doses represent an exposure feutier maximum clinical doses. The study includembhort of rats being dosed with a
daily subcutaneous injection of PTH(1-34)as a pasitontrol, as it was anticipated that osteosaammould be observed with this treatment,
as previously published for both rhPTH(1-34) andThi(1-84) in similar 2-year rat carcinogenicitydits. The positive control served to
provide confirmation of the sensitivity of the made preliminary unaudited analysis of histopattgplalata revealed osteosarcomas in our
carcinogenicity study in both the abaloparatide @méi(1-34) treated groups, with similar frequenegvieeen abaloparatide and PTH(1-34)
when comparing comparable exposure multiples tdtmean therapeutic dose.

We are also conducting one preclinical bgumality study in OVX rats with 12 months of dafypaloparatide-SC dosing and a second
preclinical bone quality study in adult OVX monkegs 16 months. The primary objective of these &sids to determine the long-term
treatment effects of Abaloparatide-SC on bone tudiiffects on bone mass, both cortical bone amdelous bone, will be assessed by BMD
and peripheral quantitative computed tomographg,lmme strength will be determined by biomechartiesting. The mechanisms by which
abaloparatide affects bone will be assessed byatiah of biomarkers of bone turnover and historhometric indices of bone turnover.
Preliminary data from the 1onth rat study has shown marked, dose dependmetises in BMD following abaloparatide treatmemtréase
in bone formation markers, but not bone resorptéom an increase in bone strength.

Preliminary results from the 16-month monk®/X study have also shown significant BMD gaittgyether with increases in bone
strength.

RAD1901

In June 2006, we exclusively licensed tlelgwide rights (except for Japan) to RAD1901 freisai. We are developing RAD1901 as a
SERD in Phase 1 clinical development for the tresthof
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BCBM. We are also developing RAD1901, which at loweses acts as a SERM, in an oral formulationtasagiment for vasomotor
symptoms, commonly known as hot flashes or hoh#tssWe currently intend to advance the developmeRAD1901 for the treatment of
ER-positive BCBM with the initiation of a Phase dical trial in late 2014. We currently intendteek potential collaborations with third
parties in order to advance the development of RIILIfor the treatment of vasomotor symptoms. Weigate the next clinical study would
be a Phase 2b study conducted in approximatelyp2€@ithenopausal women experiencing a high frequehbpt flashes at baseline. The main
study endpoints would be an assessment of the eharige frequency and severity of moderate andredvot flashes.

Pharmacologic Characteristics

RAD1901 has been shown to bind with goddciiwity to the ER alpha, or ER, and to have both estrogen-like and estrogen anisig
effects in different tissues. RAD1901 has also b&ewn to have estrogen-like behavioral effec@nranimal model of partner preference anc
to reduce vasomotor signs in an animal model ofapansal hot flashes. In bone, RAD1901 protectsnatjgionadectomy-induced bone loss.
RAD1901 does not stimulate the endometrium, as stlinvghort and long term animal models, where charnig uterine weight, uterine
epithelial thickness and C3 gene expression arsuned, all of which are sensitive indicators. ndéts in which an estrogen is used to
stimulate the endometrium, RAD1901 antagonizesdsisgen-mediated stimulation of the endometriumeell culture, RAD1901 does not
stimulate replication of breast cancer cells, amdgonizes the stimulating effects of estrogenahproliferation. Furthermore, in breast car
cell lines a dose dependent down regulation obE&Robserved, a process we have shown to involviegsomal mediated degradation
pathway. In a model of breast cancer, in which hulma&ast cancer cells are implanted in mice amvelil to establish tumors in response to
estrogen treatment, we have shown that treatméhtRAD1901 results in decreased tumor growth.

Pharmacokinetic studies with RAD1901 hastalelished the PK profile including demonstratiéigood oral bioavailability and the abili
of RAD1901 to cross the blodatain barrier, with pharmacological levels detelgdb the brain. We believe that RAD1901 is a prsing ager
for development in the treatment both vasomotorggms and a range of estrogen-driven cancers.

Clinical Development Program
Phase 2 Study—Vasomotor Symptoms

A Phase 2 proof of concept study was cotetlin 100 healthy perimenopausal women using doges of RAD1901 (10 mg, 25 mg, 50
mg and 100 mg) and placebo. The primary study e¢cavas reduction in the frequency and severity efi@nate and severe hot flashes. W
a classic dose-response effect was not demonstedfe@dcy was determined to occur at the 10 mgdegel which achieved a statistically
significant reduction in the frequency of moderael severe hot flashes both by linear trend tesbgrrcomparison to placebo and in overall
(mild-moderate-severe) hot flashes at either ttee,ttinree- or four-week time-points. A similar retlon in composite score (frequency x
severity of hot flashes) was identified at all thp@ints, with a statistically significant differemérom placebo achieved at the two-, three- or
four-week time-points. Numerical reductions in mearerity and mean daily severity were observetidialinot reach statistical significance.
We believe RAD1901 is an attractive candidate thrasmcement to Phase 3 development as a treatnrerdasfomotor symptoms.

No SAEs were reported during the courstnefstudy. Overall, 69% of patients had an advevsat, generally mild or moderate in
severity, with some evidence of dose dependend/egaants were most commonly gastrointestinal symptand headaches. Three severe
adverse events occurred, one in
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a placebo patient, none of which were considersatiinent related. Two patients discontinued treatmhea to an adverse event, neither in
relation to the 10 mg dose.

Phase 1 Study—Vasomotor Symptoms

We have conducted Phase 1 safety, PK arabailability studies of RAD1901 in 80 healthy punsnhopausal women over a range of
doses. Bioavailability was determined to be apprately 10%. Food effect was also investigated hrdptesence of food was determined to
increase absorption and delay clearance of RAD1RAN1901 was generally well tolerated at all daseels tested. All study-related adverse
events were of mild intensity, with some increas&eéquency at the higher doses in the multipleedgr®up, most commonly gastrointestinal
symptoms and headaches. There were no SAEs observed

RAD140

RAD140 is a nonsteroidal selective androgeeptor modulator, or SARM, that resulted fromirgarnal drug discovery program that
began in 2005. RAD140 has demonstrated potent éinamdivity on muscle and bone in preclinical sesgland has completed 28-day
preclinical toxicology studies in both rats and rkeys. Because of its high anabolic efficacy, remepelectivity, potent oral activity and long
duration half-life, we believe that RAD140 has ial potential in a number of indications where itherease in lean muscle mass and/or bone
density is beneficial, such as treating the welgés due to cancer cachexia, muscle frailty andogsirosis, and also in the treatment of breast
cancer.

We may choose to advance the RAD140 progméamally or to collaborate with third parties its further development and
commercialization. Therefore, the date of any FIppraval of RAD140, if ever, cannot be predictedhéd time. As a result of the uncertaint
around the development strategy for RAD140, weuaable to determine the duration and costs to cem@glurrent or future clinical stages of
our RAD140 product candidate.

Manufacturing

We do not own or operate manufacturinglitees for the production of any of our product dadates, nor do we have plans to develop ot
own manufacturing operations in the foreseeableréutThe active pharmaceutical ingredient, or APhbaloparatide is manufactured on a
contract basis by Lonza Group Ltd., or Lonza, usirsplid phase peptide synthesis assembly proamedgurification by high pressure liquid
chromatography. Abaloparatide-SC is supplied aguad in a multi-dose cartridge for use in a petivdey device. The multi-dose cartridges
are manufactured by Vetter. Abaloparatide-TD is ofiactured by 3M based on their patented micronetedlenology to administer drugs
through the skin, as an alternative to subcutanagestion. The APl of RAD1901 is manufactured @ on a contract basis by Irix
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Manufacturing is subject to extensive ragjohs that impose various procedural and docurtienteequirements, which govern record
keeping, manufacturing processes and controlsppeesd, quality control and quality assurance, amathgrs. Our contract manufacturing
organizations manufacture our product candidatéemucurrent Good Manufacturing Practice (cGMP) ¢mias. cGMP is a regulatory
standard for the production of pharmaceuticals withbe used in humans.

Intellectual Property

As of December 31, 2013, we owned fiveassUnited States patents, as well as ten pendiBgpatent applications and 45 pending
foreign patent applications in Europe and 15 ofimésdictions, and 12 granted foreign patents. ABecember 31, 2013, we had licenses to
nine U.S. patents as well as numerous foreign eopatts to many of these patents and patent afiplisa
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We strive to protect the proprietary tedogy that we believe is important to our businéssluding seeking and maintaining patents
intended to cover our product candidates and coitigas, their methods of use and processes for thanufacture and any other inventions
that are commercially important to the developrmadrdur business. We also rely on trade secretsategt aspects of our business that are nof
amenable to, or that we do not consider appropfiafeatent protection.

Our success will significantly depend om ability to obtain and maintain patent and otheappietary protection for commercially
important technology and inventions and know-holatesl to our business, defend and enforce our Fatereserve the confidentiality of our
trade secrets and operate without infringing tHehand enforceable patents and proprietary rightsird parties. We also rely on know-how
and continuing technological innovation to devedop maintain our proprietary position.

Abaloparatide

We acquired and maintain exclusive worldwiidhts, excluding Japan, to certain patents, aiatibtechnical information related to
abaloparatide through a license agreement witHfdiat@ of Ipsen. Composition of matter of abalogiéde is claimed in the United States (L
Patent No. 5,969,095), Europe, Australia, Canatija; Hong Kong, South Korea, New Zealand, Pol&usia, Singapore, Mexico, Hungz
and Taiwan. These cases have a normal patent Bapidate of 2016 absent any U.S. patent term sidarunder the Hatch-Waxman Act. The
Phase 3 clinical dosage of abaloparatide by thewgaheous route for use in treating osteoporosievusred by Patent No. 7,803,770 until 202¢
(statutory term extended with 175 days of patemt tedjustment due to delays in patent prosecutjoiié United States Patent and Trademarl
Office, or USPTO) in the United States (absent gatgnt term extension under the Hatch-Waxman Att. intended therapeutic formulation
for Abaloparatide-SC is covered by Patent No. 8338 until 2027 (statutory term extended with 3gsdaf patent term adjustment due to
delays in patent prosecution by the USPTO) in thédd States (absent any patent term extensiornr uheddatchwaxman Act). Related cas
granted in China, Australia, Singapore, Japan, MexXNew Zealand, and Ukraine, and currently pendirgurope, China, Australia, Canada,
Brazil, Singapore, South Korea, India, Israel, NaywRussia, and Hong Kong will have a normal ureeded patent expiration date of 2027.
Patent applications which cover various aspectbafoparatide for microneedle application are pampdi the United States, Australia, Brazil,
Canada, China, Europe, Israel, India, Japan, Kddeajco, New Zealand, Russia, Singapore, and Ukradmy claims that might issue from
these applications will have a normal expiratioted® earlier than 2032.

RAD1901

We exclusively license the worldwide rigtggcept for Japan, to RAD1901 from Eisai. US Paim 7,612,114 (statutory term extended
to 2026 with 967 days of patent term adjustmenéabany HatchA/axman patent term extensions) and US Patent 1869820 (statutory ter
expires 2023) cover RAD1901 as a composition otenas well as the use of RAD1901 for treatmerdstfogen-dependent breast cancer.
Corresponding cases issued in Australia and Camadi@ending in India and Europe will have a norexgliration date in 2023. Patent
applications covering methods of using RAD1901tfer treatment of vasomotor symptoms are penditigeiriJnited States (published as
US 2010/0105733A1) and Canada, and granted in Eueopy issued claims will have a normal expiratio@027. Patent applications covering
a dosage form have been filed in the United Statesgpe, Canada and Mexico, and any claims thalitniggue from these applications will
have a normal expiration date no earlier than 2031.
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RAD140

The composition of matter of, and methoddssing, RAD140 is covered by US Patent No. 8,088 &ffective filing date February 19,
2009, and a statutory term extended to Septemher(2®, with 281 days of patent term adjustmenttdudelays by the USPTO) and U.S.
Patent No. 8,268,872 (effective filing date Febyd8r 2009 with term understood to be extended 2&h days of patent term adjustments).
Related patents have been granted in AustralianJapd Mexico and additional patent applicatiomspEnding in the United States and
numerous additional countries worldwide. Any pataasued from these filings will have a normal extpon in 2029 absent any extensions.

There can be no assurance that an issuedtpeill remain valid and enforceable in a codrtaov through the entire patent term. Should
the validity of a patent be challenged, the legatpss associated with defending the patent cadtty and time consuming. Issued patents
can be subject to oppositions, interferences anelr dhird party challenges that can result in thecation of the patent or that can limit patent
claims such that patent coverage lacks sufficiemadth to protect subject matter that is commédycialevant. Competitors may be able to
circumvent our patents. Development and commereéiadin of pharmaceutical products can be subjestibstantial delays and it is possible
that at the time of commercialization any patentecimg the product has expired or will be in fofoeonly a short period of time following
commercialization. We cannot predict with any dettaif any third party U.S. or foreign patent righor other proprietary rights, will be
deemed infringed by the use of our technology. &dor we predict with certainty which, if any, of seerights will or may be asserted agains
by third parties. Should we need to defend oursehral our partners against any such claims, sulataosts may be incurred. Furthermore,
parties making such claims may be able to obtgimative or other equitable relief, which couldesffively block our ability to develop or
commercialize some or all of our products in th&.land abroad, and could result in the award oftanial damages. In the event of a clair
infringement, we or our partners may be requirediain one or more licenses from a third partyeréhcan be no assurance that we can obts
a license on a reasonable basis should we deesnésgary to obtain rights to an alternative tedmothat meets our needs. The failure to
obtain a license may have a material adverse affecur business, results of operations and firgducoindition.

We also rely on trade secret protectiorofar confidential and proprietary information. Nesarance can be given that we can
meaningfully protect our trade secrets on a compbasis. Others may independently develop sutialigrequivalent confidential and
proprietary information or otherwise gain accessuotrade secrets.

It is our policy to require our employeesl @onsultants, outside scientific collaboratopgrsored researchers and other advisors who
receive confidential information from us to execotafidentiality agreements upon the commencemiatployment or consulting
relationships. These agreements provide that afidential information developed or made knownhese individuals during the course of the
individual's relationship with the company is tokept confidential and is not to be disclosed tadtparties except in specific circumstances.
The agreements provide that all inventions concebyean employee shall be the property of the campahere can be no assurance, how:
that these agreements will provide meaningful ptide or adequate remedies for our trade secrdtwievent of unauthorized use or
disclosure of such information.

Our success will depend in part on ourighib obtain and maintain patent protection, presdrade secrets, prevent third parties from
infringing upon our proprietary rights and operaithout infringing upon the proprietary rights ahers, both in the U.S. and other territories
worldwide.
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Competition

The development and commercialization ¥ peoducts to treat the targeted indications ofmaduct candidates is highly competitive,
and our products, if approved, will face consid&ammpetition from major pharmaceutical, biotedbgy and specialty pharmaceutical
companies, including Amgen, UCB, Merck & Co, Noiartilly, Genentech, Warner Chilcott, Asahi Kased Zosano, that are seeking to
develop products for similar indications. Many of @ompetitors have substantially more resourcas tie do, including financial,
manufacturing, marketing, research and drug dewedmp resources. In addition, many of these compdrage longer operating histories and
more experience than us in preclinical and clind=telopment, manufacturing, regulatory and glaloatmercialization.

Within the osteoporosis market, Lilly latned Forteo in December 2002 as the first-to-maakabolic or bone-building agent for the
treatment of osteoporosis. In April 2012, UCB anmdgen started a Phase 3 clinical trial programHeirtanti-sclerostin antibody for the
treatment of osteoporosis. We are also aware thsdr?o is developing a transdermal form of PTH(1t84) would compete with
Abaloparatide-TD.

RAD1901 for the treatment of BCBM will facempetition from SERDs, CNS-penetrant anti-camggmnts and from chemotherapy
derivatives. RAD1901 will also face competitionrfrather therapeutics in development for the treatroéhot flashes. We cannot assure you
that our current product candidates, if approvell b able to compete effectively against theseary other competing therapeutics that may
become available on the market.

Collaborations and License Agreements
Nordic Bioscience

Abaloparatide-SC Phase 3 Clinical TrialWe entered into a letter of intent with Nordic Batence Clinical Development VII A/S, or
Nordic, on September 3, 2010, pursuant to whicliumeed preparatory work by Nordic in respect ofha$e 3 clinical study of Abaloparat-
SC, which is being conducted at centers operatatidZenter for Clinical and Basic Research, or BC& well as other medical centers.
CCBR is a leading global clinical research orgatidrga or CRO, with extensive experience in globsteoporosis registration studies. The le
of intent was extended on December 15, 2010 anthonary 31, 2011. Pursuant to the letter of irdadtthe two extensions, we funded an
aggregate $1.5 million of preparatory work by Norduring 2010 and funded an additional $750,000reparatory work by Nordic during
2011. On March 29, 2011, we and Nordic enteredan@inical Trial Services Agreement, a Work StageirNB-1, or the Work Statement NB-
1, under such Clinical Trial Services Agreement amdlated Stock Issuance Agreement. Pursuanetd/drk Statement NB-1, Nordic is
managing the Phase 3 clinical trial, or the PhaGé&ir8cal Trial, of Abaloparatide-SC and Nordic illle compensated for such services in a
combination of cash and shares of stock.

The Clinical Trial Services Agreement hdiva-year term unless it is sooner terminated. Thrical Trial Services Agreement or any
Work Statement may be terminated by mutual agreenfahe parties at any time. Either party may aésminate any Work Statement upon a
material breach by the other party with respectutth Work Statement unless such other party cheealleged breach within the notice period
specified in the Clinical Trial Services Agreemenif not capable of being cured within such pettioe party alleged to be in breach
commences efforts to cure and diligently proceedsite. Termination of any Work Statement doesesilt in termination of the Clinical
Trial Services Agreement or any other Work Statememhich remain in force until terminated. Eitlparty may also terminate a Work
Statement if force majeure conditions have prevep@formance by the other party for more thanexified period of time. We may also
terminate a Work Statement with notice to Nordiauthorization and approval to perform any clinstaldy that is the subject of
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such Work Statement is withdrawn by the FDA or otb&icological test results support terminatiorttoé clinical study relating to such Work
Statement for reasons of safety or if the emergehesy adverse event or side effect in the clinitady relating to such Work Statement is of
such magnitude or incidence in our opinion as fipstt termination.

The Clinical Trial Services Agreement camsacustomary risk allocation clauses with eactiypademnifying the other in respect of third-
party claims arising out of or resulting from: ¢h¥ negligence or intentional misconduct of suattyp@s employees, agents or representative:
in performing its obligations under the ClinicaidlrServices Agreement or any Work Statement; &)y breach by such party of its
representations and warranties under the Clinidal Bervices Agreement. We have agreed to indegnhhifrdic in respect of thirgharty claims
for product liability or personal injury arisingoim or relating to our products or our use of anjvdeables. In addition, we separately provide
indemnification to the investigative sites perfangiservices pursuant to Work Statement NB-1 ingespf third-party claims of injury, illness
or adverse side effects to a patient in the sthdyis the subject of Work Statement NB-1 thatadbebutable to the Radius study drug under
indemnification letters with such investigativessit The Clinical Trial Services Agreement contaitier customary clauses and terms as are
common in similar agreements in the industry.

In December 2011, we entered into an amendio the Work Statement NB-1, or the First AmeedimPursuant to the original terms of
the Work Statement NB-1, the study was to be corediinn 10 countries at a specified number of sitiésin each country. The terms of the
First Amendment (1) provided for two additional atries (the United States and India) in which thed tvill be conducted, (2) specified a
certain number of sites within each such additi@aaintry for the conduct of the study and (3) aneehdarious terms and provisions of the
Work Statement NB-1 to reflect the addition of sgolintries and sites within the study's parameRagments to be made by us to Nordic
under the First Amendment in connection with thedrect of the study in such additional countriesderominated in both euros and U.S.
dollars and total up to both €717,700 ($988,919) $289,663, respectively, for the 15 additionatlgtsites in India contemplated by the First
Amendment and up to both €1.2 million ($1.7 mili@and $143,369, respectively, for the five addigibstudy sites in the United States
contemplated by the First Amendment.

In June 2012, we entered into a second dment to the Work Statement NB-1, or the Second dment. Pursuant to the original terms
of the Work Statement NB-1, as amended by the Rirstndment, the study was to be conducted in 1Btcies at a specified number of sites
within each country. The terms of the Second Amesmin(l) increased the overall number of sites ldirayisites in Europe, Brazil and
Argentina and removing other sites, (2) specifiegdain number of sites within each country fa donduct of the study, and (3) amended
various terms and provisions of the Work StatenNBHl to reflect additional services provided atstixig sites and the addition of the new
study sites within the study's parameters. The 1skéonendment also provided that cash payments tdiblander the Clinical Trial Services
Agreement as well as the payment of shares of stodkr the related Stock Issuance Agreement wih s reduced by an amount of €11,941
($16,454) per subject for any subjects enrollebhdia or the United States. Such reductions shefifplied in pro rata monthly installments.
Payments to be made by us to Nordic under the Sleorendment in connection with the extra serviaewigled at existing sites and the
conduct of the study at the new study sites arem@mated in both euros and U.S. dollars and t@af #nillion ($5.1 million) and $205,540,
respectively.

The Work Statement NB-1, as amended on mbee 9, 2011 and June 18, 2012, provides for &abig to approximately €41.2 million
($56.7 million) of euro-denominated payments anoktal of up to approximately $3.2 million of U.Solar-denominated payments over the
course of the Phase 3 Clinical Trial. These paymeraty be adjusted based upon actual sites opewnekl parformed or number of patients
enrolled.

28




Pursuant to the Work Statement lBwe are required to make certain per patient gaysndenominated in both euros and U.S. dollar
each patient enrolled in the Phase 3 Clinical Tadbwed by monthly payments for the duration loé tstudy and final payments in two equal
euro-denominated installments and two equal U.Baddenominated installments. Changes to the Ginstudy schedule may alter the
timing, but not the aggregate amounts of the paysnen

Pursuant to the Stock Issuance Agreemenrtjiblagreed to purchase the equivalent of €371¢8&kries A5 Convertible Preferred Stor
at $8.142 per share, and 64,430 shares of Serte€davertible Preferred Stock were sold to Nordidvay 17, 2011 for proceeds of $525,]
These shares were exchanged in the Merger forgre@ate of 6,443 shares of our Series A-5 Convertbeferred Stock, or Series A-5.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNoatlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock dadls, payable in shares of our Series A-6
Convertible Preferred Stock, or Series A-6, or skaf common stock if our preferred stock has lmeewerted in accordance with its amendec
certificate of incorporation, having an aggregatkig of up to €36.8 million ($50.7 million) (the 8ic Accruing Dividend"). In the event
Nordic sells the shares of Serie-5 or in the event the shares of Series A-5 argeed into common stock in accordance with ourraied
certificate of incorporation, this right to receithe Nordic Accruing Dividend will terminate, butight to receive an equivalent number of
shares of Series A-6 or common stock, as applicablleremain with Nordic as a contractual rightdar the Stock Issuance Agreement.

The Nordic Accruing Dividend related to tRlase 3 Clinical Trial is determined based uperegtimated period that will be required to
complete the Phase 3 Clinical Trial. On the lasifiess day of each calendar quarter (each, an UAtBrate"), beginning with the quarter
ended June 30, 2011, the Company has a liabiliigsiee shares of Series A-6 (or common stock, #fteconversion of the Company's
preferred stock into common stock) to Nordic tisatsferred to as the "Applicable Quarterly Amoumtd is equal to €36.8 million
($50.7 million) (subject to adjustment in accordamgth the applicable provisions of the Second Adment relating to consideration payable
for patients enrolled in India and the U.S.) mithes aggregate value of any prior Nordic Accruingi®&nd accrued divided by the number of
calendar quarters it will take to complete the BHa€linical Trial. To calculate the aggregate nemiif shares due to Nordic in each calendar
quarter, we convert the portion of €36.8 millio®Q$7 million) to accrue in such calendar quartés id.S. dollars using the simple average of
the exchange rate for buying U.S. dollars with edor all Mondays in such calendar quarter. We ttedoulate the aggregate number of share
to accrue in such calendar quarter by dividingUut®. dollar equivalent of the Applicable Quartedlnount, by the greater of (1) the fair
market value of our common stock as of the apple&alocrual Date or (2) $8.142 and rounding downrésuilting quotient to the nearest wt
number. Such shares due to Nordic are to be issbhed declared or paid by our Board of Directorspwahe required to do so upon Nordic's
request, or upon an event of sale. As of Decembg2@13, 438,124 shares of Series A-6 were dueotdiblunder Work Statement NB-1, as
amended, or, after the automatic conversion intoraon stock of our preferred stock, 4,381,240 shaf@sir common stock. In December
2013, Nordic requested that all shares of Seriésaerued as of December 31, 2013 under Work SeateNB-1 be issued. Accordingly, our
Board of Directors declared a dividend to Nordiath#438,124 shares accrued under Work Statement B December 31, 2013.

Abaloparatide-SC Phase 3 Clinical Extensgindy—In February 2013, we entered into a Work Staterh#h3 (the "Work Statement
NB-3") under the Clinical Trial Services Agreemend dne related Stock Issuance Agreement. Pursuaiibtls Statement NB-3, Nordic will
perform an extension study to evaluate six monttstamdard-of-care osteoporosis management follgwie completion of the 18-month

of stock. Under the terms of a Letter of Intent tlva entered into with Nordic on October 22, 20&Risg forth the parties'
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obligations to negotiate in good faith to enteoiifork Statement NB-3, we were required to makagial payment of €806,468
($1.1 million).

Payments in cash to be made to Nordic utideYWork Statement NB-3 are denominated in botbsand U.S. dollars and total up to
€4.5 million ($6.2 million) and $0.6 million, respaely. In addition, the Company will issue to Nardshares of our Series &having a valu
of up to €4.5 million ($6.2 million) and $0.3 mdk, as additional payment for services to be predidnder the Work Statement NB-3 and the
Clinical Trial Services Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement provides beaginning with the quarter ended March 31, 201@&di¢ was entitled to receive quarterly
stock dividends in connection with services perfednunder the Work Statement NB-3, payable in shafr&€gries A-6 or shares of common
stock if our preferred stock has been automaticailyverted into common stock in accordance withasnended certificate of incorporation,
having an aggregate value of up to €4.5 millionZ%6illion) and $0.3 million. In the event Nordiells the shares of Series A-5 or in the even
the shares of Series A-5 are converted into comstaek in accordance with our amended certificat@adrporation, this right to receive the
Nordic Accruing Dividend will terminate, but a rigto receive an equivalent number of shares oSet-6 or common stock, as applicable,
will remain with Nordic as a contractual right undee Stock Issuance Agreement.

The Nordic Accruing Dividend related to tBetension Study is determined based upon the atghperiod that will be required to
complete the Extension Study. On each Accrual Omginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2018will recognize a liability to issue
shares of Series A-6 to Nordic with an Applicablga@erly Amount value equal to €4.5 million ($6.8lion) and $0.3 million minus the
aggregate value of any previously accrued Nordicrding Dividend related to the Extension Study diéd by the number of calendar quarters
it will take to complete the Extension Study. Wécatate the aggregate number of shares of Seri@sddaccrue in such calendar quarter by
dividing such Applicable Quarterly Amount, by thegter of (1) the fair market value of our commtotk as of the applicable Accrual Date
(2) $8.142 and rounding down the resulting quotierthe nearest whole number. Such shares duerttid\are to be issued when declared or
paid by our Board of Directors, who are requireddoso upon Nordic's request, or upon an evendlef &s of December 31, 2013, 25,772
shares of Series A-6 were due to Nordic under Vi&tatement NB-3, or, after the automatic conversitm common stock of the Company's
preferred stock, 257,720 shares of our common stadRecember 2013, Nordic requested that all shaf&eries A-6 accrued as of
December 31, 2013 under Work Statement NB-3 bedtssiiccordingly, our Board of Directors declaredivddend to Nordic of all 25,772
shares accrued under Work Statement NB-3 on Deaedih@013.

On December 6, 2013, we entered into eteftintent, or the Letter of Intent, with Nordighich provides that we and Nordic will
continue to negotiate the definitive terms of anelaiment No. 1 to Work Statement NBer the Amendment, which provides for an addai
18 months of standard-of-care treatment for th@depts enrolled in the Extension Study being genfed under Work Statement NB-3, or the
Second Extension. The Amendment provides for payimens to Nordic of both cash and equity compearah consideration of the services
provided by Nordic, with the equity portion of suobmpensation to be made pursuant to an Amendmzr b the Amended and Restated
Stock Issuance Agreement entered into by the gaaseof May 16, 2011.

Pursuant to the Letter of Intent, we weguired to make an initial payment of €222,573%%4illion) and agreed to commence payment
of the cash compensation due in considerationeofévices being provided by Nordic under the Amegrat. Once the Amendment is fully
executed we will commence payment of both the emshequity compensation stipulated under the Amemdm

Payments in cash to be made by us to Norttier the Letter of Intent and Amendment in cotinaavith the services to be provided are
denominated in both euros and U.S. dollars andl tota
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up to €3.0 million ($4.1 million) and $0.5 milliorespectively. In addition, we will issue to Nordsubject to the execution of the Amendment
shares of its stock having a value of up to €3.0oni($4.1 million) and $0.5 million, as additior@ayment for services to be provided under
the Amendment and the Clinical Trial Services Agreat.

The Letter of Intent will terminate on tearlier of (1) the date on which we and Nordic et the Amendment or (2) February 28, 2!
(pursuant to an extension mutually agreed to bgnasNordic).

Abaloparatide-TD Phase 2 Clinical TriadOn July 26, 2012, we entered into a Letter ofrib{ghe "Letter of Intent”) with Nordic, which
provides that the Company and Nordic will, subjeatompliance by the Company with certain requinetmef our certificate of incorporation
and applicable securities laws, negotiate in gadtth to enter into (1) a Work Statement NB-2 (thi¢otk Statement NB-2"), a draft of which is
attached to the Letter of Intent, and (2) an amendrio the Amended and Restated Stock Issuances g,

In February 2013, we executed the final M\@matement NB-2 under the Clinical Trial Serviéeggeement and the related Stock Issuance
Agreement. Pursuant to the Work Statement NB-2dNawill provide clinical trial services relating the Phase 2 Clinical Trial and will be
compensated for such services in a combinatiomasti @and shares of stock. Payments in cash to be byadls to Nordic under the Work
Statement NB-2 are denominated in both euros aSdddllars and total up to €3.6 million ($5.0 noil) and $0.3 million, respectively. In
addition, we will issue to Nordic shares of ouri€&i-6 stock having a value of up to $2.9 millias,additional payment for services to be
provided under the Work Statement NB-2 and thei€dinTrial Services Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNoatlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock dasdls in connection with services performed
under Work Statement NB-2, payable in shares a&Séy-6, or shares of common stock if our preferred stok been automatically conver
in accordance with its amended certificate of ipooation. In the event Nordic sells the sharesesfeS A-5 or in the event the shares of
Series A-5 are converted into common stock in atauce with the our amended certificate of incorpona this right to receive the Nordic
Accruing Dividend will terminate, but a right toceive an equivalent number of shares of SeriesoAgbmmon stock, as applicable, will
remain with Nordic as a contractual right under$teck Issuance Agreement.

The Nordic Accruing Dividend related to tRkase 2 Clinical Trial is determined based uperegtimated period that will be required to
complete the Phase 2 Clinical Trial. On each Adc#de, beginning with the quarter ended Decemiie2812, we will recognize a liability -
issue shares of Series A-6 to Nordic with an Amllie Quarterly Amount value equal to up to $2.9iariiminus the aggregate value of any
prior Nordic Accruing Dividend related to the Ph&s€linical Study divided by the number of calendaarters it will take to complete the
Phase 2 Clinical Study. We calculate the aggregaeber of shares of Series A-6 to accrue in sutdndar quarter by dividing such
Applicable Quarterly Amount, by the greater of {f1¢ fair market value of our common stock as ofapplicable Accrual Date or (2) $8.142
and rounding down the resulting quotient to ther@stavhole number. Such shares due to Nordic dpe issued when declared or paid by our
Board of Directors, who are required to do so uiondic's request, or upon an event of sale. Asexfdinber 31, 2013, 32,215 shares of
Series A-6 were due to Nordic under Work StaterB¥2, or, after the automatic conversion into comrstock of our preferred stock,
322,150 shares of common stock. In December 20&8jiblrequested that all shares of Series A-6 attas of December 31, 2013 under
Work Statement NB-2 be issued. Accordingly, our iBioaf Directors declared a dividend to Nordic df3#,215 shares accrued under Work
Statement NB-2 on December 31, 2013.
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3M

In December 2008, we entered into a FdagilBigreement with 3M whereby 3M assessed theibélity of developing an Abaloparatide-
TD product and supplying the product for preclihgdies in an animal model. Upon successful cetigu of the feasibility study, during
June 2009, we entered into a Development and @lisiapplies Agreement with 3M under which 3M isp@ssible to develop an
AbaloparatidefD product and manufacture clinical and toxicolegypplies of such patch product for preclinical, $h&a and Phase 2 studie:
an exclusive basis during the term of the agreenteMecember 2012, we entered into an amendmehet®evelopment and Clinical
Supplies Agreement in which 3M agreed to develapraanufacture clinical and toxicology suppliestfoe Phase 3 Abaloparatide-TD clinical
study. In addition, 3M agreed that it will not ysetly owned intellectual property developed dgriend resulting from its work with Radius
Abaloparatide-TD in relation to any other PTH oHRP analogue or derivative. We hold exclusive waitte rights to this use of transdermal
technology.

We pay 3M for services delivered pursuarthe Development and Clinical Supplies Agreemena dee for service or a fee for delivere
basis as specified in the Development and Cliriegdplies Agreement. The Feasibility Agreement expon or around September 2009. We
have paid 3M approximately $15.0 million, in thegeegate, through December 31, 2013 in respectrtices and deliverables delivered
pursuant to the Feasibility Agreement and the Dmumlent and Clinical Supplies Agreement.

The Development and Clinical Supplies Agneat, as amended, provides for services througlember 31, 2017, unless it is sooner
terminated. Either party may terminate the Develepnand Clinical Supplies Agreement upon a matéri@ch by the other party unless suct
other party cures the alleged breach within thé&cagieriod specified in the Development and Clihiapplies Agreement. The Development
and Clinical Supplies Agreement contains customiakyallocation clauses with 3M indemnifying usr@spect of third- party claims arising
from any personal injury to the extent that sucinslresults from 3M's breach of warranty with retpie Abaloparatidé-D meeting applicabl
specifications; and us indemnifying 3M in respeidthird-party claims arising with from our or ougent's use, testing or clinical studies of
Abaloparatide-TD. The Development and Clinical SiggpAgreement contains other customary clauseseants as are common in similar
agreements in the industry.

Ipsen Pharma

In September 2005, we entered into a Liedxgreement with Ipsen, as amended in Septembét &9 May 2011, under which we
exclusively licensed certain Ipsen compound teabmohbnd related patents covering abaloparatidesearch, develop, manufacture and
commercialize certain compounds and related predocll countries, except Japan (where we do alat bommercialization rights) and
France (where our commercialization rights areesttttp certain co-marketing and pocemotion rights retained by Ipsen). Ipsen alsotga us
an exclusive right and license under the Ipsen @amg@ technology and related patents to make anel imade compounds or product in Japar
Ipsen also granted us an exclusive right and leemsler certain Ipsen formulation technology atated patents solely for purposes of
enabling us to develop, manufacture and commezeialbmpounds and products covered by the compaahadlogy license in all countries,
except Japan (where we do not hold commercialimatghts) and France (where our commercializatights are subject to certain co-
marketing and co-promotion rights retained by Ips@¥ith respect to France, if Ipsen exercisesatsnarketing and co-promotion rights then
Ipsen may elect to receive a percentage of thecggtg revenue from the sale of products by bottiegan France (subject to a mid-double
digit percentage cap) and Ipsen shall bear a qmuureing percentage of the costs and expenses é@utchiyrboth parties with respect to such
marketing and promotion efforts in France; Ipseallsiiso pay us a mid-single digit royalty on Ip'seallocable portion of
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aggregate revenue from the sale of products by ftiies in France. Specifically, we licensed U&R&aNo. 5,969,095, (effective filing date
March 29, 1996, statutory term expires March 29,&@ntitled "Analogs of Parathyroid Hormone," U&dht No. 6,544,949, (effective filing
date March 29, 1996, statutory term ends Marct2@96) entitled "Analogs of Parathyroid Hormone" &nel corresponding foreign patents
continuing patent applications.

In addition, we have rights to joint insttual property including rights to US Patent N&0B,770 (effective filing date October 3, 2007,
statutory term extended to March 26, 2028 with d&@$s of patent term adjustment due to delays ianpgirosecution by USPTO), US Patent
No. 8,148,333 (effective filing date October 3, 206tatutory term extended to November 8, 2027 @ftliays of patent term adjustment du
delays in patent prosecution by the USPTO) anda@lpatents and patent applications both in theedr$tates and worldwide that cover the
method of treating osteoporosis using the Phas¢i@i8al dosage strength and form.

As consideration for the rights to abalepiae licensed to us by Ipsen, we paid Ipsen areimdable, non-creditable initial license fee of
$250.0 thousand. The License Agreement requirés nske payments to Ipsen upon the achievemergrtdin development milestones in the
range of $750.0 thousand and upon the achievenfieettain development, regulatory and commercidstones in the range of €10.0 million
to €36.0 million ($13.8 million to $49.6 millionagnd we have, as of December 31, 2013, paid $0I&mih milestone payments and issued
17,326 shares of series A-1 convertible prefertecksto Ipsen on May 17, 2011 in lieu of a €1.0limil cash payment due to Ipsen upon
initiation of the first abaloparatide Phase 3 datistudy. If we or our sublicensees commerciaipeoduct that includes the compound licer
from Ipsen or any analog thereof, we will be oltiéghto pay to Ipsen a fixed five percent royaltgdzhon net sales of the product on a countn
by-country basis until the later of the last to iexpf the licensed patents or for a period of &arg after the first commercial sale in such
country.

The date of the last to expire of the apatatide patents, barring any extension thereapected to be March 26, 2028. In the event the
we sublicense the rights licensed from Ipsen turd party, we are obligated to pay Ipsen a peegnbf certain payments received from such
sublicensee (in lieu of milestone payments notexadd at the time of such sublicense). The appkcpbtcentage is in the low double digit
range. In addition, if we or our sublicensees coneciaéze a product that includes a compound discadéy us based on or derived from
confidential Ipsen know-how, we will be obligatedpay to Ipsen a fixed low single digit royalty oet sales of such product on a country-by-
country basis until the later of the last to exgif@ur patents that cover such product or forropeof 10 years after the first commercial sal
such product in such country. The License Agreemagpires on a country by country basis on the lat€t) the date the last remaining valid
claim in the licensed patents expires, in that égur (2) a period of 10 years after the firstrooercial sale of the licensed products in such
country, unless it is sooner terminated.

The License Agreement may be terminatedsoith prior notice to Ipsen. The License Agreetmeay be terminated by Ipsen upon
notice to us with immediate effect, if we, in arguatry of the world, bring an action or proceedésgking to have any Ipsen patent right
declared invalid or unenforceable. The License Agrent can also be terminated by Ipsen if we failge reasonable commercial efforts to
develop the licensed product for sale and commiezataon in those countries within the territory &re it is commercially reasonable to do so
as contemplated by the License Agreement, ordaikse reasonable commercial efforts to performpbligations under the latest revised
version of the development plan approved by that jgieering committee, or fail to use reasonabtarmercial efforts to launch and sell one
licensed product in those countries within theitty where it is commercially reasonable to doEither party may also terminate the License
Agreement upon a material breach by the other pantigss such other party cures the alleged bre&bimwhe notice period specified in the
License Agreement. Ipsen may terminate the Licé&mggeement in the event that the License Agreensassigned or sublicensed or in the
event that a
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third party acquires us or in the event that waugeqcontrol over a PTH or a PTHrP compound that dinical development or is
commercially available in the territory and thatldwing such assignment, sublicense, acquisitioracquisition of control by us, such
assignee, sublicensee, acquirer or we fail to itieetimetable under the latest revised versiomefdevelopment plan approved by the joint
steering committee under the License Agreement.fAilyre to meet such timetable for purposes ohgecmination clause is deemed a
material breach by us.

The License Agreement contains customaiyailocation clauses with each party indemnifytimg other in respect of third-party claims
arising out of or resulting from: (1) the gross liggnce or willful misconduct of such party, itdikdtes, licensees, distributors or contractors;
(2) any breach by such party of its representatamtswarranties or any other provision of the LemAgreement or any related agreement;
(3) the manufacture on behalf of such party of ksgnsed product or compound; (4) (in the caseosén) the use, development, handling or
commercialization of any licensed compound, licenseduct or the Ipsen formulation technology byoibehalf of Ipsen or any of its
affiliates, licensees, distributors or contractensd (5) (in our case) the making, use, developniemtdling or commercialization of any
licensed compound or any licensed product by avwrbehalf or any of our affiliates, licensees antcactors. The License Agreement cont
other customary clauses and terms as are commnsimilar agreements in the industry. The Licenseefgrent was amended on Septembe
2007 and May 11, 2011.

In January 2006, we entered into a Pharotees Development Agreement as contemplated by ibense Agreement with Ipsen. The
Pharmaceutical Development Agreement as amendadyir2007, February 2009, June 2010 and Decemiddr @@vides for the supply of
guantities of licensed product for use in certdimcal trials. Beaufour Ipsen Industrie SAS, asidiary of Ipsen, is responsible for the supply
of Abaloparatide-SC in liquid form in a multi-dosartridge for use in a pen delivery device. Thetirddse cartridges are manufactured for
Beaufour Ipsen Industrie SAS by Vetter under a isgpaagreement between those parties, and abdioigatde| is manufactured by Lonza for
us and is delivered to Vetter for vialing in thelthdose cartridges. The Pharmaceutical Developmeneement expires upon the completion
of the work plan entered into under the PharmaceLibevelopment Agreement unless it is sooner teatad. The Pharmaceutical
Development Agreement shall automatically termingten termination of the Ipsen license Agreemerd.iéy terminate the Pharmaceutical
Development Agreement at any time and for any reasth a specified prior notice period to Ipserthér party may terminate the
Pharmaceutical Development Agreement upon a mabrgach by the other party with respect to therPlaaeutical Development Agreement
or the Ipsen License Agreement unless such othéy pares the alleged breach within the noticequkspecified in the Development and
Manufacturing Services Agreement. The Pharmacduieaelopment Agreement contains other customaaysgs and terms as are commc
similar agreements in the industry.

Eisai

In June 2006, we exclusively licensed tlrelawide (except Japan) rights to research, devetgmufacture and commercialize RAD1901
and related products from Eisai. Specifically, wemhsed the patent application that subsequersietsas US Patent No. 7,612,114 (effective
filing date December 25, 2003, statutory term eséshto August 18, 2026 with 967 days of patent tedjustment due to delays by the
USPTO) entitled "Selective Estrogen Receptor Maoujathe corresponding foreign patent applicatiand continuing patent applications. As
consideration for the rights to RAD1901, we paiddtian initial license fee of $0.5 million. In camtion with the License Agreement, we have
agreed to pay Eisai certain fees in the range df illion to $20.0 million (inclusive of the $0raillion initial license fee), payable upon the
achievement of certain clinical and regulatory stibmes.
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Should a product covered by the licenselinelogy be commercialized, we will be obligategh&y to Eisai royalties in a variable mid-
single digit range based on net sales of the praglua country-by-country basis until the latetttd last to expire of the licensed patents or th
expiration of data protection clauses covering suciuct in such country; the royalty rate shadirttbe subject to reduction and the royalty
obligation will expire at such time as sales offiavgeneric version of such product account for enitrian a specified minimum percentage of
the total sales of all products that contain therlsed compound. The latest valid claim to exjpiag;ing any extension thereof, is expected on
August 18, 2026.

We were also granted the right to sublieangh prior written approval from Eisai, and sultje a right of first negotiation held by Eise
we seek to grant sublicenses limited to particAkian countries. If we sublicense the licensednetdygy to a third party, we will be obligated
to pay Eisai, in addition to the milestones refeszhabove, a fixed low double digit percentageesfain fees we receive from such sublicense
and royalties in low single digit range based onsades of the sublicensee. The license agreemgpires on a country by country basis on the
later of (1) date the last remaining valid clainthe licensed patents expires, lapses or is insditlin that country, the product is not covered
by data protection clauses, and the sales of laggnkric version of the product account for moenth specified percentage of the total sal
all pharmaceutical products containing the licensampound in that country; or (2) a period of 1@rgeafter the first commercial sale of the
licensed products in such country, unless it imgoterminated.

The license agreement may be terminatagshyith respect to the entire territory with primtice to Eisai if we reasonably determine tha
the medical/scientific, technical, regulatory onuuoercial profile of the licensed product does mstify continued development or marketing.
The license agreement can also be terminated lay &isa country by country basis at any time pigathe date on which we have submittec
either an FDA NDA approval or an EMA marketing apal with respect to a licensed product, upon psidtten notice to us if Eisai makes a
good faith determination that we have not used cerorally reasonable efforts to develop the licensemtiuct in the territory having reference
to prevailing principles and time scales associatitd the development, clinical testing and goveentrapproval of products of a like nature to
such licensed product, unless such default is cwitkdn the period specified in the license agreetme if not capable of being cured within
such period we commence efforts to cure and mdlgedt efforts to do so. Either party may also tewae the license agreement upon a
material breach by the other party unless suchr gtéuety cures the alleged breach within the ngtiegod specified in the license agreement.
Either party may also terminate the license agre¢mngon the bankruptcy or insolvency of the othemtyn Eisai may also terminate the license
agreement with prior notice if we are acquireddyif we transfer all of our pharmaceutical busiassets (or an essential part of such asset:s
or more than 50% of our voting stock to, any thiedty person or organization, or otherwise comeeutige control of, such a person or
organization, whether resulting from merger, adtjois, consolidation or otherwise in the event tBétai reasonably determines that the pe
or organization assuming control of us is not ablperform the license agreement with the sameesegf skill and diligence that we would
use, such determination being made with referemtlect following criteria with respect to the perswrorganization assuming control of us:
(1) whether such person or organization has thenfial resources to assume our obligations witheetsto development and
commercialization of products; (2) whether suchsparor organization has personnel with skill angegience adequate to assume our
obligations with respect to development and comiakzation of products at the stage of developnat commercialization as of the date of
such change; and (3) whether such person or omfanizexpressly assumes all obligations imposedsany the license agreement and agrees
to dedicate personnel and financial resourcesgaévelopment and commercialization of the licenmeduct that are at least as great as thos
provided by us. Eisai shall further have the righterminate if the acquiring person or organizati@) has any material and active litigations
with Eisai; (b) is a
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certain type of pharmaceutical company; or (c) limstile takeover bidder against us which has renkapproved by our board of directors as
constituted immediately prior to such change oftain

The license agreement contains customakyatiocation clauses with each party indemnifytimg other in respect of third-party claims
arising out of or resulting from: (1) the negligenceckless or intentional acts or omissions ohqarty, its affiliates, and licensees; (2) any
breach by such party of its representations andanties; and (3) any personal injury arising outhef labeling, packaging, package insert,
other materials or promotional claims with resgeatny licensed product by such party or its &ifés, licensees or distributors in the territory
(in our case) or Japan (in the case of Eisai).lik@ase agreement contains other customary claarsggerms as are common in similar
agreements in the industry.

Lonza

In October 2007, we entered into a Develephand Manufacturing Services Agreement with Lo¥a and Lonza have entered into a
series of Work Orders pursuant to the DevelopmedtManufacturing Services Agreement pursuant tc&lvhonza has performed
pharmaceutical development and manufacturing ses\fior our abaloparatide product. We pay Lonzaéovices rendered and deliverables
delivered pursuant to these work orders on a feedtvice basis as specified in the applicable veteakement. The Development and
Manufacturing Services Agreement will expire on Baber 31, 2015 unless it is sooner terminatedjsaadbject to renewal by us for
successive multiple-year terms with notice to Lonza

The Development and Manufacturing Servisgeement or any Work Order may be terminated byeeiparty upon a material breach by
the other party with respect to the Developmentiadufacturing Services Agreement unless such gty cures the alleged breach within
the notice period specified in the Development siachufacturing Services Agreement. Either party milsp terminate a Work Order if force
majeure conditions have prevented performance @ptiher party for more than a specified periodroétwith respect to such Work Order.
Termination of any Work Order for force majeurelkhat result in termination of the Development avfidnufacturing Services Agreement or
any other Work Orders, which shall remain in fouedil terminated. Either party may also termindte Development and Manufacturing
Services Agreement upon the bankruptcy or insoly@fithe other party. We may also terminate theddgyment and Manufacturing Services
Agreement or any Work Order with prior notice toniza for convenience. We may also terminate the Bpwgent and Manufacturing Servic
Agreement or any Work Order if we reasonably deteenthat Lonza is or will be unable to perform #pplicable services in accordance with
the agreed upon timeframe and budget set fortharapplicable Work Order, or if Lonza fails to abtar maintain any material governmental
licenses or approvals required in connection wiithsservices.

The Development and Manufacturing Servisgseement contains customary risk allocation clawsigh each party indemnifying the
other in respect of third- party claims arising otibr resulting from: (i) the negligence or willfionisconduct of such party, its affiliates and
their respective officers, directors, employees aments in performing its obligations under the &eping and Manufacturing Services
Agreement; and (ii) any breach by such party oféfgesentations and warranties under the Developamel Manufacturing Services
Agreement. We have agreed to indemnify Lonza ipaetof third-party claims arising from or relatitmthe use of our product.

On December 23, 2011, we entered into V@nder No. 4, or Work Order No. 4, under that cerfaevelopment and Manufacturing
Services Agreement with Lonza. Pursuant to WorkeDNb. 4, Lonza agreed to perform activities regglifor our filing of an NDA in the
United States with the FDA and similar applicatioeguired by the EMA and other authorities, exahgdauthorities in Japan, for abalopara
including production of three validation batchebe3e activities will provide for full process gdiglation and all required documentation
necessary for regulatory submissions of the
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NDA to the FDA and the NDA equivalents to such othethorities. The total compensation payable tozaofrom us for services perform
under Work Order No. 4 is up to €363.5 thousand pluto €1.1 million ($500.9 thousand, plus upxd$nillion), for the regulatory
qualification and validation campaigns.

Charles River Laboratories

In March 2004, we entered into a Laborat®eyvices and Confidentiality Agreement with Chafdver Laboratories, Inc., or CRLI, and
amended this agreement on November 7, 2008. Wedrdeeed into a series of letter agreements withI@Rrsuant to this Laboratory
Services and Confidentiality Agreement, covering performance of certain testing and analyticalises concerning our product candidates.
We pay CRLI for services rendered and deliverabdivered pursuant to these letter agreementsfee for service basis. We are permitted tc
terminate any on-going study under the Laborat@nviSes and Confidentiality Agreement at any tinithythe specified prior notice to CRLI
and subject to the payment of applicable studyscastl fees. Either party may terminate the Laboyéervices and Confidentiality Agreem
at any time with the specified prior notice to titeer party and subject to the completion of amntbn-going studies and the payment by us c
any fees for such studies. Either party may alsuoiteate the Laboratory Services and Confidentidliyeement upon a material breach by the
other party unless such other party cures theeadidgeach within the notice period specified inltaboratory Services and Confidentiality
Agreement.

The Laboratory Services and Confidentiafigreement contains customary risk allocation asusith each party indemnifying the other
in respect of third- party claims arising out ofilmiconnection with the negligence or willful miswuct of such party. We also agreed to
indemnify CRLI in respect of third- party claimdsing out of or in connection with the manufactuistribution, use, sale or other disposition
by us, or any of our distributors, customers, fignisees or representatives, of any of our produqisocesses and/or any other substances
which are produced, purified, tested or vialed IRLC We also agreed to indemnify CRLI against ang all liability that may be incurred as
the result of any contact by us or our employedl @RLI's animals, tissues or specimens durings/tsi CRLI or after delivery of any
samples/specimens to us. The Laboratory Serviad€anfidentiality Agreement contains other custon@auses and terms as are common i
similar agreements in the industry.

Government Regulation
United States—FDA Process

The research, development, testing, matwfacabeling, promotion, advertising, distributiand marketing, among other things, of our
products are extensively regulated by governmenittiorities in the United States and other cousittiethe United States, the FDA regulates
drugs under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmeticoit¢he FDCA, and its implementing regulationaillire to comply with the applicable
United States requirements may subject us to adtrative or judicial sanctions, such as FDA refusapprove pending NDAs, warning
letters, product recalls, product seizures, totadastial suspension of production or distributiotjunctions, and/or criminal prosecution. We
expect abaloparatide, RAD1901 and RAD140 will elaetsubject to review by the FDA as a drug under Nitehdards though we currently
only have an active IND application in relatioretmaloparatide in the United States. We anticighitegyfan investigational new drug applicati
for RAD1901 with the FDA in 2014, as previous saslof RAD1901 were performed outside the UnitedeSta
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Approval Process-None of our drugs may be marketed in the UnitedeStuntil the drug has received FDA approval. §tees required
to be completed before a drug may be marketeceitttited States include:

. preclinical laboratory tests, animal studies, amdnulation studies, all performed in accordancénhie FDA's Good Laborato
Practice, or GLP, regulations;

. submission to the FDA of an IND application farman clinical testing, which must become effechefore human clinical
trials may begin and must be updated annually;

. adequate and well-controlled human clinical trialestablish the safety and efficacy of the drugefich indication to FDA's
satisfaction;

. submission to the FDA of an NDA;

. satisfactory completion of an FDA inspection of thanufacturing facility or facilities at which tlieug is produced to assess
compliance with cGMP, regulations; and

. FDA review and approval of the NDA.

Preclinical tests include laboratory evélwaof product chemistry, toxicity, and formulaticas well as animal studies. The conduct of th
preclinical tests and formulation of the compoufatgesting must comply with federal regulationsl@aquirements. The results of the
preclinical tests, together with manufacturing mfiation and analytical data, are submitted to thé s part of an IND application, which
must become effective before human clinical tabsy begin. An IND application will automatically dmme effective 30 days after receipt by
the FDA, unless before that time the FDA raisesceams or questions about issues such as the cooidihet trials as outlined in the IND
application. In such a case, the IND applicatioongor and the FDA must resolve any outstanding EBrcerns or questions before clinical
trials can proceed. We cannot be sure that subonigdian IND application will result in the FDA aWing clinical trials to begin.

Clinical trials involve the administratiom the investigational drug to human subjects uitdersupervision of qualified investigators.
Clinical trials are conducted under protocols digtgithe objectives of the study, the parametetsetased in monitoring safety, and the
effectiveness criteria to be evaluated. Each potowist be submitted to the FDA as part of the I&{iplication.

Clinical trials necessary for product apgicare typically conducted in three sequentialsgisabut the Phases may overlap. The study
protocol and informed consent information for stsdpjects in clinical trials must also be approlgdin Institutional Review Board, or IRB,
for each institution where the trials will be cowted, and each IRB must monitor the study until pletion. Study subjects must provide
informed consent and sign an informed consent teefore participating in a clinical trial. Clinictdsting also must satisfy extensive good
clinical practice, or GCP, regulations and regoladifor informed consent and privacy of individyatlentifiable information.

Phase 1 usually involves the initial intuotion of the investigational drug into people t@ale@ate its short-term safety, dosage tolerance,
metabolism, pharmacokinetics and pharmacologioastiand, if possible, to gain an early indicatibits effectiveness. Phase 1 studies are
usually conducted in healthy individuals and areintended to treat disease or illness. HoweveasBHib studies are conducted in healthy
volunteers or in patients diagnosed with the dise@ascondition for which the study drug is intengetio demonstrate some biomarker,
surrogate, or possibly clinical outcome that cduddconsidered for "proof of concept." Proof of ogpicin a Phase 1b study typically confirms
the hypothesis that the current prediction of bideag or outcome benefit is compatible with the hredsm of action.

Phase 2 usually involves trials in a lidifmtient population to: (1) evaluate dosage tolegaand appropriate dosage; (2) identify possibl
adverse effects and safety risks; and (3) evajuatiéninarily
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the efficacy of the drug for specific indicatioi8everal different doses of the drug may be looked Bhase 2 to see which dose has the de
effects. Patients are monitored for side effectsfanany improvement in their iliness, symptomsboth.

Phase 3 trials usually further evaluatmeicdil efficacy and test further for safety by usthg drug in its final form in an expanded patient
population. A Phase 3 trial usually compares how the study drug works compared with an inactilecpbo and/or another approved
medication. One group of patients may receive #we drug being tested, while another group of p&tiemy receive the comparator drug
(already approved drug for the disease being sti)idie placebo.

There can be no assurance that Phase 4¢ Rt Phase 3 testing will be completed succbssiithin any specified period of time, if at
all. Furthermore, we or the FDA or an IRB (withpest to a particular study site) may suspend dirtigals at any time on various grounds,
including a finding that the subjects or patientslaeing exposed to an unacceptable health risk.

The FDCA permits FDA and the IND applicatgponsor to agree in writing on the design ane sizlinical studies intended to form the
primary basis of an effectiveness claim in an NDAis process is known as a Special Protocol Assessrar SPA. Under an SPA, the FDA
agrees to not alter its position with respect tecaghcy of the design, execution or analyses oflthial trial intended to form the primary be
of an effectiveness claim in an NDA without the spar's agreement, unless the FDA identifies a anbiat scientific issue essential to
determining the safety or efficacy of the drug afesting begins.

Assuming successful completion of the regpliclinical testing, the results of the preclihistudies and of the clinical studies, together
with other detailed information, including inforn@t on the manufacture and composition of the dang,submitted to the FDA in the form of
an NDA requesting approval to market the producofte or more indications. The testing and apprpvatess requires substantial time, effor
and financial resources. The FDA reviews the apfibt and may deem it to be inadequate, and corepaainnot be sure that any approval
will be granted on a timely basis, if at all. THBA may also refer the application to an approprateisory committee, typically a panel of
clinicians, for review, evaluation and a recommeéiuntieas to whether the application should be apgiloThe FDA is not bound by the
recommendations of the advisory committee, buytgitcally follows such recommendations.

The FDA has various programs, including feeck, breakthrough designation, priority reviamd accelerated approval that are intend
expedite or simplify the process for reviewing dsagnd/or provide for approval on the basis of gate endpoints. Generally, drugs that may
be eligible for one or more of these programs laosé intended to treat serious or life-threateommgitions, those with the potential to addres:
unmet medical needs, and those that provide mefahipgnefit over existing treatments. From timaiboe, we anticipate applying for orphan
designation and/or breakthrough designation fogranms that we believe meet the applicable FDA risitéA company cannot be sure that any
of its drugs will qualify for any of these progranes even if a drug does qualify, that the revienetwill be reduced.

Before approving an NDA, the FDA usualljlwispect the facility or the facilities at whi¢he drug is manufactured and will not approve
the product unless the manufacturing is in compkanith cGMP regulations. If the NDA and the mantifising facilities are deemed
acceptable by the FDA, it may issue an approvigiedr in some cases, an approvable letter foklblayean approval letter. Both letters usually
contain a number of conditions that must be metder to secure final approval of the NDA. When driHose conditions have been met to
FDA's satisfaction, the FDA will issue an approleier. The approval letter authorizes commerciatkating of the drug for specific
indications. As a condition of NDA approval, the &Ahay require post-marketing testing and survedé&ato monitor the drug's safety or
efficacy, or impose other conditions. Approval nadgo be contingent on a Risk Evaluation and Mita@yaBtrategy, or REMS, that limits the
labeling, distribution
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or promotion of a drug product. Once issued, thé FRiay withdraw product approval if ongoing regulgtoequirements are not met or if
safety problems occur after the product reachemtir&et.

After approval, certain changes to the aped product, such as adding new indications, ngakartain manufacturing changes or making
certain additional labeling claims, are subjedutther FDA review and approval. Before a compaay market products for additional
indications, it must obtain additional approvalsnfrthe FDA. Obtaining approval for a new indicatgemerally requires that additional clinical
studies be conducted. A company cannot be sureatlyaadditional approval for new indications foygmoduct candidate will be approved on
a timely basis, or at all.

Post-Approval RequirementsOften times, even after a drug has been approyelebFDA for sale, the FDA may require that certai
post-approval requirements be satisfied, includigconduct of additional clinical studies. If symstapproval conditions are not satisfied,
FDA may withdraw its approval of the drug. In adiatit holders of an approved NDA are required td:ré€port certain adverse reactions to the
FDA, (2) comply with certain requirements concegnadvertising and promotional labeling for theiogucts, and (3) continue to have quality
control and manufacturing procedures conform to €a®gulations after approval. The FDA periodicaligpects the sponsor's records relatec
to safety reporting and/or manufacturing facilititgs latter effort includes assessment of ongaimgpliance with cGMP regulations.
Accordingly, manufacturers must continue to exptime, money and effort in the area of productiod gnality control to maintain cGMP
compliance. We have used and intend to continwsécahirdparty manufacturers to produce our products inadirand commercial quantitie
and future FDA inspections may identify compliamssues at the facilities of our contract manufaatsithat may disrupt production or
distribution, or require substantial resourcesdweact. In addition, discovery of problems withraguct after approval may result in restrictic
on a product, including withdrawal of the producinfi the market.

Hatch-Waxman Aet-Under the Drug Price Competition and Patent Teast&ation Act of 1984, also known as the Hatch-kvax Act,
Congress created an abbreviated FDA review prdoeggeneric versions of pioneer (brand name) dmeglpcts. In considering whether to
approve such a generic drug product, the FDA reguiiat an Abbreviated New Drug Application, or ANapplicant demonstrate, among
other things, that the proposed generic drug prislactive ingredient is the same as that of tlereéace product, that any impurities in the
proposed product do not affect the product's safesffectiveness, and that its manufacturing pgees and methods ensure the consistent
potency and purity of its proposed product.

The Hatch-Waxman Act provides five yearslaffa exclusivity for new chemical entities whiagleyents the FDA from accepting ANDAs
and 505(b)(2) applications containing the protectetive ingredient. We expect to be eligible feefyears of data exclusivity following any
FDA approval of Abaloparatide-SC.

The Hatch-Waxman Act also provides thresry®f exclusivity for applications containing tiesults of new clinical investigations (other
than bioavailability studies) essential to the F®approval of new uses of approved products, ssictew indications, delivery mechanisms,
dosage forms, strengths, or conditions of useekample, if Abaloparatide-SC is approved for conuiadization and we are successful in
performing a clinical trial of AbaloparatidED that provides a new basis for approval (a défférdelivery mechanism) it is possible that we
become eligible for an additional three year penbdata exclusivity which protects against therappl of ANDAs and 505(b)(2) applications
for the protected use but will not prohibit the FErAm accepting or approving ANDAs or 505(b)(2) bggttions for other products containing
the same active ingredient.

The Hatch-Waxman Act requires NDA applisaaihd NDA holders to provide certain informatiomatypatents related to the drug for
listing in the FDA's list of Approved Drug Produetith Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluations (commdmigwn as the Orange Book). ANDA
and 505(b)(2) applicants must then certify regaydiach of the patents listed with the FDA for tbference
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product. A certification that a listed patent igatid or will not be infringed by the marketing thife applicant's product is called a "Paragrap
certification." If the ANDA or 505(b)(2) applicaptrovides such a notification of patent invalidityrmn-infringement, then the FDA may
accept the ANDA or 505(b)(2) application beginnfogr years after approval of the NDA. If an ANDA 505(b)(2) application containing a
Paragraph IV certification is submitted to the FBrd accepted as a reviewable filing by the agetheyANDA or 505(b)(2) applicant then
must provide, within 20 days, notice to the NDAdwl and patent owner stating that the applicatambeen submitted and providing the
factual and legal basis for the applicant's opirfat the patent is invalid or not infringed. ThBAlholder or patent owner then may file suit
against the ANDA or 505(b)(2) applicant for pateritingement. If this is done within 45 days of eddng notice of the Paragraph IV
certification, a one-time 30-month stay of the FBAbility to approve the ANDA or 505(b)(2) applicet is triggered. The 30-month stay
begins at the end of the NDA holder's data excitysperiod, or, if data exclusivity has expired, ke date that the patent holder is notified of
the submission of the ANDA. The FDA may approve pgheposed product before the expiration of the 20w stay if a court finds the patent
invalid or not infringed or if the court shorteietperiod because the parties have failed to catger expediting the litigation.

European Unior—EMA Process

In the EU, medicinal products are authatifmdlowing a similar demanding process as thatireg in the United States and applications
are based on the ICH Common Technical Documerdr Rrisubmitting a European Marketing Authorizatigoplication, or MAA, it is
necessary to gain approval of a detailed Pedibtviestigation Plan, or PIP, with the European Miwis Agency's Pediatric Committee, or
PDCO. After gaining PIP approval, medicines cambthorized in the European Union by using eitherdintralized authorization procedure
or national authorization procedures.

Centralized procedure-Under the centralized procedure, after the EMAéssan opinion, the European Commission issuasgéesi
marketing authorization valid across the EU, ad a®lceland, Liechtenstein and Norway. The ceizgdlprocedure is compulsory for human
medicines that are: derived from biotechnology psses, such as genetic engineering, contain actexg aubstance indicated for the
treatment of certain diseases, such as HIV/AID8¢cen diabetes, neurodegenerative disorders omamtione diseases and other immune
dysfunctions, and officially designated orphan rogdis. For medicines that do not fall within theagegories, an applicant has the option of
submitting an application for a centralized mankgtauthorization to the EMA, as long as the medidancerned is a significant therapeutic,
scientific or technical innovation, or if its autimation would be in the interest of public health.

National authorization proceduresThere are also two other possible routes to aionedicinal products in several countries, which
are available for products that fall outside thepscof the centralized procedure:

. Decentralized procedure Using the decentralized procedure, an applicayt apply for simultaneous authorization in more
than one EU country of a medicinal product thatratsyet been authorized in any EU country and dloass not fall within the
mandatory scope of the centralized procedure.

. Mutual recognition procedure.ln the mutual recognition procedure, a mediciirst authorized in one EU Member State, in
accordance with the national procedures of thahtguThereafter, further marketing authorizaticas be sought from other |
countries in a procedure whereby the countries ol agree to recognize the validity of the odginational marketing
authorization.
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In light of the fact that there is no pglat the EU level governing pricing and reimbursamthe 27 EU Member States each have
developed their own, often varying, approachesnamy EU Member States, pricing negotiations must tdace between the holder of the
marketing authorization and the competent natian#thorities before the product is sold in their keaith the holder of the marketing
authorization required to provide evidence demattisiyy the pharmaco-economic superiority of its piidn comparison with directly and
indirectly competing products. We have reviewed @ewelopment program, proposed Phase 3 study desidroverall non-clinical and
clinical data package and believe they supportréutagulatory approval of Abaloparatide-SC in thé Eh December 2012, we met with the
Swedish Medical Products Agency, or MPA, to revibe design and the overall progress of the Phasedy. The MPA confirmed that the
program, based on the current single pivotal tieign, could support the submission and poteapipioval of an MAA in the EU, depending
on the results of the Phase 3 study.

Good manufacturing practicesLike the FDA, the EMA, the competent authoritidsh®e EU Member States and other regulatory
agencies regulate and inspect equipment, facibiesprocesses used in the manufacturing of phauiaal and biologic products prior to
approving a product. If, after receiving clearafroen regulatory agencies, a company makes a mhtdrdamge in manufacturing equipment,
location, or process, additional regulatory revaavd approval may be required. Once we or our parcemmercialize products, we will be
required to comply with cGMP, and product-spediéigulations enforced by, the European CommissimEMA and the competent
authorities of EU Member States following produgpeoval. Also like the FDA, the EMA, the competenthorities of the EU Member States
and other regulatory agencies also conduct regodaindic visits to re-inspect equipment, facibtiand processes following the initial approva
of a product. If, as a result of these inspectidns,determined that our or our partners' equiptcilities, or processes do not comply with
applicable regulations and conditions of produgtrapal, regulatory agencies may seek civil, crirhvaadministrative sanctions and/or
remedies against us, including the suspension ofmramufacturing operations or the withdrawal of product from the market.

Data and Market Exclusivity-Similar to the United States, there is a procesgéneric versions of innovator drug productdhm EU.
Abridged applications for the authorization of geneersions of drugs authorized by EMA can be sitigih to the EMA through a centralized
procedure referencing the innovator's data and detrating bioequivalence to the reference procaropng other things.

New medicinal products in the EU can reeadight years of data exclusivity coupled with tears of market exclusivity, and a potential
one year extension, if the marketing authorizatiooisler obtains an authorization for one or mon tieerapeutic indications that demonstr:
"significant clinical benefit" in comparison witlxisting therapies; this system is usually refemeeds "8+2+1". We expect to be eligible for at
least ten years of market exclusivity following approval of Abaloparatide-SC.

Abridged applications cannot rely on arowettor's data until after expiry of the 8 year datelusivity term; applications for a generic
product can be filed but the product cannot be etedkuntil the end of the market exclusivity term.

Other International Markets—Drug approval process

In some international markets (e.g., Cluindapan), although data generated in United StatEd) trials may be submitted in support of a
marketing authorization application, additionahi@dal trials conducted in the host territory, ardsting people of the ethnicity of the host
territory, may be required prior to the filing g@oval of marketing applications within the coyntr
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Pricing and Reimbursemer

In the United States and internationaléfes of products that we market in the future, @mdability to generate revenues on such sales,
are dependent, in significant part, on the avditgtand level of reimbursement from third- partgyers such as state and federal government:
managed care providers and private insurance pRangte insurers, such as health maintenance aggoms and managed care providers,
have implemented cost-cutting and reimbursemetiéiivies and likely will continue to do so in thetdire. These include establishing
formularies that govern the drugs and biologics il be offered and also the out-of-pocket obtigas of member patients for such products.
In addition, particularly in the United States andreasingly in other countries, we may be requitegrovide discounts and pay rebates to !
and federal governments and agencies in connegitbrpurchases of our products that are reimbubgesuch entities. It is possible that future
legislation in the United States and other juridits could be enacted which could potentially istghe reimbursement rates for the products
we are developing and may develop in the futureasal could further impact the levels of discowand rebates paid to federal and state
government entities. Any legislation that impadbisse areas could impact, in a significant way anility to generate revenues from sales of
products that, if successfully developed, we btmgarket.

There is no legislation at the EU level gming the pricing and reimbursement of medicimabpcts in the EU. As a result, the competen
authorities of each of the 27 EU Member States laaepted individual strategies regulating the pgcand reimbursement of medicinal
products in their territory. These strategies oftary widely in nature, scope and application. Hegrea major element that they have in
common is an increased move towards reductionamelmbursement price of medicinal products, actdn in the number and type of
products selected for reimbursement and an incdgasference for generic products over innovatioglpcts. These efforts have mostly been
executed through these countries' existing prioatrol methodologies. The government of the UK amued the phase-out of its established
Pharmaceutical Pricing Reimbursement Scheme appinalanuary 2014 and the adoption of a new vahset pricing approach, at least for
new product introductions. Under this approacla aomplete departure from established methodolpggé@abursement levels of each drug
be explicitly based on an assessment of valuejigakt the benefits for the patient, unmet neeekapeutic innovation, and benefit to societ
a whole. It is increasingly common in many EU Mem8tates for Marketing Authorization Holders torkquired to demonstrate the
pharmaco-economic superiority of their products@spared to products already subject to pricingraimdbursement in specific countries. In
order for drugs to be evaluated positively undehseriteria, pharmaceutical companies may need-texamine, and consider altering, a
number of traditional functions relating to theesion, study, and management of drugs, whetheectly marketed, under development, or
being evaluated as candidates for research anefetapment.

Future legislation, including the curreetsions being considered at the federal levelénthited States and at the national level in EU
Member States, or regulatory actions implementaognt or future legislation may have a significafifiéct on our business. Our ability to
successfully commercialize products depends inqrathe extent to which reimbursement for the cobtsur products and related treatments
will be available in the United States and worldevfdom government health administration authorjtgésate health insurers and other
organizations. Substantial uncertainty exists @heaeimbursement status of newly approved heaighproducts by third-party payers.

Sales and Marketing

The FDA regulates all advertising and prtoroactivities for products under its jurisdictiboth prior to and after approval. A company
can make only those claims relating to safety dficaey that are approved by the FDA. Physiciany mescribe legally available drugs for
uses that are not
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described in the drug's labeling and that diffenfrthose tested by us and approved by the FDA. 8iidabel uses are common across met
specialties, and often reflect a physician's betiaf the off-label use is the best treatmentHergatients. The FDA does not regulate the
behavior of physicians in their choice of treatnsebuut FDA regulations do impose stringent restnict on manufacturers' communications
regarding off-label uses. Failure to comply witlpkgable FDA requirements may subject a compargdicerse publicity, enforcement action
by the FDA, corrective advertising, consent decegabthe full range of civil and criminal penaltegilable to the FDA.

We may also be subject to various fedardlstate laws pertaining to healthcare "fraud dndse," including anti-kickback laws and false
claims laws. Anti-kickback laws make it illegal famprescription drug manufacturer to solicit, offerceive, or pay any remuneration in
exchange for, or to induce, the referral of businesluding the purchase or prescription of aipaldr drug. Due to the breadth of the statuton
provisions and the absence of guidance in the fifrregulations and very few court decisions addngsimdustry practices, it is possible that
our practices might be challenged under anti-kickba similar laws. Moreover, recent healthcaremaf legislation has strengthened these
laws. For example, the recently enacted PPACA, anotiner things, amends the intent requirement®federal anti-kickback and criminal
healthcare fraud statutes, so that a person dy erxdtilonger needs to have actual knowledge ofdtaitute or specific intent to violate it. In
addition, PPACA permits the government to asset dhclaim that includes items or services regyifiom a violation of the federal anti-
kickback statute constitutes a false or fraudutéaitn for purposes of the false claims statutetsd=elaims laws prohibit anyone from
knowingly and willingly presenting, or causing te presented for payment, to third-party payerd(tting Medicare and Medicaid) claims for
reimbursed drugs or services that are false odfrint, claims for items or services not providediaimed, or claims for medically
unnecessary items or services. Our activitiesingldb the sale and marketing of our products magubject to scrutiny under these laws.
Violations of fraud and abuse laws may be punighallcriminal and civil sanctions, including finasd civil monetary penalties, the
possibility of exclusion from federal healthcaregmrams (including Medicare and Medicaid) and caapmtegrity agreements, which impose.
among other things, rigorous operational and moinigorequirements on companies. Similar sanctiors@enalties also can be imposed upon
executive officers and employees, including crirhBanctions against executive officers under thealed "responsible corporate officer"
doctrine, even in situations where the executifieaf did not intend to violate the law and waswaee of any wrongdoing.

Given the significant penalties and finattcan be imposed on companies and individuaisn¥icted, allegations of such violations of
result in settlements even if the company or irdlial being investigated admits no wrongdoing. 8etéints often include significant civil
sanctions, including fines and civil monetary pé&ral and corporate integrity agreements. If theegoment were to allege or convict us or out
executive officers of violating these laws, ouribass could be harmed. In addition, private indigid have the ability to bring similar actions.
Our activities could be subject to challenge f@ thasons discussed above and due to the broael sttese laws and the increasing attentio
being given to them by law enforcement authoritiegther, there are an increasing number of state that require manufacturers to make
reports to states on pricing and marketing inforamatMany of these laws contain ambiguities as atis required to comply with the laws.
Given the lack of clarity in laws and their implemt&tion, our reporting actions could be subjed¢htpenalty provisions of the pertinent state
authorities.

Similar rigid restrictions are imposed e promotion and marketing of medicinal productthim EU and other countries. Laws (includ
those governing promotion, marketing and anti-kaakbprovisions), industry regulations and profesai@odes of conduct often are strictly
enforced. Even in those countries where we arelinettly responsible for the promotion and markgtif our products, inappropriate activity
by our international distribution partners can hadeerse implications for us.
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Other Laws and Regulatory Process

We are subject to a variety of financialafbsure and securities trading regulations aséiqggcompany in the United States, including
laws relating to the oversight activities of theGS&nd, if any or our capital stock becomes liste@ mational securities exchange, we will be
subject to the regulations of such exchange ontwhiz shares are traded. In addition, the Finaaiabunting Standards Board, or FASB, the
SEC and other bodies that have jurisdiction overfthm and content of our accounts, our finanditiesnents and other public disclosure are
constantly discussing and interpreting proposatsexisting pronouncements designed to ensure tmapanies best display relevant and
transparent information relating to their respeetivsinesses.

Our international operations are subjeataimpliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Acthe FCPA, which prohibits corporations
and individuals from paying, offering to pay, otlarizing the payment of anything of value to aayefgn government official, government
staff member, political party, or political candidan an attempt to obtain or retain business atherwise influence a person working in an
official capacity. We also may be implicated unthex FCPA for activities by our partners, collaborat CROs, vendors or other agents.

Our present and future business has begw#incontinue to be subject to various other laamsl regulations. Various laws, regulations
and recommendations relating to safe working cosmit laboratory practices, the experimental usan@hals, and the purchase, storage,
movement, import and export and use and dispod@zdrdous or potentially hazardous substancesinsemnection with our research work
are or may be applicable to our activities. Certajreements entered into by us involving excluloense rights or acquisitions may be sub
to national or supranational antitrust regulatasgteol, the effect of which cannot be predictede Bxtent of government regulation, which
might result from future legislation or administvat action, cannot accurately be predicted.

Employees

As of January 31, 2014, we employed 10tfole employees and two part-time employees, tbfeghom held Ph.D. or M.D. degrees.
Seven of our employees were engaged in researctieaedbpment activities and five were engaged ppsu administration, including
business development and finance. We intend teCi@s and other third parties to perform our clihgtadies and manufacturing.

Corporate Information

We were incorporated in the state of Delawm February 4, 2008 under the name MPM Acquaisi€orp. In May 2011, we entered into
a reverse merger transaction, or the "Merger," withpredecessor, Radius Health, Inc., a Delawangocation formed on October 3, 2003, or
the Former Operating Company, pursuant to which-threner Operating Company became a wholly-ownedidigry of ours. Immediately
following the merger transaction, the Former Opagag€ompany was merged with and into us, or thetshorm Merger, we assumed the
business of the Former Operating Company and cldamgename to "Radius Health, Inc."

Legal Proceedings
We are not currently involved in any maakkegal proceedings.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

You should carefully consider the risks describeld as well as other information provided to youhis annual report on Form 10-K,
including information in the section of this docurentitled "Special Note Regarding Forward LookBtgtements." If any of the following
risks actually occur, our business, financial cdiui or results of operations could be materialvarsely affected, the value of our common
stock could decline, and you may lose all or pagaur investment.

Risks Related to Our Business
Risks Related to Our Financial Position and Need foCapital

We currently have no product revenues and will ngedaise additional capital, which may not be alable on favorable terms, if at all, in
order to continue operating our business.

To date, we have generated no product teserntil, and unless, we receive approval froenUts. Food and Drug Administration, or
FDA, and other regulatory authorities for our prodcandidates, we will not be permitted to sell durgs and will not have product revenues.
Currently, our only product candidates are Abalapide-SC, Abaloparatide-TD, RAD1901 and RAD140, ande of these product candidates
is approved by the FDA for sale. Therefore, forfimeseeable future, we will have to fund our otiers and capital expenditures from cast
hand, borrowings, licensing fees and grants angnpially, future offerings of our securities. Welieve that our existing resources will be
sufficient to fund our planned operations into thied quarter of 2014. We have based this estimatassumptions that may prove to be wrtc
and we could use up our available capital resowsoeser than we currently expect. If we fail toadbtadditional capital, we may be unable to
complete our planned preclinical and clinical 8iahd obtain approval of any product candidates tlte FDA and other regulatory authoriti
In addition, we could be forced to discontinue prtddevelopment, reduce or forego sales and madkefforts, forego attractive business
opportunities or discontinue our operations entirdhy additional sources of financing may not bailable or may not be available on
favorable terms and will likely involve the issuaraf additional equity securities, which will haaalilutive effect on stockholders. Our future
capital requirements will depend on many factarsluding the scope and progress made in our réseat development activities and our
clinical studies.

We are not currently profitable and may never becoprofitable.

We have a history of net losses and exjpeicicur substantial losses and have negative tipgreash flow for the foreseeable future, and
may never achieve or maintain profitability. We hred losses of $60.7 million, $69.1 million and $thillion during the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelypnfAsecember 31, 2013, we had an accumulated defi§@277.3 million. Even if we
succeed in developing and commercializing one aierabour product candidates, we expect to incbstantial losses for the foreseeable
future and may never become profitable. We als@eixip continue to incur significant operating @agital expenditures and anticipate that
our expenses will increase substantially in thegeeable future as we:

. continue to undertake preclinical developmermt @imical trials for product candidates;
. seek regulatory approvals for product candidates

. implement additional internal systems and infrattrce; and

. hire additional personnel.

We also expect to experience negative flaghfor the foreseeable future as we fund our apirg losses and capital expenditures. As a
result, we will need to generate significant revenin order to achieve and maintain profitabil&gcordingly, unless and until we generate
revenues and
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become profitable, we will need to raise additioregital to continue to operate our business. @ilure to achieve or maintain profitability or
to raise additional capital could negatively impiet value of our securities.

Our credit facility imposes significant restrictiamon our business, and if we default on our obligats, the lenders would have a right to
foreclose on substantially all our asse

In May 2011, we entered into our $25.0 imvillcredit facility with General Electric Capitab@oration, or GECC, as agent and lender,
Oxford Finance LLC, as lender. We drew $12.5 milli;der our credit facility during 2011 and we dré remaining $12.5 million on
May 29, 2012. Our credit facility contains a numbé&covenants that impose significant operating famahcial restrictions on us. These
covenants limit our ability to:

. dispose of our business or certain assets;

. change our business, management, ownership ordsssiocations;

. incur additional debt or liens;

. make certain investments or declare dividends;

. acquire or merge with another entity for considerain excess of an allowable amount;
. engage in transactions with affiliates; or

. encumber our intellectual property.

Our credit facility may limit our abilityotfinance future operations or capital needs @migage in, expand or pursue our business
activities. It may also prevent us from engaginggtivities that could be beneficial to our busgaad our stockholders unless we repay the
outstanding debt, which may not be desirable osiptes

We have pledged substantially all of owgess other than our intellectual property to secwreobligations under our credit facility. If we
default on our obligations and are unable to ob#aivaiver for such a default, the lenders wouldehavight to accelerate the debt and termi
all commitments under our credit facility. They vidalso have the right to foreclose on the pledagskts, including our cash and cash
equivalents. Any such action on the part of len@gainst us would significantly harm our business eur ability to operate.

Raising additional capital may cause dilution to pexisting stockholders, restrict our operations m¥quire us to relinquish rights to ou
technologies or product candidates.

Until such time, if ever, as we can gereegtbstantial product revenues, we expect to fmanc cash needs through a combination of
equity offerings, debt financings, collaboratiosisategic alliances, licensing arrangements anerattarketing and distribution arrangements.
We do not have any committed external source ad$uio the extent that we raise additional capitadugh the sale of equity or convertible
debt securities, your ownership interest will bleiteid, and the terms of these securities may ircligghidation or other preferences that
adversely affect your rights as a stockholder. Dielaincing, if available, may involve agreementattimclude covenants limiting or restricting
our ability to take specific actions, such as imicig additional debt, making capital expendituresleclaring dividends. If we raise additional
funds through marketing and distribution arrangetsien other collaborations, strategic allianceBo@nsing arrangements with third parties,
we may have to relinquish valuable rights to osht®logies, future revenue streams, research pregoa product candidates, or we may nee
to grant licenses on terms that may not be faverabus. If we are unable to raise additional futhelsugh equity or debt financings when
needed, we may be required to delay, limit, redurderminate our product development or commewadithn efforts or
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grant rights to develop and market product candglétat we would otherwise prefer to develop antkataurselves.
We are a company with a limited operating historpan which to base an investment decision.

We are a company with a limited operatiiggdry and have not demonstrated an ability togrerfthe functions necessary for the
successful commercialization of any product candislalrhe successful commercialization of any prbdandidates will require us to perform
a variety of functions, including:

. continuing to undertake preclinical development elf@cal trials;
. participating in regulatory approval processes;

. formulating and manufacturing products; and

. conducting sales and marketing activities.

Our operations have been limited to orgagiand staffing our company, acquiring, developang securing our proprietary technology
and undertaking preclinical and clinical trialsoir product candidates. These operations provlbeited basis for you to assess our ability to
commercialize our product candidates and the abiityaof investing further in our securities.

Our financial results may fluctuate from quarter tquarter, which makes our results difficult to préat and could cause our results to fall
short of expectations

Our financial results may fluctuate assuheof a number of factors, many of which are mg®of our control. For these reasons,
comparing our financial results on a periodstriod basis may not be meaningful, and you shoatdely on our past results as an indicatio
our future performance. Our revenues, if any, nhagt@iate from quarter to quarter and our futurertpuly and annual expenses as a percenta
of our revenues may be significantly different frtimse we have recorded in the past or which weapr the future. Our financial results in
some quarters may fall below expectations. Anyheke events as well as the various risk factaedligh this "Risk Factors" section could
adversely affect our financial results and causevtiue of our stock to fall.

Risks Related to the Discovery, Development and Canercialization of Our Product Candidates

We are heavily dependent on the success of Abalafde-SC which is under clinical development. Wenocat be certain that Abaloparatide-
SC will receive regulatory approval or be succedlyfeaommercialized even if we receive regulatorypapval.

Abaloparatide-SC is our only product caatidn late-stage clinical development, and ouirtass currently depends heavily on its
successful development, regulatory approval andheertialization. We have no drug products for saleently and may never be able to
develop marketable drug products. The researctmgesnanufacturing, labeling, approval, sale, netirlg and distribution of drug products .
subject to extensive regulation by the FDA and othgulatory authorities in the United States atietpcountries, which regulations differ
from country to country. We are not permitted tarkea Abaloparatide-SC in the United States unleskumtil we receive approval of a New
Drug Application, or NDA, from the FDA, or in angreign countries unless and until we receive th@isite approval from regulatory
authorities in foreign countries. In addition, t#ygproval of Abaloparatide-TD as a line extensioAbaloparatide-SC is dependent on the
earlier approval of Abaloparatide-SC. We have nbihsitted an NDA to the FDA or comparable applicasido regulatory authorities in other
countries. Obtaining approval of an NDA is an estee, lengthy,
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expensive and uncertain process, and any apprbydlaloparatide-SC may be delayed, limited or déri@@ many reasons, including:

. we may not be able to demonstrate that abaloparggisiafe and effective as a treatment for ostegpoto the satisfaction of the
FDA;

. the results of our clinical studies may not meetlével of statistical or clinical significance teged by the FDA for marketing
approval;

. the FDA may disagree with the number, desigre,stonduct or implementation of our clinical segi

. any clinical research organizations, or CRQOat the have retained or may in the future retaimoteduct clinical studies may

take actions outside of our control that materialfyersely impact our clinical studies;

. the FDA may not find the data from preclinical sasdand clinical studies sufficient to demonstthtg abaloparatide's clinical
and other benefits outweigh its safety risks;

. the FDA may disagree with our interpretatiordafa from our preclinical studies and clinical s&#sdor may require that we
conduct additional studies;

. the FDA may not accept data generated at oniceli study sites;
. the FDA may require development of a Risk Evaluatiad Mitigation Strategy, or REMS, as a condittbapproval;
. if our NDA is reviewed by an advisory committeeg fiDA may have difficulties scheduling an advisooynmittee meeting in a

timely manner or the advisory committee may recomuiregainst approval of our application or may reemnd that the FDA
require, as a condition of approval, additionakfirécal studies or clinical studies, limitations approved labeling or
distribution and use restrictions; or

. the FDA may identify deficiencies in the manutatg processes or facilities of our third-partpmafacturers.

In addition, the FDA may change its appt@aicies or adopt new regulations. For exampfeFebruary 15, 2012, we received a letter
from the FDA stating that, after internal considiena the agency believes that a minimum of 24-rhdrdacture data are necessary for approve
of new products for the treatment of postmenopansigloporosis. Our ongoing Abaloparatide-SC pivBtase 3 clinical study is designed to
produce fracture data based on an 18-month priradpoint. Based on our discussions with the FDAbueléeve that continued use of the 18-
month primary endpoint will be acceptable, provideat our NDA includes the 24-month fracture dagawked from a 6-month extension of the
abaloparatide 80 pg and placebo groups in our Phagaly, which groups will receive an approveddtenate (generic Fosamax) therapy for
osteoporosis management. We plan to submit our M@Athe 24month fracture data. We cannot be certain thaFtha will be supportive c
this plan, will not change this approval policy egar will not adopt other approval policies or uéggtions that adversely affect any NDA that
we may submit, the occurrence of any of which magher delay FDA approval.

Before we submit an NDA to the FDA for Abphratide-SC as a treatment for osteoporosis, wst cmplete our pivotal Phase 3 study
based upon 18-month fracture data, a carcinoggrstiitly in rats, and bone quality studies in rats monkeys. We also may need to complete
several additional studies, including, but not texdito, a thorough QT Phase 1 study, a Phase inglakinetic, or PK, study in renal patients,
a Phase 1 absolute bioavailability PK study an@ssh\drug interaction studies. Not all of thesalgs have commenced and the results of 1
studies will have an important bearing on the appirof abaloparatide. In addition to fracture awth® mineral density, or BMD,
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our pivotal Phase 3 study will measure a numbettoér potential safety indicators, including blaradcium levels, orthostatic hypotension,
nausea, dizziness and anti-abaloparatide antibediesh may have an important bearing on the appravabaloparatide.

We cannot assure you that we will receheedpprovals necessary to commercialize any opmduct candidates, including
Abaloparatide-SC, Abaloparatide-TD, RAD1901 and RAD, or any product candidate we may acquire oeldgvin the future. We will need
FDA approval to commercialize our product candidatethe United States and approvals from the eggny authorities in foreign jurisdictio
to commercialize our product candidates in thosisdictions. In order to obtain FDA approval of gmpduct candidate, we must submit to the
FDA an NDA demonstrating that the product candidaitsafe for humans and effective for its indicaisd. This demonstration requires
significant research and animal tests, which dermed to as preclinical studies, as well as huteats, which are referred to as clinical trials.
Satisfaction of the FDA's regulatory requiremegitsdally takes many years, depends upon the typaptexity and novelty of the product
candidate and requires substantial resources $eareh, development and testing. We cannot predliether our research and clinical
approaches will result in drugs that the FDA coessdsafe for humans and effective for indicatedLibe FDA has substantial discretion in
the drug approval process and may require us tdudradditional preclinical and clinical testingtorperform post-marketing studies. The
approval process may also be delayed by changgs/ernment regulation, future legislation or admsiirgitive action or changes in FDA policy
that occur prior to or during its regulatory reviesuch as the request we received from the FDA rgispect to providing a minimum of 24-
month fracture data for approval of abaloparatidkeays in obtaining regulatory approvals may:

. delay commercialization of, and our ability to derproduct revenues from, our product candidates;
. impose costly procedures on us; and
. diminish any competitive advantages that we magmiise enjoy.

Even if we comply with all FDA requestse thDA may ultimately reject one or more of our NDA¢e may never obtain regulatory
clearance for any of our product candidates. Failarobtain FDA approval of any of our product adatks will severely undermine our
business by leaving us without a saleable produntt,therefore without any source of revenues, antither product candidate can be
developed. There is no guarantee that we will eeesble to develop or acquire any product candidate

In foreign jurisdictions, we must receiympeoval from the appropriate regulatory authorithegore we can commercialize any drugs.
Foreign regulatory approval processes generalludtecall of the risks associated with the FDA appi@rocedures described above. We
cannot assure you that we will receive the appsratessary to commercialize any of our produatidates for sale outside the United Ste

Clinical trials are very expensive, time-consumiagd difficult to design and implement.

Human clinical trials are very expensive difficult to design and implement, in part beattsey are subject to rigorous regulatory
requirements. A substantial portion of our abalafide development costs are denominated in euaiaynadverse movement in the
dollar/euro exchange rate will result in increasests and require us to raise additional capitabtoplete the development of our products.
The clinical trial process is also time consumirgrthermore, failure can occur at any stage ofriaés, and we could encounter problems that
cause us to abandon or repeat clinical trials.ddmmencement and completion of clinical trials maydelayed by several factors, including:

. changes in government regulation, administradistion or changes in FDA policy with respect tmichl trials that change the
requirements for approval,
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. unforeseen safety issues;

. determination of dosing issues;

. lack of effectiveness during clinical trials; slawban expected rates of patient recruitment amdllement;
. inability to monitor patients adequately duringafter treatment; and

. inability or unwillingness of medical investigas to follow our clinical protocols.

In addition, we, the FDA, or other regutgtauthorities and ethics committees with jurisdictover our studies may suspend our clinical
trials at any time if it appears that we are expggarticipants to unacceptable health risks trdfFDA or other authorities find deficiencies in
our regulatory submissions or the conduct of thiaks. Therefore, we cannot predict with any datiathe schedule for existing or future
clinical trials. Any such unexpected expenses taydein our clinical trials could increase our néedadditional capital, which may not be
available on favorable terms or at all.

Most of our product candidates are in early stagglinical trials.

Except for Abaloparatide-SC and Abalopae{lD, each of our other product candidates RAD1901 and RAD140) is in the early
stages of development and requires extensive prealiand clinical testing. We cannot predict wathy certainty if or when we might submit
an NDA for regulatory approval for any of our praticandidates or whether any such NDA would be @tece

The results of our clinical trials may not suppodur product candidate claims.

Even if our clinical trials are completezi@danned, we cannot be certain that the resultswgport our product candidate claims. Succes
in preclinical testing and early clinical trialsetonot ensure that later clinical trials will besgssful, and we cannot be sure that the results o
later clinical trials will replicate the results pfior clinical trials and preclinical testing. Fexample, our Phase 3 trial of Abaloparatide-SC for
fracture prevention may not replicate the posigtffecacy results for BMD from our two Phase 2 siglhe clinical trial process may fail to
demonstrate that our product candidates are safaufoans and effective for indicated uses. Thisifaiwould cause us to abandon a product
candidate and may delay development of other prtochradidates. Any delay in, or termination of, olinical trials will delay the filing of our
NDAs with the FDA and, ultimately, our ability t@mmercialize our product candidates and generatgupt revenues. In addition, our clini
trials to date have involved small patient popolasi. Because of the small sample sizes, the rasfuliese clinical trials may not be indicative
of future results.

If serious adverse or undesirable side effects atentified during the development of our productmdidates, we may need to abandon ¢
development of some of our product candidates.

All of our product candidates are stillgreclinical or clinical development. It is impodsitbo predict when or if any of our product
candidates will prove effective or safe in humanwil receive regulatory approval, if ever. If oproduct candidates result in undesirable side
effects or have characteristics that are unexpgestednay need to abandon their development.

Any product candidate for which we obtain marketirggpproval could be subject to restrictions or witlasval from the market and we may
subject to penalties if we fail to comply with relgtory requirements or if we experience unanticiat problems with our products, whe
and if any of them are approved.

Any product candidate for which we obtaiarketing approval, along with the manufacturinggesses, post-approval clinical data,
labeling, advertising and promotional activities $och product,
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will be subject to continual requirements of andew by the FDA and other regulatory authoritieee3e requirements include submissions o
safety and other post-marketing information anarey) registration and listing requirements, curgaod manufacturing practices, or cGMP,
requirements relating to quality control, qualigsarance and corresponding maintenance of recotddauments, requirements regarding th
distribution of samples to physicians and recorgkeg Even if we obtain marketing approval of aguct candidate, the approval may be
subject to limitations on the indicated uses foraltthe product may be marketed or to the condstioinapproval, or contain requirements for
costly post-marketing testing and surveillance tmitor the safety or efficacy of the product. TH2Aclosely regulates the post-approval
marketing and promotion of drugs to ensure drugsmarketed only for the approved indications analcicordance with the provisions of the
approved labeling. The FDA imposes stringent retsbms on manufacturers' communications regardffitpbel use and, if we do not market
our products for their approved indications, we rbaysubject to enforcement action for off-label keting.

In addition, later discovery of previousigknown problems with our products, manufacturenmanufacturing processes, or failure to
comply with regulatory requirements, may yield eas results, including:

. restrictions on such products, manufacturers orufaturing processes;

. restrictions on the labeling or marketing of a proil

. restrictions on product distribution or use;

. requirements to conduct post-marketing clinicalls:i

. warning or untitled letters;

. withdrawal of the products from the market;

. refusal to approve pending applications or seip@nts to approved applications that we submit;
. voluntary or mandatory recall of products andtel publicity requirements;
. fines, restitution or disgorgement of profitsrevenue;

. suspension or withdrawal of marketing approvals;

. refusal to permit the import or export of our protiy

. product seizure; or

. injunctions or the imposition of civil or crimingknalties.

The commercial success of any product candidatest the may develop will depend upon the degree ofkeacceptance by physicians,
patients, healthcare payers and others in the matlimommunity.

Even if the FDA approves one or more of purduct candidates, physicians and patients magetept and use them. Acceptance ant
of any of our products will depend upon a numbefiaofors including:

. perceptions by members of the healthcare communitjyding physicians, about the safety and effectess of our drug;
. cost-effectiveness of our product relative to cotimgeproducts;
. availability of coverage and reimbursement for product from government or other healthcare paysnd;
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. effectiveness of marketing and distribution effdaysus and our licensees and distributors, if any.

Because we expect sales of our currentymtathndidates, if approved, to generate substiyrdihof our product revenues for the
foreseeable future, the failure of these drugsaia gharket acceptance would harm our business aunttwequire us to seek additional
financing.

We may expend our limited resources to pursue atjgatar product candidate or indication and fail toapitalize on product candidates or
indications that may be more profitable or for whidhere is a greater likelihood of success.

Because we have limited financial and managresources, we narrowly focus on researchrarog and product candidates that we
identify for specific indications. As a result, wey forego or delay pursuit of opportunities wither product candidates or for other
indications that later prove to have greater conerakpotential. Our resource allocation decisioray/roause us to fail to capitalize on viable
commercial products or profitable market opportesitOur spending on current and future researdidaxelopment programs and product
candidates for specific indications may not yiehy aommercially viable products. If we do not aeately evaluate the commercial potential or
target market for a particular product candidate ,may relinquish valuable rights to that productdidate through collaboration, licensing or
other royalty arrangements in cases in which itlvtnvave been more advantageous for us to retagndmlelopment and commercialization
rights to such product candidate.

If we experience delays in the enrollment of patterin our clinical trials, our receipt of necessarggulatory approvals could be delayed
prevented

We may not be able to initiate or contilirical trials for some of our product candidaifese are unable to locate and enroll a sufficien
number of eligible patients to participate in th&gss as required by the FDA or other regulatawughorities. In addition, many of our
competitors have ongoing clinical trials for protloandidates that could be competitive with ourdpiad candidates, and patients who would
otherwise be eligible for our clinical trials maystead enroll in clinical trials of our competitgpsoduct candidates.

Enroliment delays in our clinical trials yneesult in increased development costs for oudpecocandidates, which would cause the value
of the company to decline and limit our abilitydbtain additional financing. Our inability to enralsufficient number of patients for any of
current or future clinical trials would result iigsificant delays or may require us to abandonanmore clinical trials altogether.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on Third Parties
Our drug development program depends upon third{yaresearchers, investigators and collaborators wdre outside our control.

We depend upon independent researcheestigators and collaborators, such as Nordic, taact our preclinical and clinical trials
under agreements with us. These third parties@reur employees and we cannot control the amautitning of resources that they devote to
our programs. These third parties may not assigyres a priority to our programs or pursue therdibgently as we would if we were
undertaking such programs ourselves. If outsidialootators fail to devote sufficient time and reses to our drug-development programs, or
if their performance is substandard, the approfauo FDA applications, if any, and our introductiof new drugs, if any, will be delayed.
These collaborators may also have relationships etier commercial entities, some of whom may cdmps&th us. If our collaborators assist
competitors at our expense, our competitive pasivould be harmed.
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If a regulatory or governmental authority determisehat a financial interest in the outcome of théhBse 3 study of Abaloparati-SC by
any of the entities managing our Phase 3 clinicailal affected the reliability of the data from thBhase 3 clinical trial, our ability to use the
data for our planned regulatory submissions could bompromised, which could harm our business and thalue of our common stock.

The Phase 3 clinical trial of Abaloparatf8€ is being managed by Nordic at certain clingi#gs operated by the Center for Clinical and
Basic Research, or CCBR, a leading global CRO ®itiensive experience in global osteoporosis redistr studies. Nordic controls, and
holds an ownership interest in, the local CCBRic#hsites. The clinical trial investigators aremayees of CCBR and may also hold an eq
interest in the local CCBR clinical trials.

In consideration of Nordic's managemendwfPhase 3 clinical trial, we agreed to make wexicash payments to Nordic denominated in
both euros and U.S. dollars over the course oPtiaese 3 study equal to a total of up to approxilp&#l.2 million ($56.7 million) and a total
of up to approximately $3.2 million. We also agréedell shares of capital stock to Nordic thatevexchanged in the Merger for 6,443 share:
of our series A-5 convertible preferred stock fosqeeds of approximately $0.5 million. These shafesur series A-5 convertible preferred
stock will automatically convert into 64,430 shaoé®ur common stock upon the listing of our commstock on a national securities excha
Pursuant to the terms of our agreements with Novdécwill also issue to Nordic shares of stock véthaggregate value of up to €36.8 million
($50.7 million) in consideration of Nordic's managent of the Phase 3 clinical trial. These sharestaifk accrue at a quarterly rate based o
progress of the Phase 3 clinical trial and arealskuat a price per share equal to the greate8.a4#® and the 20-day average of the closing
price of our common stock at the relevant timeatednination at any time after our common stogbulicly traded.

The fair market value of our common stockyrbe subject to wide fluctuations in responseataous factors, many of which are beyond
our control, including any negative outcome of ffese 3 study. Accordingly, the shares of stockweawill issue to Nordic in consideration
of Nordic's management of the Phase 3 clinical tnay be less than the full value originally angetied under our agreements with Nordic,
assuming Nordic did not expect the fair market gafiour stock to fluctuate widely over the ternsath agreements. As a result, the total
consideration that Nordic will receive in cash atack may be viewed to be below the market pridé pwa other companies for comparable
clinical trial services.

Because of the potential decrease in theevaf the common stock issuable to Nordic upor@ative outcome of the Phase 3 study,
Nordic, CCBR and the clinical trial investigatorayrbe viewed as having a financial interest indbiecome of the study. We have obtail
written acknowledgments from the clinical trial @stigators certifying that they have no finanamérest in the outcome of the Phase 3 clinice
trial. However, if the FDA, the European Mediciggency, or EMA, or any other similar regulatorygmvernmental authority determines that
Nordic, CCBR or the clinical trial investigatorsvesa financial interest that affected the reliapitf the data from the Phase 3 clinical trial,
could be subject to additional regulatory scrutamg the utility of the Phase 3 clinical trial farrposes of our planned regulatory submissions
could be compromised, which could have a matedaéese effect on our business and the value ofoomon stock.

We will rely exclusively on third parties to formate and manufacture our product candidates.

We have no experience in drug formulatiomanufacturing and do not intend to establishawan manufacturing facilities. We lack the
resources and expertise to formulate or manufactur@wn product candidates. We have entered mrteeanents with contract manufacturers
to manufacture abaloparatide for use in clinidal tctivities. These contract manufacturers areecily our only source for the production anc
formulation of abaloparatide. We may not have sifit clinical supplies of abaloparatide but bedi¢lwat our contract manufacturers will be
able to produce sufficient
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supply of abaloparatide to complete all of the pkhabaloparatide clinical studies. If our contraenufacturers are unable to produce, in a
timely manner, adequate clinical supplies to mieetteeds of our clinical studies, we would be neggliio seek new contract manufacturers
may require us to modify our finished product fofation and modify or terminate our clinical studfes abaloparatide. Any modification of
our finished product or modification or terminatiohour Phase 3 clinical study could adverselydféar ability to obtain necessary regulatory
approvals and significantly delay or prevent theoeercial launch of the product, which would matiériaarm our business and impair our
ability to raise capital.

We depend on a number of single sourceracinmanufacturers to supply key components ofogdaabtide. For example, we depend on
Lonza Group Ltd., or Lonza, which produces supmpielsulk drug product of abaloparatide to supploet Abaloparatide-SC and Abaloparatide
TD clinical studies and potential commercial launére also depend on Ipsen, its subcontractor VBtierma Fertigung GmbH & Co, or
Vetter, and Becton, Dickinson and Company, or Be®akinson, for the production of finished supplief Abaloparatide-SC and we depend
on 3M for the production of Abaloparatide-TD. Besawf our dependence on Vetter for the "fill amisth" part of the manufacturing process
for Abaloparatide-SC, we are subject to the rigt etter may not have the capacity from time iteetito produce sufficient quantities of
abaloparatide to meet the needs of our clinicalistior be able to scale to commercial producticatbaloparatide. Because the manufacturing
process for Abaloparatide-TD requires the use os3Woprietary technology, 3M is our sole souradfifished clinical trial supplies of
Abaloparatide-TD. To date, we have not enteredantommercial supply agreement with 3M. If we weoé able to negotiate commercial
supply terms with 3M, as we depend on 3M for praiducof Abaloparatide-TD, we would be unable to eoencialize this product. Or, if we
are forced to accept unfavorable terms for ourrutelationship with 3M, our business and financ@hdition would be materially harmed.

While we are currently in discussions, &bed we have not entered into a long-term agreemimtany of Lonza, Vetter or Becton
Dickinson, each of whom currently produces abalaf@e or related components on a purchase ordey tmasis. Accordingly, Lonza, Vetter
and Becton Dickinson could terminate their relagitp with us at any time and for any reason. We natybe able to negotiate long-term
agreements on acceptable terms, or at all. If @ationship with any of these contract manufactiigterminated, or if they are unable to
produce abaloparatide or related components innegjquantities, on a timely basis or at all, owé are forced to accept unfavorable terms fc
our future relationship, our business and financoadition would be materially harmed. If any of @urrent product candidates or any produc
candidates we may develop or acquire in the futeceive FDA approval, we will rely on one or moned-party contractors to manufacture
our drugs or related components. Our anticipataaréureliance on a limited number of third-partymagacturers exposes us to the following
risks:

. We may be unable to identify manufacturers areptable terms, or at all, because the numbertehgtial manufacturers is
limited and the FDA must approve any replacementregtor. This approval would require new testing aompliance
inspections. In addition, a new manufacturer wdidde to be educated in, or develop substantiallyvatent processes for,
production of our products after receipt of FDA apgl, if any.

. Our third-party manufacturers might be unable torfi@late and manufacture our drugs or related compisrin the volume and
of the quality required to meet our clinical neadsl commercial needs, if any.

. Our future contract manufacturers may not penfas agreed or may not remain in the contract naatwiing business for the
time required to supply our clinical trials or tacsessfully produce, store and distribute our pet&lu
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. Drug manufacturers are subject to ongoing periadennounced inspection by the FDA, the Drug Enfowgt Administration,
and corresponding state agencies to ensure strigpliance with cGMP, and other government regutetiand corresponding
foreign standards. We do not have control ovedtparty manufacturers' compliance with these regra and standards.

. If any third-party manufacturer makes improvetséan the manufacturing process for our productsyway not own, or may
have to share, the intellectual property righthhtinnovation.

Each of these risks could delay our clihidals, the approval, if any, of our product cadates by the FDA or the commercialization of
our product candidates or result in higher costdeprive us of potential product revenues.

If we are not able to establish additional collakaiions, we may have to alter our development ple

Our product development programs and thergial commercialization of our product candidatéls require substantial additional cast
fund expenses. For some of our product candidaisnay decide to collaborate with pharmaceuticdllsintechnology companies for the
development and potential commercialization of ¢hpoduct candidates.

We face significant competition in seekapgpropriate collaborators. Collaborations are cexmphd time-consuming to negotiate and
document. We may also be restricted under existifigboration agreements from entering into agregmen certain terms with other
potential collaborators. We may not be able to tiagmocollaborations on acceptable terms, or atfahat were to occur, we may have to
curtail the development of a particular productdidate, reduce or delay its development programneror more of our other development
programs, delay its potential commercializatiomeztuce the scope of our sales or marketing a&ssitir increase our expenditures and
undertake development or commercialization acégitit our own expense. If we elect to increasexpenditures to fund development or
commercialization activities on our own, we maydé&eobtain additional capital, which may not baitable to us on acceptable terms or at
all. If we do not have sufficient funds, we willtoe able to bring our product candidates to maaketgenerate product revenue.

Risks Related to Marketing and Sale of Our Products
We have no experience selling, marketing or distriimg products and currently do not have the intexihcapability to do so.

We currently have no sales, marketing sfritiution capabilities. Our future success depgimdsart, on our ability to enter into and
maintain collaborative relationships for such calitéds, the collaborators' strategic interesthie products under development and such
collaborators' ability to successfully market anll any such products. We intend to build an irdkésales force to market and sell our product
to specialists and to pursue collaborative arrarggesito market and sell our products to primarg gdaysicians. To the extent that we depend
on third parties for marketing and distributionyaavenues we receive will depend upon the effofrsuch third parties, and we cannot assure
you that their efforts will be successful. In adatit we cannot assure you that we will be ablestatdish or maintain relationships with st
third party collaborators or that we would be ablenarket and sell our products in the United Stateoverseas through anhiouse sales fort
in lieu of such relationships.
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If we cannot compete successfully for market shagainst other drug companies, we may not achievéisient product revenues and ot
business will suffer.

The market for our product candidates erabterized by intense competition and rapid teldwical advances. If any of our product
candidates receives FDA approval, it will competdna number of existing and future drugs and thiesadeveloped, manufactured and
marketed by others. Existing or future competingdpicts may provide greater therapeutic conveniencénical or other benefits for a spec
indication than our products, or may offer compérgterformance at a lower cost. If our productkttatapture and maintain market share, we
may not achieve sufficient product revenues andosimess will suffer.

We will compete against fully integratechpimaceutical companies and smaller companies teatodlaborating with larger
pharmaceutical companies, academic institutiongeigonent agencies and other public and privatearebeorganizations. Many of these
competitors have compounds already approved ogweldpment. In addition, many of these competiteither alone or together with their
collaborative partners, operate larger researchdamdlopment programs or have substantially grdmigncial resources than we do, as well a
significantly greater experience in:

. developing drugs;

. undertaking preclinical testing and human clinicalls;
. obtaining FDA and other regulatory approvals ofgdqu
. formulating and manufacturing drugs; and

. launching, marketing and selling drugs.

Developments by competitors may render our produsttechnologies obsolete or n-competitive.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical imiesiare intensely competitive and subject to rapid significant technological change. Some
of the drugs that we are attempting to developh stscAbaloparatide-SC, Abaloparatide-TD, RAD190d BAD140 will have to compete with
existing therapies. In addition, a large numbecarhpanies are pursuing the development of pharniaatsithat target the same diseases and
conditions that we are targeting. We face competifrom pharmaceutical and biotechnology compaini¢ise United States and abroad. In
addition, companies doing business in differentrblated fields represent substantial competitidany of these organizations competing with
us have substantially greater capital resourcegelaesearch and development staffs and faciliibeger drug development history in
obtaining regulatory approvals and greater manufagj and marketing capabilities than we do. Thaganizations also compete with us to
attract qualified personnel and parties for actjoiss$, joint ventures or other collaborations, #merefore, we may not be able to hire or retain
qualified personnel to run all facets of our busmerhese risks could render our products or tdobies obsolete or non-competitive.

Our ability to generate product revenues will berdnished if our drugs sell for inadequate prices patients are unable to obtain adequate
levels of reimbursement.

Our ability to commercialize our drugs,reoor with collaborators, will depend in large pamtthe extent to which coverage and
reimbursement will be available from:

. government and health administration authorities;
. private health maintenance organizations and hedtivers; and
. other healthcare payers.
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Significant uncertainty exists as to thienteursement status of newly approved healthcardymts. Healthcare payers, including Medic
are challenging the prices charged for medical prtsland services. Government and other healtipesmers increasingly attempt to contain
healthcare costs by limiting both coverage anddtiel of reimbursement for drugs. Even if one of product candidates is approved by the
FDA, insurance coverage may not be available, amdbursement levels may be inadequate, to coverdsis of our drug. If government and
other healthcare payers do not provide adequaterage and reimbursement levels for our productidates, once approved, market
acceptance of our products could be reduced.

We may incur substantial liabilities and may be wgdeed to limit commercialization of our products iresponse to product liability lawsuits.

The testing and marketing of medical praslentail an inherent risk of product liability.Mfe cannot successfully defend ourselves ag
product liability claims, we may incur substantiabilities or be required to limit commercializati of our products. Our inability to obtain
sufficient product liability insurance at an ace@dygé cost to protect against potential producilliglclaims could prevent or inhibit the
commercialization of pharmaceutical products weetlgy, alone or with collaborators.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

If we fail to comply with our obligations in our itellectual property licenses with third parties, weuld lose license rights that are importe
to our business.

We are a party to a number of intellecpralperty license agreements with third parties exqkct to enter into additional license
agreements in the future. Our existing licenseegemnts impose, and we expect that any future lecagseements will impose, various
diligence, milestone payment, royalty, insurance atier obligations on us. If we fail to comply withese obligations, our licensors may have
the right to terminate these agreements, in whigimewe might not be able to develop and marketpaoguct that is covered by these
agreements. Termination of these licenses or reguot elimination of our licensed rights may resaolour having to negotiate new or
reinstated licenses with less favorable terms.ddwairrence of such events could materially harmbmginess.

If our efforts to protect our intellectual propertyelated to Abaloparatic-SC, AbaloparatideFD, RAD1901 and/or RAD140 fail to adequat:
protect these assets, we may lose the abilitycenise or successfully commercialize one or mor¢heke candidates

Our commercial success is significantlyetgfent on intellectual property related to our paigortfolio. We are either the licensee or
assignee of numerous issued and pending patenctatqhs that cover various aspects of our assetieiding Abaloparatide-SC,
Abaloparatide-TD, RAD1901 and RAD140.

Patents covering abaloparatide as a coriposif matter have been issued in the United St Patent No. 5,969,095), Europe and
several additional countries. Because the abaltgareomposition of matter patent was filed in 1996 expected to have a normal expiratior
in approximately 2016 in the United States (thiteddoes not include the possibility of Hatch-Waxrpatent term extension, which could
extend the expiration in the United States intofitst quarter of 2021 if an application for extensis made and the maximum extension is
granted by the USPTO) and additional countries wlitdnas issued.

We and Ipsen are also co-assignees to tehido. 7,803,770 that we believe provides exeltysuntil 2028 in the United States (absent
any Hatch-Waxman patent term extensions) for théhoakof treating osteoporosis with the intendedépeutic dose for Abaloparatide-SC.
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We and Ipsen are also co-assignees to tEido. 8,148,333 that we believe provides exeltysuntil 2027 in the United States (absent
any Hatch-Waxman patent term extensions) for ttenigted therapeutic formulation for Abaloparatide-SC

We and 3M are co-assignees to severalgorand corresponding U.S. patent applications aiphiority date of April 22, 2011, which
cover various aspects of abaloparatide for micrdieegpplication. Any issued claims resulting frdmge applications will expire no earlier
than 2032. However, pending patent applicatiorthénUnited States and elsewhere may not issue giedaterpretation of the legal
requirements of patentability in view of claimedd@ntions are not always predictable. Additionatltectual property covering Abaloparatide-
TD technology exists in the form of proprietarydrmhation protected as trade secrets. These caccimeatally disclosed to, independently
derived by or misappropriated by competitors, gagsieducing or eliminating the exclusivity advagesa of this form of intellectual property,
thereby allowing those competitors more rapid ety the marketplace with a competitive productstheducing our advantage with
Abaloparatide-TD. In addition, trade secrets magdme instances become publicly available throeghired disclosures in regulatory files.
Alternatively, competitors may sometimes reversgireger a product once it becomes available on ket Even where a competitor does
not use an identical technology for the deliverabéloparatide, it is possible that they could eahian equivalent or even superior result usin
another technology. Such occurrences could leaithier one or more alternative competitor prodbetsoming available on the market and/or
one or more generic competitor products on the atagaining market share and causing a correspomdiogease in market share and/or price
for Abaloparatide-TD.

Patents covering RAD1901 as a compositfanatter, as well as the use of RAD1901 for thattreent of estrogen-dependent breast
cancer, have been issued in the United States,daaral Australia and are pending in Europe andlnidie RAD1901composition of matter
patents in the United States expire in 2023 and Z8Bsent any Hatch-Waxman patent term extenskaigitional patent applications relating
to methods of treating vasomotor symptoms andazgirdosage strengths using RAD1901 have been fledding patent applications in the
United States and elsewhere may not issue sindetdrpretation of the legal requirements of padbility in view of any claimed invention
before a patent office are not always predictafsdea result, we could encounter challenges ordliffies in building, maintaining and/or
defending our intellectual property both in the tgdiStates and abroad.

Patent applications covering RAD140 ancgo®ARM compounds have been granted in the Unita§ Mexico, Japan and Australia,
and are pending in the United States and elsewliBeeRAD140 composition of matter case expires02®in the United States (absent any
Hatch-Waxman patent term extension) and additiooahtries if and when it issues.

Since patents are highly technical legaiutheents that are frequently subject to intensgaliton pressure, there is risk that even if one or
more of the patents related to our products deesiand is asserted that the patent(s) will bedaowalid, unenforceable and/or not infringed
when subject to said litigation. Finally, the itéektual property laws and practices can vary caraioly from one country to another and also
can change with time. As a result, we could encaructiallenges or difficulties in building, maintaig and defending our intellectual property
both in the United States and abroad.

We may become party to, or threatened itfure adversarial proceedings or litigation reliyag intellectual property rights with respect
to patents issued or licensed to us, includingfatence proceedings before the USPTO. Third martiay assert infringement claims against
us. If we are found to infringe a third party'seiitéctual property rights, we could be requiredlbtain a license from such third party to
continue developing and marketing our productstantdnology. However, we may not be able to obtainraquired license on commercially
reasonable terms or at all. Even if we
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were able to obtain a license, it could be non+esiek, thereby giving our competitors access tostme technologies licensed to us. We coul
be forced, including by court order, to cease coneiabkzing the infringing technology or product. &wldition, we could be found liable for
monetary damages. A finding of infringement coulévent us from commercializing our product candédair force us to cease some of our
business operations, which could materially harmbusiness. Claims that we have misappropriatedahédential information or trade
secrets of third parties could have a similar nggampact on our business.

If we are unable to obtain and maintain patent peattion for our technology and products, or if ouicensors are unable to obtain ar
maintain patent protection for the technology orguaiucts that we license from them, our competitomtd develop and commercialize
technology and products similar or identical to aarand our ability to successfully commercializerdachnology and products may be
adversely affected.

Our success depends in large part on alipanlicensors' ability to obtain and maintainguetprotection in the United States and other
countries with respect to our proprietary technglagd products. In some circumstances, we may an# the right to control the preparation,
filing and prosecution of patent applications, @ntaintain the patents, covering technology or petslthat we license from third parties.
Therefore, we cannot be certain that these patent@pplications will be prosecuted and enforceal imanner consistent with the best interest
of our business. In addition, if third parties wiki@nse patents to us fail to maintain these patemtlose rights to those patents, the rights we
have licensed may be reduced or eliminated.

The patent position of biotechnology andrmpiaceutical companies generally is highly uncertavolves complex legal and factual
guestions and has in recent years been the sutfjeuich litigation. As a result, the issuance, s;oglidity, enforceability and commercial
value of our and our licensors' patent rights agali uncertain. Our and our licensors' pending futdre patent applications may not result in
patents being issued that protect our technology@ducts or that effectively prevent others frasmenercializing competitive technologies
and products. Changes in either the patent lavirgenpretation of the patent laws in the Unitedt&aand other countries may diminish the
value of our patents or narrow the scope of ouentgirotection. The laws of foreign countries may protect our rights to the same extent as
the laws of the United States. Assuming the otbguirements for patentability are met, in the Whi&ates, prior to March 16, 2013, the first
to make the claimed invention was entitled to thtept (a "first-to-invent” system), while outside tUnited States, the first to file a patent
application is entitled to the patent (a "firstfile system). With the implementation of the LeaBgnith America Invests Act, the United Sta
now has a first-to-file system for patent applioas filed on or after March 16, 2013. We may becamelved in opposition, interference or
derivation proceedings challenging our patent sgiitthe patent rights of others. Publicationsistaveries in the scientific literature often lag
behind the actual discoveries, and patent appdicatin the United States and other jurisdictiomstgpically not published until 18 months a
filing, or in some cases not at all. Therefore,aganot be certain that we or our licensors werditbieto make the inventions claimed in our
owned and licensed patents or pending patent apiolits, or that we or our licensors were the firdile for patent protection of such
inventions. An adverse determination in any suadtgeding could reduce the scope of, or invalidatepatent rights, allow third parties to
commercialize our technology or products and compéectly with us, without payment to us, or résulour inability to manufacture or
commercialize products without infringing third-papatent rights.

Even if our owned and licensed patent apgibbns issue as patents, they may not issuedmathat will provide us with any meaningful
protection, prevent competitors from competing withor otherwise provide us with any competitiveaadage. Our competitors may be abl
circumvent our owned or licensed patents by dewetppimilar or alternative technologies or produnts noninfringing manner. The issuan
of a patent is not conclusive as to its scopeditglor
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enforceability, and our owned and licensed paterag be challenged in the courts or patent offioehé United States and abroad. Any
challenges may result in patent claims being nagthvinvalidated or held unenforceable, which cdimhit our ability to stop or prevent us
from stopping others from using or commercializéigilar or identical technology and products, aritithe duration of the patent protectior
our technology and products. Given the amountnoétiequired for the development, testing and régulaeview of new product candidates,
patents protecting such candidates might expirerbadr shortly after such candidates are commézeil As a result, our owned and licensed
patents may not provide us with sufficient rigltekclude others from commercializing products Enor identical to ours.

Payments, fees, submissions and various additiaegjuirements must be met in order for pending patapplications to advance i
prosecution and issued patents to be maintainedydRous compliance with these requirements is esggid procurement and maintenanc
of patents integral to our product portfolio.

Periodic maintenance fees, renewal feagjignfees and various other governmental feesatants and/or patent applications will come
due for payment periodically throughout the lifeleyof patent applications and issued patents. deraio help ensure that we comply with any
required fee payment, documentary and/or procedecalirements as they might relate to any patemte/fiich we are an assignee or co-
assignee, we employ competent legal help and cefatefessionals as needed to comply with thoseirements. Our outside patent counsel
uses Computer Packages, Inc. for patent annuitynpais. Failure to meet a required fee payment,deati production or procedural
requirement can result in the abandonment of aipgnmhtent application or the lapse of an issuddntaln some instances the defect can be
cured through late compliance but there are sdnativhere the failure to meet the required evemagbe cured. Any failures could
compromise the intellectual property protectionuaueh our preclinical or clinical candidates and jjugsveaken or eliminate our ability to
protect our eventual market share for that product.

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality olur trade secrets, our business and competitiveitpms would be harmed

In addition to our patented technology prmtucts, we rely on trade secrets, including wentad know-how, technology and other
proprietary information, to maintain our compet#iposition. We seek to protect these trade sedéngsyrt, by entering into non-disclosure and
confidentiality agreements with parties that hasteeas to our trade secrets, such as our corpmibarators, outside scientific collaborators,
sponsored researchers, contract manufacturergjltams, advisors and other third parties. We alger into confidentiality and invention or
patent assignment agreements with our employeesarsiltants. However, any of these parties magdbréhe agreements and disclose our
proprietary information, and we may not be ablelitain adequate remedies for any breaches. Enfpecelaim that a party illegally disclosed
or misappropriated a trade secret is difficult,engve and time-consuming, and the outcome is dligiedble. In addition, some courts inside
and outside the United States are less willingnovilling to protect trade secrets. If any of owade secrets were to be lawfully obtained or
independently developed by a competitor, we woahgeno right to prevent them from using that tedbgy or information to compete with
us. If any of our trade secrets were to be disdaseor independently developed by a competitor,ampetitive position would be harmed.

If we infringe the rights of third parties, we codlbe prevented from selling products and could becéd to pay damages and defend agal
litigation.

If our products, methods, processes anerdédthnologies infringe the proprietary rightotfer parties, we could incur substantial costs
and may have to:

. obtain licenses, which may not be available ammercially reasonable terms, if at all;
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. abandon an infringing drug candidate;

. redesign our products or processes to avoid irgrment;

. stop using the subject matter claimed in the patkald by others;

. pay damages; or

. defend litigation or administrative proceedingsich may be costly whether we win or lose, whiohild result in a substantial

diversion of our financial and management resources
We may become involved in lawsuits to protect ofoece our patents, which could be expensive, tinemsuming and unsuccessful.

Competitors may infringe our patents. Targer infringement or unauthorized use, we mayeggiired to file infringement claims, which
can be expensive and time consuming. In additioaniinfringement proceeding, a court may decideadtpatent of ours is invalid or
unenforceable, or may refuse to stop the othey fiianin using the technology at issue on the grouhdsour patents do not cover the
technology in question. An adverse result in atigdiion proceeding could put one or more of ouepts at risk of being invalidated or
interpreted narrowly. Furthermore, because of thistntial amount of discovery required in conmectvith intellectual property litigation,
there is a risk that some of our confidential infation could be compromised by disclosure during tifpe of litigation. In addition, our
licensors may have rights to file and prosecutedhgpes of claims and we may be reliant on thedotso.

We may be subject to claims that our employees harengfully used or disclosed alleged trade seci@ftsheir former employers.

Some of our employees were previously eggaaat universities or other biotechnology or preceutical companies, including our
competitors or potential competitors. Although wetb ensure that our employees do not use therigtapy information or know-how of
others in their work for us, we may be subjectl&énes that we or these employees have used oiodestlintellectual property, including trade
secrets or other proprietary information, of anghsamployee's former employer. Litigation may beessary to defend against these claims. |
we fail in defending any such claims, in additiorpalying monetary damages, we may lose valual#éiéntual property rights or personnel.
Even if we are successful in defending against slaims, litigation could result in substantial toand be a distraction to management.

Intellectual property litigation could cause us &pend substantial resources and distract our penseinfrom their normal responsibilities

Even if resolved in our favor, litigation ather legal proceedings relating to intellectoraperty claims may cause us to incur significant
expenses, and could distract our technical and geanant personnel from their normal responsibilitiedaying the development of our
product candidates. In addition, there could bdip@mnouncements of the results of hearings, metar other interim proceedings or
developments, and if securities analysts or invegierceive these results to be negative, it chale a substantial adverse effect on the price
of our common stock. Litigation or other proceedirguld substantially increase our operating loasésreduce our resources available for
development activities. We may not have sufficfamncial or other resources to adequately condugtlitigation or proceedings. Some of our
competitors may be able to sustain the costs ofiaggtion or proceedings more effectively than @an because of their substantially greater
financial resources. Uncertainties resulting fréma initiation and continuation of patent litigationother proceedings could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to compete in thekagolace.
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Risks Related to Legislation and Administrative Acions
Healthcare reform may have a material adverse effen our industry and our results of operation

From time to time, legislation is implemedto reign in rising healthcare expenditures. brdh 2010, President Obama signed into law
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Actam&nded by the Health Care and Education RecammiliAct, or PPACA. PPACA includes
a number of provisions affecting the pharmaceutidlistry, including annual, non-deductible feesaag entity that manufactures or imports
some types of branded prescription drugs and bicdofeginning in 2011, and increases in Medicalthtes owed by manufacturers under the
Medicaid Drug Rebate Program. In addition, amorgothings, PPACA also establishes a new PatienteBed Outcomes Research Institute
to oversee, identify priorities and conduct compeeaclinical effectiveness research. Congresspnagosed a number of legislative initiatives
to alter PPACA, including possible repeal of PPA@Athis time, it remains unclear whether therd ¥ any changes made to particular
provisions of PPACA or its entirety. In additiorther legislative changes have been proposed argetisince PPACA was enacted. Most
recently, on August 2, 2011, President Obama sigmnedaw the Budget Control Act of 2011, which nr@gult in such changes as aggregate
reductions to Medicare payments to providers ofoufpvo percent per fiscal year, starting in 2018e Tull impact on our business of PPACA
and the Budget Control Act is uncertain. We campmetict whether other legislative changes will Hegted, if any, or how such changes
would affect the pharmaceutical industry generally.

We are subject to healthcare laws, regulation and@cement, and our failure to comply with thoseva could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financiabaditions.

We are subject to several healthcare réignkand enforcement by the federal governmentlamdtates and foreign governments in
which we conduct our business. The laws that méacabur ability to operate include:

. the federal Health Insurance Portability and dwatability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, as amended bg tHealth Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,ielhgoverns the conduct of various electronic tealte transactions and
protects the security and privacy of protectedthaaformation;

. the federal healthcare programs' Anti-Kickback 8gtwhich prohibits, among other things, perseomfknowingly and
willfully soliciting, receiving, offering or payingemuneration, directly or indirectly, in excharfgeor to induce either the
referral of an individual for, or the purchase,@rdr recommendation of, any good or service foictvpayment may be made
under federal healthcare programs such as the lsiedénd Medicaid programs;

. the federal transparency requirements under PPAch require manufacturers of drugs, devices dgials and medical
supplies to report to the Department of Health ldnthan Services information related to physicianmpeyts and other transfers
of value and physician ownership and investmerer@sts;

. federal false claims laws, which prohibit, amanther things, individuals or entities from knowipngresenting, or causing to be
presented, claims for payment from Medicare, Mddioar other third-party payers that are falseranéulent;

. federal criminal laws that prohibit executing aestte to defraud any healthcare benefit program d&ingdalse statements
relating to healthcare matters; and

. state law equivalents of each of the above fddaws, such as anti-kickback and false claimslawich may apply to items or
services reimbursed by any third-party payer, idiclg commercial insurers.
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If our operations are found to be in vimatof any of the laws described above or any offoernmental regulations that apply to us, we
may be subject to penalties, including civil annénal penalties, damages, fines, the curtailmemestructuring of our operations, the
exclusion from participation in federal and statalthcare programs and imprisonment, any of whizldcadversely affect our ability to
operate our business and our financial results.

We may be exposed to liability claims associatethwie use of hazardous materials and chemicals.

Our research and development activities magive the controlled use of hazardous mateaal$ chemicals. Although we believe that
safety procedures for using, storing, handling @isgosing of these materials comply with fedenatesand local laws and regulations, we
cannot completely eliminate the risk of accidemgalry or contamination from these materials. la #vent of such an accident, we could be
held liable for any resulting damages and any litgltould materially adversely affect our businefasancial condition and results of
operations. In addition, the federal, state andllavs and regulations governing the use, manufacstorage, handling and disposal of
hazardous oradioactive materials and waste products may requsrto incur substantial compliance costs thaldomaterially adversely affe:
our business, financial condition and results adrafions.

Risks Related to Employee Matters and Managing Groti
We may not successfully manage our growth.

Our success will depend upon the expangiaur operations and the effective managementiofjoowth, which will place a significant
strain on our management and on our administratiperational and financial resources. To managegitiwth, we may be required to expand
our facilities, augment our operational, finan@all management systems and hire and train additjoadified personnel. If we are unable to
manage this growth effectively, our business wdddarmed.

We may enter into or seek to enter into businessbmations and acquisitions which may be difficulh integrate, disrupt our business,
divert management attention or dilute stockholdealwe.

We may enter into business combinationsaagiisitions. We have limited experience in makinguisitions, which are typically
accompanied by a number of risks, including:

. the difficulty of integrating the operations apersonnel of the acquired companies;

. the potential disruption of our ongoing businasd distraction of management;

. the potential for unknown liabilities and expenses;

. the failure to achieve the expected benefits otthrabination or acquisition;

. the maintenance of acceptable standards, conpralsedures and policies; and

. the impairment of relationships with employees assalt of any integration of new management ahermpersonnel.

If we are not successful in completing asitjons that we may pursue in the future, we wdwddrequired to reevaluate our business
strategy and we may have incurred substantial esqgeand devoted significant management time awodiress in seeking to complete the
acquisitions. In addition, we could use substamations of our available cash as all or a portibthe purchase price, or we could issue
additional securities as consideration for thegpimitions, which could cause our stockholderaiites significant dilution.
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We rely on key executive officers and scientificcamedical advisors, and their knowledge of our busss and technical expertise would
difficult to replace.

We are highly dependent on our chief exgeudfficer and our principal scientific, regulagaand medical advisors. We do not have "key
person” life insurance policies for any of our oéfis. The loss of the technical knowledge and mamagt and industry expertise of any of our
key personnel could result in delays in productedigement, loss of customers and sales and divedadioranagement resources, which could
adversely affect our operating results.

If we are unable to hire additional qualified persoel, our ability to grow our business may be hard

We will need to hire additional qualifiedrgonnel with expertise in preclinical testingnidal research and testing, government regule
formulation and manufacturing and sales and margetVe compete for qualified individuals with nurmes biopharmaceutical companies,
universities and other research institutions. Cditipe for such individuals is intense, and we oainpe certain that our search for such
personnel will be successful. Attracting and retajrqualified personnel will be critical to our sess.

Risks Relating to Our Securities

There is not now and never has been any marketdar securities and an active market may never depelYou may therefore be unable to
re-sell shares of our securities at times and pedbat you believe are appropriate.

There is no market—active or otherwider~our common stock or our preferred stock andheeiis eligible for listing or quotation on a
securities exchange, automated quotation systeanyoother over-the-counter market, such as the Bil@tin Board, or the OTCBB, or the
Pink Sheets. Even if we are successful in obtaiapyoval to have our common stock quoted on th€EH; it is unlikely that an active
market for our common stock will develop any tinoes thereafter. Accordingly, our common stock ghlity illiquid. Because of this
illiquidity, you will likely experience difficultyin re-selling such shares at times and pricesythatmay desire.

There is no assurance that our common stock willllsted on a national securities exchange or quotad an automated quotation system.

We may seek listing of our common stoclaarational securities exchange or quotation ofconnmon stock on the OTCBB. However,
there is no assurance we will be able to meetritialilisting standards of either of those or antlger stock exchange or automated quotation
systems, or that we will be able to maintain arigsbf our common stock on either of those or atieostock exchange or automated quotatio
system. An investor may find it more difficult tisdose of shares or obtain accurate quotations @ tmarket value of our common stock
while our common stock is listed on the OTCBB. uf common stock is listed on the OTCBB, we wouldsbbject to an SEC rule that, if it
failed to meet the criteria set forth in such rimeposes various practice requirements on brokatede who sell securities governed by the rule
to persons other than established customers ameditex! investors. Consequently, such rule mayrdetker-dealers from recommending or
selling our common stock, which may further limg liquidity. This would also make it more diffi¢dbr us to raise additional capital.

Shares of our capital stock issued in the Mergeraor affiliates are not freely tradable under fedarsecurities laws and are subject tc
lock-up provision, which limits our stockholdershdity to sell such shares of our capital stock.

Shares of our preferred stock and our comstock issued as consideration in the Merger ta#éiliates pursuant the Merger Agreement
are deemed "Restricted Securities" under the fédera
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securities laws, and consequently such shares otayerresold without registration under the SemsiAct of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Act, or without an exemption from the@éies Act, such as resales effected in compéamith Rule 144 promulgated under the
Securities Act. Notwithstanding any such exemptadhshares of our stock issued in the Merger abgest to a lock-up provision set forth in
the applicable stockholders' agreement and mapeaogsold prior to the expiration of the specifieck-up period. The sale, or availability for
sale, of our common stock in the public market mdyersely affect the prevailing market price of common stock and may impair our abi
to raise additional capital by selling equity ougg-linked securities.

Because we became an operating company by meaaseverse merger, we may not be able to attractatiention of major brokerags
firms.

Additional risks may exist as a result af becoming a public reporting operating compamgugh a "reverse merger." Security analysts
of major brokerage firms may not provide coverafew capital stock or business. Because we be@apublic reporting operating company
through a reverse merger, there is no incentil@dkerage firms to recommend the purchase of ommeon stock. No assurance can be given
that brokerage firms will want to provide analysverage of our capital stock or business in theréut

The resale of shares covered by a resale registrattatement could adversely affect the market praf our common stock in the public
market, should one develop, which result would inrt negatively affect our ability to raise additi@h equity capital.

The sale, or availability for sale, of @mammon stock in the public market may adverselgdafthe prevailing market price of our comn
stock and may impair our ability to raise additiocepital by selling equity or equity-linked sedigs. In the past, we have maintained a
registration statement to register the resalesigaificant number of shares of our common stoak may be required to do so in the future.
resale of a substantial number of shares of ounoamstock in the public market could adverselyctftee market price for our common stock
and make it more difficult for you to sell sharéar common stock at times and prices that youdezappropriate. Furthermore, we expect
that, because there would be a large number oéshagistered pursuant to such a registrationnseate selling stockholders would continue
offer shares covered by such registration stateffioera significant period of time, the precise dima of which cannot be predicted.
Accordingly, the adverse market and price presswsdting from an offering pursuant to the registm statement may continue for an
extended period of time and continued negativespireson the market price of our common stock chalke a material adverse effect on our
ability to raise additional equity capital.

We are subject to Sarbanes-Oxley and the reportiaquirements of federal securities laws, which che expensive.

As a public reporting company, we are stitje the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as the infgiom and reporting requirements of the
Exchange Act and other federal securities laws. cdsts of compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Adt@ipreparing and filing annual and
quarterly reports, proxy statements and other mé&dion with the SEC, and furnishing audited reptotstockholders, cause our expenses to b
higher than they would be if we were privately héMe are not currently required to obtain an adtést report of our independent auditors
regarding the effectiveness of our internal costroider Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Adtpiay be subject to Section 404(b) in the
future. The cost to obtain an attestation reparfour independent auditor would be significanterBhis also a risk that neither we nor our
independent auditor will be able to conclude witthia prescribed timeframe that our internal contrar financial reporting is effective as
required by Section 404. Any failure by us to maimtthe effectiveness of our internal controlsén@dance with the requirements of
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as such
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requirements exist today or may be modified, suppleted or amended in the future, could have a mb#ztverse effect on our business,
operating results and stock price.

For so long as shares of our preferred stock remaintstanding, if we are sold in a transaction yi@hlg) less than the liquidation preference
payable in the aggregate to holders of outstandprgferred stock, holders of our common stock mayt neceive any proceeds from su
transaction and may lose their investment entirely.

As of February 19, 2014, we had outstan@if®,370 shares of common stock; 701,235 sharssriafs B preferred stock, 415,987 shares
of series B-2 preferred stock; 939,612 sharesnidsé-1 preferred stock; 983,208 shares of s&i@spreferred stock; 142,227 shares of
series A-3 preferred stock; 3,998 shares of sériépreferred stock; 6,443 shares of series A-Bgpred stock; 496,111 shares of series A-6
preferred stock; warrants to acquire 14,734 shafresries A-1 preferred stock; and warrants to aec®1793,326 shares of common stock. As
more fully described herein and in our certificaténcorporation, holders of shares of our pref@stock outstanding at the time of a sale or
liquidation will have a right to receive proceedsny, from any such transactions, before any payinhare made to holders of our common
stock. In the event that there are not enough pax® satisfy the entire liquidation preferencewf preferred stock, holders of our common
stock will receive nothing in respect of their aguioldings.

Our directors, executive officers and principal stcholders have substantial control over us and cdulelay or prevent a change in
corporate control.

As of December 31, 2013, our directorscexge officers and holders of more than five pataa our common stock, together with their
affiliates, owned, in the aggregate, substantillyf our outstanding voting stock. As a resuigge stockholders, acting together, have the
ability to control the outcome of matters submitteaur stockholders for approval, including theatibn of directors and any merger,
consolidation or sale of all or substantially dlbar assets. In addition, these stockholdersngdtgether, have the ability to control the
management and affairs of our company. Accordiniig, concentration of ownership might harm thekagaprice of our common stock by:

. delaying, deferring or preventing a change in coafsocontrol;
. impeding a merger, consolidation, takeover or othesiness combination involving us; or
. discouraging a potential acquirer from makintgreder offer or otherwise attempting to obtain colmf us.

Certain provisions in our charter documents and Belare law could discourage takeover attempts aratléo management entrenchment.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylagentain provisions that could have the effectelfgling or preventing changes in control or
changes in our management without the consentrdf@ard of directors. These provisions include:

. the exclusive right of our board of directors teatla director to fill a vacancy created by theaggion of the board of directors
or the resignation, death or removal of a direatdrich prevents stockholders from being able foseicancies on our board of
directors;

. the ability of our board of directors to detenmito issue shares of preferred stock and to deterthe price and other terms of

those shares, including preferences and votinggighithout stockholder approval, which could bedifo significantly dilute
the ownership of a hostile acquirer; and

. the requirement that a special meeting of stocldrslchay be called only by the directors or anyceffinstructed by the
directors to call the meeting, which may delaydbdity of our
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stockholders to force consideration of a proposaébdake action, including the removal of direstor

We are also subject to certain anti-takegvevisions under Delaware law. Under Delaware, laworporation may not, in general, engag
in a business combination with any holder of 15%nore of its capital stock unless the holder had thee stock for three years or, among o
things, the board of directors has approved thesetion by which such holder acquired the stock.

Our ability to utilize our net operating loss carfgrwards and certain other tax attributes may benited.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $263.6onilbf federal and $229.4 million of state net @iy loss carryforwards available to offset
future taxable income. Under Section 382 of therimtl Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the, @@deorporation undergoes an
"ownership change" (generally defined as a grehter 50% change (by value) in its equity ownersivipr a three year period), the
corporation's ability to use its pre-change netafieg loss carryforwards and other pre-changattaibutes to offset its post-change income
may be limited. We have not performed a detailemlyesis to determine whether an ownership changemgdction 382 of the Code has
previously occurred. As a result, if we earn ngalde income, our ability to use our pre-changeopetating loss carryforwards to offset U.S.
federal taxable income may become subiject to liroita, which could potentially result in increadature tax liability to us.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

On July 15, 2011, we entered into a leas®tir executive offices with Broadway Hampshiresddates Limited Partnership for
approximately 5,672 rentable square feet of spatied building located at 201 Broadway, Cambriddassachusetts 02139.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are not currently involved in any makkegal proceedings.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market for Registrant's Common Equity

There is no market for our common stockl ias not eligible for listing or quotation onyasecurities exchange, automated quotation
system or any other over-the-counter market, sach@OTCBB or the Pink Sheets.

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximaté stockholders of record of our common stocle NMéve not paid any cash dividends
since inception and do not anticipate paying cagidehds in the foreseeable future. Our abilityp&y cash dividends is restricted pursuant to
the terms of our credit facility and we may onlysdock dividends so long as no Default or Everibefault exists (as defined in the credit
facility).

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Reeds from Registered Securities
€) Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2013alak the following equity securities which were negistered under the Securities Act:

. On June 10, 2013, a total of 12,166 shares of camstuck were issued to one of our employees upercise of options
granted under our 2003 Equity Incentive Plan fagragate proceeds of $13,349.40.

(b) Use of Proceeds from Public Offering of Comn&iack

None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

You should read the following selected ficial data together with our financial statememis #he related notes contained in Item 8 of
Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We halazived the statements of operations data for eatlie three years ended December 31,
2011, 2012 and 2013 and the balance sheets dafdasember 31, 2012 and 2013 from the auditedhiiizd statements contained in Item 8 of
Part Il of this Form 10-K. The selected balancesskiata as of December 31, 2009, 2010 and 201thargtatement of operations data for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010 has baeadizom the audited financial statements for syers not included in this Form-K.

The financial information set forth belowr the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 andi2ilbeen recast to reflect the adoptio
Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-Re&esentation of Comprehensive Income

The historical financial information settfo below may not be indicative of our future penfiance and should be read together with
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finar€@idition and Results of Operations" and our histbfinancial statements and notes to
those statements included in Item 7 of Part Il ewh 8 of Part I, respectively, of this Annual Repon Form 10-K.

Year Ended December 31
Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss De 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

Revenue

Option fee $ — $ — 3 — $ — $ 1,61¢
Operating expense

Research and developm 60,53¢ 54,96 36,17¢ 11,69: 14,51¢

General and administratiy 6,82¢ 9,46¢ 5,33( 3,63( 2,66¢

Restructuring — — 217 —
Loss from operation (67,36 (64,430 (41,509 (15,539 (15,57)
Other income (expense

Other income (expense), r 9,08t (2,09%) (23¢€) 824 (7

Interest (expense) income, | (2,410  (2,607) (737) 85 48¢
Net loss (60,690 (69,12 (42,476 (14,630 (15,089
Other comprehensive loss, net of t

Unrealized (loss) gain from available-fc

sale securitie — (5) 8 (18) (232)

Comprehensive los $ (60,690 $ (69,130 $ (42,469 $ (14,649 $ (15,32)
Net (loss) earnings attributable to comn

stockholders $ (78,167 $ (83,12() $ 252 $ (26,779 $ (26,499
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As of December 31

Balance Sheet Dat: 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivale $ 12,30¢ $ 18,65: $ 25,12¢ $ 10,58: $ 7,89¢
Marketable securitie 4,00( 31,58( 7,96¢ 23,82¢
Working capital (22,67%) 8,02¢ 56,607 15,44¢ 29,88:
Total asset 12,75¢ 25,30( 63,637 18,96¢ 32,08¢
Total liabilities 37,251 55,31: 26,58¢ 3,38¢ 1,98¢

Total convertible preferred stock

and redeemable convertible

preferred stocl 252,80: 170,64¢ 156,65¢ 143,83t 131,69«
Total liabilities, convertible

preferred stock, redeemable

convertible preferred stock and

stockholders' defici 12,75¢ 25,30( 63,63’ 18,96¢ 32,08¢

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You should read the following discussions in cociiem with our consolidated financial statementsl aelated notes included in this
report. This discussion includes forward-lookingtetents that involve risk and uncertainties. Assult of many factors, such as those set
forth under "Risk Factors," actual results may @iffnaterially from those anticipated in these foré-looking statements.

Executive Overview

We are a science-driven biopharmaceutioalpany focused on developing novel differentiatestdapeutics for patients with osteoporosis
as well as other serious endocrine-mediated dise@se lead product candidate is abaloparatide @)\0a bone anabolic for the treatment of
osteoporosis delivered via subcutaneous injectitmch we refer to as Abaloparatide-SC. We are aitilyén Phase 3 development of
Abaloparatide-SC and expect to announce top-lin@ flam this study in late 2014. If the results positive, we plan to submit a new drug
application, or NDA, in the United States, and ak®ating authorization application, or MAA, in Eumpgn mid-2015. We hold worldwide
commercialization rights to Abaloparatide-SC, otthemn in Japan, and with a favorable regulatorgamie, we anticipate our first commercial
sales of Abaloparatide-SC will take place in 200& are leveraging our investment in Abaloparati@et&develop Abaloparatide-TD. We
expect this line extension will provide improvedipat convenience by enabling administration oflaparatide through a short-wear-time
transdermal patch. We have recently completed eesstul Phase 2 proof of concept study.

Our current clinical product portfolio alseludes a novel oral agent, RAD1901 at higheedpa selective estrogen receptor down-
regulator/degrader, or SERD. We are developing R¥IIfor the treatment of breast cancer brain masast or BCBM, and at lower doses as
a selective estrogen-receptor modulator, or SERMthfe treatment of vasomotor symptoms such afldsites. In 2014, we expect to
commence a Phase 1 clinical trial to evaluate RALL1f@r the treatment of BCBM, and we previously pbated a successful Phase 2 clinical
trial of RAD1901 for the treatment of vasomotor gtoms.

Abaloparatide

Abaloparatide is a novel synthetic peptidalog of parathyroid hormone-related protein, DHfP, that we are developing as a bone
anabolic treatment for osteoporosis. Osteoporesasdisease that affects nearly 10 million peapklaé United States, with an additional
approximately 43 million people at increased riskthe disease. It is characterized by low bonesmas structural deterioration of bone tis:
which leads to greater fragility and an increaskanture risk. Anabolic
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agents, like Forteo (teriparatide), are used toeimge bone mineral density, or BMD, and to redheeisk of fracture. We believe abalopara
has the potential to increase BMD and bone quadiy greater degree and at a faster rate than apipeoved drugs for the treatment of
osteoporosis. We are developing two formulationalaloparatide:

. Abaloparatide-S@Gs an injectable subcutaneous formulation of ataiajide. In August 2009, we announced positive ®Ras
data that showed Abaloparatide-SC produced fastegeeater BMD increases at the spine and the hipsubstantially less
hypercalcemia than Forteo (teriparatide), whicthésonly approved subcutaneous injectable anabgkat for the treatment of
osteoporosis in the United States. A subsequergePhalinical trial announced in January 2014 atsafirmed the results of our
first clinical trial by demonstrating that Abalopéide-SC produces BMD increases from baselinearsgiine and hip that are
comparable to our earlier Phase 2 clinical trialApril 2011, we commenced a Phase 3 clinical tfahbaloparatide-SC.
Enrollment was completed in March 2013, and we ekfmeannounce top-line data at the end of thetfoguarter of 2014.
Assuming a favorable outcome, we plan to use thgltsefrom this Phase 3 clinical trial to supporteav drug application, or
NDA, with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration,FIDA, and believe we could obtain approval of tHaAN\in 2016.

. Abaloparatide-TDis a line extension of Abaloparatide SC in the fafha convenient, short-wear-time (approximatehe fi
minutes) transdermal patch. In a recent Phasenalitrial, Abaloparatide-TD demonstrated a statidly significant mean
percent increase from baseline in BMD as compargdacebo at the lumbar spine and at the hip. Tresdts demonstrated a
clear proof of concept by achieving a dose deperiderease in BMD. Following additional formulatidevelopment work, we
intend to advance an optimized Abaloparatide-TDdpoo in additional clinical studies and to a Phadeidging study and to
subsequently submit for approval. We hold worldwidenmercialization rights to Abaloparatide-TD teclugy.

In April 2011, we began the dosing of setgen a pivotal Phase 3 clinical study manage#lbidic Bioscience Clinical Development VII
A/S, or Nordic, at certain clinical sites operabgdthe Center for Clinical and Basic Researchadileg global CRO with extensive experience
in global osteoporosis registration studies. Wegiesl this Phase 3 study to enroll a total of 2,d8fkents to be randomized equally to receive
daily doses of one of the following: 80 microgragng) of abaloparatide, a matching placebo, or gpra@ved dose of 20 pg of Forteo for
18 months. The study will also include a 6-montteasion period in order to obtain 24-months oftinae data, as requested by the FDA. We
plan to submit the New Drug Application, or NDA ttvihe 24-month fracture data. We believe the staghowered to show that abaloparatide
is superior to placebo for prevention of vertelfiratture. We believe the study is also powerechtmsthat abaloparatide is superior to Forteo
for greater BMD improvement at major skeletal séad for a lower occurrence of hypercalcemia, alitmm in which the calcium level in a
patient's blood is above normal. We expect to refjoprline 18-month fracture data from this studyhe end of the fourth quarter of 2014.
Upon completion of this Phase 3 trial, we intendubmit for regulatory approval in the United Ssa@d Europe in mid-2015. With standard
review time and a favorable regulatory outcomewitebegin commercial sales in 2016.

RAD1901

RAD1901 is a SERD that we believe croskestood-brain barrier and that we are evaluatingtfe treatment of BCBM. RAD1901 has
been shown to bind with good selectivity to theagtn receptor and to have both estrogen-like atrdgen-antagonistic effects in different
tissues. In many cancers, hormones, like estraignulate tumor growth and a desired therapeutat goto block this estrogen-dependent
growth while inducing apoptosis of the cancer c&8ERDs are an emerging class
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of endocrine therapies that directly induce estnageeptor, or ER, degradation, enabling themmore the estrogen growth signal in ER-
dependent tumors without allowing ligand-indeperndesistance to develop. There is currently onlg 8ERD, Faslodex (fulvestrant),
approved for the treatment of hormomeeptor positive metastatic breast cancer; howéwepatients with brain metastases (BCBM), theme
no approved targeted therapies that cross the Hioaid barrier. We believe there is a significapportunity for RAD1901 to be the first ER-
targeted therapy that crosses the blood-braindyarimore effectively treat ER- positive BCBM gpatentially reduce both intracranial and
extracranial BCBM tumors. We intend to commencédase 1 clinical trial in 2014 to evaluate highse RAD1901 for the treatment of BCB

We are also developing RAD1901 at loweredass a selective estrogen receptor modulatofEBVS for the treatment of vasomotor
symptoms. Historically, hormone replacement therapHRT, with estrogen or progesterone was constlthe most efficacious approach to
relieving menopausal symptoms such as hot flasth@sever, because of the concerns about the pottéaigrterm risks and contraindications
associated with HRT, we believe a significant nexidts for new therapeutic treatment options tattvesomotor symptoms. In a Phase 2 proc
of concept study, RAD1901 at lower doses demorgstratreduction in the frequency and severity of enatd and severe hot flashes. We
believe RAD1901 is an attractive candidate for adement into Phase 2b development as a treatmevd$omotor symptoms.

Our efforts and resources are focused piiynan developing Abaloparatide-SC, Abaloparatite; RAD1901 and our other
pharmaceutical product candidates, raising caaitdlrecruiting personnel. We have no product saléate and we will not receive any
revenue from product sales unless and until weve@pproval for Abaloparatide-SC from the FDA eguivalent foreign regulatory bodies.
However, developing pharmaceutical products is\gtley and very expensive process. Accordingly,smacess depends not only on the safet
and efficacy of abaloparatide, but also on ourgttib finance the development of these productictvwill require substantial additional
funding to complete development and file for mairkgapproval. Our ability to raise this additiofialincing will depend on our ability to
execute on the abaloparatide development plan, geasrad coordinate, on a cost-effective basishalréquired components of the NDA
submission for Abaloparatide-SC and scale-up Alataide-SC and Abaloparatide-TD manufacturing ciypaa addition, we currently have
no sales, marketing or distribution capabilitied #mus our ability to market abaloparatide may dejge part on our ability to enter into and
maintain collaborative relationships, which willpgsd on the strength of our clinical data, our as¢e capital and other factors.

Future Financing Needs

We expect to finance the future developnoests of Abaloparatide-SC, Abaloparatide-TD andOR801 with our existing cash and cash
equivalents and marketable securities, future wifsrof our common stock or preferred stock, ootigh other strategic financing
opportunities. Our current strategy is to initiatBhase 1B clinical study of RAD1901 for the treattrof BCBM in 2014. However, due to its
early stage of development, we are not yet abtietermine the possible marketing approval timetinfuture development costs at this time.
Our current strategy is to collaborate with thiadtges for the further development and commeradilim of RAD140 and RAD1901 for the
treatment of vasomotor symptoms. Therefore, weale@xrpect that we will incur substantial future tsofer these programs because we expec
these costs will be borne by third parties. Theesfd is not possible to project the future depehent costs or possible marketing approval
timeline at this time.

We anticipate that we will make determioas as to which additional programs to pursue awvdnuch funding to direct to each program
on an ongoing basis in response to the scientificcinical data of each product candidate, pragoessecuring third-party collaborators, as
well as
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ongoing assessments of such product candidateimemial potential and our ability to fund this puad development.

The successful development of our prodaotates is subject to numerous risks and unoéigaiassociated with developing drugs,
including, but not limited to, the variables listeelow. A change in the outcome of any of theséab#zs with respect to the development of
any of our product candidates could mean a significhange in the cost and timing associated Wwétdevelopment of that product candidate.

Abaloparatide-SC is our only product caatidn late stage development, and our businessrtlyr depends heavily on its successful
development, regulatory approval and commerciatimatWe have not submitted an NDA to the FDA or panable applications to other
regulatory authorities. Obtaining approval of anAR an extensive, lengthy, expensive and uncepeigess, and any approval of
Abaloparatide-SC may be delayed, limited or defideenany reasons, including:

. we may not be able to demonstrate that abaloperggisafe and effective as a treatment for ost@smto the satisfaction of the
FDA;

. the results of our clinical studies may not meetldvel of statistical or clinical significance teged by the FDA for marketing
approval,

. the FDA may disagree with the number, desigre,stonduct or implementation of our clinical sasi

. the clinical research organization, or CRO, thatretain to conduct clinical studies may takeéosst outside of our control that

materially adversely impact our clinical studies;

. the FDA may not find the data from preclinical sagdand clinical studies sufficient to demonstthig abaloparatide's clinical
and other benefits outweigh its safety risks;

. the FDA may disagree with our interpretatiordafa from our preclinical studies and clinical $&sdor may require that we
conduct additional studies;

. the FDA may not accept data generated at oniceli study sites;
. the FDA may require development of a Risk Evaluatiad Mitigation Strategy, or REMS, as a conditdmpproval;
. if our NDA is reviewed by an advisory committeeg thDA may have difficulties scheduling an adviscoynmittee meeting in a

timely manner or the advisory committee may recomurelgainst approval of our application or may recwnd that the FDA
require, as a condition of approval, additionakprécal studies or clinical studies, limitationa approved labeling or
distribution and use restrictions; or

. the FDA may identify deficiencies in the manutaing processes or facilities of our third-partamofacturers.

In addition, the FDA may change its apptqaicies or adopt new regulations. For examplteFebruary 15, 2012, we received a letter
from the FDA stating that, after internal considiena, the agency believes that a minimum of 24-msmf fracture data is necessary for
approval of new products for the treatment of pestapausal osteoporosis, and our ongoing Abalopar&C pivotal Phase 3 clinical study is
designed to produce fracture data based on an 8hrpoimary endpoint. Based on our discussions thighFDA, we believe that continued
use of the 18-month primary endpoint will be acebf#, provided that our NDA includes the 24-momé#tfure data derived from a 6-month
extension of the abaloparatide 80 pug and placetapgrin our Phase 3 clinical study that will reeean approved alendronate (generic
Fosamax) therapy for osteoporosis management. Wetplsubmit the NDA with the 24-month fractureadde cannot be certain that the
FDA will be supportive of this plan, will not chaaghis approval policy again, or adopt other apprgolicies or regulations that adversely
affect any NDA that we may submit.
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Financial Overview
Research and Development Expent

Research and development expenses conisigtrpy of clinical testing costs, including paynte in cash and stock made to contracted
research organizations, or CROSs, salaries ancetefsrsonnel costs, fees paid to consultants atsitletservice providers for regulatory and
quality assurance support, licensing of drug compswand other expenses relating to the manufaatavelopment, testing and enhancement
of our product candidates. We expense our researttilevelopment costs as they are incurred.

None of the research and development exsangelation to our product candidates are ctigrémrne by third parties. Our lead product
candidate is abaloparatide and it represents thedaportion of our research and development esgeefor our product candidates. We began
tracking program expenses for Abaloparatide-SQ®52 and program expenses from inception to DeceBhe2013 were approximately
$144.0 million. We began tracking program expetiseg\baloparatide-TD in 2007, and program experis@s inception to December 31,
2013 were approximately $29.6 million. We begankitag program expenses for RAD1901 in 2006, angjaim expenses from inception to
December 31, 2013 were approximately $15.5 millidie. began tracking program expenses for RAD14®@082and program expenses from
inception to December 31, 2013 were approximatblf $illion. These expenses relate primarily teeexal costs associated with
manufacturing, preclinical studies and clinicaltgosts.

Costs related to facilities, depreciatistock-based compensation and research and develbpopport services are not directly charged
to programs as they benefit multiple research gnogrthat share resources.

We expect that future development costtedlto the Abaloparatide-SC and Abaloparatide-Tdaymms will increase through possible
marketing approval in the United States for Abatagide-SC in the mid-2016 and for Abaloparatide-{filbnid-2020. For Abaloparatide-SC,
we estimate that future development costs may ex$&#.0 million, including $35.0 million for clin& costs, $23.0 million for license and
milestone payments and NDA submission fees, $1@lmfor manufacturing costs and $1.0 million fpreclinical costs. For Abaloparatide-
TD, we estimate that future development costs maged $45.0 million, including $35.0 million forimical costs, $8.0 million for
manufacturing costs, and $2.0 million for preclalicosts and NDA submission fees. As a portiorhefdevelopment costs for Abaloparatide-
SC are to be settled in shares of our seri€scanvertible preferred stock, the amount of fulegelopment costs will be affected by chang
the fair value of the series A-6 convertible pregdrstock (see notes 11 and 13 to our financigstants included in this Annual Report).

The following table sets forth our reseaacld development expenses related to Abalopar&tieAbaloparatide-TD, RAD1901 and
RAD140 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2082011 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Abaloparatid-SC $ 4597° $ 44,69: $ 27,04¢
Abaloparatid-TD 11,45¢ 6,04( 6,36¢
RAD1901 — 59 70
RAD140 — 18 23

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses copsisgrily of salaries and related expenses focetiee, finance and other administrative
personnel, professional fees, business insuraang, r
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general legal activities, including the cost of ntaining our intellectual property portfolio, anther corporate expenses. Our general and
administrative expenses may increase as a resaityolisting of our securities on a national sesiexchange due to the higher costs of bein
a publicly traded company.

Our results also include stock-based corsaion expense as a result of the issuance of stutlstock option grants to employees,
directors and consultants. The stock-based compensxpense is included in the respective categaf expense in the statement of
operations (research and development and genetadministrative expenses). We expect to recordiaddl non-cash compensation expens
in the future, which may be significant.

Interest Income and Interest Expen:
Interest income reflects interest earneduncash, cash equivalents and marketable sexuriti

Interest expense reflects interest due wodeloan and security agreement, or the Creditlisg entered into on May 23, 2011 with
General Electric Capital Corporation, or GECC, gard and lender, and Oxford Finance, as a lenderdi&w $12.5 million under an initial
and second term loan during the year ended Dece®ih@011 and an additional $12.5 million undeniedtterm loan during the year ended
December 31, 2012. In connection with the fundifithe term loans, we issued warrants to purchade @@,280 shares of our series A-1
convertible preferred stock at an exercise pricg8df.42 per share, which exercise price, as atrekah anti-dilution adjustment effected in
connection with our issuance of the Series B Shamdswvarrants pursuant to the Purchase Agreemestreduced to $76.27 as of
December 31, 2013.

Other Income (Expense)

For the years ended December 31, 2013 @@, Ddther income (expense) primarily reflects ¢fesnin the fair value of the series A-6
convertible preferred stock liability from the datethe initial accrual to the reporting date ascdissed in note 11 to our financial statements
included in this Annual Report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our financial statemeatgiires us to make certain estimates and assomsptiat affect the reported amounts of asse!
and liabilities and expenses during the reportetbgs. We believe the following accounting policas "critical" because they require us to
make judgments and estimates about matters thaihaetain at the time we make the estimate, dfiereint estimates, which would have b
reasonable, could have been used, which would tesedted in different financial results.

Accrued Clinical Expense

When preparing our financial statementsaveerequired to estimate our accrued clinical agps. This process involves reviewing open
contracts and purchase orders, communicating witlpersonnel to identify services that have beefopaed on our behalf and estimating the
level of service performed and the associatedinostred for the service when we have not yet beeoiced or otherwise notified of actual
cost. Payments under some of the contracts wewvgarties depend on factors such as successfallment of certain numbers of patients,
site initiation and the completion of clinical triailestones. Examples of estimated accrued clirigpenses include:

. fees paid to investigative sites and laboratoriesohnection with clinical studies;
. fees paid to CROs in connection with clinical sagliif CROs are used; and
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. fees paid to contract manufacturers in connectibh tlie production of clinical study materials.

When accruing clinical expenses, we esgntiag time period over which services will be perfed and the level of effort to be expended
in each period. If possible, we obtain informatiegarding unbilled services directly from our seevproviders. However, we may be required
to estimate the cost of these services based oniyformation available to us. If we underestimat@verestimate the cost associated with a
trial or service at a given point in time, adjusiitseto research and development expenses may besaeg in future periods. Historically, our
estimated accrued clinical expenses have approgdradtual expense incurred. Subsequent changetrimtaées may result in a material cha
in our accruals.

Research and Development Expen:

We account for research and developmerts dxysexpensing such costs to operations as irstuResearch and development costs
primarily consist of personnel costs, outsourcegaech activities, laboratory supplies and licdess.

Nonrefundable advance payments for goodeniices to be received in the future for useegearch and development activities are
deferred and capitalized. The capitalized amou@®gpensed as the related goods are deliverér getvices are performed. If expectations
change such that we do not expect we will needjtiwels to be delivered or the services to be reddesmitalized nonrefundable advance
payments would be charged to expense.

Stoclk-based Compensation

We measure stock-based compensation ctist accounting measurement date based on theafai of the option, and recognize the
expense on a straighie basis over the requisite service period ofapton, which is typically the vesting period. Wstimate the fair value
each option using the Black-Scholes option pricimagdel that takes into account the fair value of@ammon stock, the exercise price, the
expected life of the option, the expected volatitift our common stock, expected dividends on omnroon stock, and the risk-free interest rate
over the expected life of the option. Due to omited history, we use the simplified method desmtiin the SEC's Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 107,Share-Based Payment, determine the expected life of the option grafite estimate of expected volatility is based oevdew of
the historical volatility of similar publicly heldompanies in the biotechnology field over a pedothmensurate with the option's expected
term. We have never declared or paid any cashetinigl on our common stock and we do not expect sodo the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, we use an expected dividend yielderfoz The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Trgagald curve in effect at the time of grant
valuation for a period commensurate with the opsi@xpected term. These assumptions are highlgsting and changes in them could
significantly impact the value of the option andhbe the related compensation expense.

We apply an estimated forfeiture rate toent period expense to recognize compensationnsepenly for those awards expected to vest
We estimate forfeitures based upon historical dedaisted for known trends, and will adjust theneate of forfeitures if actual forfeitures
differ or are expected to differ from such estinsatBubsequent changes in estimated forfeitureseaognized through a cumulative adjustmen
in the period of change and also will impact theoant of stock-based compensation expense in fyterieds.

Stock-based compensation expense recogfuzegtions granted to consultants is also bageuh dhe fair value of the options issued, as
determined by the Black-Scholes option pricing niodewever, the unvested portion of such optiomtgas re-measured at each reporting
period, until such time as the option is fully \ezkt
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We have historically granted stock optiahgxercise prices not less than the fair valusuofcommon stock as determined by our boa
directors. Our board of directors has historicdlyermined, with input from management, the estih#air value of our common stock on the
date of grant based on a number of objective ahpstive factors, including:

. the prices at which we sold shares of convertitseferred stock;

. the superior rights and preferences of secarg@ior to our common stock at the time of eaahtgr

. the likelihood of achieving a liquidity eventctuas a public offering or sale of our company;

. our historical operating and financial perforrarand the status of our research and producta@aweint efforts; and
. the achievement of enterprise milestones, includingentering into collaboration and license agrests

Our board of directors also considers widna provided by management in determining theviaiue of our common stock and has
consistently used the most recent valuation pralmemanagement for determining the fair valuewf@ammon stock unless a specific event
occurs that necessitates an interim valuation.

The valuations are prepared based on titegee from thé/aluation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Secestissued as
Compensation or Practice Aid, that was developed by staffhef American Institute of Certified Public Accourtsaand a task force
comprising representatives from the appraisal,gneap public accounting, venture capital and acacleommunities and utilized the
probability-weighted expected return method, or FRNE as outlined in the Practice Aid. PWERM considigre value of preferred and
common stock based upon the probability-weightedemt value of expected future net cash flows,ideriag each of the possible future
events, as well as the rights and preferencesabf glgare class. PWERM is complex as it requiresemaus assumptions relating to potential
future outcomes of equity, hence, the use of trethmd can be applied: (1) when possible futureauss can be predicted with reasonable
certainty; and (2) when there is a complex capitaicture (i.e., several classes of preferred anthton stock).

Fair Value Measurements

We define fair value as the price that wido# received to sell an asset or be paid to teasasliability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Wardite fair value based on the assumptions magdditipants use when pricing the asse
liability. We also use the fair value hierarchyttpdoritizes the information used to develop thassumptions.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highgsbrity to unadjusted quoted prices in active nesiskfor identical assets (Level 1) and the lowes
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). Our ficéal assets and liabilities are classified witthia fair value hierarchy based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair valmeasurement. The three levels of the fair vaiemaichy, and its applicability to our financial
assets, are described below:

Level 1—Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thatacessible at the measurement date of identicadstricted assets.

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar assets, or inputs thatadbservable, either directly or indirectly, fabstantially the full term
through corroboration with observable market dagwel 2 includes investments valued at quoted prazjusted for legal or contractt
restrictions specific to the security.
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Level 3—Pricing inputs are unobservable for the asset,ishanputs that reflect the reporting entity'sroassumptions about the
assumptions market participants would use in pgitihe asset. Level 3 includes private investmdratsadre supported by little or no
market activity.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, we hiolghfcial assets which are measured using Levediell?2 and Level 3 inputs. Assets
measured using Level 1 inputs include money mdtkets, which are valued using quoted market prigieis no valuation adjustments applit
Assets measured using Level 2 inputs include mablketsecurities that consist primarily of governtregency securities (direct issuance
bonds, corporate bonds, etc.) and are valued tisirtparty pricing resources, which generally irgerest rates and yield curves observable ¢
commonly quoted intervals of similar assets as mfadde inputs for pricing. Assets and liabilitiegasured using Level 3 inputs include our
stock asset, stock liability, other liability anémant liability. The stock asset represents tlepaid balance and the stock liability represerd
accrued balance of the research and developmeahs&pelated to the stock dividends to be issudtbtdic in shares of our series A-6
convertible preferred stock (or in shares of commsitmiek if we list our common stock on a nationatteange) which is being recognized rat:
over the estimated per patient treatment periocutite three work statements executed with Nomtithe Nordic Work Statements. The othel
liability represents the liability to issue shacé®ur series A-6 convertible preferred stock fenvices rendered in connection with the Nordic
Work Statements. The liability is calculated bagpdn the number of shares earned by Nordic thréluglperformance of clinical trial services
multiplied by the estimated fair value of our serfe6 convertible preferred stock at each reporting dahe fair values of the stock asset, s
liability and other liability are based upon thé& faalue of our series A-6 preferred stock as deteed using PWERM, as described above.

The warrant liability represents the liitifor the warrants issued to the placement agenéngaged in connection with our series A-1
convertible preferred stock financing, to the ineesin the our series B convertible preferredisfirtancing in April and May 2013, and to the
lenders in connection with our Credit Facility. Tharrant liability is calculated using the Blackh®tes option pricing method.

As of December 31, 2013, we held no LevasSets and Level 3 liabilities represent approtéiyd7% of our total assets and 20% of our
total liabilities. The other liability balance witlontinue to increase until we issue the accruadeshof series &-preferred stock to Nordic. Tl
stock liability balance will fluctuate with the @hliability and amount of research and developnespense related to stock dividend amounts
being recognized ratably over the estimated peepiatreatment period. Increases and decreasés iaggregate fair value of these liabilities
will affect net loss as changes in fair value @®ognized as other income (expense), but the ceamifjenot significantly impact our liquidity
and capital resources.

Results of Operations

The following discussion summarizes the fe@fors our management team believes are necdssary understanding of our financial
statements.
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Years Ended December 31, 2013 and December 31,

Years Ended
December 31 Change
2013 2012 $ %
(in thousands)

Operating expense

Research and developme $ 6053t $ 54,96. $ 5,57¢ 10%

General and administrati\ 6,82¢ 9,46¢ (2,640) -28%
Loss from operation (67,365 (64,430 (2,935 5%
Other (expense) incom

Other income, (expense) r 9,08t (2,095  11,18( -534%

Interest (expense) income, | (2,410 (2,607) 19 -7%
Net loss $ (60,690 $ (69,12() $ 8,43¢

Research and development expensEsr the year ended December 31, 2013, researctevadopment expense was $60.5 million
compared to $55.0 million for the year ended Deam®d, 2012, an increase of $5.6 million, or 10%riBy the year ended December 31,
2013, we incurred professional contract servicesa@ated with the development of Abaloparatide-8@& Abaloparatide-TD of $57.4 million,
compared to $50.7 million for the year ended Decam®, 2012. This increase was primarily the resiidtdditional expenses incurred for the
enrolliment of patients in our Phase 3 clinicalloidAbaloparatide-SC, which began dosing of paten April 2011 and completed enroliment
in March 2013, and for the enrollment of patient®ur Phase 2 clinical trial of Abaloparatide-TChigh began dosing patients in September
2012 and completed patient visits in August 2018. &Xpect that Abaloparatide-SC expenses will desereaer the course of the clinical study
as patients complete treatment. In addition, tiliedoe variability from quarter to quarter in tlsests for Abaloparatid&C, driven primarily b
the euro/dollar exchange rate and fluctuationiénvialue of the convertible preferred stock isseiddINordic under the Stock Issuance
Agreement, which is more fully described below uriResearch and Development Agreements."

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended December 31, 2013, genera@mihistrative expense was $6.8 million
compared to $9.5 million for the year ended Decam3fie 2012, a decrease of $2.6 million, or 28%sTdécrease was primarily the result of
significant fees incurred during the year endededgner 31, 2012 for consulting and legal costs datemtwith the compilation and review of
our various filings with the Securities and Excha@pmmission, including the filing of our first Ferl0-K as a reporting company, and a one
time non-recurring consultation fee of approximat0.3 million, as well as a decrease in the amotifrtanchise tax expense recognized
during the year ended December 31, 2013, as couhpatbe year ended December 31, 2012.

Other income (expense), reFor the year ended December 31, 2013, other incoetef other expense, was $9.1 million. Otheoime,
net of other expense, primarily reflects changebénfair value of the stock liability and otheability as discussed in notes 11 and 13 to our
financial statements included in this Annual Rep®hte $9.1 million of other income, net of expereepf December 31, 2013 was primarily
due to a decrease in the fair value of our stadkility and other liability as a result of an ovédecline in the fair value of the underlying
convertible preferred stock from December 31, 2@1Recember 31, 2013.

Interest (expense) income, Adtor the year ended December 31, 2013, interesrse net of interest income, was $2.4 million
compared to $2.6 million for the year ended Decamfie 2012, a decrease of $0.2 million, or 7%. Teisrease was primarily a result of loy
average debt outstanding during the year endedrbleee31, 2013 as compared to the year ended Dec&hp2012.
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Years Ended December 31, 2012 and December 31,

Years Ended
December 31 Change
2012 2011 $ %
(in thousands)

Operating expense

Research and developme $ 5496: $ 36,17¢ $ 18,78 52%

General and administratiy 9,46¢ 5,33( 4,13¢ 78%
Loss from operation (64,43() (41,509 (22,92) 55%
Other (expense) incom

Other (expense) income, r (2,095 (23€) (1,859 78&%

Interest (expense) income, | (2,607) (731) (1,872) 25€%
Net loss $ (69,128 $ (42,47¢) $ (26,657)

Research and development expensEsr the year ended December 31, 2012, researctevadopment expense was $55.0 million
compared to $36.2 million for the year ended Decan®i, 2011, an increase of $18.8 million, or 52%is increase was primarily the result of
increased professional contract services assoopdtedhe development of Abaloparatide-SC and Apatatide-TD. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, we incurred professional cons@wices associated with the development of Atsalatide-SC and Abaloparatide-TD of
$50.7 million, compared to $33.4 million for theayeended December 31, 2011. This increase was piirttee result of expenses incurred for
continuing enrollment of patients in our Phaseusigiof Abaloparatide-SC, which began with the dgsifpatients in April 2011.

General and administrative expenseBor the year ended December 31, 2012, generaa@méhistrative expense was $9.5 million
compared to $5.3 million for the year ended Decam3fie2011, an increase of $4.1 million or 78%. Triwease was primarily the result of
increased employee related costs, including aease in stock-based compensation expense and saf@gse as a result of an increase in
employee headcount, as well as an increase in é&ghbaccounting fees and the costs associatedwiitiy a public company.

Other (expense) income, reFor the year ended December 31, 2012, other expresef other income, was $2.1 million. Other exge
net of other income, primarily reflects changethia fair value of the stock liability and otherdiéty from the date of the initial accrual to the
reporting date as discussed in notes 11 and 1@rtbrnancial statements included in this Annual &e&p

Interest (expense) income, Adtor the year ended December 31, 2012, interesrse net of interest income, was $2.6 million
compared to $0.7 million for the year ended Decam3fie2011. Interest expense reflects interestodueur Credit Facility.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

From inception to December 31, 2013, weehiagurred an accumulated deficit of $277.3 milliprimarily as a result of expenses incu
through a combination of research and developmeivitées related to our various product candidated expenses supporting those activities
We have financed our operations since inceptiomgrily through the private sale of preferred staskvell as the receipt of $5.0 million in f
associated with an option agreement. We have algsowed $25.0 million under our Credit Facilitytiree term loans. Our total cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities balance Beoémber 31, 2013 is $12.3 million. On February2Di4, we entered into a Series B-2
Convertible Preferred Stock and Warrant Purchage&gent, or the Series B-2 Purchase Agreementjauotr$o which we may raise up to
approximately $40.2 million
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through the issuance of (1) up to 655,000 sharesioSeries B-2 preferred stock, or the Series®@res, and (2) warrants to acquire up to
1,637,500 shares of our common stock, with an ésefrice of $6.142 per share. On February 14, 2B&#ruary 19, 2014 and February 24,
2014, we consummated closings under the Serie®PBréhase Agreement, whereby, in exchange for agtgggoceeds to us of approximately
$25.6 million, we issued an aggregate of 417,6 Hseshof series B-2 convertible preferred stoclSenies B2, and warrants to purchase up
total of 1,044,039 shares of our common stock.riéde 19 to the financial statements included is Aninual Report for additional information
regarding the issuance of the Series B-2 Shares.

We believe that our existing cash and eaglivalents and marketable securities will be sigfit to fund our operations into the third
quarter of 2014. Accordingly, we plan to pursuafining opportunities to address our future capieglds, including the completion of a priv
placement or public offering and other strategi@ficing alternatives that could include, but arelinated to, partnering or other collaboration
agreements. However, there is no guarantee thavfahgse financing opportunities will be availabdeus on favorable terms, and some could
be dilutive to existing stockholders. If we failabtain additional future capital, we may be unableomplete our planned preclinical and
clinical trials and obtain approval of any prodoahdidates from the FDA and other regulatory autilest

The following table sets forth the majousses and uses of cash for each of the periodsrsletbelow (in thousands):

Years ended December 3:

2013 2012 2011
Net cash (used in) provided k
Operating activitie: $ (45,0179 $ (43,159 $ (35,89¢)
Investing activities 3,971 27,43t (23,800
Financing activitie: 34,69¢ 9,24¢ 74,24
Net (decrease) increase in cash and
equivalents $ (6,350 $ (6,475 $ 14,54«

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities fer year ended December 31, 2013 was $45.0 millibich was primarily the result of a net loss
of $60.7 million, partially offset by net changasworking capital of $9.7 million and $6.0 millieret non-cash adjustments to reconcile net
loss to net cash used in operations. The $60.Tomiflet loss was primarily due to expenses incuimembnnection with our ongoing Phase 3
clinical study of Abaloparatide-SC and our Phaséirical study of Abaloparatide-TD, which finisheédsing patients during the three months
ended September 30, 2013. The $6.0 million netgasi adjustments to reconcile net loss to netesat in operations included $13.1 million
of research and development expenses settleddhk atm stock-based compensation expense of $1ibménd was partially offset by a
$9.1 million reduction in the fair value of our want liability, stock liability and other liabilitas a result of a decline in the fair value of the
underlying convertible preferred stock from Decentie 2012 to December 31, 2013.

Net cash used in operating activities far year ended December 31, 2012 was $43.2 millibich was primarily the result of a net loss
of $69.1 million, partially offset by changes in skimg capital of $6.4 million and $19.5 million abn-cash adjustments to reconcile net loss t
net cash used in operations, including $15.1 nnilbbresearch and development expenses settlédak. §he $69.1 million net loss and
$15.1 million of research and development expesstiked in stock are primarily due to expensesrigclin connection with our ongoing
Phase 3 clinical study of Abaloparatide-SC andRhase 2 clinical study of Abaloparatide-TD, whicimenenced during the third quarter of
2012.
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Cash Flows from Investing Activitie

Net cash provided by investing activitiesthe year ended December 31, 2013 was $4.0 millis compared to net cash provided by
investing activities of $27.4 million for the yeanded December 31, 2012.

The net cash provided by investing acesitiluring the year ended December 31, 2013 wasplyma result of $21.0 million net proceeds
received from the sale or maturity of marketablusiéies, partially offset by $17.1 million in purases of marketable securities. The net cash
provided by investing activities during the yeaded December 31, 2012 was primarily a result @ million in net proceeds from the sale
or maturity of marketable securities, partiallyseff by $19.0 million in purchases of marketableigées.

Our investing cash flows will be impactadtbe timing of purchases and sales of marketadtar#ties. All of our marketable securities
have contractual maturities of less than one y@ae. to the short-term nature of our marketable r$ées;, we would not expect our operational
results or cash flows to be significantly affecbyda change in market interest rates due to the-##on duration of our investments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities the year ended December 31, 2013 was $34.7omillis compared to $9.2 million of net cast
provided by financing activities for the year end@tember 31, 2012.

Net cash provided by financing activities year ended December 31, 2013 consisted of $di#lién of net proceeds from the issuance
our series B convertible preferred stock in ApnitlavMiay of 2013, partially offset by payments under Credit Facility of $8.2 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities the year ended December 31, 2012 consists o5$i@#lion of proceeds from our Credit
Facility and $0.3 million of net proceeds from saption exercises, offset by $3.5 million of payrteeon our Credit Facility.

Our continued operations will depend on tikbewe are able to raise additional funds throumgtious potential sources, such as equity ar
debt financing and potential collaboration agreethehhrough December 31, 2013, almost all of cnaricing has been through private
placements of preferred stock and borrowings undeCredit Facility. We plan to seek to raise addil capital immediately in order to
continue operating our business beyond the en@b4 2Ne can give no assurances that any additcapalal that we are able to obtain, if any,
will be sufficient to meet our needs. Our futureital requirements will depend on many factors|uding the scope and progress made in our
research and development activities and our clisitalies. We may also need additional funds faspae future strategic acquisitions of
businesses, products or technologies complemetttarmyr business. Financing may not be availablaaoeptable terms, or at all, and our
failure to raise capital when needed could matgradversely impact our growth plans and our finahcondition and results of operations.
Additional equity financing may be dilutive to thelders of our common stock and debt financingydilable, may involve significant cash
payment obligations and covenants that restriciatility to operate our business.
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Financings

Through December 31, 2013, we have receageglegate net cash proceeds of $210.9 million tiwrsale of shares of our preferred stoc
as follows:

Net Proceeds

Issue Year No. Shares (in thousands)
Series B redeemable convertible preferred st

Q) 2003, 2004, 20(¢ 1,599,99 $ 23,77¢
Series C redeemable convertible preferred st

(1) 2006, 2007, 20C  10,146,62 82,09¢
Series /1 convertible preferred stock( 2011 9,223,04. 61,59:
Series /5 convertible preferred stock( 2011 64,43( 52¢
Series B convertible preferred stc 201z 701,23! 42,87(
Total 21,73533 $ 210,85

(1)  Share amounts stated in pre-Merger shares, whiohected into the rights to one-tenth of one shamsymant to the
Merger.

On May 23, 2011, we entered into our créditlity with GECC, as agent and a lender, andd@kf~inance LLC, as a lender, consisting of
three term loans, pursuant to which we may drawggregate of $25.0 million. We drew $6.3 milliorden the initial term loan on May 23,
2011. The initial term loan is repayable over atef 42 months, including a six-month interest-opériod, and bears interest at 10.16% per
year. We drew $6.3 million under the second teramlon November 21, 2011. The second term loarpayeble over a term of 36 mont
including an approximately six-month interest-opbriod, and bears interest at 10.0% per year. On29a2012, we drew $12.5 million under
the third term loan. The third term loan is repdgadyver a term of 30 months, including an approxedasix-month interest-only period, and
bears interest at 10.0% per year. On each of Mag@Bl1, November 21, 2011 and May 29, 2012, weedsvarrants to GECC and Oxford
Finance LLC for the purchase of up to a total 1@,28Bares of series A-1 preferred stock. The wasreath have a term of 10 years. The term:
of the warrants provide that the exercise price bmgdjusted in the event we issue shares of thesS&-1 at a price lower than $81.42 per
share. As a result of an anti-dilution adjustmédfeated in connection with the issuance of the sewes B convertible preferred stock in May
2013, the exercise price of the warrants has beguced to $76.27 as of December 31, 2013.

On April 23, 2013, we entered into a SeBeSonvertible Preferred Stock and Warrant Purcliiageement, or the Purchase Agreement,
and consummated a first closing under the Purchgseement, whereby in exchange for aggregate pdscetapproximately $43.0 million,
we issued 700,098 shares of our series B converpifeferred stock, or Series B, which are conuertitio an aggregate of 7,000,980 shares o
our common stock, and warrants to purchase ugdtabof 1,750,248 shares of our common stock abamcise price of $6.142 per share. On
May 10, 2013, we consummated a second closing uhddé?Purchase Agreement, whereby in exchange fpeggte proceeds of approximately
$0.1 million, we issued 1,137 shares of Series @vaarrants to purchase up to a total of 2,843 shafreur common stock.

The shares of our Series B convertiblegyrefl stock or Series B, are convertible, in whslen part, at the option of the holder at any
time into shares of common stock, on a ten-for{mass at an initial effective conversion price 61812 per share. Holders of shares of
Series B are entitled to receive dividends at@ 0&8% per annum, compounding annually, which@Eon a daily basis commencing on the
date of issuance of the shares of Series B. Didsl@ne payable, as accrued, upon liquidation, exesdle, and conversion to common stock,
including upon mandatory conversion of the SeriagpBn the Company's common stock becoming listettdding on a national stock
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exchange. The holders of shares of Series B anesaltitled to dividends declared or paid on anyehaf common stock.

Shares of our Series B rank senior in payrt@any other dividends payable on any and aiksef our preferred stock and upon
liquidation, or an event of sale, each share oeS& shall rank equally with each other shareefes B, senior to all shares of series A-1
convertible preferred stock, series A-2 convertjirieferred stock, Series A-3 convertible prefestntk, series A+ convertible preferred stoc
series A-5 convertible preferred stock and serigsabdnvertible preferred stock, or collectivelyy @eries A Preferred Stock, and senior to all
shares of common stock. In the event of a liquiggtdissolution, or winding-up of the Company, liwdders of the Series B are entitled to be
paid first out of the assets available for disttitw, before any payment is made to our SeriesefidPred Stock. Payment to the holders of
Series B shall consist of two (2) times the originauance price of $61.42, plus all accrued byiaishdividends.

Each share of Series B has the right tbrthmber of votes per share as is equal to the rustiares of common stock into which such
share of Series B is then convertible.

The warrants issuable pursuant to the Rusel\greement are exercisable at any time prithvedifth anniversary of their issuance.

The issuance of the shares of Series Buputdo the Purchase Agreement and accompanyimamtarunder the Purchase Agreement
resulted in an adjustment to the conversion pricb@series A-1 convertible preferred stock, sefie2 convertible preferred stock and
series A-3 convertible preferred stock, or the Abitution Adjustment. As a result of the Anti-Diloh Adjustment, the effective conversion
price of each share of series A-1 convertible pretestock, series A-2 convertible preferred stac# series A-3 convertible preferred stock
was reduced from $8.142 to $7.627 as of Decembe2@l3. Accordingly, each share of Series A-1,e&3eA-2 and Series A-3 is convertible
into 10.675 shares of our common stock as of Deeer®b, 2013.

On February 14, 2014, we entered into tBeres B-2 Convertible Preferred Stock and WarPamthase Agreement, pursuant to which
we may raise up to approximately $40.2 million thgh the issuance of (1) up to 655,000 series B&2eShconvertible preferred stock, or
Series B2, par value $.0001 per share, and (2) warrarasdaire up to 1,637,500 shares of its common staickn exercise price of $6.142
share.

Shares of our Series B-2 are convertibleyhiole or in part, at the option of the holdeaay time into shares of common stock, on a ten-
for-one basis at an initial effective conversioitgmof $6.142 per share. Holders of shares of S&i2 are entitled to receive dividends at a
of 8% per annum, compounding annually, which acomua daily basis commencing on the date of issuahthe shares of Series B-2.
Dividends are payable, as accrued, upon liquidageant of sale, and conversion to common stodh,ding upon mandatory conversion of
the Series B-2 upon the Company's common stocknii@cplisted for trading on a national stock excharibhe holders of shares of Series B-2
are also entitled to dividends declared or paiduoyn shares of common stock.

Shares of Series B-2 rank senior in payrteany other dividends payable on any and alksesf preferred stock and upon liquidation, o
an event of sale, each share of Series B-2 shidlequally with each other share of Series B-2lded Series B, senior to all shares of
Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-4ieSek-5 and Series A-6 and senior to all shareafmon stock. In the event of a liquidation,
dissolution, or winding-up of the Company, the leoklof the Series B-2 are entitled to be paid fitgtof the assets available for distribution,
before any payment is made to the Series A-1, Sér2, Series A-3, Series A-4, Series A-5 and Sehi®. Payment to the holders of Series E
2 shall consist of one and a half time (1.5) tintesoriginal issuance price of $61.42, plus allraed but unpaid dividends.
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On February 14, 2014, February 19, 2014Fraiatuary 24, 2014, we consummated closings uhee$éries B-2 Purchase Agreement,
whereby, in exchange for aggregate proceeds td aisppoximately $25.6 million, we issued an aggtegd 417,615 Series B-2 Shares and
warrants to purchase up to a total of 1,044,03%eshaf our common stock.

Each share of Series B-2 has the rightdb number of votes per share as is equal to thbaushares of common stock into which such
share of Series B-2 is then convertible.

The warrants issuable pursuant to the Rsel\greement are exercisable for a period ofyfaars from issuance.

The issuances on February 14, 2014, Fepa®r2014 and February 24, 2014, of the SeriesalBePaccompanying warrants under the
Purchase Agreement resulted in an additional adpust to the Conversion Price of the Series A-1ieSek-2 and Series A-3. As a result of the
Anti-Dilution Adjustment, the effective conversignice of each share of Series A-1, Series A-2 aTeS A-3 was reduced from $7.627 to
$7.464. Accordingly, each share of Series A-1,6&3ef-2 and Series A-3 is currently convertible ih0908 shares of common stock.

Research and Development Agreeme

Abaloparatide-SC Phase 3 Clinical TrialOn March 29, 2011, we and Nordic entered intoiai€dl Trial Services Agreement, a Work
Statement NB-1, or the Work Statement NB-1, undeh<Clinical Trial Services Agreement and a relédéatk Issuance Agreement, as
amended to date, or the Stock Issuance AgreemersiLidht to the Work Statement NB-1, Nordic is mamathe Phase 3 clinical trial, or the
Phase 3 Clinical Trial, of Abaloparatide-SC antiéing compensated for such services in a combmaficash and shares of stock.

In December 2011, we entered into an amendio the Work Statement NB-1, or the First AmeedimPursuant to the original terms of
the Work Statement NB-1, the study was to be cotediinn 10 countries at a specified number of sitiélsin each country. The terms of the
First Amendment (1) provided for two additional atries (the United States and India) in which ti tvould be conducted, (2) specified a
certain number of sites within each such additi@aaintry for the conduct of the study, and (3) adeghvarious terms and provisions of the
Work Statement NB-1 to reflect the addition of sgolntries and sites within the study's parameRagments to be made by us to Nordic
under the First Amendment are denominated in batbseand U.S. dollars and total up to €717,700 §2B) and $289,663, respectively, for
the 15 additional study sites in India contempldigdhe First Amendment and up to €1.2 million @dillion) and $143,369, respectively, for
the five additional study sites in the United Séatentemplated by the First Amendment.

In June 2012, we entered into a second dment to the Work Statement NB-1, or the Second idneent. Pursuant to the original terms
of the Work Statement NB-1, as amended by the Rimstndment, the study was to be conducted in 12tc@s at a specified number of sites
within each country. The terms of the Second Amesninil) increased the overall number of sites liiragsites in Europe, Brazil and
Argentina and removing other sites, (2) specifi@ddain number of sites within each country fa donduct of the study, and (3) amended
various terms and provisions of the Work StatenNdBHl to reflect additional services to be providgaxisting sites and the addition of the
new study sites within the study's parameters.Jéwond Amendment also provided that cash paymemsridic under the Clinical Trial
Services Agreement as well as the payment of slorgteck under the related Stock Issuance Agreemidireach be reduced by an amount of
€11,941 ($16,454) per subject for any subjects éoh India or the United States. Such reducteirall be applied in pro rata monthly
installments. Payments to be made by us to Nomlileuthe Second Amendment in connection with tliitiadal services provided at existing
sites and the conduct of the study at the new ssitdg are denominated in both euros and U.S.rdalad total of up to €3.7 million
($5.1 million) and $205,540, respectively.
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Pursuant to the Work Statement lBwe are required to make certain per patient gaysndenominated in both euros and U.S. dollar
each patient enrolled in the Phase 3 Clinical Tadbwed by monthly payments for the duration loé tstudy and final payments in two equal
euro-denominated installments and two equal U.Baddenominated installments. Changes to the GinTrial schedule may alter the timing,
but not the aggregate amounts of the payments.

The Work Statement NB-1, as amended on idbee 9, 2011 and June 18, 2012, provides for 4abiap to approximately €41.2 million
($56.7 million) of euro-denominated payments anatal of up to approximately $3.2 million of U.Solthr-denominated payments over the
course of the Phase 3 Clinical Trial. These paymergty be adjusted based upon actual sites opewnek performed or number of patients
enrolled.

Pursuant to the Stock Issuance Agreemesttjiblagreed to purchase the equivalent of €371¢864&ries A-5 convertible preferred stock
at $8.142 per share, and 64,430 shares of seriesohvertible preferred stock were sold to Nordidway 17, 2011 for proceeds of $525,154.
These shares were exchanged in a merger of thefaperating company with a subsidiary of ours EyN011 (see note 3 to the financial
statements included in this Annual Report) for ggragate of 6,443 shares of our series A-5 corblerireferred stock.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNoatlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock dedls, payable in shares of series A-6
convertible preferred stock or shares of commoaoksiioour preferred stock has been converted imatance with its amended certificate of
incorporation, having an aggregate value of up3®.& million ($50.7 million), or the Nordic AccruirDividend. In the event Nordic sells the
shares of series A-5 convertible preferred stock thne event the shares of series A-5 converpibdderred stock are converted into common
stock in accordance with our amended certificat@adrporation, this right to receive the Nordiccing Dividend will terminate, but a right
to receive an equivalent number of shares of sér@<sonvertible preferred stock or common stockapplicable, will remain with Nordic as a
contractual right under the Stock Issuance Agreémen

The Nordic Accruing Dividend related to thlkase 3 Clinical Trial is determined based upereitimated period that will be required to
complete the Phase 3 Clinical Trial. On the lasifess day of each calendar quarter (each, an UAtBrate"), beginning with the quarter
ended June 30, 2011, the Company has a liabiliigsiee shares of Series A-6 (or common stock, #fteconversion of the Company's
preferred stock into common stock) to Nordic tisatsferred to as the "Applicable Quarterly Amoumtd is equal to €36.8 million
($50.7 million) (subject to adjustment in accordamdth the applicable provisions of the Second Admeent relating to consideration payable
for patients enrolled in India and the U.S.) mithes aggregate value of any prior Nordic Accruingi®&nd accrued divided by the number of
calendar quarters it will take to complete the BH&a€linical Trial. To calculate the aggregate nemiif shares due to Nordic in each calendar
quarter, the Company converts the portion of €8@ilBon ($50.7 million) to accrue in such calendprarter into U.S. dollars using the simple
average of the exchange rate for buying U.S. dollath euros for all Mondays in such calendar qeraiVe then calculate the aggregate
number of shares to accrue in such calendar quartdividing the U.S. dollar equivalent of the Ajmalble Quarterly Amount, by the greater of
(1) the fair market value of our common stock athefapplicable Accrual Date or (2) $8.142 and ding down the resulting quotient to the
nearest whole number. Such shares due to Nordio dre issued when declared or paid by our Boaidirgfctors, who are required to do so
upon Nordic's request, or upon an event of salefA3ecember 31, 2013, 438,124 shares of Seriesw&ré due to Nordic under Work
Statement NB-1, as amended, or, after the autoroaticersion into common stock of our preferred lstd¢381,240 shares of our common
stock. In December 2013, Nordic requested thattadtes of Series A-6 accrued as of December 3B @dder Work Statement NB-1 be
issued. Accordingly, our Board of Directors deatheedividend to Nordic of all 438,124 shares acdrueder Work Statement NB-1 on
December 31, 2013.
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Prior to the issuance of shares of stodkddlic in satisfaction of the Nordic Accruing Dilnd, the liability to issue shares of stock was
being accounted for as a liability on our balarfoees, based upon the fair value of the Series A-@ietermined using PWERM. Changes in the
fair value from the date of accrual to the datessfiance of the Series A-6 shares are recordedais @r loss in other income (expense) in the
statement of operations.

We recognize research and development egpfen the amounts due to Nordic under the WorkeStant NB-1 ratably over the estimated
per patient treatment period beginning upon enmtinin the Phase 3 Clinical Trial, or a twenty-niopériod. We recorded $31.6 million,
$30.8 million, and $5.1 million of research and elepment expense during the years ended Decemb20323, 2012, and 2011, respectively,
for per patient costs incurred for patients that @arolled in the Phase 3 Clinical Trial. During tyear ended December 31, 2011, we also
recorded approximately $11.0 million of researct davelopment expense associated with the cosisr@tcfor preparatory and other start-up
costs to initiate the Phase 3 Clinical Trial.

As of December 31, 2013, we had (1) a liigtof $4.8 million reflected in accrued expensesl other current liabilities on the balance
sheet resulting from services provided by Nordibjol are payable in the form of a stock dividend &2) a liability of $11.6 million that is
reflected in accrued expenses and other currdsiliies on the balance sheet resulting from sawigrovided by Nordic, which are payable in
cash.

Abaloparatide-SC Phase 3 Clinical Extensgindy—In February 2013, we entered into the Work Stateér-3 under the Clinical Trie
Services Agreement and the related Stock Issuagoeefent. Pursuant to the Work Statement3\Blordic will perform an extension study
evaluate six months of standard-of-care osteopproanagement following the completion of the 18-thakbaloparatide-SC Phase 3 Clinical
Trial, or the Extension Study, and will be compéaddor such services in a combination of cashsirades of stock. Under the terms of a
Letter of Intent that we entered into with Nordit ©October 22, 2012 setting forth the parties’ atians to negotiate in good faith to enter into
Work Statement NB-3, we were required to make @raipayment of €806,468 ($1.1 million).

Payments in cash to be made to Nordic uttgdeWork Statement NB-3 are denominated in botbsand U.S. dollars and total up to
€4.5 million ($6.2 million) and $0.6 million, respaely. In addition, we will issue to Nordic sharesour series A-6 convertible preferred
stock having a value of up to €4.5 million ($6.2lioin) and $0.3 million, as additional payment garvices to be provided under the Work
Statement NB-3 and the Services Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement provides beaginning with the quarter ended March 31, 201@&di¢ is entitled to receive quarterly stc
dividends in connection with services performedarriie Work Statement NB-3, payable in sharesridésé-6 convertible preferred stock, or
shares of common stock if our preferred stock lehlautomatically converted into common stock toatance with our amended certificate
of incorporation, having an aggregate value ofauf4.5 million ($6.2 million) and $0.3 million. e event Nordic sells the shares of series /
5 convertible preferred stock or in the event tharss of series A-5 convertible preferred stockcareserted into common stock in accordance
with our amended certificate of incorporation, thight to receive the Nordic Accruing Dividend wiirminate, but a right to receive an
equivalent number of shares of series A-6 converpibeferred stock or common stock, as applicabiléremain with Nordic as a contractual
right under the Stock Issuance Agreement.

The Nordic Accruing Dividend related to tBetension Study is determined based upon the atghperiod that will be required to
complete the Extension Study. On each Accrual Dmginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2008 Gompany will recognize a liability
to issue shares of Series A-6 to Nordic with anlfgpple Quarterly Amount value equal to €4.5 milligh6.2 million) and $0.3 million minus
the aggregate value of any previously accrued Nokdcruing Dividend related to the Extension Stdixided by the number of calendar
quarters it will take to complete the
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Extension Study. The Company calculates the agtgeganber of shares of Series A-6 to accrue in satdndar quarter by dividing such
Applicable Quarterly Amount, by the greater of {f1¢ fair market value of our common stock as ofapglicable Accrual Date or (2) $8.142
and rounding down the resulting quotient to therestawhole number. Such shares due to Nordic dve tesued when declared or paid by our
Board of Directors, who are required to do so uondic's request, or upon an event of sale. Aseddinber 31, 2013, 25,772 shares of
Series A-6 were due to Nordic under Work StaterBH3, or, after the automatic conversion into comrstock of our preferred stock,
257,720 shares of our common stock. In Decembe3,20ardic requested that all shares of Series AeBueed as of December 31, 2013 under
Work Statement NB-3 be issued. Accordingly, our f8oaf Directors declared a dividend to Nordic df28,772 shares accrued under Work
Statement NB-3 on December 31, 2013.

Prior to the issuance of shares of stodkdadic in satisfaction of the Nordic Accruing Diland, the liability to issue shares of stock was
being accounted for as a liability on our balartoees, based upon the fair value of the Series A-@edermined using PWERM. Changes in the
fair value from the date of accrual to the datessfiance of the Series A-6 shares are recordedais @r loss in other income (expense) in the
statement of operations.

On December 6, 2013, we entered into eeteftIntent, or the Letter of Intent, with Nordighich provides that we and Nordic will
continue to negotiate the definitive terms of anelaiment No. 1 to Work Statement NBer the Amendment, which provides for an addai
18 months of standard-of-care treatment for th@gpts enrolled in the Extension Study being genfd under Work Statement NB-3, or the
Second Extension. The Amendment provides for payitmens to Nordic of both cash and equity compeéasah consideration of the services
provided by Nordic, with the equity portion of suobmpensation to be made pursuant to an Amendmzr kb the Amended and Restated
Stock Issuance Agreement entered into by the gaaeof May 16, 2011.

Pursuant to the Letter of Intent, we werguired to make an initial payment of €222,573%%4illion) and agreed to commence payment
of the cash compensation due in considerationeofévices being provided by Nordic under the Amegrat. Once the Amendment is fully
executed, we will commence payment of both the eashequity compensation stipulated under the Ammemd.

Payments in cash to be made by us to Norttier the Letter of Intent and Amendment in cotinaavith the services to be provided are
denominated in both euros and U.S. dollars and apt#o €3.0 million ($4.1 million) and $0.5 million, respaely. In addition, we will issue 1
Nordic, subject to the execution of the Amendmshgres of its stock having a value of u€3.0 million ($4.1 million) and $0.5 million, as
additional payment for services to be provided unlkde Amendment and the Clinical Trial Services @ament.

The Letter of Intent will terminate on tearlier of (1) the date on which we and Nordic et the Amendment or (2) February 28, 2!
(pursuant to an extension mutually agreed to byCthpany and Nordic).

We recognize research and development egpien the amounts due to Nordic under the Workegtant NB-3 and Amendment ratably
over the estimated per patient treatment periogsbang upon enroliment or over a nine-month antetéen-month period, respectively. We
recorded $4.5 million of research and developmepépse during the year ended December 31, 201Befgpatient costs incurred for patients
that had enrolled in the Extension Study and Seé&bddnsion.

As of December 31, 2013, we had (1) a liigtof $0.6 million reflected in accrued expensesl other current liabilities on the balance
sheet resulting from services provided by Nordibjolh are payable in the form of a stock dividend &) a liability of $0.5 million that is
reflected in accrued expenses and other currdsitifi@s on the balance sheet resulting from se&wiprovided by Nordic, which are payable in
cash.
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Abaloparatide-TD Phase 2 Clinical TriadOn July 26, 2012, we entered into a Letter ofrititer the Phase 2 Letter of Intent, with
Nordic, which provides that we and Nordic will, $edt to compliance by us with certain requiremeaitsur Certificate of Incorporation ar
applicable securities laws, negotiate in good fatbnter into (1) a Work Statement NB-2, or therkV®tatement NB-2, a draft of which is
attached to the Phase 2 Letter of Intent, andr{Zraendment to the Amended and Restated Stockissudeggreement.

In February 2013, we executed the final K\@tatement NB-2 under the Clinical Trial Serviéegeement and the related Stock Issuance
Agreement. Pursuant to the Work Statement NB-2dNawill provide clinical trial services relating the Phase 2 Clinical Trial and will be
compensated for such services in a combinatiomsli @and shares of stock. Payments in cash to be byauls to Nordic under Work Statem
NB-2 are denominated in both euros and U.S. dolladstatal up to €3.6 million ($5.0 million) and $018llion, respectively. In addition, we
will issue to Nordic shares of our series A-6 prafd stock having a value of up to $2.9 millionaaslitional payment for services to be
provided under the Work Statement NB-2 and thei€dinTrial Services Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNioadlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock deidls in connection with services performed
under Work Statement NB-2, payable in shares ééséy-6 convertible preferred stock, or sharesashimon stock if our preferred stock has
been automatically converted in accordance witantended certificate of incorporation. In the ewdatdic sells the shares of series A-5
convertible preferred stock or in the event theehaf series A-5 convertible preferred stock amverted into common stock in accordance
with our amended certificate of incorporation, thight to receive the Nordic Accruing Dividend wiirminate, but a right to receive an
equivalent number of shares of series A-6 converpibeferred stock or common stock, as applicabilé remain with Nordic as a contractual
right under the Stock Issuance Agreement.

The Nordic Accruing Dividend related to thlkase 2 Clinical Trial is determined based upereitimated period that will be required to
complete the Phase 2 Clinical Trial. On each Adcsde, beginning with the quarter ended Decemiie2812, we will recognize a liability -
issue shares of Series A-6 to Nordic with an Agllle Quarterly Amount and is equal to up to $2.Bioni minus the aggregate value of any
prior Nordic Accruing Dividend related to the Ph&s€linical Study divided by the number of calendaarters it will take to complete the
Phase 2 Clinical Study. We calculate the aggregateber of shares of Series A-6 to accrue in sutdndar quarter by dividing such
Applicable Quarterly Amount, by the greater of {1¢ fair market value of our common stock as ofapglicable Accrual Date or (2) $8.142
and rounding down the resulting quotient to therestavhole number. Such shares due to Nordic dpe issued when declared or paid by our
Board of Directors, who are required to do so uiondic's request, or upon an event of sale. Asexfdinber 31, 2013, 32,215 shares of
Series A-6 were due to Nordic under Work Stater\d®8+2, or, after the automatic conversion into commtock of our preferred stock,
322,150 shares of common stock. In December 20&8jiblrequested that all shares of Series A-6 attas of December 31, 2013 under
Work Statement NB-2 be issued. Accordingly, our iBioaf Directors declared a dividend to Nordic df3#,215 shares accrued under Work
Statement NB-2 on December 31, 2013.

Prior to the issuance of shares of stodkddlic in satisfaction of the Nordic Accruing Dilnd, the liability to issue shares of stock was
being accounted for as a liability on our balarfoees, based upon the fair value of the Series A-@ietermined using PWERM. Changes in the
fair value from the date of accrual to the datéessfiance of the Series A-6 shares are recordedais @r loss in other income (expense) in the
statement of operations.

We recognize research and development egpfen the amounts due to Nordic under the Worke8tant NB-2 ratably over the estimated
per patient treatment period beginning upon enmtinin the Phase 2 Clinical Trial, or a nine-maop¢hiod. We recorded $4.1 million and
$1.4 million of research and development expensmglthe years ended December 31, 2013 and 204/2ecévely,
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for per patient costs incurred for patients that éarolled in the Phase 2 Clinical Trial. Additilgawe recorded approximately $0.9 million of
research and development expense associated witto#ts incurred for preparatory and other statagts to initiate the Phase 2 Clinical Trial
during the year ended December 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2013, we had a liabiifty0.5 million that is reflected in accrued expes and other current liabilities on the balance
sheet resulting from services provided by Nordibijol are payable in cash.

We are also responsible for certain passdtih costs in connection with the Phase 3 Clinicall, Extension Study and Phase 2 Clinical
Trial. Pass-through costs are expensed as incarredon delivery. We recognized research and dewedmt expense of $3.9 million,
$6.0 million, and $5.0 million for pass through toduring years ended December 31, 2013, 20122@td, respectively.

License Agreement Obligatior
Abaloparatide

In September 2005, we exclusively licengedworldwide rights (except for Japan) to abalafide and analogs from Ipsen, including US
Patent No. 5,969,095, (effective filing date Ma&&h 1996, statutory term expires March 29, 201&}led "Analogs of Parathyroid Hormone"
that claims abaloparatide and US Patent No. 6,884 (@ffective filing date March 26, 1996, statytterm expires March 29, 2016) entitled
"Analogs of Parathyroid Hormone" that claims methofltreating osteoporosis using abaloparatidepiwiadmaceutical compositions
comprising abaloparatide, and the correspondingidarpatents and continuing patent applicationgadutition, we have rights to joint
intellectual property related to abaloparatideluding rights to the jointly derived intellectuaigperty contained in US Patent No. 7,803,770
(effective filing date October 3, 2007, statutogym expires March 26, 2028 with175 days of patemhtadjustment due to delays in patent
prosecution by the USPTO) and related patents atehpapplications both in the United States anddmade (excluding Japan) that cover the
method of treating osteoporosis using the Phadi@i8al study dosage strength and form. In consitien for the rights to abaloparatide and in
recognition of certain milestones having been rsaifeDecember 31, 2012, we have paid to Ipsen greggte amount of $1.0 million. The
license agreement further requires us to make patamgon the achievement of certain future clingsad regulatory milestones. The range of
milestone payments that could be paid under theesgent is €10.0 million to €36.0 million ($13.8 nih to $49.6 million). Should
abaloparatide become commercialized, we or oulicrisees will be obligated to pay to Ipsen a fifieel percent royalty based on net sales of
the product on a country by country basis untilltier of the last to expire of the licensed patemtfor a period of 10 years after the first
commercial sale in such country. The date of thetaexpire of the abaloparatide patents, bamimgextension thereof, is expected to be
March 26, 2028. In the event that we sublicenséophbaatide to a third party, we are obligated tg @aaercentage of certain payments receive
from such sublicensee (in lieu of milestone paym@at achieved at the time of such sublicense).afipéicable percentage is in the low dol
digit range. In addition, if we or our sublicenseesmercialize a product that includes a compouscbdered by us based on or derived from
confidential Ipsen know-how, we will be obligatedpay to Ipsen a fixed low single digit royalty oet sales of such product on a country-by-
country basis until the later of the last to exmf@ur patents that cover such product or forropeof 10 years after the first commercial sal
such product in such country. Effective May 11, 20psen agreed to accept shares of series A-gmpedfstock in lieu of a cash milestone
payment of €1.0 million. We issued 173,263 shafenes A-1 preferred stock to Ipsen on May 17,12 settle the liability. These shares
were exchanged in the Merger for an aggregate @267shares of series A-1 convertible preferredksémd upon the listing of our common
stock on a national securities exchange will conagtomatically to 188,972 shares of common stdble license agreement contains other
customary clauses and terms as are common in siagitaements in the industry.
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RAD1901

In June 2006, we exclusively licensed tlelawide rights (except for Japan) to RAD1901 fraisai. In particular, we have licensed US
Patent No. 7,612,114 (effective filing date Decenftie 2003, statutory term extended to August 0262with 967 days of patent term
adjustment due to delays by the USPTO) and US PHi®rB,399,520 (effective filing date December 2603, statutory term expires
December 25, 2023). In consideration for the rightRAD1901 and in recognition of certain milestsiaving been met to date, we have paic
to Eisai an aggregate amount of $1.5 million. Tdrage of milestone payments that could be paid uimgéeagreement is $1.0 million to
$20.0 million. The license agreement further reegiins to make payments upon the achievement afrcéuture clinical and regulatory
milestones. Should RAD1901 become commercializedywill be obligated to pay to Eisai a royalty inariable mid-single digit range based
on net sales of the product on a country by coupdisis for a period that expires on the later dfigite the last remaining valid claim in the
licensed patents expires, lapses or is invalidatéidat country, the product is not covered by gataection clauses, and the sales of lawful
generic version of the product account for mora thapecified percentage of the total sales gftarmaceutical products containing the
licensed compound in that country; or (2) a peabd0 years after the first commercial sale oflibensed products in such country, unless it i
sooner terminated. The latest valid claim is exgetd expire, barring any extension thereof, onusid 8, 2026. The royalty rate shall then be
subject to reduction and the royalty obligationl wKpire at such time as sales of lawful generisiem of such product account for more than :
specified minimum percentage of the total saleallgfroducts that contain the licensed compound w&ee also granted the right to sublicense
with prior written approval from Eisai, but subjg¢ota right of first negotiation held by Eisai ifveeek to grant sublicenses limited to particula
Asian countries. If we sublicense RAD1901 to adiparty, we will be obligated to pay Eisai, in adxh to the milestones referenced above, a
fixed low double digit percentage of certain feesnaceive from such sublicensee and royaltiesviariable midsingle digit range based on 1
sales of the sublicensee. The license agreemetaiosmther customary clauses and terms as are oconmsimilar agreements in the industry.

Net Operating Loss Carryforward

As of December 31, 2013, we had federalsiat® net operating loss carryforwards of apprakéty $263.6 million and $229.4 million,
respectively, the use of which may be limited, asatibed below. If not utilized, the net operatiogs carryforwards will expire at various d¢
through 2033.

Under Section 382 of the Code, substantiahges in our ownership may limit the amount afaperating loss carryforwards that could
be used annually in the future to offset taxabt®mime. Specifically, this limitation may arise iretbvent of a cumulative change in ownership
of our company of more than 50% within a three-ymarod. Any such annual limitation may signifidgmeduce the utilization of the net
operating loss carryforwards before they expiree phivate placements and other transactions thet becurred since our inception, may have
triggered an ownership change pursuant to SecB@nwshich could limit the amount of net operatingd carryforwards that could be utilized
annually in the future to offset taxable incomegnfy. Any such limitation, whether as the resulpoér private placements, sales of common
stock by our existing stockholders or additiondsaf common stock by us, could have a materiadese effect on our results of operations ir
future years. We have not completed a study tosasshether an ownership change has occurred, dhariere have been multiple
ownership changes since our inception, due toigreficant costs and complexities associated witthsstudy. In each period since our
inception, we have recorded a valuation allowancédte full amount of our deferred tax asset, as#falization of the deferred tax asset is
uncertain. As a result, we have not recorded adgrég or state income tax benefit in our stateroéoperations.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangemen

We do not have any off-balance sheet agwanagts or any relationships with unconsolidatediestof financial partnerships, such as
entities often referred to as structured financep&cial purpose entities.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In February 2013, FASB issued Accountingn8ards Update No. 2013-(Reporting of Amounts Reclassified out of Accumd|&tther
Comprehensive Incomer ASU 2013-02. Under ASU 2013-02, an entityeiguired to provide information about amounts resifaesi out of
accumulated other comprehensive income by compotreatldition, an entity is required to present&i on the face of the financial
statements or in the notes, significant amountsissiied out of accumulated other comprehensigerite by the respective line items of net
income, but only if the amount reclassified is rieggh to be reclassified in its entirety in the sam@gorting period. For amounts that are not
required to be reclassified in their entirety to ileome, an entity is required to cross-referanoether disclosures that provide additional
details about those amounts. ASU 2013-02 doeshaotge the current requirements for reporting redrme or other comprehensive income in
the financial statements. We adopted ASU 2013-02ammiary 1, 2013. Its adoption did not have a ri@tienpact on our results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.

New Accounting Standards

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accountingrgards Update No. 2013-Rresentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Whiieta
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lossafax Credit Carryforward Existey ASU 2013-11. ASU 2013-11 clarifies guidance and
eliminates diversity in practice on the presentatbunrecognized tax benefits when a net operdtisg carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a
tax credit carryforward exists at the reportingeddthe amendments to ASU 2013-11 are effectivénferim and annual fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 2013, with early aidoppermitted. We do not expect adoption of ASU201 will have a material impact on
our results of operations, financial position, asle flows.

In December 2013, the FASB issued AccognBtandards Update No. 2013-D&finition of a Public Business Enti§ASU 2013-12").
ASU 2013-12 amends the Master Glossary of the FAB&unting Standards Codification to include onénigon of public business entity
for future use in GAAP. ASU 2013-12 does not affedsting requirements but will be used in consitlgthe scope of new financial guidance
and will identify whether the guidance does or doesapply to public business entities. There iscmal effective date for the amendment in
ASU 2013-12 and we do not expect ASU 2013-12 vélldna material impact on our results of operatiinancial position or cash flows.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of RadiealtH, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balaneetstof Radius Health, Inc. as of December 31, 2032012, and the related statements o
operations and comprehensive loss, convertiblemed stock, redeemable convertible preferred samckstockholders' deficit, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endedBber 31, 2013. These financial statements aretponsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet éudbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ai @fuithe Company's internal control over financigborting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company's internal contra@rdinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnixiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting thewents and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesars significant estimates made by managementeaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementiened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the financial position of Radius Health, Inc
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results operations and its cash flows for each of theglyears in the period ended December 31
2013, in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedamting principles.

The accompanying financial statements Heen prepared assuming that the Company will coatas a going concern. As discussed in
Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company&asring losses from operations and has a nétataeficiency that raise substantial do
about its ability to continue as a going conceranigement's plans in regard to these mattersselascribed in Note 1. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments thattméglult from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 26, 2014
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Radius Health, Inc.
Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31 December 31
2013 2012

ASSETS
Current asset:

Cash and cash equivale $ 12,30 $ 18,65

Marketable securitie 4,00(

Prepaid expenses and other current a: 334 2,46:
Total current asse 12,63 25,11¢
Property and equipment, r 76 13¢
Other asset 45 45
Total asset $ 12,75¢ $ 25,30(
LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND

STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 30C $ 55C

Accrued expenses and other current liabili 22,007 8,74(

Current portion of note payable, net of discc 13,00¢ 7,80(
Total current liabilities 35,31 17,09(
Note payable, net of current portion and discc — 13,00¢
Warrant liability 1,94t 83C
Other liabilities — 24,381

Commitments and contingenci
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001 parey®80,000 shar

authorized, 701,235 shares and no shares issuenligstdnding at

December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, resplsc 43,89: —
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001véduie; 1,000,000

shares authorized, 939,612 shares issued and raiitgjeat

December 31, 2013 and December 31, 78,73 71,957
Series A-2 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vadue; 983,213

shares authorized, 983,208 shares issued andruditgjeat

December 31, 2013 and December 31, Z 93,971 86,71«
Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vadue; 142,230

shares authorized, 142,227 shares issued and ruditgjeat

December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2 12,23: 11,18:
Series A4 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001 par valu@0@ share

authorized, 3,998 shares issued and outstandibgamber 31,

2013 and December 31, 20 271 271
Series A5 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001 par valu@Qd share

authorized, 6,443 shares issued and outstandibgamber 31,

2013 and December 31, 20 52t 52t
Series A-6 Convertible Preferred Stock, $.0001vadue; 800,000

shares authorized, 496,111 and no shares issuenligstdnding at

December 31, 2013 and December 31, 23,16¢ —
Stockholders' defici

Common stock, $.0001 par value; 100,000,000 slardmrized,

879,370 and 867,204 shares issued and outstanding a
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, resplyc — —

Additional paic-in-capital — —

Accumulated other comprehensive |i — —

Accumulated defici (277,30) (200,66
Total stockholders' defic (277,30) (200,66))
Total liabilities, convertible preferred stock astdckholders' defici  $ 12,75¢ $ 25,30(

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

OPERATING EXPENSES

December 31

2013

2012

2011

Research and developm:e $ 6053t $ 5496 $ 36,17¢
General and administratiy 6,82¢ 9,46¢ 5,33(
Loss from operation (67,365 (64,430) (41,509
OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME
Other income (expense), r 9,08t (2,09 (23€)
Interest incom 3C 64 27
Interest expens (2,440 (2,667) (758
NET LOSS $ (60,690 $ (69,129 $ (42,470
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF TA
Unrealized (loss) gain from availa-for-sale securitie — (5) 8
COMPREHENSIVE LOS! $ (60,690 $ (69,13) $ (42,460
(LOSS) EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS—BASIC AND DILUTED (Note 15) $ (78,16) $ (83,120 $ 253
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic $ (89.49) $ (98.99 $ 0.51
Diluted $ (89.4) $ (98.99 $ 0.07
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES
Basic 874,00« 839,69¢ 499,94
Diluted 874,00« 839,69¢ 3,454,271

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Radius Health, Inc.

Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Redeem#&bConvertible
Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Deficit

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Convertible Preferred Stock
New Series E Series /-1 Series A-2 Series /-3 Series /-4 Series /-5 Series /-6
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balance at
December 3
2010 — — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ — —$ —
Net loss
Unrealized gail
from
available-for
sale
securities
Forced
conversion t
common
stock
Recapitalizatio
1) 983,20¢ 75,97¢ 142,22° 9,62¢ 3,99¢ 271
Stock options
exercisec
Issuance of
preferred
stock 922,28t 62,29; 6,44: 52t
Accretion of
dividends or
preferred
stock 1,96¢ 4,00( 57¢
Stock-based
compensatic
expenst
Milestone
payment
settled in
stock 17,32¢  1,41(
Balance at
December 3
2011 — — 939,61:$65,67F 983,20{$79,97¢ 142,22°$10,20f 3,99¢$ 271 6,44:$ 52E —$ =
Net loss
Unrealized gail
from
available-for
sale
securities
Stock options
exercisec
Issuance of
preferred
stock
Accretion of
dividends or
preferred
stock 6,28 6,73t 974
Stock-based
compensatic
expenst
Balance at
December 3
2012 — — 939,61:$71,95° 983,20{$86,71« 142,22°$11,18. 3,99¢$ 271 6,44:$ 52t —$ —
Net loss
Stock options
exercisec
Issuance of
preferred
stock 701,23! 41,51« 496,11. 23,16¢
Accretion of
dividends or
preferred
stock 2,37¢ 6,78( 7,26% 1,05( — — —
Stock-based
compensatic
expenst
Balance at
December 3
2013 701,23!$43,89: 939,61:$ 78,737 983,20($93,97: 142,22°$12,23. 3,99¢$ 271 6,44:$ 52t 496,11 $23,16¢

1) The recapitalization includes the exchange of SekieSeries B and Series C shares for Series Ade$SA-3, and Series A-2 shares, respectivelgdutition to
the 1:10 exchange of Serie-2, Series -3 and Series -4 preferred stock, which occurred in conjunctiothwihe Merger, and is more fully described in rdt



See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Balance at
December 3.
2010

Net loss

Unrealized gail
from
available-for-
sale
securities

Forced
conversion t
common
stock

Recapitalizatio
(1)

Stock options
exercisec

Issuance of
preferred
stock

Accretion of
dividends on
preferred
stock

Stock-based
compensatia
expense

Milestone
payment
settled in
stock

Balance at
December 3.
2011

Net loss
Unrealized gail
from
available-for-
sale
securities
Stock options
exercisec
Issuance of
preferred
stock
Accretion of
dividends on
preferred
stock
Stock-based
compensatia
expense

Balance at
December 3:
2012

Net loss
Stock options
exercisec
Issuance of

preferred
stock

Accretion of
dividends or

Radius Health, Inc.

Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Redeem#&bConvertible

Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Deficit (Continue)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Convertible Preferred Stock

Stockholders' Deficit

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders
Paid-In-

Series A Series B Series C Common Stock Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Deficit

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount | Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
61,66 $ 93 1,599,99 $ 38,30¢ 10,146,622 $ 105,43 | 322,80'$ —$ 3% (3)$ (128,25)%  (128,25)
(42,47¢) (42,47¢)
8 8
(21,667) (33) (177,69)  (29€¢) (314,499 (225)| 102,76° 554 554
(40,007) (60) (1,422,30/) (39,189 (9,832,13) (108,42 8,26¢ 52,71: 60,98:
219,82! 204 204
1,17( 3,21¢ (6,590) (4,347) (10,937
304 304
—$ = —$ = — 3 — | 645,39¢$ —$ 2,748 5% (122,359% (119,61()
(69,129) (69,12¢)
(@) (5)
221,80! 27¢ 27¢
(4,81¢) (9,174 (13,997)
1,79¢ 1,79¢
—$ — —$ — —$ — | 867,20:$ —$ —$ —$ (200,66)% (200,66
(60,690 (60,690
12,16¢ 13 13




grtefekrrgd stgc\ (1,52)) (15,950 (17,477
ock-base
compensatio

expense 1,50¢ 1,50¢
Balance at
December 3:
2013 —$ — —$ — —$ — | 879,37($ —$ —$ —$ (277,300% (277,30)
1) The recapitalization includes the exchange of SekieSeries B and Series C shares for Series AdesSA-3, and Series A-2 shares, respectivelgditition to

the 1:10 exchange of Serie-2, Series 3 and Series -4 preferred stock, which occurred in conjunctiothvthe Merger, and is more fully described in nat
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Radius Health, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating

activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Gain on fixed asset dispos
Amortization of premium on sheterm investments, ni
Stocl-based compensation expel
Research and development expense settled in
Change in fair value of other current assets, witrability
and other liability
Non-cash interes
Milestone payment settled with sto
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other lon¢-term asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Net cash used in operating activit
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipir
Purchases of marketable securi
Sales and maturities of marketable secur
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Net proceeds from the issuance of preferred <
Proceeds from note payat
Discount on note payab
Deferred financing cos
Payments on note payal
Net cash provided by financing activiti
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CAS
EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAF

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash paid for intere:

NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Accretion of dividends on preferred stc

Fair value of preferred stock issued in the recdipation

Fair value of series A-6 convertible preferred ktissued as
settlement of liability

Fair value of warrants issut

Year Ended December 31

2013

2012

2011

$ (60,690 $(69,12¢) $(42,47¢

27 44 40
27 101 21

1,50¢ 1,79t 304
13,11¢ 15067  10,29¢
(9,087  2,06¢ 264
387 44¢ 165

— — 1,41(
1,721 4,62 (6,469
— 35 25
(250) 237 (301)
8,22: 1,55( 81¢
(45,01) (43,159 (35,89
(2 (40) (17€)
(17,070 (18,989 (32,47%)
21,04  4646: 8 85¢
3,071 27,43t (23,800
13 27¢ 204
42,87 — 62,11t
— 12,50 12,50

— — (36€)

— (31) (56)
(8,187 (3,500 (15€)
34,69¢ 9,24  74,24.
(6,350  (6,47F)  14,54¢
18,65  2512¢ 10,58
$ 12,30 $ 18,65 $ 25,12¢
$ 179 $ 1801 35¢
$ 17,47: $ 13,99: $ 10,93
$ — $ — $ 8587
$ 23166 $§ — —
$ 1356 $  37¢ 467

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
1. Nature of Business

Radius Health, Inc. ("Radius" or the "Comg, which was formerly known as MPM Acquisitiorofp., is a science-driven
biopharmaceutical company focused on developingindifferentiated therapeutics for patients withkeoporosis as well as other serious
endocrine-mediated diseases. The Company's leddgiroandidate is abaloparatide (BA058), a bonéaliwafor the treatment of osteoporosis
delivered via subcutaneous injection, which the @any refers to as Abaloparatide-SC. The Companyriently in Phase 3 development of
Abaloparatide-SC and expects to announce top-kte filom this study in late 2014. If the results positive, the Company plans to submit a
new drug application in the United States, and &atang authorization application in Europe in n@@15. The Company holds worldwide
commercialization rights to Abaloparatide-SC, otthemn in Japan, and with a favorable regulatorgamie, anticipates its first commercial
sales of Abaloparatide-SC will take place in 206e Company is leveraging its investment in Abatapde-SC to develop Abaloparatid®.
The Company expects this line extension will previghproved patient convenience by enabling admatisin of abaloparatide through a
short-wear-time transdermal patch. The Companyédwently completed a successful Phase 2 proofrufeut study.

The Company's current clinical product fwit also includes a novel oral agent, RAD190%ge#ective estrogen receptor down-
regulator/degrader, or SERD. The Company is deusdpRAD1901 at higher doses, for the treatmentrefibt cancer brain metastases
("BCBM") and at lower doses as a selective estrageerptor modulator ("SERM") for the treatment afemotor symptoms such as hot
flashes. In 2014, the Company expects to commeRteae 1 clinical trial to evaluate RAD1901 for tfreatment of BCBM and previously
completed a successful Phase 2 clinical trial oDR801 for the treatment of vasomotor symptoms.

Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Mether"Merger Agreement” or the "Merger") enteretbiin April 2011 by and among the
Company (a public-reporting, Form 10 shell companthe time), RHI Merger Corp., a Delaware corgoraind wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company ("MergerCo"), and Radius Health, laqrivately-held Delaware corporation ("Former Gyieig Company"), MergerCo merged
with and into the Former Operating Company, witl lormer Operating Company remaining as the sumyientity and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. This transaction is inereferred to as the "Merger." The Merger wasdaiie as of May 17, 2011, upon the filing
of a certificate of merger with the Delaware Seamgebf State. Following the Merger on May 17, 20the Company's Board of Directors
approved a transaction pursuant to which the Fo@parating Company merged with and into the Compkeaying the Company as the
surviving corporation (the "Short-Form Merger"). part of the Short-Form Merger, the Company, themed MPM Acquisition Corp.,
changed its name to Radius Health, Inc. and asstimegperations of the Former Operating Company.

The Company is subject to the risks assediwith emerging companies with a limited opemtiistory, including dependence on key
individuals, a developing business model, markeeptance of the Company's product candidates, ditropeor its product candidates, and
the continued ability to obtain adequate finandméund the Company's future operations. The Compas incurred losses and expects to
continue to incur additional losses for the foredde future. As of December 31, 2013, the Compaydn accumulated deficit of
$277.3 million and believed that its cash and @ghivalents at December 31, 2013 were not suffic@fund its operations through the first
quarter of 2014. However, on February 14, 2014Qbmpany entered into a Series B-2 ConvertibledPred
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
1. Nature of Business (Continued)

Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement (the "Ser2$Brchase Agreement"), pursuant to which the Gompnay raise up to approximately
$40.2 million through the issuance of (1) up to 888 shares of its Series B-2 convertible prefestedk (the "Series B-2 Shares") and

(2) warrants to acquire up to 1,637,500 sharessafammon stock with an exercise price of $6.142spare. On February 14, 2014,

February 19, 2014 and February 24, 2014, the Coypnpamsummated closings under the SerigsBirchase Agreement, whereby, in exchi
for aggregate proceeds to the Company of approrin&R5.6 million, the Company issued an aggreghtl 7,615 Series B-2 Shares and
warrants to purchase up to a total of 1,044,03%shaf its common stock. See note 19 for additionfakmation regarding the issuance of the
Series B-2 Shares.

The Company believes that the aggregateserts from the closings under the Series B-2 PeecAgreement on February 14, 2014,
February 19, 2014 and February 24, 2014, togetithrits existing cash and cash equivalents wilkbicient to fund its operations into the
third quarter of 2014. Accordingly, the Company esfs to pursue additional financing opportuniteeaddress its capital needs, including the
completion of a private placement or public offgrend other strategic financing alternatives tloata include, but are not limited to,
partnering or other collaboration agreements. H@arethere is no guarantee that any of these fingnapportunities will be executed or
executed on favorable terms, and some could bé&wdilto existing stockholders. If the Company fadobtain additional future capital, it may
be unable to complete its planned preclinical dimical trials and obtain approval of any produanhdidates from the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration or other regulatory authorities.dddition, the Company could be forced to discotiptoduct development, reduce or forego
sales and marketing efforts, forego attractive iess opportunities or discontinue operations dntifidhese factors raise substantial doubt
regarding the Company's ability to continue asiagooncern. Accordingly, the continuation of then@pany as a going concern is dependent
upon its ability to identify future investment oppmities and obtain the necessary debt or eqingnting to support future operations. These
financial statements do not include any adjustmentlke recoverability and classification of reaicasset amounts and classification of
liabilities that might be necessary should the Canypbe unable to continue as a going concern.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates-The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United State
("GAAP") requires the Company's management to negkienates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could dfffen those estimates. The Company considers ewvefitansactions that occur after the
balance sheet date but before the financial statesnage issued as additional evidence for cergtimates or to identify matters that require
additional disclosure. Subsequent events have &eslnated up to the date of issuance of thesediabstatements.

Cash Equivalents-The Company considers all highly liquid investmistruments with an original maturity when purdasef three
months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash eguitgaht December 31, 2013 and December 31, 20 &iararily comprised of money mark
funds.

Marketable Securities-All investment instruments with an original matyrilate, when purchased, in excess of three mdmaths been
classified as current marketable securities. Thesdetable
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Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

securities are classified as available-for-saleamadcarried at fair value. Unrealized gains aisdds, if any, are included within other
comprehensive (loss) income within stockholderfitdeThe amortized cost of debt securities irstbategory is adjusted for amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts to maturit)chSamortization is included in interest income. IRea gains and losses on available-for-
sale securities are included in interest income ddst of securities sold is based on the spddiiatification method. The Company
periodically reviews the portfolio of securitiesdetermine whether an other-than-temporary impaitrhas occurred. No such losses have
occurred to date. There were no realized gainsssels on the sale of securities for the years eBddedmber 31, 2013 and 2012.

Fair Value MeasurementsThe Company determines the fair market valuessdinancial instruments based on the fair valwdrichy,
which requires an entity to maximize the use ofobable inputs and minimize the use of unobserviaiplets when measuring fair value. The
following are three levels of inputs that may bedito measure fair value:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for idsitassets or liabilities that the
Company has the ability to access at the measutaiaén

Level 2  Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices suafuaged prices for
similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in keds that are not active; or
other inputs that are observable or can be coredbdrby observable
market data for substantially the full term of Hesets or liabilities

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littla@market activity and
that are significant to the fair value of the assmtliabilities.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Off-BalerEheet Risk-Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to credit risk
primarily consist of cash and cash equivalentsavadlable-for-sale marketable securities. The Cargpaitigates its risk with respect to cash
and cash equivalents and marketable securitiesdiytaining its deposits and investments at highlityuinancial institutions. The Company
invests any excess cash in money market funds ted securities, and the management of these imeggs is not discretionary on the part of
the financial institution. The Company's credit egpre on its marketable securities is limited byditersification among United States
government and agency debt securities. The Comipasiyio significant off-balance-sheet risks sucfossgn exchange contracts, option
contracts, or other hedging arrangements.

Property and EquipmestProperty and equipment are recorded at cost apibdiated using the straight-line method over gtemated
useful lives of the respective assets.

Research and Development CesfBhe Company accounts for research and developoostd by expensing such costs to operations as
incurred. Research and development costs primaoitygist of clinical testing costs, including paynsein cash and stock made to contracted
research organizations, personnel costs, outsovesedrch activities, laboratory supplies, anchbesfees.

Nonrefundable advance payments for goodeniices to be received in the future for useegearch and development activities are
deferred and capitalized. The capitalized amourg®apensed as the related goods are deliverédn @etvices are performed.
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Licensing AgreementsCosts associated with licenses of technology speresed as incurred, and are included in reseaith a
development expenses.

Impairment of Long-Lived AssetsThe Company evaluates long-lived assets for piatentpairment when there is evidence that events
or changes in circumstances have occurred thatdtalthat the carrying amount of a long-lived ass&y not be recovered. Recoverability of
these assets is assessed based on the undiscexpéetied future cash flows from the assets, corisgla number of factors, including past
operating results, budgets and economic projectimasket trends, and product development cyclepalmrment in the carrying value of each
asset is assessed when the undiscounted expetiesl dash flows derived from the asset are lessiteaarrying value.

An impairment loss would be recognizednnaaount equal to the excess of the carrying amoustthe undiscounted expected future
cash flows. No impairment charges have been rezedrsince the Company's inception.

Segment Informatiear-Operating segments are defined as components eitaenprise engaged in business activities for whiscrete
financial information is available and regularlyiewed by the chief decision maker in determiniogvhio allocate resources and in assessing
performance. The Company views its operations aanages its business as one operating segment aratexpin one geographic area.

Income Taxes-The Company recognizes deferred tax assets dpititiess for the future tax consequences attribletab differences
between the financial statement carrying amounexisting assets and liabilities and their respediax basis, as well as operating loss and ta
credit carry forwards. The Company measures deféaeassets and liabilities using enacted taxsraxpected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differencesaard/forwards are expected to be recovered oeseteferred tax assets are reduced by a
valuation allowance to reflect the uncertainty assed with their ultimate realization. The effect deferred tax assets and liabilities as a rest
of a change in tax rates is recognized as incontieeiperiod that includes the enactment date.

The Company uses judgment to determinegbegnition threshold and measurement attributéfiancial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expectée tiaken in a tax return. Any material interest pedalties related to unrecognized tax
benefits are recognized in income tax expense.

Due to uncertainty surrounding the real@abf the favorable tax attributes in future taxurns the Company has recorded a full valuatio
allowance against otherwise realizable net defelardssets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Financial Instruments Indexed to and Patlyt Settled in the Company's Common Ste€khe Company evaluates all financial
instruments issued in connection with its equitigehgs when determining the proper accountingttneat for such instruments in the
Company's financial statements. The Company corssalaumber of generally accepted accounting piesito determine such treatment and
evaluates the features of the instrument to deterrfie appropriate accounting treatment. The Cognptlizes the Black-Scholes method or
other appropriate methods to determine the fainevaf its derivative financial instruments. Keywation factors in determining the fair value
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include, but are not limited to, the current stpcke as of the date of measurement, the exercise, phe remaining contractual life, expected
volatility for the instrument and the risk-freeénést rate. For financial instruments that arerdgteed to be classified as liabilities on the
balance sheet, changes in fair value are recorslacgain or loss in the Company's statement ofadipers, with the corresponding amount
recorded as an adjustment to the liability on @&&bce sheet.

Stock-Based CompensatieiThe Company measures stdzksed compensation cost at the accounting measuireiaie based on the fi
value of the option, and recognizes the expensesiraight-line basis over the requisite serviagopeof the option, which is typically the
vesting period. The Company estimates the fairevafueach option using a Black-Scholes option pgehodel that takes into account the fair
value of its common stock, the exercise price etkigected life of the option, the expected volatitif the Company's common stock, expected
dividends on the Company's common stock, and stkefrée interest rate over the expected life ofdpton. Due to its limited history, the
Company uses the simplified method described iIrStE€'s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 103hare-Based Paymei, determine the
expected life of the option grants. The Companstsrate of expected volatility is based on a reviduhe historical volatility of similar
publicly held companies in the biotechnology fieleer a period commensurate with the option's exgaeteirm. The Company has never
declared or paid any cash dividends on its comnaeksand does not expect to do so in the foresedahire. Accordingly, the Company
utilizes an expected dividend yield of zero. Ttek4free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yietdecin effect at the time of grant valuation for
a period commensurate with the option's expected. tEhese assumptions are highly subjective andgdsin them could significantly impact
the value of the option and hence the related cosgi®n expense.

The Company applies an estimated forfeitate to current period expense to recognize cosgiEm expense only for those awards
expected to vest. Estimated forfeitures are baped tistorical data, adjusted for known trends, ailidbe adjusted if actual forfeitures differ
or are expected to differ from such estimates. 8milxsnt changes in estimated forfeitures are rezedrthrough a cumulative adjustment in
period of change and also will impact the amourdtotk-based compensation expense in future periods

Stock-based compensation expense for aptjcemted to consultants is also determined based e fair value of the options issued, as
determined by the Black-Scholes option pricing modewever, the unvested portion of such optiomtgas re-measured at each reporting
period, until such time as the award is fully veste

Net (Loss) Income Per Common Shaiget (loss) income per common share is calculagiguhe two-class method, which is an
earnings allocation formula that determines netslancome per share for the holders of the Compammmon shares and participating
securities. All of the Company's series of preféistock contain participation rights in any dividgmaid by the Company and are deemed to b
participating securities. Net income available émenon shareholders and participating preferredeshiarallocated to each share on an as-
converted basis as if all of the earnings for ttequ had been distributed. The participating séiesrdo not include a contractual obligation to
share in losses of the Company and are not inclirdégk calculation of net loss per share in theégges that have a net loss.
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Diluted net income per share is computeédguthe more dilutive of (a) the two-class methad(b) the ifconverted method. The Comp:
allocates net income first to preferred stockhad®sed on dividend rights and then to common aefegped stockholders based on ownershi
interests. The weighted-average number of commarestoutstanding gives effect to all potentiallyatilie common equivalent shares,
including outstanding stock options, warrants, paténtial issuance of stock upon the issuanceeo€Citmpany's series A-6 convertible
preferred stock ("Series A-6") as settlement oflidgility to Nordic Bioscience ("Nordic"). Commaquivalent shares are excluded from the
computation of diluted net income per share ifrtiedfiect is anti-dilutive.

Comprehensive (Loss) Incom&€omprehensive (loss) income refers to revenugmreses, gains and losses that are excluded from net
income, as these amounts are recorded directly adjastment to stockholders' deficit, net of tBlxe Company's other comprehensive (loss)
income is comprised of unrealized gains (losses)soavailable-for-sale securities.

Accounting Standards Updatedn July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardsufl ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update
No. 20111, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit WhietaOperating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lossa Tax Credit
Carryforward Exist{"ASU 2013-11"). ASU 2013-11 clarifies guidance atithinates diversity in practice on the presentatf unrecognized
tax benefits when a net operating loss carryforwarsimilar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforwasdsts at the reporting date. The amendments
under ASU 2013-11 are effective for interim andw@alrfiscal periods beginning after December 15,30dith early adoption permitted. The
Company does not expect adoption of ASU 2013-1Lhaie a material impact on its results of operatjdinancial position, or cash flows.

In December 2013, the FASB issued AccognBtandards Update No. 2013-D&finition of a Public Business Enti§ASU 2013-12").
ASU 2013-12 amends the Master Glossary of the FAB&unting Standards Codification to include onénidgon of public business entity
for future use in GAAP. ASU 2013-12 does not affedsting requirements but will be used in conditigthe scope of new financial guidance
and will identify whether the guidance does or doesapply to public business entities. There iscmal effective date for the amendment in
ASU 2013-12 and the Company does not expect AS3-2Q1will have a material impact on its result®pérations, financial position or cash
flows.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standarda February 2013, FASB issued Accounting Standaiaidate No. 2013-0Reporting of
Amounts Reclassified out of Accumulated Other Cehwmrsive Incom("ASU 2013-02"). Under ASU 2013-02, an entity igu&ed to provide
information about amounts reclassified out of acglated other comprehensive income by componeradttition, an entity is required to
present, either on the face of the financial stateinor in the notes, significant amounts reclassidut of accumulated other comprehensive
income by the respective line items of net incobug,only if the amount reclassified is required#reclassified in its entirety in the same
reporting period. For amounts that are not requiodoe reclassified in their entirety to net incomae entity is required to cross-reference to
other disclosures that provide additional detdigua those amounts. ASU 2013-02 does not changeutinent requirements for reporting net
income or other comprehensive income in the firergtatements. The Company adopted ASU 2013-02moumady 1,
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2013. Its adoption did not have a material impacthee Company's results of operations, financiaitfmm or cash flows.
3. Merger

As described in note 1, the Company corepletreverse merger transaction with the Formerad@ipg Company on May 17, 2011,
pursuant to which the Company changed its name &M Acquisition Corp. to Radius Health, Inc. ars$amed the operations of the
Former Operating Company. The accompanying findstaements and the related disclosures takeaittount the Merger and Short-Form
Merger transactions. In addition, all historicahstand per share amounts in the financial statesmelating to the Former Operating Comp
have been retroactively adjusted for all periodsspnted to give effect to the 1:15 reverse stolikaffall the Former Operating Company's
capital stock (the "Reverse Stock Split"), incluglreclassifying an amount equal to the reductiopanvalue to additional paid-in-capital,
approved by the Former Operating Company's Boabireictors prior to the Merger on May 17, 2011.

As of the effective time of the Merger (thgfective Time"), the legal existence of Merger€@eased and all of the shares of the Former
Operating Company's common stock, par value $0e@Elpare, and shares of the Former Operating Coytspareferred stock, par value $0.01
per share, that were outstanding immediately piadhe Merger were cancelled and converted intaigid to receive shares of the Company's
common or preferred stock, as applicable. Eachtanding share of the Former Operating Company comstack outstanding immediately
prior to the Effective Time was automatically corted into the right to receive one share of the Gany's common stock, $0.0001 par value
per share (the "Common Stock") and each outstarslinge of the Company's preferred stock outstaridingediately prior to the Effective
Time was automatically converted into the rightdoeive one-tenth of one share of the Companyfenpeel stock, $0.0001 par value per share
(the "Preferred Stock") as consideration for thedée.

The Company assumed all options and warmafrthe Former Operating Company outstanding inmately prior to the Effective Time,
which became exercisable for shares of the Comp&@unmmon Stock or Preferred Stock, as the caséomagontemporaneously with the
closing of the Merger, pursuant to the terms oeddétnption Agreement dated April 25, 2011 by andragrtbe Company and its then-current
stockholder, the Company completed the repurcheS®60,000 shares of Common Stock from its forswde stockholder in consideration of
an aggregate of $50.0 thousand (the "Redempti®@h§.5,000,000 shares constituted all of the thgueid and outstanding shares of the
Company's capital stock, on a fully-diluted basignediately prior to the Merger. Upon completiortiod Merger and the Redemption, the
former stockholders of the Former Operating Comgaaig 100% of the outstanding shares of capitalkstd the Company.

Pursuant to the Merger, the Company asswathed the Former Operating Company's obligatiander its existing contracts. In particu
the Company has assumed the rights and obligatibtiie Former Operating Company under that ce@aiies A-1 Convertible Preferred
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 251284 amended, (the "Purchase Agreement”) witlaioarivestors listed therein (the
"Investors") pursuant to which, among other thirige, Company was obligated to issue and sell ton¥restors up to an aggregate of 789,553
shares of Series A-1 convertible preferred stoekvalue $0.0001 per share (the "Series A-1"), @aehpurchase price per share of $81.42, tc
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be completed in three closings for cash procee@6413 million. The transactions covered by thecRase Agreement are referred to herein a
the "Series A-1 Financing". An initial closing wesmpleted on May 17, 2011 by the Former Operatiojgany prior to the Merger.

4. Recapitalization

Subsequent to the Reverse Stock Split aiod to the Merger, the Former Operating Compangaeuwent a recapitalization pursuant to
which the preferred stock of the Company (SeriedAvertible preferred stock ("Series A"), SeriesdBvertible preferred stock ("Series B"),
and Series C convertible preferred stock ("Serigsdllectively "Old Preferred Stock") was exchadgor a new series of convertible
preferred stock (Series A-2 convertible preferrietis ("Series A-2"), Series A-3 convertible preéatistock ("Series A-3"), Series A-4
convertible preferred stock ("Series A-4"), colleety with Series A-5 convertible preferred stotBdries A5"), "New Preferred Stock") to tt
extent that the existing stockholder participatethie Series A-1 Financing in an amount at leateatevel its Pro Rata Share, as defined in th
Purchase Agreement. According to the amended Astiof Incorporation of the Former Operating Compaitgckholders who did not
participate in the Series A-1 Financing in an am@irteast equal to their Pro Rata Share amoure suject to a forced conversion (the
"Forced Conversion") to common stock, at a raté sfiare of common stock for every 5 shares of @dfeed Stock to be so converted. As a
result, 21,661 shares of Series A, 177,697 shdr8eries B and 314,496 shares of Series C conviarnted 02,767 shares of the Company's
common stock on May 17, 2011.

The 9,832,133 shares of Series C that medadutstanding after the Forced Conversion, werepitalized and exchanged for 9,832,133
shares of Series A-2, the 1,422,300 shares ofsSBrthat remained outstanding after the Forced €xmion, were recapitalized and exchangec
for 1,422,300 shares of Series3Aand the 40,003 shares of Series A that remainesianding after the Forced Conversion, were exgéd fo
40,003 shares of Series A-4. All prior dividendatthad accrued on the original Series B and S€rigsough May 17, 2011 were forfeited by
the holders as part of the recapitalization. Initioltl the holders of the original Series B andi&eC waived their contingent redemption right:
on such shares.

Certain investors participated in the SeAel Financing in an amount in excess of their Rata Share amount and as consideration for
investing such excess amount, received that nupftedditional shares of Series A-1 as set fortfhiwithe Purchase Agreement. The Former
Operating Company issued 1,327,506 additional shafr&eries A-1 in exchange for this additionakisiment.

In accordance with the Purchase AgreentkatStage | Closing occurred on May 17, 2011 asdlted in net proceeds of $20.3 million as
consideration for the issuance of 2,631,845 shafr&€gries A-1 which were converted in the Mergedescribed below into the right to receive
one-tenth of one share of Seriesl Afhe issuance of the aforementioned additioraleshdid not generate a beneficial conversion feattithe
date of issuance or at December 31, 2013.
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Subsequent to the recapitalization andhfiirey, pursuant to the Merger, each outstandingeshigpreferred stock was converted into the
right to receive one-tenth of one share of pretesteck. After the recapitalization, Series A-1 &wdies A-5 financing (as described in note 3)
and the Merger, the Company had the following shafereferred stock outstanding, which includeghares of Series A-1 issued in the
Stage Il Closing and Stage Ill Closing as discusssadw:

Number
Class of Shares
Series /1 939,61
Series /-2 983,20t
Series /-3 142,22
Series /-4 3,99¢
Series /-5 6,44:

The Company has accounted for the recagatadn and exchange of the Old Preferred StockHeNew Preferred Stock as an
extinguishment of the Old Preferred Stock due éodiignificance of the changes to the substantimractual terms of the preferred stock,
which included the forfeiture of accrued dividemusthe Series A and Series B, the removal of tmicgent redemption feature, pursuant to
which the Series B and Series C was redeemabite atption of the holder at a future determinabke dand the addition of a mandatory
conversion provision to common stock upon thergstof the Company's common stock on a nationalrgssiexchange, among other chan
Refer to note 9 for the rights and preferencesherNew Preferred Stock. Accordingly, the Compamyprded the difference between the fair
value of the new shares of preferred stock issndldd exchange and the carrying value of the OddelPred Stock shares as a gain of
$60.9 million that was recorded within stockholdeieficit. The Company allocated $8.3 million tad@bnal paid-in capital to recover the
amount of additional paidt capital that had previously been reduced byddinds accreted on Series B and Series C that wagdd as part «
the recapitalization, and the balance of $52.7ionillvas recorded to accumulated deficit. The gaiextinguishment is reflected as a preferrec
stock redemption in the calculation of net incomailable to common stockholders in accordance #itbounting Standards Codification
("ASC") 260,Earnings Per ShareThe fair value of the Series A-1, Series A-2,i&eA-3 and Series A-4 was determined using thbaibibity-
weighted expected return method (see note 11).

In connection with the Series A-1 Finangitihge Former Operating Company issued to a placeagant, and in the Merger, the Company
assumed warrants to purchase 818 shares of SefieF e warrants expire on May 17, 2016 and weseed with an exercise price of $81.42,
which exercise price, as a result of an anti-diluthdjustment effected in connection with the isseaof the new Series B convertible preferrec
stock in May 2013 (as described in note 9), has beduced to $76.27 as of December 31, 2013. Theamta are classified as liabilities on the
Company's balance sheet and were recorded as anentf the issuance costs related to the Seriesiancing. The Company recorded
the warrants at a fair value of $35.0 thousand;utated using the Black-Scholes option pricing nio@lkee value of the warrants at
December 31, 2013 was not material to the finarste@kments.
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Subsequent to the exchange of outstandiiages of preferred stock for the right to receime-tenth of one share of Preferred Stock, in
accordance with the Purchase Agreement, the Sk&gjeding occurred on November 18, 2011 and reduitaet proceeds of approximately
$21.0 million through the sale of 263,178 shareSeries A-1. On December 14, 2011, the Stage dsi@f occurred resulting in net proceeds
of approximately $21.0 million through the sale2683,180 shares of SerieslA-The issuance of the shares in the Stage Il gageSll Closing:
did not generate beneficial conversion featurebeatlate of issuance or at December 31, 2013.

In connection with the Stage Il and Stdg€losings, the Former Operating Company issuea ptacement agent, warrants to purchase
1,636 shares of Series APreferred Stock. The warrants expire after figarg and were issued with an exercise price o#483Which exercis
price, as a result of an anti-dilution adjustmefeated in connection with the issuance of the 1$®sies B convertible preferred stock in May
2013 (as described in note 9), has been reduckdbt@7 as of December 31, 2013. The warrants assified as liabilities on the Company's
balance sheet and were recorded as a compondrd suance costs related to the Series A-1 Fingnthe Company recorded the warrant a
a fair value of $68.0 thousand, calculated usimgBlack-Scholes option pricing model. The value of therawatr at December 31, 2013 was
material to the financial statements.

5. Marketable Securities
Available-for-sale marketable securitied aash and cash equivalents consist of the follgyiimthousands):

December 31, 201

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Value Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash $ 2,71C $ — % — $ 2,71C
Money marke 9,59: — — 9,59:
Total $ 12,300 $ — 3 — $ 12,30¢
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December 31, 201

Amortized Gross Gross
Cost Unrealized Unrealized
Value Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash $ 1,13¢ % — 3 — $ 113¢
Money marke 16,02( — — 16,02(
Domestic corporate commercial pay 1,49¢ — — 1,49¢
Total $ 18,65! & — 3 — $ 18,65!
Marketable securitie:
Domestic corporate commercial pa 4,00( — — 4,00(
Total $ 4,000 $ — $ — $  4,00C

There were no debt securities that had bean unrealized loss position for more than eslédan 12 months as of December 31, 2013 ¢
December 31, 2012. The contractual term to matofiggll marketable securities held by the Companig$s than one year.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of thetaihg (in thousands):

Estimated Useful Life __ December31
(In Years) 2013 2012
Furniture and fixture 5 $ 68 $ 68
Computer equipment and
software 3 28¢€ 284
Shorter of useful life or

Leasehold improvemen remaining lease teri 50& 50&
85¢ 857

Less accumulated depreciatio
and amortizatiol (783 (7198)
Property and equipment, r $ 76 $ 13¢

7. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses consist of the followiimgtlfousands):

December 31

2013 2012
Research cos $ 19,597 $ 6,55¢
Payroll and employee benef 1,00t 962
Professional fee 42€ 39¢
Vacation 69 12¢
Accrued interest on notes paya 852 59t
Other 58 97
Total accrued expenses and other current liab $ 22,000 $ 8,74(
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On May 23, 2011, the Company entered irlaa and security agreement (the "Loan and Sgcigteement") with Oxford Finance LL
and General Electric Capital Corporation (colleelyy the "Lender") pursuant to which the Lenderegglrto lend the Company up to
$25.0 million. Upon entering into the Loan and SdguAgreement, the Company borrowed $6.3 millioonfi the Lender on May 23, 2011
("Term Loan A"), $6.3 million on November 21, 20¢'Term Loan B") and an additional $12.5 million bfay 29, 2012 ("Term Loan C"). Tt
Company's obligations under the Loan and Securige@ment are secured by a first priority securitgriest in substantially all of the assets of
the Company.

Interest on the outstanding Term Loan A pagable on a monthly basis through and includiegdinber 1, 2011. Principal and interest
payments on Term Loan A are payable in 36 equalihipimstallments beginning December 1, 2011 thifoNgvember 1, 2014, with a final
balloon payment of $0.6 million due upon maturitydovember 22, 2014. Interest is payable on TeranlA at an annual interest rate of
10.16%. Interest on the outstanding Term Loan B pegmble on a monthly basis through and includingeJL, 2012. Principal and interest
payments on Term Loan B are payable in 30 equatimomstallments beginning June 1, 2012, througivénber 1, 2014, with a final ballo
payment of $0.6 million due upon maturity on NovemB2, 2014. Interest is payable on Term Loan &annual interest rate of 10%. Inte
on Term Loan C was payable on a monthly basis girpand including, November 1, 2012. Principal amdrest payments on Term Loan C
are payable in 24 monthly installments beginningéaber 1, 2012, through November 1, 2014 with al fialloon payment of $1.3 million
upon maturity on November 22, 2014. Interest isapéyon Term Loan C at an annual interest rate€)®§.1

Upon the last payment date of the amouotsolved under the Loan and Security Agreement, dredn the maturity date of one of the
Term Loans, on the date of any prepayment or on#lte of acceleration in the event of a defauét,Zlompany will be required to pay the
Lender a final payment fee equal to 3.5% of anthefTerm Loans borrowed. In addition, if the Compespays all or a portion of the Term
Loans prior to maturity, it will pay the Lender eepayment fee of three percent of the total amptepaid if the prepayment occurs prior to
first anniversary of the funding of the relevantd.oan, two percent of the total amount prepaithéf prepayment occurs between the first
and second anniversary of the funding of the releVarm Loan, and one percent of the total amotepaid if the prepayment occurs on or
after the second anniversary of the funding ofrthevant Term Loan.

Upon the occurrence of an event of defanduding payment defaults, breaches of covenantsaterial adverse change in the collateral,
the Company's business, operations or conditioauifiial or otherwise) and certain levies, attachtmand other restraints on the Company's
business, the interest rate will be increased\®y fiercentage points and all outstanding obligatieii become immediately due and payable.
The Loan and Security Agreement also contains gestine acceleration clause, which provides thedsgrihe ability to demand repayment of
the loan early upon a Material Adverse Change efiaed.

In connection with each Term Loan, the Campissued Warrants to the Lender to purchase 0&R8&8res of the Company's Series A-1
(the "Warrants"). The Warrants are exercisableyhole or in part, immediately, were issued withea ghare exercise price of $81.42 and may
be exercised on a cashless basis. The Warrantdasera term of 10 years. The terms of the Wargamugide that the
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exercise price may be adjusted in the event thegaomissues shares of the Series A-1 at a pricerltdvan $81.42 per share. As a result of ar
anti-dilution adjustment effected in connectionhntite issuance of the new Series B convertibleepredl stock in May 2013 (as described in
note 9), the exercise price of the Warrants has begduced to $76.27 as of December 31, 2013. TheaWsa are classified as liabilities in the
Company's balance sheet and are re-measuredra¢stigiated fair value at each reporting perioce ¢hanges in fair value are recorded as
other (expense) income in the statement of operstio

The initial fair value of the Warrants isstin connection with Term Loan A was $182.6 thodsand was recorded as a discount to Tern
Loan A. The fair value of the Warrants at Decenfgr2013 was $78.1 thousand. The Company alsatipaidender a facility fee of
$250.0 thousand and reimbursed the Lender certaits @ssociated with the Loan and Security Agreeofeapproximately $117.0 thousand,
both of which were also recorded as a discounetonTLoan A. As of December 31, 2013, the discosiiging amortized to interest expense
over the 42 month period that Term Loan A is expag¢d be outstanding using the effective interesthimd.

The initial fair value of the Warrants isslin connection with Term Loan B (the "Term LoaiMBrrants") was $177.6 thousand and was
recorded as a discount to Term Loan B. The fauevalf the Term Loan B Warrants at December 31, 2048$80.1 thousand. The Company
also reimbursed the Lender for certain costs aatstiwith Term Loan B of approximately $18.0 thawksavhich was also recorded as a
discount to Term Loan B. As of December 31, 20t8,discount is being amortized to interest expense the 36 month period that Term
Loan B is expected to be outstanding using thectffe interest method.

The initial fair value of the Warrants isslin connection with Term Loan C (the "Term LoakMarrants") was $379.7 thousand and was
recorded as a discount to Term Loan C. The faevaf the Term Loan C Warrants at December 31, 2243$167.9 thousand. The Company
also reimbursed the Lender for certain costs aattiwith the Loan and Security Agreement of appnately $31.0 thousand, which was also
recorded as a discount to Term Loan C. As of Deesrh, 2013, the discount is being amortized terggt expense over the 30 month period
that Term Loan C is expected to be outstandinggusia effective interest method.

Future principal payments under the Loath &acurity Agreement at December 31, 2013, arelksvs (in thousands):

Principal
Payments
Current portion of net payab 13,15¢

Discount on current portion of note paya (15))
Current portion of net payable, net of disca $ 13,00t

9. Convertible Preferred Stock

On April 23, 2013, the Company entered mt®eries B Convertible Preferred Stock and WaPanthase Agreement (the "Series B
Purchase Agreement"), pursuant to which the Companid raise, at any time on or prior to May 10120up to approximately $60.0 million
through the issuance
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of (1) up to 980,000 shares of its new Series Bepred stock (the "New Series B") and (2) warrdatacquire up to 2,450,000 shares of its
common stock with an exercise price of $6.142 pares On April 23, 2013, the Company consummatiédtclosing under the Series B
Purchase Agreement, whereby in exchange for aggregaceeds of approximately $43.0 million, it s$700,098 shares of New Series B
warrants to purchase up to a total of 1,750,248eshaf its common stock. On May 10, 2013, the Camgmamnsummated a second closing
under the Series B Purchase Agreement, wherebxchaege for aggregate proceeds of approximatelly @lion, it issued 1,137 shares of
New Series B and warrants to purchase up to aad®B43 shares of its common sto

The rights, preferences, and privilegethefNew Series B and the Series A-1 Series A-2eS$é-3, Series A-4, Series A-5 and Series A-
6 (the Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Seriel Series A-5 and Series A-6, collectively, theri8s A Preferred Stock") as of
December 31, 2013, are set forth below.

Conversior—Each holder of New Series B Shares has the rigkiie#r option at any time, to convert any suchrebaf New Series B in
such number of fully paid shares of common stocis aetermined by dividing the original purchasie@of $61.42 by the conversion price
("New Series B Optional Conversion"). The convengoice of the New Series B as of December 31, 2048%$6.142 per share (the "New
Series B Conversion Price"), which represents a@mion ratio of one share of New Series B intodieares of common stock.

Each holder of Series A-1, Series A-2 aadeS A-3 has the right, at their option at anyetito convert any such shares of preferred stoc
into such number of fully paid shares of commorlstas is determined by dividing the original pusdarice of $81.42 by the conversion
price ("Optional Conversion"). The original conviersprice of the Series A-1, Series A-2 and Sefieswas $8.142 per share (the "Conver
Price"), which represented a conversion ratio & share of Series A-1, Series A-2 or Serie3 iAto ten shares of common stock. The issu
of the New Series B Shares and accompanying wartantter the Series B Purchase Agreement resuli@d &justment to the Conversion
Price of the Series A-1, Series A-2 and Series(#8 "Anti-Dilution Adjustment"). As a result oféhAnti-Dilution Adjustment, the effective
conversion price as of December 31, 2013 of eaaheshf Series A-1, Series A-2 and Series A-3 wdaaed to $7.627, which represents a
conversion ratio of one share of Series A-1, Seki@sor Series A-3 into 10.675 shares of commouglsto

Each holder of Series A-4, Series A-5 aadeS A-6 has the right, at their option at anyetito convert any such shares of preferred stoc
into such number of fully paid shares of commorrlstas is determined by dividing the original pursharice of $81.42 by the conversion
price. The conversion price of the Series A-4,&eA-5 and Series A-6 as of December 31, 2013 ®ds13 per share, which represents a
conversion ratio of one share of Series A-4, Seki&sor Series A-6 into ten shares of common stock.

Upon an optional conversion, the holderthefconverted New Series B and Series A Prefé&taecdk are entitled to payment of all
accrued, whether or not declared, but unpaid didden shares of the common stock of the Compattyeathen effective conversion price.

Each share of the New Series B and Serieseferred Stock is automatically convertible ifithy paid and non-assessable shares of
common stock at the applicable conversion pricaléssribed above) in effect upon (1) a vote oftiblelers of at least 70% of the outstanding
shares of New
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Series B, Series A-1, Series A-2 and Series A®fwert all shares of New Series B and Series AeResl Stock or (2) the common stock
becoming listed for trading on a national stockhexge ("Special Mandatory Conversion"). Upon a g&pétandatory Conversion, all accrut
whether or not declared, but unpaid dividends db&fpaid in cash or shares of common stock (cdkulildased on the then effective conver:
price) at the discretion of the Company's BoarBioéctors.

Redemptior-Unless redemption is waived by a requisite stottkdrovote or consent, the shares of New SeriesdBSamies A Preferred
Stock are automatically redeemable upon an evesdlefof the Company. The shares of New SeriesdBSanies A Preferred Stock are not
redeemable at the option of the holder.

Dividends—Holders of shares of New Series B are entitlectteive dividends at a rate of 8% per annum, comgiog annually, which
accrue on a daily basis commencing on the datesafince of the shares of New Series B. Dividerelpayable, as accrued, upon liquidation,
event of sale, and conversion to common stockeasribed above. The holders of shares of New SBragg also entitled to dividends decle
or paid on any shares of common stock.

Following payment in full of required divadds to the holders of New Series B, holders afeshaf Series A-1 are entitled to receive
dividends at a rate of 8% per annum, compoundimgialty, which accrue on a daily basis commencinghendate of issuance of the shares of
Series Al. Dividends are payable, as accrued, upon ligisidaevent of sale, and conversion to common stasklescribed above. The holc
of shares of Series A-1 are also entitled to divéidedeclared or paid on any shares of common stock.

Following payment in full of required didds to the holders of New Series B and Seriest#oltlers of Series A-2 are entitled to receive
dividends at a rate of 8% per annum, compoundimgialty, which accrue on a daily basis commencinghendate of issuance of the shares of
Series A2. Dividends are payable, as accrued, upon ligisidaevent of sale, and conversion to common stasklescribed above. The holc
of shares of Series A-2 are also entitled to divéidedeclared or paid on any shares of common stock.

Following payment in full of required didds to the holders of New Series B, Series A-1Saries A-2, holders of Series A-3 are
entitled to receive dividends at a rate of 8% peruan, compounding annually, which accrue on a dzlsis commencing on the date of
issuance of the shares of Series A-3. Dividendpayable, as accrued, upon liquidation, event lef @ad conversion to common stock, as
described above. The holders of shares of Serigsare also entitled to dividends declared or paiduy shares of common stock.

Without regard to the payment of requiradd#nds to the holders of New Series B, Series, &dries A-2 and Series A-3, holders of
Series A-5 are entitled to receive the Series Asécil Accruing Dividend (as defined in the Compareertificate of incorporation) paid in
shares of Series A-6 as described in note 8. Divldare payable, as accrued, upon liquidation,tefesale and conversion to common stock,
as described above. The holders of shares of Skteare also entitled to dividends declared odpai any shares of common stock.

Following payment in full of required divadds to the holders of New Series B, Series A-fieS&\-2, Series A-3 and Series A-5, holders
of Series A-4 and Series A-6 are entitled to reeeiv
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when, if and as declared by the Board of Directdrgdends on any shares of Series A-4 Stock oleS&-6 Stock, as the case may be, out of
funds legally available for that purpose, at a tatbe determined by the Board of Directors if arfen they may so declare any dividend on
the Series A-4 Stock or A-6 Stock, as the case meapividends are payable, as accrued, upon lijoitiaevent of sale, and conversion to
common stock, as described above. The holdersanésiof Series A-4 and Series A-6 are also entitletividends declared or paid on any
shares of common stock.

Dividends on the Company's preferred sarekpayable, at the sole discretion of the Boardirdctors, in cash or in shares of the
Company's common stock at the current market piichares of common stock, when and if declarethbyBoard of Directors and upon
liquidation or an event of sale. All accrued bupaid dividends on New Series B and Series A Prefestock will be paid in cash or shares of
common stock, at the then effective ConversiondPaicshares of New Series B and Series A Pref&tecdk, upon a Special Mandatory
Conversion (as defined in the Company's certificdt@corporation). Upon Optional Conversion, demdls are payable in shares of the
common stock at the then effective conversion pofcghares of preferred stock.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company haduad dividends of $2.4 million, $15.0 million, $08nillion and $2.6 million on New
Series B, Series A-1, Series A-2 and Series Asheetively.

Voting—The holders of New Series B and Series A PrefeBtedk are entitled to vote together with the hadde the common stock as
one class on an as-if converted basis. In additieripng as the shares of Series A-1 are outstgnitie holders of Series A-1, voting as a
separate class, have the right to elect two mendig¢ree Company's Board of Directors.

Liguidation—The shares of New Series B rank senior to theeSe¥i1 and all other classes of Series A Prefestedk. The shares of
Series A-1 rank senior to all other classes ofeSeti Preferred Stock. Series A-2 ranks junior toeSeA-1 and senior to Series A-3, Serieg A-
Series A-5 and Series A-6. Series A-3, Series Adb Series A-6 rank equally but junior to Series Antl Series A-2 and senior to Series A-4.
Series A-4 ranks senior to the Company's commaksto

In the event of a liquidation, dissoluti@n,winding-up of the Company, the holders of Neavi& B are entitled to be paid first out of the
assets available for distribution, before any payn®emade to the Series A Preferred Stock. Paymhoethie holders of New Series B shall
consist of two (2) times the original purchase @€ $61.42, plus all accrued but unpaid divideddter such distribution to the holders of
New Series B, the holders of Serie-1 will be entitled to be paid out of the remainagsets available for distribution, before any pagtis
made to the Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-4igSé&-5 and Series A-6. Payment to the holderseoieS A-1 shall consist of the original
purchase price of $81.42, plus all accrued but isghgigidends. After the distribution to the holdefsSeries A-1, the holders of Series A-2 will
be entitled to receive an amount per share equhktoriginal purchase price per share of $81.14% @ny accrued but unpaid dividends. After
the distribution to the holders Series A-1 and &eA-2, the holders of Series A-3, Series A-5 aadeS A-6, will be entitled to receive an
amount per share equal to the original purchase per share of $81.42, plus any accrued but urgradéclared and unpaid dividends, as
appropriate. After the distribution to the hold8eyies A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-5%ades A-6, the holders of Series A-4 will be
entitled to receive an amount per share equaldmtlyinal purchase price per share of $81.42, ahysdeclared and unpaid dividends. If the
assets of the Company are insufficient
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to pay the full preferential amounts to the hold#rslew Series B, the assets will be distributadlsty among the holders of New Series B in
proportion to their aggregate liquidation preferamounts. If the assets of the Company are iserfi to pay the full preferential amounts to
the holders of Series A-1, the assets will be ithisted ratably among the holders of Series A-1ropprtion to their aggregate liquidation
preference amounts. If the assets of the Companinaufficient to pay the full preferential amoutdshe holders of Series A-2, the assets wil
be distributed ratably among the holders of Seki&sin proportion to their aggregate liquidatioreference amounts. If the assets of the
Company are insufficient to pay the full preferahtimounts to the holders of Series A-3, Seriesahdé Series A-6, the assets will be
distributed ratably among the holders of Series, &&ies A-5 and Series &in proportion to their aggregate liquidation greince amounts.
the assets of the Company are insufficient to peyfull preferential amounts to the holders of &&#-4, the assets will be distributed ratably
among the holders of Series A-4 in proportion &irthggregate liquidation preference amounts. Adteliquidation preference payments have
been made to the holders of the New Series B aridsS& Preferred Stock, the holders of the Newee and Series A-1, Series A-2 and
Series A-3 shall participate in the distributiontleé remaining assets with the holders of the Caiyipacommon stock on an as-if converted
basis.

In the event of, and simultaneously witie tlosing of an event of sale of the Company &éisied in the Company's Amended Certificate
of Incorporation), the Company shall redeem athef shares of New Series B and Series A Preferi@k $hen outstanding at the Special
Liguidation Price, as defined. If the event of Salolves consideration other than cash, the Sperjaidation Price may be paid with such
consideration having a value equal to the Spedglitdation Price. The Special Liquidation Pricelsba equal to an amount per share, which
would be received by each holder of the PrefertedkSf, in connection with the event of sale,talt consideration paid in exchange for the
assets or the shares of capital stock of the Coymnpas actually paid to and received by the Compang,the Company was immediately
liquidated thereafter and its assets distributedymant to the liquidation terms above.

10. Stockholders' Deficit
Common Stoek-The Company has reserved the following numbehafes of common stock (in thousands):

December 31

2013 2012
Conversion of New Series B Preferred St 9,80( —
Conversion of Series-1 Preferred Stoc 10,00C  10,00(
Conversion of Series-2 Preferred Stoc 9,83: 9,83¢
Conversion of Series-3 Preferred Stoc 1,42: 1,42:
Conversion of Series-4 Preferred Stoc 40 40
Conversion of Series-5 Preferred Stoc 70 70
Conversion of Series-6 Preferred Stoc 8,00( 8,00(
Stock options and Warrar 18,84. 19,65¢
Total 58,00¢ 49,02(
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The following tables summarize the finaheissets and liabilities measured at fair valua oacurring basis in the accompanying balance
sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 (in thdggan

As of December 31, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash $ 271 $ — % — $ 2,71
Money market funds(1 9,59: — — 9,59:
$ 1230 $§ — $ — $ 12,30:
Liabilities
Warrant liability(2) $ — $ — $194t $ 1,94
Stock Liability(2) $ 532t $§ 5,32t
$ — $ — $ 7271 $ 7,27
As of December 31, 201
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash $ 1,132 § — $ — $ 1,13¢
Money market funds(1 16,02( — — 16,02(
Domestic corporate commercial papel — 1,49¢ — 1,49¢
Marketable Securitie:
Domestic corporate commercial papel — 4,00( — 4,00(
Stock asset(z — — 407 407
$ 17,15« $ 549¢ $ 407 $ 23,06(
Liabilities
Warrant liability(2) $ — % — $ 83 $ 83
Other liability(2) — — 24,38’ 24,38
Stock liability(2) 24k 24k

$ — $ — $ 25/46: $ 25,46:

Q) Fair value is based upon quoted market prices.

(2) Fair value is determined using the probability-viégl expected return model ("PWERM"), as discudsdolw. Changes
in the fair value of the Level 3 assets and litibsi are recorded as other (expense) income istétement of operations.

3) Fair value is based upon quoted prices foilainmstruments in active markets, quoted priagsdentical or similar

instruments in markets that are not active and froaiged valuation techniques for which all sigrfitassumptions are
observable in the market or can
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corroborated by observable market data for subiathrthe full term of the assets. Inputs are aftai from various
sources, including market participants, dealerstanéers.

The stock asset represents the prepaidd®iaf the research and development expense rétated stock dividends to be issue
Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII A/S ("Kbc") in shares of Series A-6 (or in shares of owmn stock if the Company lists
its common stock on a national exchange) whicleiadrecognized ratably over the estimated peepatieatment period under the
three work statements executed with Nordic (thertiMoWork Statements™) (see note 13). The stodilitg represents the accrued
balance of the research and development expersteddb the stock dividends to be issued to Ndrdghares of Series A-6 (or in
shares of common stock if the Company lists its romm stock on a national exchange) which is beinggeized ratably over the
estimated per patient treatment period under theliN®ork Statements.

The fair values of the stock asset andksliability are based upon the fair value of thei€&2A-6 as determined using PWERM,
which considers the value of the Company's varaasses of preferred stock. The fair value of tbenfany's various classes of
preferred stock is determined through an analyisiseofuture values for equity assuming variousifatoutcomes. Accordingly, share
value is based upon the probability weighted pregalue of expected future net cash flows, congidegach of the possible future
events, discount rate as determined using theatasset pricing model, as well as the rights arfepences of each share class.
PWERM is complex as it requires numerous assumgptielating to potential future outcomes of equitgcordingly, the valuation of
the Company's stock asset and stock liability temeined using Level 3 inputs.

The warrant liability represents the liéthifor the warrants issued to the placement ageabnnection with the Company's
Series A-1 financing, to the investors in the Neari& B financing in April and May 2013, and to teeders in connection with the
Company's Loan and Security Agreement executed@ufiord Finance LLC and General Electric Capitatftwation in May 2011.
The warrant liability is calculated using the BlaBkholes option pricing method. This method of vatuaincludes using inputs such
the fair value of the Company's common stock ofgored stock, historical volatility, the term ofethvarrant and risk free interest rates.
The fair value of the Company's shares of commocksand preferred stock is estimated using PWERMiescribed above.
Accordingly, the valuation of the warrant liability determined using Level 3 inputs.

The other liability represents the lialyilib issue shares of Series A-6 for services rexttlgr connection with the Nordic Work
Statements. The liability is calculated based upemumber of shares earned by Nordic through énfopmance of clinical trial
services multiplied by the estimated fair valughaf Company's Series A-6 at each reporting date.eBtimated fair value of the
Series A6 is determined using PWERM, as described aboveoringly, the valuation of the other liability determined using Level
inputs.

As noted above, the Company's Level 3vaiue measurements related to its stock assek Batlity, warrant liability and other
liability are based upon the fair value of the Camygs common stock and preferred stock. The follgwable provides quantitative
information about the fair value
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measurement of the Company's common stock andrpgdfstock, including significant unobservable itgou

Valuation
Instrument Technigue Unobservable Input Estimate
Presferrl((%d PWERM  Time until future exit event (years) e 0.0-04
toc
¢ Probability of abaloparatide coming to marke ¢ 65% - 75%
* Discount rate * 20% - 40%
¢ Long-term revenue growth rate(1) * 2% -117%
e Long-term pre-tax operating margin(2) e 13% - 79%
¢ Discount for lack of marketability e 10% - 36%
Market » Revenue multiple(3) * 3.2-80
Comparable
Companies

Q) Estimated longerm revenue growth rate has the above range aadeange of approximately 27% over 16 revenue y

(2) Estimated long-term pretax operating margin hasati®/e range after achieving positive pretax opggahargin and an
average of approximately 68% for 17 years.

3) Represents amounts used when the Companyehasnined that market participants would use suchiptes when
valuing the Company's preferred sto

As of December 31, 2013, the warrant ligbdnd stock liability have fair values of $1.9loin and $5.3 million, respectively. Change:
the significant unobservable inputs used in theviaiue measurements of the Company's common siattlpreferred stock in isolation would
result in a significantly different fair value measment of the stock asset, stock liability, watiability and other liability. Generally, a
change in the assumption used for the probabifisuocessful development is accompanied by a dirgaity similar change in the assumption
used for the long-term revenue growth rate and-teng pre-tax operating margin and estimated faiue measurement of the Company's
common stock and preferred stock.

The following table provides a roll forwanfithe fair value of the assets, where fair vadugetermined using Level 3 inputs (in
thousands):

Balance at January 1, 20 $ 3,37¢
Expense recognize (4,080
Additions 39¢
Change in fair valu 71C
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 407
Expense recognize (319
Additions 86
Change in fair valu (180
Balance at December 31, 2C $ —
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The following table provides a roll forwanfithe fair value of the liabilities, where faialue is determined using Level 3 inputs (in
thousands):

Balance at January 1, 20 $ 10,92(
Additions 11,76
Change in fair valu 2,77¢
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 25,46
Issuance of shares of Serie-6 (23,169
Additions 14,24¢
Change in fair valu (9,267
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 7,27

Additions represent the value of the aeséitbility for additional accrued shares of staskuable to Nordic for services rendered in
connection with the Company's Phase 3 clinicalystfdA\baloparatide-SC and Phase 2 clinical studjladloparatideFD (see note 13), as w
as the value of any new warrants issued duringdnmd. The issuance of shares of Series A-6 reptéke release in the quarterly stock
dividends of Series A-6 accrued under the Nordiachk\Rtatements as of December 31, 2013 (see note 13)

The fair value of the Company's note pagabdetermined using current applicable ratesifoilar instruments as of the balance sheet
date. The carrying value of the Company's note lpay@pproximated its fair value as of December281.3, as the Company's interest rate is
near current market rates. The fair value of then@any's notes payable was determined using Lewg8s.

12. License Agreements

On September 27, 2005, the Company enteted license agreement (the "Ipsen Agreemend"graended, with SCRAS S.A.S, a Fre
corporation on behalf of itself and its affiliatEsllectively, "Ipsen”). Under the Ipsen Agreemdpgen granted to the Company an exclusive
right and license under certain Ipsen compoundnelolgy and related patents to research, developufaeture and commercialize certain
compounds and related products in all countriesggixJapan and (subject to certain co-marketingcarromotion rights retained by Ipsen)
France. With respect to France, if Ipsen exerdises-marketing and co-promotion rights then Ips&y elect to receive a percentage of the
aggregate revenue from the sale of products by fwatiies in France (subject to a mid-double digitcgentage cap) and Ipsen shall bear a
corresponding percentage of the costs and expémsesed by both parties with respect to such mamgeand promotion efforts in France;
Ipsen shall also pay Radius a mid-single digit lyyan Ipsen's allocable portion of aggregate rexefniom the sale of products by both parties
in France. Abaloparatide (the Company's bone gralnily) is subject to the Ipsen Agreement. Ipsen gtanted the Company an exclusive
right and license under the Ipsen compound teclgycdmd related patents to make and have made cordpau product in Japan. Ipsen also
granted the Company an exclusive right and licemsker certain Ipsen formulation technology andteelgatents solely for purposes of
enabling the Company to develop, manufacture anthwercialize compounds and products covered bydhgound technology license in all
countries, except Japan and (subject to certamadceting and pro-promotion rights retained by
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Ipsen) France. In consideration for these licertbesCompany made a nonrefundable, non-creditahympnt of $250.0 thousand to Ipsen,
which was expensed during 2005. The Ipsen Agreeprenides for further payments in the range of @Xfillion to €36.0 million

($13.8 million to $49.6 million) to Ipsen upon taehievement of certain development and commerai#ia milestones specified in the Ipsen
Agreement, and for the payment of fixed 5% royalt@ net sales of any product by the Company oswohblicensees on a country-by-country
basis until the later of the last to expire of isensed patents or for a period of 10 years dfteffirst commercial sale in such country of any
product that includes the compound licensed frosepor any analog thereof.

If the Company sublicenses the rights kaehfrom Ipsen, then the Company will also be meglio pay Ipsen a percentage of certain
payments received from such sublicensee (in liemitdstone payments not achieved at the time di sublicense). The applicable percentage
is in the low double digit range. In addition, lilst Company or its sublicensees commercialize augtdtiat includes a compound discoveret
it based on or derived from confidential Ipsen krwmow, it will be obligated to pay to Ipsen a fixkeav single digit royalty on net sales of such
product on a country-bgeuntry basis until the later of the last to expuiféts patents that cover such product or for @opeof 10 years after tt
first commercial sale of such product in such courib connection with the Ipsen Agreement, the @any recorded approximately
$0.2 million, $0.7 million and $1.0 million in reseh and developments costs in the years endediibered1, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The costs were incurred by Ipsendnadged to the Company for the manufacture of linical supply of the licensed compound.

On May 11, 2011, the Company entered irge@nd amendment to the Ipsen Agreement pursuavitich Ipsen agreed to accept shares
of Series A-1 in lieu of cash as considerationafonilestone payment due to Ipsen following thdatiin of the first abaloparatide Phase 3
study. The number of shares of Series A-1 to hesis$o Ipsen was determined based upon the U.far éalkchange rate for the euro two
business days prior to closing. On May 17, 2014 Gbmpany issued 17,326 shares of Series A-1 &mlssettle the obligation. Accordingly,
the Company recorded research and development sxpéi$1.4 million during the year ended Decemle2B11. The expense represents th
fair value of the Series A-1 shares of $81.42 peres.

13. Research Agreements

Abaloparatide-SC Phase 3 Clinical Stedpn March 29, 2011, the Company and Nordic entereda Clinical Trial Services
Agreement, a Work Statement NB-1 (the "Work Stat@m\B-1") under such Clinical Trial Services Agremmhand a related Stock Issuance
Agreement, as amended to date (the "Stock Issuagieement"). Pursuant to the Work Statement NB-drdi¢ is managing the Phase 3
clinical study (the "Phase 3 Clinical Study") of#lbparatide-SC and is being compensated for sueftes in a combination of cash and
shares of stock.

In December 2011, the Company entereddntamendment to the Work Statement NBie "First Amendment”). Pursuant to the orig
terms of the Work Statement NB-1, the study wasst@conducted in 10 countries at a specified nurabsites within each country. The terms
of the First Amendment (1) provided for two additid countries (the United States and India) in Wiife study would be conducted,

(2) specified a certain number of sites within esigbh additional country for the conduct of thedgttand (3) amended various terms and
provisions of the Work Statement NB-1 to
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reflect the addition of such countries and sitethiwithe study's parameters. Payments to be matiseb@ompany to Nordic under the First
Amendment are denominated in both euros and Ul&rgand total up to €717,700 ($988,919) and $&8®, respectively, for the 15
additional study sites in India contemplated byRirst Amendment and up to €1.2 million ($1.7 noifl) and $143,369, respectively, for the
five additional study sites in the United Statestemplated by the First Amendment.

In June 2012, the Company entered intcarstamendment to the Work Statement NB-1(the "s¢téonendment”). Pursuant to the
original terms of the Work Statement NB-1, as aneehloly the First Amendment, the study was to be ected in 12 countries at a specified
number of sites within each country. The termshef$econd Amendment (1) increased the overall nuoflsites by adding sites in Europe,
Brazil and Argentina and removing other sites,sf®cified a certain number of sites within eachnégufor the conduct of the study, and
(3) amended various terms and provisions of thek/$tatement NB-1 to reflect additional servicebégorovided at existing sites and the
addition of the new study sites within the stughdsameters. The Second Amendment also providedaishtpayments to Nordic under the
Clinical Trial Services Agreement as well as thgrpant of shares of stock under the related Stasikalsce Agreement will each be reduced b
an amount of €11,941 ($16,454) per subject forarmjects enrolled in India or the United Statesheductions shall be applied in pro rata
monthly installments. Payments to be made by thafgamy to Nordic under the Second Amendment in coimrewith the additional services
provided at existing sites and the conduct of thdysat the new study sites are denominated in ®otbs and U.S. dollars and total of up to
€3.7 million ($5.1 million) and $205,540, respective

Pursuant to the Work Statement NB-1, then@any is required to make certain per patient paysndenominated in both euros and U.S.
dollars for each patient enrolled in the PhaseiBicl Study followed by monthly payments for theration of the study and final payments in
two equal euro-denominated installments and twakedLs. dollar-denominated installments. ChangeheacClinical Study schedule may alter
the timing, but not the aggregate amounts of thyengamts.

The Work Statement NB-1, as amended on mbee 9, 2011 and June 18, 2012, provides for &abiag to approximately €41.2 million
($56.7 million) of euro-denominated payments anotal of up to approximately $3.2 million of U.Solar-denominated payments over the
course of the Phase 3 Clinical Study. These paysmaay be adjusted based upon actual sites opewnek performed or number of patients
enrolled.

Pursuant to the Stock Issuance Agreemestt]iblagreed to purchase the equivalent of €371¢8&kries A-5 at $8.142 per share, and
64,430 shares of Series A-5 were sold to NordiMay 17, 2011 for proceeds of $525,154. These sheees exchanged in the Merger for an
aggregate of 6,443 shares of the Company's Sertes A

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNoadlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock diidls, payable in shares of Series A-6 or
shares of common stock if the Company's prefeneekshas been converted in accordance with its deknertificate of incorporation, havi
an aggregate value of up to €36.8 million ($50.Hiom) (the "Nordic Accruing Dividend"). In the emeNordic sells the shares of Series A-5 o
in the event the shares of Series A-5 are convémteccommon stock in accordance with the Compaayiended certificate of incorporation,
this right to receive the Nordic Accruing Dividendl terminate, but a right to receive an equivaleamber of shares of Series A-6
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or common stock, as applicable, will remain withrtio as a contractual right under the Stock Isseaxgreement.

The Nordic Accruing Dividend related to tRkase 3 Clinical Study is determined based upemrstimated period that will be required to
complete the Phase 3 Clinical Study. On the lasin@ass day of each calendar quarter (each, an UAcBrate"), beginning with the quarter
ended June 30, 2011, the Company has a liabilitystee shares of Series A-6 (or common stock, #feeconversion of the Company's
preferred stock into common stock) to Nordic tisatgferred to as the "Applicable Quarterly Amoumtd is equal to €36.8 million
($50.7 million) (subject to adjustment in accordamgth the applicable provisions of the Second Admaent relating to consideration payable
for patients enrolled in India and the U.S.) mithus aggregate value of any prior Nordic Accruingi®&nd accrued divided by the number of
calendar quarters it will take to complete the RHa€linical Study. To calculate the aggregate remalh shares due to Nordic in each calenda
quarter, the Company converts the portion of €8@iBon ($50.7 million) to accrue in such calendprarter into U.S. dollars using the simple
average of the exchange rate for buying U.S. dollath euros for all Mondays in such calendar qgraithe Company then calculates the
aggregate number of shares to accrue in such calepdrter by dividing the U.S. dollar equivaleftte Applicable Quarterly Amount, by the
greater of (1) the fair market value of the Compsuepmmon stock as of the applicable Accrual Dat@p$8.142 and rounding down the
resulting quotient to the nearest whole numberhSinares due to Nordic are to be issued when @ectarpaid by the Company's Board of
Directors, who are required to do so upon Nord&giest, or upon an event of sale. As of Decembge?®13, 438,124 shares of Series A-6
were due to Nordic under Work Statement NB-1, asratad, or, after the automatic conversion into comstock of the Company's preferred
stock, 4,381,240 shares of the Company's commai.dto December 2013, Nordic requested that alteshaf Series A-6 accrued as of
December 31, 2013 under Work Statement NB-1 bedsiiccordingly, the Company's Board of Directoesldred a dividend to Nordic of all
438,124 shares of Series A-6 accrued under Wottei&tnt NB-1 on December 31, 2013.

Prior to the issuance of shares of stodkddlic in satisfaction of the Nordic Accruing Dildnd, the liability to issue shares of stock was
being accounted for as a liability in the Compatwgkance sheet, based upon the fair value of tHesS&-6 as determined using PWERM.
Changes in the fair value from the date of accru#the date of issuance of the Series A-6 shaseseaorded as a gain or loss in other income
(expense) in the statement of operations.

The Company recognizes research and dawelopexpense for the amounts due to Nordic undewtbrk Statement NB-1 ratably over
the estimated per patient treatment period begghapon enrollment in the Phase 3 Clinical Studya twenty-month period. The Company
recorded $31.6 million, $30.8 million, and $5.1Imit of research and development expense duringehes ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively, for per patient costs iremifor patients that had enrolled in the Phasér8dal Study. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company also recorded aippatedy $11.0 million of research and developmeqiease associated with the costs
incurred for preparatory and other start-up casisitiate the Phase 3 Clinical Study.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company haa (lbility of $4.8 million reflected in accruetkpenses and other current liabilities on the
balance sheet resulting from services provided brdid, which are payable in the form of a stockidiiwd and (2) a liability of $11.6 million
that is reflected in
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accrued expenses and other current liabilitieherbalance sheet resulting from services provigeddrdic, which are payable in cash.

Abaloparatide-SC Phase 3 Clinical Extenssindy—In February 2013, the Company entered into a V&igkement NB-3 (the "Work
Statement NB-3") under the Clinical Trial Servidggreement and the related Stock Issuance AgreerRarguant to Work Statement NB-3,
Nordic will perform an extension study to evalusitemonths of standa-of-care osteoporosis management following the detigm of the 18-
month Abaloparatid&C Phase 3 Clinical Study (the "Extension Studpd will be compensated for such services in a coatlon of cash ar
shares of stock. Under the terms of a Letter afihthat the Company entered into with Nordic omoDer 22, 2012 setting forth the parties'
obligations to negotiate in good faith to enteoidifork Statement NB-3, the Company was requiradd&e an initial payment of €806,468
($1.1 million).

Payments in cash to be made to Nordic utideYWork Statement NB-3 are denominated in botbseand U.S. dollars and total up to
€4.5 million ($6.2 million) and $0.6 million, respaely. In addition, the Company will issue to Nardshares of the Company's Series A-6
having a value of up to4€5 million ($6.2 million) and $0.3 million, as atldnal payment for services to be provided unther\Work Statemer
NB-3 and the Services Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement provides beaginning with the quarter ended March 31, 201@&di¢ was entitled to receive quarterly
stock dividends in connection with services perfednunder the Work Statement NB-3, payable in shafr&gries A-6 or shares of common
stock if the Company's preferred stock has beesnaatically converted into common stock in accor@anwih its amended certificate of
incorporation, having an aggregate value of up4t® #nillion ($6.2 million) and $0.3 million. In thevent Nordic sells the shares of Series A-5
or in the event the shares of Series A-5 are coedénto common stock in accordance with the Comisaamended certificate of
incorporation, this right to receive the Nordic Agioig Dividend will terminate, but a right to regeian equivalent number of shares of
Series A-6 or common stock, as applicable, willaanwith Nordic as a contractual right under thecBtissuance Agreement.

The Nordic Accruing Dividend related to tBetension Study is determined based upon the atghperiod that will be required to
complete the Extension Study. On each Accrual Dmginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2048 Gompany will recognize a liability
to issue shares of Series A-6 to Nordic with anligaple Quarterly Amount value equal to €4.5 milligs6.2 million) and $0.3 million minus
the aggregate value of any previously accrued Nokdcruing Dividend related to the Extension Stdixided by the number of calendar
quarters it will take to complete the Extensiondyturhe Company calculates the aggregate numtsrases of Series A-6 to accrue in such
calendar quarter by dividing such Applicable Quéytdmount, by the greater of (1) the fair marketue of the Company's common stock as
of the applicable Accrual Date or (2) $8.142 anghding down the resulting quotient to the neardstlesnumber. Such shares due to Nordic
are to be issued when declared or paid by the Cop'gpBoard of Directors, who are required to daigon Nordic's request, or upon an event
of sale. As of December 31, 2013, 25,772 shar&etés A-6 were due to Nordic under Work StatemH3, or, after the automatic
conversion into common stock of the Company's prefestock, 257,720 shares of the Company's constoak. In December 2013, Nordic
requested that all shares of Series A-6 accrued Becember 31, 2013 under Work Statement
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NB-3 be issued. Accordingly, the Company's Board ioé®ors declared a dividend to Nordic of all 22 &hares of Series A-6 accrued under
Work Statement NB-3 on December 31, 2013.

Prior to the issuance of the shares ofeSe&i-6 to Nordic in satisfaction of the Nordic Aaitrg Dividend, the liability to issue shares of
stock was being accounted for as a liability in@wmmpany's balance sheet, based upon the fair vélhe Series A-6 as determined using
PWERM. Changes in the fair value from the datecof@al to the date of issuance of the Serie& ghares are recorded as a gain or loss in
income (expense) in the statement of operations.

On December 6, 2013, the Company entettechitLetter of Intent (the "Letter of Intent") withordic, which provides that the Company
and Nordic will continue to negotiate the definititerms of an Amendment No. 1 to Work Statement3\[Bie "Amendment") which provides
for an additional 18 months of standard-of-carattreent for those patients enrolled in the ExtenSiturdy being performed under Work
Statement NB-3 (the "Second Extension”). The Amesmatrprovides for payment by the Company to Nordibath cash and equity
compensation in consideration of the services plexvby Nordic, with the equity portion of such canpation to be made pursuant to an
Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Ststlahce Agreement entered into by the parties slspfl6, 2011.

Pursuant to the Letter of Intent, the Conypaas required to make an initial payment of €323,($0.3 million) and agreed to commence
payment of the cash compensation due in considerafithe services being provided by Nordic untierAmendment. Once the Amendmel
fully executed, the Company will commence paymédritath the cash and equity compensation stipulateter the Amendment.

Payments in cash to be made by the ComimaNyrdic under the Letter of Intent and Amendmiardonnection with the services to be
provided are denominated in both euros and U.Samdchnd total up to €3.0 million ($4.1 million)ca$0.5 million, respectively. In addition,
the Company will issue to Nordic, subject to theaxion of the Amendment, shares of its stock fgaivalue of up to €3.0 million
($4.1 million) and $0.5 million, as additional pagnt for services to be provided under the Amendraadtthe Services Agreement.

The Letter of Intent will terminate on tearlier of (1) the date on which the Company anddioenter into the Amendment or
(2) February 28, 2014 (pursuant to an extensiorualiytagreed to by the Company and Nordic).

The Company recognizes research and dawelopexpense for the amounts due to Nordic undewtbrk Statement NB-3 and
Amendment ratably over the estimated per patieatitnent periods beginning upon enroliment, or aweine-month and nineteen-month
period, respectively. The Company recorded $4.8anibf research and development expense duringebeended December 31, 2013, for
per patient costs incurred for patients that hadlkd in the Extension Study and Second Extension.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company haa (fability of $0.6 million reflected in accruexkpenses and other current liabilities on the
balance sheet resulting from services provided bgdN, which are payable in the form of a stockidiind and (2) a liability of $0.5 million
that is reflected in
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accrued expenses and other current liabilitieherbalance sheet resulting from services provigeddrdic, which are payable in cash.

Abaloparatide-TD Phase 2 Clinical StuehOn July 26, 2012, the Company entered into a Leftintent (the "Phase 2 Letter of Intent")
with Nordic, which provides that the Company anddiowill, subject to compliance by the Companyhiertain requirements of its
Certificate of Incorporation and applicable sedesitaws, negotiate in good faith to enter intogd)/ork Statement NB-(the "Work Stateme
NB-2"), a draft of which is attached to the Phaseeftdr of Intent, and (2) an amendment to the Ameraael Restated Stock Issuance
Agreement.

In February 2013, the Company executeditia® Work Statement NE under the Clinical Trial Services Agreement amalrelated Stoc
Issuance Agreement. Pursuant to the Work Statelig+#, Nordic will provide clinical trial serviceglating to the Phase 2 Clinical Study and
will be compensated for such services in a comhnaif cash and shares of stock. Payments in cakh made by the Company to Nordic
under the Work Statement NB-2 are denominated fih éoros and U.S. dollars and total up to €3.6ioml($5.0 million) and $0.3 million,
respectively. In addition, the Company will issoeNordic shares of its Series A-6 stock having laezaf up to $2.9 million, as additional
payment for services to be provided under the V\&idtement NB-2 and the Services Agreement.

The Stock Issuance Agreement providesNoatlic is entitled to receive quarterly stock dasdls in connection with services performed
under Work Statement NB-2, payable in shares a&SéY-6, or shares of common stock if the Compapseerred stock has been
automatically converted in accordance with its adeehcertificate of incorporation. In the event Norgklls the shares of Series A-5 or in the
event the shares of Series A-5 are converted mritmnoon stock in accordance with the Company's antkoeeificate of incorporation, this
right to receive the Nordic Accruing Dividend widrminate, but a right to receive an equivalent benof shares of Series A-6 or common
stock, as applicable, will remain with Nordic asamtractual right under the Stock Issuance Agre¢men

The Nordic Accruing Dividend related to tRkase 2 Clinical Study is determined based uperstimated period that will be required to
complete the Phase 2 Clinical Study. On each At®@ate, beginning with the quarter ended DecemhefB12, the Company will recogniz
liability to issue shares of Series A-6 to Nordithnan Applicable Quarterly Amount value equal fota $2.9 million minus the aggregate
value of any prior Nordic Accruing Dividend relatidthe Phase 2 Clinical Study divided by the nundfealendar quarters it will take to
complete the Phase 2 Clinical Study. The Compaloulzdes the aggregate number of shares of Ser@sofaccrue in such calendar quarte
dividing such Applicable Quarterly Amount, by theegter of (1) the fair market value of the Compamgmmon stock as of the applicable
Accrual Date or (2) $8.142 and rounding down theilttng quotient to the nearest whole number. Sielres due to Nordic are to be issued
when declared or paid by the Company's Board aéddirs, who are required to do so upon Nordic'aesety or upon an event of sale. As of
December 31, 2013, 32,215 shares of Series A-6 diexeo Nordic under Work Statement NB-2, or, dfterautomatic conversion into
common stock of the Company's preferred stock,I3Pshares the Company's common stock. In Decepli&, Nordic requested that all
shares of Series A-6 accrued as of December 3B @0der Work Statement NB-2 be issued. Accordinthg,Company's Board of Directors
declared a dividend to Nordic of all 32,215 shareSeries A-6 accrued under Work Statement NB-December 31, 2013.

127




Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

13. Research Agreements (Continued)

Prior to the issuance of shares of stodkddlic in satisfaction of the Nordic Accruing Dildnd, the liability to issue shares of stock was
being accounted for as a liability in the Compatwgkance sheet, based upon the fair value of tHesS&-6 as determined using PWERM.
Changes in the fair value from the date of accm#the date of issuance of the Series A-6 shaseseaorded as a gain or loss in other income
(expense) in the statement of operations.

The Company recognizes research and dewelopexpense for the amounts due to Nordic undewtbrk Statement NB-2 ratably over
the estimated per patient treatment period beginapon enrollment in the Phase 2 Clinical Studya aine-month period. The Company
recorded $4.1 million and $1.4 million of reseaartd development expense during the years endedibece31, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
for per patient costs incurred for patients that éarolled in the Phase 2 Clinical Study. Additibnahe Company recorded approximately
$0.9 million of research and development expensecisted with the costs incurred for preparatoy a@ther start-up costs to initiate the
Phase 2 Clinical Study during the year ended Deeei®b, 2012.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company Habdity of $0.5 million that is reflected in aaoed expenses and other current liabilities on
the balance sheet resulting from services provigeNordic, which are payable in cash.

The Company is also responsible for cepaissthrough costs in connection with the Phase 3 Glirfitudy, Extension Study and Phas
Clinical Study. Pass through costs are expensé@ttased or upon delivery. The Company recognizeitarch and development expense of
$3.9 million, $6.0 million, and $5.0 million for pa-through costs during the years ended Decemh@O033B, 2012, and 2011, respectively.

14. Stock-based Compensation

The Company has the following stdzksed compensation plans as of December 31, 2adi8r which equity awards have been grant
employees, directors and consultants:

. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan; and

. 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

The 2011 Equity Incentive Plan replaced26@3 Long-Term Incentive Plan when the board céalors approved the new plan on
November 7, 2011. As of December 31, 2013, an aggeeof approximately 7,772,000 shares have beto@zed for issuance under t
Company's stock-based compensation plans, withoajppately 3,801,000 options outstanding. The nunab@mmon shares available for
granting of future awards to employees and dirscbmder these plans was approximately 3,267,00@etmber 31, 2013.

2003 Long-Term Incentive PlanThe Company's 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan (theéntive Plan") provides for the granting of
incentive stock options and nonqualified optionkeg employees, directors and consultants of threg2my. The exercise price of the incen
stock options, as determined by the board of direcimust be at least 100% (110% in the case ehinge stock options granted to a
stockholder owning in excess of 10% of the Commaogmmon stock) of the common stock fair valuefahedate of the grant. The
provisions of the Incentive Plan limit the exeraideéncentive stock options, but in no case mayetkercise period extend beyond ten years
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from the date of grant (five years in the casenoéntive stock options granted to a stockholderiogvin excess of 10% of the Company's
common stock). Stock options generally vest ovieuayear period. Certain options contain explggtformance conditions. The Company
authorized approximately 2,016,000 shares of comstack for issuance under the Incentive Plan.

2011 Equity Incentive PlarThe Company's 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the 'liigRlan™) provides for the granting of incentivesk
options and nonqualified options to key employeé@gctors and consultants of the Company. The éeprice of the incentive stock options,
as determined by the board of directors, must beaat 100% (110% in the case of incentive stotlonp granted to a stockholder owning in
excess of 10% of the Company's common stock) ofdinemon stock fair value as of the date of the gfEime provisions of the Equity Plan
limit the exercise of incentive stock options, buho case may the exercise period extend beyangears from the date of grant (five years in
the case of incentive stock options granted t@ekéiolder owning in excess of 10% of the Compaogtemon stock). Stock options generally
vest over a four-year period. Certain options congxplicit performance conditions. The Company aathorized approximately 5,756,000
shares of common stock for issuance under the ¥ERlain. In addition, the shares remaining availéfMéssuance under the Incentive Plan
were assumed as shares authorized under the Ejaity

The Company has historically granted stoofions at exercise prices no less than the fairevaf its common stock as determined by its
board of directors, with input from management. Twenpany's board of directors has historically deteed, with input from management,
the estimated fair value of the Company's commockstn the date of grant based on a number of tgeand subjective factors, including:

. the prices at which the Company sold shareso¥ertible preferred stock;

. the superior rights and preferences of secarg@nior to the Company's common stock at the dihneach grant;

. the likelihood of achieving a liquidity eventctuas a public offering or sale of the Company;

. the Company's historical operating and financiafqgrenance and the status of its research and ptathwelopment efforts; and
. achievement of enterprise milestones, includingrmg into collaboration and license agreements.

The Company's board of directors also @®rsivaluations provided by management in detengithie fair value of its common stock ¢
has consistently used the most recent valuatiovighed by management for determining the fair vadtigs common stock unless a specific
event occurs that necessitates an interim valuafibe valuations utilized are prepared based ogtigance from th&aluation of Privately-
Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensétien'Practice Aid") that was developed by staffref American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a task force comprisingaggntatives from the appraisal, preparer, pubtowaating, venture capital and academic
communities and utilize PWERM, as outlined in thadfice Aid. PWERM considers the value of prefemad common stock based upon the
probability-weighted present value of expectedreituet cash flows, considering each of the poséiltiee events, as well as the rights
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and preferences of each share class. PWERM is eamaglit requires numerous assumptions relatipgptential future outcomes of equity,
hence, the use of this method can be applied: fEnvwpossible future outcomes can be predictednwé@bonable certainty; and (2) when the
a complex capital structure (i.e., several clas$gseferred and common stock).

During the year ended December 31, 20ECihmpany granted options on November 14, 2013 Cdmpany utilized the fair value of
common stock derived from the September 30, 20L&atian for purposes of the November 14, 2013 apgirant and concluded that for
purposes of the November 14, 2013 grant, there neggnificant changes to the assumptions us#tki? WERM model between
November 14, 2013 and September 30, 2013 that wiouyddct the fair value of our common stock. The @any also used this methodolog!
estimate the fair value of its preferred stock.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes optianifg model to estimate the grant date fair valfigs employee stock options. The
weighted-average assumptions used in the Blacki&gloption-pricing model and the resulting weightederage estimated grant date fair
values of its employee stock options were as fdlléev the years ended December 31, 2013, 20122@htt

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

Expected term (year: 6.25 6.2F 6.2t

Volatility 62% 60% 60%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 245% 1.1(% 1.35%

A summary of stock option activity for tiiear ended December 31, 2013 is as follows:

Weighted-Average = Weighted-Average

Exercise Price Contractual Aggregate
(in dollars Life Intrinsic
Shares per share) (In Years) Value
Options outstanding at December 31,
2012 3,89¢ ¢ 3.1C
Granted 2,42] 3.4¢
Exercisec (12 1.1C
Forfeited (2,502 3.47
Expired (12) 1.5C
Options outstanding at December 31,
2013 3,801 $ 3.0¢ 7.07 $ 2,288
Options exercisable at December 31,
2013 2,478 $ 2.7¢ 6.6 $ 2,231
Options vested or expected to vest at
December 31, 201 3,721 $ 3.0¢ 7.06 $ 2,28C

The weighted-average grant-date fair valeleshare of options granted during 2013, 201224d was $2.05, $2.36 and $2.07,
respectively. The total grant-date fair value ofcktoptions that vested during the years endedidbee31, 2013 and 2012 was approximately
$1.8 million and
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$1.5 million, respectively. The aggregate intrinsadue of options exercised (i.e., the differeneeneen the market price at exercise and the
price paid by employees to exercise the optionjnduhe years ended December 31, 2013 and 2013%ova2 million and $0.9 million,
respectively.

The following table summarizes stock-basaahpensation expense by financial statement Iméh@usands):

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Research and developme $ 30z $§ 33 $ 1i1¢
General and administratiy 1,20¢ 1,457 18¢€
Share-based compensation expense included in

operating expens¢ $ 1,506 $ 1,798 $ 304

As of December 31, 2013, there was appratéiy $2.6 million of total unrecognized comperma@xpense related to unvested share-
based compensation arrangements, which is expecteirecognized over a weighted- average peri@bpfoximately two years.
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Basic and diluted net loss per share isutaled as follows (in thousands, except sharepandhare amounts):

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Numerator:
Net loss $ (60,690 $ (69,129 $ (42,47¢)
Extinguishment of preferred sto — — 60,93’
Accretion of preferred stoc (17,477 (13,999 (20,939
Earnings attributable to participating preferred
stockholder — — (7,275
Earnings (loss) attributable to common stockho—basic (78,167 (83,120 258

Effect of dilutive convertible preferred sto
Earnings (loss) attributable to common stockholders
diluted $ (78,167 $ (83,120 $ 25¢

Denominator
Weighted-average number of common shares usedss)(

earnings per she—basic 874,00: 839,69¢ 499,94

Effect of dilutive options to purchase common st — — 464,93:

Effect of dilutive convertible preferred sto — — 2,489,39!
Weighted-average number of common shares usedss)(

earnings per she—diluted 874,00: 839,69¢ 3,454,271
(Loss) earnings per sh—basic $ (89.4) $ (98.99 $ 0.51

Effect of dilutive options to purchase common st — — 9 (0.29

Effect of dilutive convertible preferred sto — — 9 (0.20)
(Loss) earnings per sh—diluted $ (8949 $ (98.99 $ 0.07

The following potentially dilutive secugs, prior to the use of the treasury stock methade been excluded from the computation of
diluted weighted-average shares outstanding, gsvibald be anti-dilutive. For the years ended Degen81, 2013 and 2012, all convertible
preferred stock, options to purchase common stodiknarrants outstanding were assumed to be antiwdilas earnings attributable to
common stockholders was in a loss position.

Year Ended December 3!

2013 2012 2011
Convertible preferred stoc 11,315,00 4,834,68 5,419,94i
Options to purchase common stc 3,976,07.  3,890,91. 894,16(
Warrants 1,225,22. 15,00( 8,86(

16. Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2013 the Company hadridand state net operating loss ("NOL") carryfamis of approximately $263.6 million
and $229.4 million, respectively, which may be usedffset future taxable income. The Company &bt federal and state tax credits of
$4.0 million and
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16. Income Taxes (Continued)

$0.5 million, respectively, to offset future taaliilities. The NOL and tax credit carryforwardslvwekpire at various dates through 2033, anc
subject to review and possible adjustment by fdderd state tax authorities. The Internal RevenodeG-ontains provision that may limit the
NOL and tax credit carryforwards available to bedus any given year in the event of certain chanigehe ownership interests of significi
stockholders under Section 382 of the Internal RegeCode.

A reconciliation of income taxes computathg the U.S. federal statutory rate to that réélédn operations follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

Income tax benefit using U.S. federal statutorg

2013

2012 2011

$ (20,63%) $ (23,509 $ (14,509

State income taxes, net of federal ber (2,25%) (2,779 (1,859
Stoclk-based compensatic 92 72 49
Research and development tax cre (1,277 (55 (385)
Change in the valuation allowan 27,19 25,17¢ 17,04:
Permanent item (3,085 70¢ 91
Other (34) 371 (433)

$ — — $ —

The Company is subject to Massachusetta/agh taxes, not based on income, which is largéfiset by allowable tax credits and

recorded as a component of operating expenses.

The principal components of the Compangfeided tax assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31

2013 2012
Current asset:
Accrued expense $ 351 $ 343
Deferred Ren 9 —
Gross current deferred tax ass 36C 343
Valuation allowanct (360) (343)
Net current deferred tax ass $ — —
Non-current asset:
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 100,28: $ 74,48
Capitalized research and developrnr 662 1,04z
Research and development cre 4,34¢ 3,06
Depreciation and amortizatic 11C a0
Other 1,318 851
Gross no-current deferred tax asst 106,71 79,537
Valuation allowanct (106,714 (79,537)
Net nor-current deferred tax asst $ — 3 —
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The Company has recorded a valuation alhm&against its deferred tax assets in each ofghes ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
because the Company's management believes thahdre likely than not that these assets will reotdalized. The increase in the valuation
allowance in 2013 primarily relates to the net liogsirred by the Company.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company hasmmecognized tax benefits or related interestmarhlties accrued. The Company has not,
as yet, conducted a study of research and develupftiR&D") credit carryforwards. In addition, theo@pany has not, as yet, conducted an
Internal Revenue Code Section 382 study, whichccoapact its ability to utilize available NOL analxtcredit carryforwards. These studies
may result in adjustments to the Company's R&Diteadryforwards and NOL carryfowards; however,iluatstudy is completed and any
adjustment is known, no amounts are being presexgi@h uncertain tax position. A full valuatioroalance has been provided against the
Company's R&D credits and, if an adjustment is iy this adjustment would be offset by an adjestirio the valuation allowance. Thus,
there would be no impact to the balance sheetatersent of operations if an adjustment were reduifbe Company would recognize both
accrued interest and penalties related to unrezedrbenefits in income tax expense. The Companybiaecorded any interest or penaltie:
any unrecognized benefits since inception.

The statute of limitations for assessmegnhle Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") and stateatgthorities remains open for all tax years.
The Company files income tax returns in the Unib¢aktes and Massachusetts. There are currentlydeodieor state audits in progress.

17. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation—The Company may be exposed to certain claimssasasnents in the ordinary course of businesselopimion of
management, the outcome of these matters is ray lik have any material effect on the financiaifon, results of operations, or cash flows
of the Company.

Commitments-On January 14, 2011, the Company signed a subdegsement for office space in Cambridge, Massadtsutbat expire
on July 31, 2011. Monthly rental payments undes thiblease were $9.0 thousand and the Company niedtie space in February 2011.
July 15, 2011, the Company entered into an operéti@se agreement to remain in the same Cambifidlggsachusetts location. The term of
lease is August 1, 2011 through July 31, 2014. Migrental payments under the new lease are appaigly $15.0 thousand for the first
12 months and approximately $16.0 thousand fothmonths thereafter.

Rent expense for the years ended Decembhe&03 3, 2012 and 2011 was $0.2 million, $0.2 wrilland $0.1 million, respectively.
18. Related Party Transactions

On July 24, 2013, the Company enteredan@onsulting Agreement with Morana Jovan-EmbiriédsD. (the "Consulting Agreement"),
a member of the Company's board of directors. Rutstio the Consulting Agreement, Dr. Jovan-Embgiagreed to provide financial and
strategic consulting services as may be requestéidebCompany, and such other consulting servisesay be reasonably requested by the
Company, from time to time from July 1, 2013 udtihe 30, 2014. The

134




Radius Health, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
18. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Company agreed to pay Dr. Jovan-Embiricos an ag¢eempnsulting fee in cash of $160,000, of whicB,880 was paid on July 30, 2013 and
the remaining $80,000 was paid on October 2, 2013.

On January 23, 2014, the Company entetedaiiconsulting agreement with Orbit Advisors Ligdit(the "Orbit Agreement"), a Swiss
company ("Orbit"), and Morana Jovan-Embiricos, Paridl an agreement terminating the Consulting Agesgrdated July 24, 2013. The Orbit
Agreement is effective as of January 22, 2014 aificcentinue in effect until December 31, 2014 atiuthe earlier termination thereof in
accordance with its terms (the "Term"). Pursuanth&oOrbit Agreement, Orbit has agreed to providarfcial and strategic consulting services
as may be requested by the Company, and suchauthsulting services as may be reasonably requbgtdte Company, from time to time
during the Term. The Company agreed to pay Orbaggregate consulting fee in cash of $400,000un égual installments of $100,000 on
each of January 31, 2014, June 30, 2014, Septe30he&014 and December 31, 2014. The Orbit Agree@mtiins customary provisions,
applicable to both Orbit and Dr. Jov&mbiricos, as Orbit's representative under thet@apieement, regarding the treatment of the Comjs
confidential information and assignment of invensipas well as an obligation of Orbit and Dr. Jei#anmbiricos to not solicit, during the Term
and for a period of one year thereafter, any pecs@antity engaged by the Company as an employstomer or supplier of, or consultant or
advisor to, the Company to terminate such pargfaionship with the Company.

19. Subsequent Events

Preferred Stock Offering-On February 14, 2014, the Company entered int&trees B-2 Purchase Agreement, pursuant to whieh t
Company may raise up to approximately $40.2 miltterough the issuance of (1) up to 655,000 Seri@sIares, par value $.0001 per share,
and (2) warrants to acquire up to 1,637,500 shafréss common stock, at an exercise price of $6 fdd2share.

Shares of the Company's Series B-2 comlentireferred stock (the "Series B-2") are conbétiin whole or in part, at the option of the
holder at any time into shares of common stocla ten-for-one basis at an initial effective coni@mrsprice of $6.142 per share. Holders of
shares of Series B-2 are entitled to receive dhddeat a rate of 8% per annum, compounding annuwaliich accrue on a daily basis
commencing on the date of issuance of the sharBenids B-2. Dividends are payable, as accrued ligaidation, event of sale, and
conversion to common stock, including upon mangatonversion of the Series B upon the Company'sneomstock becoming listed for
trading on a national stock exchange. The holdeshares of Series B-2 are also entitled to divitdetheclared or paid on any shares of
common stock.

The Series B-2 Shares rank senior in paymeeany other dividends payable on any and aiksef preferred stock and upon liquidation,
or an event of sale, each share of Series B-2 sir#tlequally with each other share of Series Bx«2Mew Series B, senior to all shares of
Series A-1, Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-4ieSek-5 and Series A-6 and senior to all shareafmon stock. In the event of a liquidation,
dissolution, or winding-up of the Company, the leoklof the Series B-2 are entitled to be paid fitgtof the assets available for distribution,
before any payment is made to the Series A-1, S&r2, Series A-3, Series A-4, Series A-5 and Seki€. Payment in respect of a liquidati
or event of sale, to the holders of Series B ghaikist of one and a half time (1.5) times theinabissuance price of $61.42, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends.
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19. Subsequent Events (Continued)

On February 14, 2014, February 19, 2014refmtuary 24, 2014, the Company consummated clesinder the Series B-2 Purchase
Agreement, whereby, in exchange for aggregate pdsto the Company of approximately $25.6 millive, Company issued an aggregate of
417,615 Series B-2 Shares and warrants to pureimtea total of 1,044,039 shares of our commocksto

Each share of Series B-2 has the rightab tumber of votes per share as is equal to thibaushares of common stock into which such
share of Series B-2 is then convertible.

The warrants issuable pursuant to the Ruseli\greement are exercisable at any time prithvedifth anniversary of their issuance.

The issuance on February 14, 2014, Febrl@y2014 and February 24, 2014, of the SeriesaBeRaccompanying warrants under the
Purchase Agreement resulted in an additional adpust to the Conversion Price of the Series A-1ieSek-2 and Series A-3. As a result of the
Anti-Dilution Adjustment, the effective conversignice of each share of Series A-1, Series A-2 aTeS A-3 was reduced from $7.627 to
$7.464. Accordingly, each share of Series A-1,6&3e-2 and Series A-3 is currently convertible ih@908 shares of common stock.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedres

In designing and evaluating our disclostortrols and procedures and internal control ovemfcial reporting, management recognizes
that any controls and procedures, no matter howdesigned and operated, can provide only reaseragsurance of achieving the desired
control objectives. In addition, the design of thsare controls and procedures and internal contret financial reporting must reflect the fact
that there are resource constraints and that marexgas required to apply judgment in evaluating lbenefits of possible controls and
procedures relative to their costs.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation wf @hief Executive Officer and Chief Financial @#t, evaluated as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, theetifzeness of our disclosure controls and proced{@® defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1884amended (the "Exchange Act")). Based on thatiation, our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our tisare controls and procedures were effectiveateéhasonable assurance level as of
December 31, 2013.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control diremcial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15dt5(f) under the Exchange Act. Our management, thighparticipation of our Chief Executive Officerda@hief Financial Office
assessed the effectiveness of our internal coowe financial reporting as of December 31, 203 on the criteria set forth in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cassion (1992 framework). Based
on that assessment, our management concludeduheat@rnal control over financial reporting waseetive as of December 31, 2013.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal cortvelr financial reporting during the quarter en@sstember 31, 2013 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadf, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE.

The following table sets forth the nameg agd position of each of our executive officerd dimectors as of January 31, 2014.

Name Age Position

Robert E. Ward 56 President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

B. Nicholas Harvey 53 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic
Treasurer and Secrete

Gary Hattersley, Ph.D 47 Senior Vice President, Chief Scientific Offic

John Yates, M.L 57 Chief Medical Officel

Gregory Williams, Ph.D. 54 Chief Development Office

Alan H. Auerbach(2)(3 44 Director

Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.D.(2)(z 55 Director

Kurt C. Graves(2)(3 46 Chairman of the Boar

Owen Hughes(1 39 Director

Morana Jova-Embiricos Ph.D.(3 47 Director

Martin Miinchbach, Ph.D.(1 43 Director

Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.(1 63 Director

Q) Member of the audit committee.
(2) Member of the nominating and corporate governaoocendittee.

) Member of the compensation committ

Robert E. Ward has served as our President and Chief Executivieddfind as a member of our board of directorsesidecember 201
Prior to joining Radius, Mr. Ward was Vice Presitfar Strategy and External Alliances for the NeppOrtunities iMed of AstraZeneca
("AZ"), a biopharmaceutical company, from 2011 @13. In addition, he served as Co-Chair of thetId@velopment Committees in AZ's
drug development partnerships with Alcon and GaiderPrior to AstraZeneca, from 2010 to 2011, MrriMeas the Managing Director of
Harriman Biopartners, LLC, a biopharmaceutical camp and from 2006 to 2010 he was the Vice Presiofe@orporate Development for
NPS Pharmaceuticals. Mr. Ward received a B.A. midgjy and a B.S. in Physiological Psychology, Hotim the University of Californie
Santa Barbara; an M.S. in Management from the Ne®ey Institute of Technology; and an M.A. in Imnology from The Johns Hopkins
University School of Medicine. We believe Mr. Wasdqualified to serve as a member of our boardrefctbrs because of his role with us and
his extensive operational knowledge of, and exeeutvel management experience in, the global Eophceutical industry.

B. Nicholas Harveyhas served as our Senior Vice President, ChiefnginhOfficer, Treasurer and Secretary since Nowan2i010, and
served as a member of our board of directors frawelhber 2010 until the consummation of the Mergaviay 2011. Mr. Harvey served as
the Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presidef the Former Operating Company from Decemb@&62intil the Merger. Mr. Harvey
received a Bachelor of Economics degree and a BaobieLaws degree with first-class honors from fhgstralian National University and an
M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School.

Gary Hattersley, Ph.D.,has served as our Senior Vice President of Prealilevelopment from December 2011 to December 2013
as our Chief Scientific Officer since January 20Hd.served as our Vice President of Biology fromyNa11 to December 2011, and served it
the same capacity at the Former Operating Company April 2008 until the Merger. He also servedhin Former
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Operating Company as Senior Director of Reseamin 2006 to 2008 and as Director of Disease Biokdharmacology from 2003 to 2006.
Dr. Hattersley received a Ph.D. in ExperimentahBltgy from St. George's Hospital Medical School.

John Yates, M.D.,has served as our Chief Medical Officer since JgnR@14. Prior to joining Radius, from 2004 to 2007. Yates
served as President of Global Research and Developior Takeda Pharmaceuticals. Prior to thatMates served in roles of increasing
responsibility at Merck from 1990 to 2003 and waseéPresident of Medical and Scientific Affairs fus latter three years with the company.
Dr. Yates received M.B., Ch.B. and M.D. degreegtfi®heffield University Medical School, in SheffieldK.

Gregory Williams, Ph.D., has served as our Chief Development Officer siapeidry 2014. Prior to joining Radius, Dr. Willianvas
Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, Global Protland Clinical Development, and Program Managemat The Medicines Company, a
biopharmaceutical company, from 2006 to 2013. He Viae President of Regulatory Affairs, Regulat@gmpliance and Program
Management for NPS Pharmaceuticals from 2004 t6 2D6. Williams has a Ph.D. in BiopharmaceuticsrirRutgers University and an
M.B.A. from Cornell University.

Alan H. Auerbach has served on our board of directors since May 20tilserved as a member of the board of directated-ormer
Operating Company from October 2010 until the Meriytr. Auerbach is currently the Founder, Chief &ixtive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board of Puma Biotechnology, laccompany dedicated to in-licensing and develogiougs for the treatment of cancer and
founded in 2010. Previously, Mr. Auerbach foundedi@ar Biotechnology in May 2003 and served as timepany's Chief Executive Officer,
President and as a member of its board of directatisJuly 2009. From July 2009 until January 200. Auerbach served as the Co-
Chairman of the Integration Steering Committee @i@ar (as part of Johnson & Johnson). Mr. Auerlvachived a B.S. in Biomedical
Engineering from Boston University and an M.S. inrBedical Engineering from the University of South€alifornia. We believe
Mr. Auerbach is qualified to serve as a memberuflmard of directors because of his business esfégsional experience, including his
leadership of Cougar Biotechnology in drug develepmprivate and public financings and a successfld of the business.

Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.D. has served on our board of directors since May 20itilserved as a member of the board of direcfdtreo
Former Operating Company from November 2003 unélerger. Dr. Gadicke has been the Co-FoundeMamaging Director of MPM
Capital, a venture capital firm, since August 1996.Gadicke received an M.D. from J.W. Goethe @msity in Frankfurt. Dr. Gadicke is a
director of OSS Healthcare, Inc., Sideris Pharmécals, Inc., RWHD, Inc. and Mitokyne, Inc. He sedvon the board of directors of
Verastem, Inc. from 2010 to 2012, Idenix Pharmécald, Inc. from 1998 to 2005, BioMarin Pharmaceais, Inc. from 1997 to 2001,
Pharmasset, Inc. from 1999 to 2007 and PharmAtHeoefrom 2004 to 2007. We believe Dr. Gadickquslified to serve as a member of our
board of directors because of his business an@gsmnal experience.

Kurt C. Graves has served on our board of directors since May 20itllas Chairman of our board of directors sinceeer 2011.
Mr. Graves has been the Chairman, President aref Ekecutive Officer of Intarcia Therapeutics, atbthnology company, since April 2012.
Mr. Graves served as Executive Chairman of Biolb&rapeutics, a biotechnology company, from Nover2b&0 to March 2012, and served
as Executive Chairman of Intarcia Therapeutics fAargust 2010 to April 2012. Previously, he servedaecutive Vice President, Chief
Commercial Officer and Head of Strategic DevelophaVertex Pharmaceuticals Inc. from July 200Dtiober 2009. Prior to joining Verte
Mr. Graves held various leadership positions ataMtis pharmaceuticals from 1999 to June 2007. Healso the first Chief Marketing Officer
for the Pharmaceuticals division from September3200June 2007. He currently serves as a diredtimtarcia Therapeutics, Pulmatrix
Therapeutics
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and Achillion Pharmaceuticals. He served on thedoédirectors of Biolex Therapeutics and Spriradl€herapeutics from 2010 to 2012.
Mr. Graves received a B.S. in Biology from Hillsd&ollege. We believe Mr. Graves is qualified toveeas a member of our board of direc
because of his extensive business and professapatience.

Owen Hugheshas served on our board of directors since Aprll2M®e has served as the Chief Business OfficeiHmadl of Corporate
Development at Intarcia Therapeutics, Inc. sincE32@rior to Intarcia, he served as a DirectorrabRside Capital, a hedge fund under the
Bain Capital umbrella, managing public and privagalthcare investments from 2008 to 2013. Mr. Hadlas served as a Senior Portfolio
Manager at Pyramis Global Advisors from 2006 to&a®-founder and partner at Triathlon Fund Manag@rfrom 2003 to 2006, an
Investment Associate at Ziff Brothers Investmentsrf 2001 to 2003; and an Assistant Vice Presidektargan Stanley/Merrill Lynch from
1998 to 2001. He earned a bachelor of arts frontnarth College. We believe Mr. Hughes is qualifiederve as a member of our board of
directors because of his extensive business arffdgsional experience.

Morana Jovan-Embiricos, Ph.D.has served on our board of directors since Apili2From 2003 to 2010, Dr. Jovan-Embiricos
launched and served as the Managing Partner ofefRuves, a biotech venture capital fund, and taendhed F3 Ventures in 2010, where she
serves a Managing Partner. Dr. Jovan-Embiricosan@sst-Doctoral Fellow at Harvard University. Skeeived her Ph.D. in Biophysical
Chemistry from the University of Cambridge. We beé Dr. Jovan-Embiricos is qualified to serve aseenber of our board of directors
because of her extensive business and professapatience.

Martin Munchbach, Ph.D. has served on our board of directors since May 2DtIMunchbach has managed BB Biotech Ventures |l,
venture capital fund, since he launched it in 24 Miinchbach received a Ph.D. in Protein ChemistiM.Sc. in Biochemistry and a Master
in Industrial Engineering and Management from thésS Federal Institute of Technology (ETH). Dr. Miabach currently serves on the boarc
of directors of Atlas Genetics LTD, BioVascular InOpsana Therapeutics Ltd, Sonetik AG and Tiogarfhceuticals Inc, and he served as a
director of Optimer Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from 28®2008. We believe Dr. Minchbach is qualifiedéove on our board of directors because
of his extensive business and professional expegien

Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.has served on our board of directors since May 2Dt1Stoner has been a Managing Director at MPMitah
since October 2007. Dr. Stoner has been the CleeébDpment Officer of Rhythm Pharmaceuticals, adaionology company, since 2010.
Prior to joining MPM Capital, Dr. Stoner servedvarious roles, most recently as Senior Vice PregideGlobal Clinical Development
Operations at Merck Research Laboratories, sin88.10r. Stoner currently serves as a director ofridota Pharmaceuticals Inc., and she
served as a director of Metabasis Therapeuticsfioim 2009 to 2010. Dr. Stoner received an M.PBnfrAlbert Einstein College of Medicine,
an M.S. in Chemistry from the State University @viNYork at Stony Brook and a B.S. in Chemistry frottawa University, Kansas. We
believe Dr. Stoner is qualified to serve on ourrdaa directors because of her knowledge and eigeeint the development of pharmaceutical
products.

Terms of Office; Voting Arrangements as to Directos

Our board of directors currently considteight members, all of whom were elected as dimscpursuant to the board composition
provisions of our stockholders' agreement amonandsour stockholders. Our directors and officersgelzeen elected for a one-year term or
until their respective successors are duly eleatetiqualified or until their earlier resignationremoval in accordance with our bylaws.
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Pursuant to a stockholders' agreement andestificate of incorporation:

0) for so long as any shares of series A-1 prefert@zksare outstanding, the holders of a majorityhef shares of series A-1
preferred stock outstanding, voting as a sepatass,cshall have the right to elect two (2) memloétse board of directors;

(i) Oxford Bioscience Partners IV L.P. (together withirss Capital VI, L.P. and their respective affdia and certain transferees),
HealthCare Ventures VII, L.P. (together with it§ilegftes and certain transferees) and The Wellcdmust Limited as trustee of
The Wellcome Trust (together with its affiliatesdazertain transferees) (collectively, the G3 Haddend individually, each a
Group) voting as a separate class shall have gheto elect one (1) member of the board of dinectd the Corporation
designated by the holders of at least 70% of tlaeeshof series B preferred stock and series B{21peal stock, voting together
as a single class; and

(i)  MPM Capital L.P., voting as a separate cladwll have the right to elect one (1) membeheftioard of directors of the
Corporation by majority vote of the shares of seAel preferred stock held by MPM Capital L.P.; proddbat such member
the board of directors shall be an individual witirticular expertise in the development of pharratical products; and,
provided, further, that in order to be eligibleviwte or consent with respect to the election ohsmember of the board of
directors, MPM Capital L.P. together with membeirthe MPM Group (as defined in the Stockholderstéfegnent) must hold
greater than 20% of the shares of series A-1 pefestock purchased under the series A-1 prefetadk Purchase Agreement
by MPM Capital L.P. and the members of the MPM Gx.ou

The balance of the board is elected bgfalhe stockholders acting as a single class atidgyon an as-converted basis.
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a code of business comahacethics that applies to all of our employeescerfs and directors, including those officers
responsible for financial reporting. The code a$ibess conduct and ethics is available on our websiwww.radiuspharm.com. Any
amendments to the code, or any waivers of its remqénts, will be disclosed on our website. Infoioratontained on or accessible through
our website is not incorporated by reference ihte teport, and you should not consider informationtained on or accessible through our
website to be part of this report.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors has establishedualit @ommittee, a compensation committee and a matinig and corporate governance
committee, each of which operates under a chdréghias been approved by our board. Our boardeftdrs has determined that each of the
members of the audit committee, the compensatiomtittee and the nominating and corporate governaagenittee are independent as
defined under the applicable rules and regulatadriie SEC, including, in the case of each of tleenibers of our audit committee, the
independence requirements contemplated by Rule3l0Ader the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asdett or the Exchange Act.

Audit Committee
Our audit committee oversees our corpaat®unting and financial reporting process. Amotingiomatters, the audit committee:
. appoints the independent registered public accogiitim;
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. evaluates the independent registered public acitmufitm's qualifications, independence and perfance;

. determines the engagement of the independent eegfispublic accounting firm;
. reviews and approves the scope of the annual andithe audit fee;
. discusses with management and the independenteregigublic accounting firm the results of the wairaudit and the review

of our quarterly financial statements;

. approves the retention of the independent regdtpublic accounting firm to perform any propopetdmissible non-audit
services;

. monitors the rotation of partners of the independegistered public accounting firm on our engagetiteam as required by
law;

. reviews our financial statements and our managemeistussion and analysis of financial conditiod eesults of operations to

be included in our annual and quarterly reportsetdiled with the SEC;
. reviews our critical accounting policies andrastes; and

. annually reviews the audit committee charter tn@dcommittee's performance.

The current members of the audit commiieeMartin Minchbach, Owen Hughes and Elizabethe3tdr. Minchbach serves as the
chairman of the committee. All members of our agdinmittee meet the requirements for financiatdity under the applicable rules and
regulations of the SEC. Our board of directorsdetermined that Dr. Minchbach is an "audit commaifteancial expert" as defined under the
applicable rules of the SEC.

Compensation Committee

Our compensation committee reviews andmaeends policies relating to compensation and benefiour officers and employees. The
compensation committee:

. reviews and approves corporate goals and objeatélegant to compensation of our Chief Executivédef and other executi
officers;

. evaluates the performance of these officers irt lifhhose goals and objectives;

. sets the compensation of these officers baseddnestaluations;

. approves grants of stock options and other asvandier our stock plans; and

. will review and evaluate, at least annually, pleeformance of the compensation committee angémbers, including

compliance of the compensation committee with litzrter.

The members of the compensation committeé\in H. Auerbach, Ansbert K. Gadicke, Kurt CaGs and Dr. Morana Jovan-
Embiricos. Dr. Gadicke serves as the chairmanettmmittee.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committ

The nominating and corporate governancencitt@e is responsible for:

. making recommendations to our board of directogamding candidates for directorships and the coitipnof our board of
directors;

. overseeing our corporate governance policied; an

. reporting and making recommendations to our dhoédirectors concerning governance matters.
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The members of the nominating and corpayateernance committee are Alan H. Auerbach, Andbe@adicke and Kurt C. Graves.
Mr. Graves serves as the chairman of the committee.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Actdalbdrs, executive officers and beneficial owndrsG® or more of our common stock, or
reporting persons, are required to report to th€ 8& a timely basis the initiation of their stafissa reporting person and any changes with
respect to their beneficial ownership of our commatwtk. Based solely on our review of copies ohsiacms that we have received, or written
representations from reporting persons, we belieaeduring, and with respect to, the fiscal yeatesl December 31, 2013, all executive
officers, directors and greater than 10% stockhsldemplied with all applicable filing requirements
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

2013 Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes all compéiaseearned by our President and Chief Executiviec&fand our two most highly
compensated executive officers for the year endszkBber 31, 2013 (collectively, the named execuffieers).

Non-Equity
Incentive
Option Plan All Other
Salary Awards Compensation ~ Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year $) ($)(6) ($)(7)(8) ($)(9) (%)

Robert E. Ward 201z 18,75( — — — 18,75(
President and Chief
Executive Officer(1

C. Richard Lyttle 201: — — — 30,00( 30,00(¢
Former President and 201z 190,16" — 64,96 30,71« 285,84(
Chief Executive
Officer(2)

Andrew J. Fromkin 201z 28,40¢ 4,974,16 — 18,01t 5,020,59I
Former President an
Chief Executive
Officer(3)

Michael S. Wyzga 201  437,50( — — 94,70 532,20
Former President and 2012z 500,00( — 150,00( 1,032 651,03
Chief Executive
Officer(4)

Louis Brenner 201: 330,00( — — 24C 330,24(
Former Chief Medica 201z 330,00( — 99,00( 30C 429,30(
Officer(5)

B. Nicholas Harvey 201:  296,15¢ — — 1,30¢ 297,46
Treasurer and Chief 201z 296,15¢ — 59,23: 1,30¢ 356,69¢

Financial Officer

1)
)

®3)
(4)
®)
(6)

()
(8)

Mr. Ward became our President and Chief Exeefficer on December 16, 2013.

Dr. Lyttle served as our interim President and €Bieecutive Officer from November 26, 2013 to Detemn16, 2013.
Dr. Lyttle also served as our Chief Scientific ©fff from December 2011 to June 2012 and has ses/dte Chairman «
our Scientific Advisory Board since February 2012.

Mr. Fromkin served as our President and Chiefcutive Officer from November 12, 2013 to Novemb@, 2013.

Mr. Wyzga served as our President and Chiefchtive Officer from December 5, 2011 to Novemhkr2013.

Dr. Brenner served as our Senior Vice Predidad Chief Medical Officer from November 2011 smdary 2, 2014.
The amount reported for Mr. Fromkin represeéhésaggregate grant date fair value of awardsogcksoptions granted
during the year computed in accordance with FASEEAS38. For additional information, including infoation regardiny
the assumptions used when valuing the awards, t@feste 14 to our financial statements includegwhere in this
report. Mr. Fromkin forfeited these awards uponrbsgnation on November 29, 2013.

Represents bonus amounts earned under oualgmerfiormance-based cash bonus program.

Bonus amounts earned for the year ended Dese®ih 2013 were not calculable as of the latesttjmal date prior to the
preparation of this report. The board of direciatends to make fine
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determinations with respect to the year ended Dbeedil, 2013 bonuses no later than June 30, 205&dordance with
applicable SEC rules, we will disclose the bonusamts when they have been determined.

9) Except for Mr. Wyzga, Dr. Lyttle and Mr. Fromkin 2013, all amounts are attributable to life inseepremiums paid
by us. The 2013 amount for Mr. Wyzga includes $&8tfibutable to life insurance premiums paid by$#748 for
medical and dental insurance premium reimbursemmeatie in connection with his resignation as ourleyge and
$91,096 in severance and accrued vacation paynmeade to Mr. Wyzga under the terms of his separatimhrelease
agreement. The 2013 amount for Dr. Lyttle represéads earned due to Dr. Lyttle's service as ttar@lan of our
Scientific Advisory Board. The 2013 amount for Mromkin includes $18,000 for reimbursement of lemalenses
incurred in the negotiation of his employment agrest.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

We do not currently have any formal polioy determining the compensation of executive effic Base salaries for our named executive
officers have been established through arm's-lenggotiation at the time an executive was hireaé ddmpensation committee of our board of
directors annually reviews and evaluates, with fipam our President and Chief Executive Officbe heed for adjustment of the base salarie
of named executive officers based on changes gmetcted changes in the scope of an executive'snstjlities, including promotions, the
individual contributions made by and performancéhefexecutive during the prior fiscal year, the@xive's performance over a period of
years, overall labor market conditions, the relatase or difficulty of replacing the executivehnatwel-qualified person, our overall growth
and development as a company and general salastie our industry.

Each named executive officer is eligiblegoeive an annual performance-based cash bonas,amount up to a fixed percentage of his
base salary. At the beginning of each year, ourpamsation committee develops, with input from owasiRlent and Chief Executive Officer, a
list of goals for the year that are used as a djnieléo assess the annual performance of the naxexltive officers. As soon as practical after
the year is completed, the board reviews actudbpaance against the stated goals and determingscsively what it believes to be the
appropriate level of cash bonus, if any, for thenad executive officers.

Each of the named executive officers inceffas of January 31, 2014 is an at-will employme eligible for discretionary bonus and equity
incentive awards with certain severance rightsugised further below. The named executive officaxelthe following target bonus
percentages:

. Mr. Ward—50%
. Mr. Wyzga—50%
. Dr. Brenner—30%

. Mr. Harvey—30%
Mr. Fromkin, Dr. Lyttle and Mr. Ward weretreligible to receive 2013 bonuses due to thetghams of employment with us during 20

For 2013, each named executive officemhie exception of Mr. Fromkin, Dr. Lyttle and M¥ard, had the opportunity to achieve a
bonus equal to the named executive officer's rasmetarget bonus (prorated for any partial yeagmployment) by achievement of individual
performance goals, with the compensation commitiserving the right to award amounts in excesamgjet bonus on a discretionary basis.
The individual goals for 2013 were of different gleied importance and included completion of cerfimiancing and public offering
objectives, completion of organizational objectiaesl the implementation and successful executiormbus elements related to the
preclinical studies and clinical trials for our drets, including the Phase 3 study for our
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Abaloparatide-SC product. The compensation comenfiges not yet convened to consider each namedtaseofficer's performance against
the goals and determine the bonus amounts to belad/éor 2013. The board of directors intends t&erfinal determinations with respect to
the fiscal 2013 bonuses no later than June 30,.2014

In November 2013, we granted an optionuicipase 2,427,133 shares of our common stock té-Mmbkin following his commencement
of employment; which option was forfeited on NoveanR9, 2013, upon Mr. Fromkin's resignation.

Employment, Severance and Change in Control Arrangeents
Robert E. Wart

On December 16, 2013, we entered into gui@ment agreement with Mr. Ward, pursuant to whvtth Ward agreed to serve as our
President and Chief Executive Officer effective Bmber 16, 2013. The agreement provides for araltifise salary of $450,000 and the
opportunity to earn an annual cash incentive awasstd on performance with a target value equad% &f Mr. Ward's annual base salary
beginning in 2014. In addition, Mr. Ward will begble to have a one-time discretionary multipldup to 200% applied to his annual bonus,
as determined by the Board, in the first year inclwhve consummate an initial public offering witfogs proceeds of at least $50 million,
which we refer to as a "qualified initial publicfefing”, or a strategic partnership, collaboratiwiicensing transaction relating to abalopara
that the Board determines in its discretion coatgg a significant transaction.

Pursuant to the employment agreement, Md/is entitled to receive not later than the fingteting of our board of directors following
the effective date of the employment agreementaraof a sign-on stock option for a number of skasf our common stock having an
aggregate Black-Scholes value on the grant datel ¢ég$160,000, which will vest as to 100% of thargs subject thereto on the 60th day
following the grant date, subject to Mr. Ward's ttomed employment on such date. This option wastgrhato Mr. Ward on February 16, 2014.

Mr. Ward's employment agreement also estitim to receive not later than the first meetihgur board of directors following the
effective date of the employment agreement an awbadstock option for the purchase of 1,810,262 ek of our common stock (the
"Option"), which will vest as to 25% of the shasemhject to the Option on the first anniversaryhef effective date of the employment
agreement, with the remaining shares vesting istamitially equal monthly installments over thedaling three years, subject to Mr. Ward's
continued employment with us on the applicableimgsiate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in thergvéa) there is a qualified initial public
offering during the first year of the employmenine (b) we submit a New Drug Application ("NDA")rfabaloparatide with the Food and
Drug Administration ("FDA") and the FDA accepts Buapplication during the employment term, and/dmfe obtain FDA approval for
abaloparatide during the employment term, in eade cthe Option will vest with respect to 25% @ $hhares subject to the Option, with such
25% portion taken pro rata from the unvested shewbgect to the Option, and the remaining unvesteates will continue to vest as described
in the previous sentence. In the event of a changentrol during the employment term, 50% of thisstanding unvested shares subject to the
Option as of the date of the change in controlldgfedome fully vested. This option was granted to Ward on February 16, 2014.

In the event Mr. Ward's employment is teratéd by us without cause or due to Mr. Ward'gredion for good reason, then subject to hi:
executing a general release of claims, Mr. Wardllvélentitled to receive:

. base salary continuation payments for 12 months;

. payment of continued medical care premiums foroup2 months;
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. any unpaid annual bonus for the year prior to #eryn which his termination occurs, based uponagterformance and
payable in a lump sum;

. a pro-rata portion of his bonus for the perfoneceyear in which Mr. Ward's termination occurssdzhon actual performance or,
if the termination occurs on or before to the dgien which performance goals for the bonus aréksted, on Mr. Ward's
target bonus, in either case, payable in a lumg sunth

. 25% of the shares subject to the Option grantddrtaNard will accelerate and Mr. Ward will have tgpnine months following
the termination of his employment or, if longer,topsix months following our initial public offerin to exercise the Option.

If Mr. Ward's employment is terminated woithh cause or due to Mr. Ward's resignation for gaadon within 24 months following a
change in control, then subject to his executiggreral release of claims, Mr. Ward will be entitte receive the severance benefits describe
in the first three bullet points above (but witlspect to the benefits described in bullets onetandabove, for a period of 18 months rather
12 months) and:

. payment of his target annual bonus for the yearhiith termination occurs; and

. accelerated vesting of all outstanding equitya@ls and up to nine months following the terminatd his employment to
exercise those awards.

C. Richard Lyttle

On February 29, 2012, we entered into &ultimg agreement with Dr. Lyttle, providing forettiransition of Dr. Lyttle from our Chief
Scientific Officer to the Chairman of our ScientifAdvisory Board as an independent contractor céffe as of June 1, 2012. The consulting
agreement provides for an annual fee of $30,00Qf@dontinued vesting of Dr. Lyttle's outstandapdions during the term of agreement.

On November 26, 2013, we entered intotar@greement with Dr. Lyttle pursuant to which Dyttle agreed to provide additional
services as our interim President and Chief Exeeulifficer. As compensation for Dr. Lyttle's seescas interim President and Chief
Executive Officer, we agreed that if we terminate Dyttle's service relationship with us followitige date of the letter agreement, each of the
options to purchase shares of our common stocktibkhby Dr. Lyttle or by The Cecil Richard Lyt®12 Grantor Retained Annuity Trust
will become vested and exercisable in full on tagedf such termination. The letter agreement doggntitle Dr. Lyttle to receive any other
compensation for his service as interim Presidedt@hief Executive Officer. Dr. Lyttle resigned@s interim President and Chief Executive
Officer on December 16, 2013 and received no paysriarconnection with his resignation. Dr. Lyttlentinues to serve as the Chairman of
Scientific Advisory Board.

Andrew J. Fromkir

On November 12, 2013, we entered into aplepment agreement with Mr. Fromkin, pursuant tachkbMr. Fromkin agreed to serve as
our President and Chief Executive Officer effectN@vember 12, 2013. The agreement provided fomaia base salary of $500,000.
Mr. Fromkin's employment with the Company termilad@ November 29, 2013, and he was not entitlethjoseparation payments in
connection with his termination of employment.

Michael S. Wyzg

On December 1, 2011, we entered into anl@myent letter agreement with Mr. Wyzga pursuanvtoch Mr. Wyzga agreed to serve as
our President and Chief Executive Officer effective
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December 1, 2011. The agreement provided for anarrase salary of $500,000 or such greater anasuist subsequently determined by our
board of directors.

On November 11, 2013, we entered into afjpn and Release Agreement with Mr. Wyzga. litazh, in connection with Mr. Wyzge
resignation on November 11, 2013, we also enteri@da letter agreement with Mr. Wyzga, pursuantihiich he agreed to provide transition
advisory services to us for up to six months dfterresignation.

Pursuant to his separation agreement, Mzg& agreed to a general release of claims andyreea to provide the severance payments
contemplated by the terms of the Mr. Wyzga's emplent agreement, which include payments totalinddgBI (an amount equal to
Mr. Wyzga's annual base salary as of his resignatate) to be made over the 12-month period folgwiis resignation date in accordance
with our normal payroll procedures, and paymertasftinued medical care premiums necessary for Mizdé to continue to participate in our
group medical plan during the samerh2nth period. In addition, Mr. Wyzga is eligiblereceive his full calendar year 2013 discretiorzagh
performance bonus under our bonus program basadanget bonus amount equal to 50% of his baseysaléh the actual amount of any st
bonus being determined on the basis of the attaihofehe applicable performance metrics, as ddatexdhby our board of directors in its sole
discretion. The option held by Mr. Wyzga to purahabares of our common stock will continue to vesite Mr. Wyzga provides services to
us during the advisory period (or for six monthkofeing his resignation date if we earlier termiaddir. Wyzga's advisory services) and will
remain exercisable for three months following eafim of this period.

Louis Brennel

On November 9, 2011, we entered into adetimployment agreement with Dr. Brenner pursuamthich Dr. Brenner commenced
employment on that date and agreed to serve aShoaf Medical Officer effective December 1, 201heTletter agreement provided for an
initial base salary of $330,000 and the opportuttitgarn an annual cash incentive award basedrforpance with a target value equal to @
of Dr. Brenner's annual base salary, proratedrigrpartial year of employment.

Dr. Brenner resigned his employment witltonslanuary 2, 2014. In connection with his redignawe entered into a Separation and
Release Agreement with Dr. Brenner. Pursuant tagneement, Dr. Brenner agreed to a general retdadaims and we agreed to provide the
severance payments contemplated by the terms @r@nner's employment letter agreement, which ohetupayments totaling $247,500 (an
amount equal to nine months of Dr. Brenner's anbhasé salary as of his resignation date) to be roaglethe nine-month period following his
resignation date in accordance with our normal @laprocedures, and payment of continued medica peemiums necessary for Dr. Brenner
to continue to participate in our group medicahpiiring the same nine-month period.

B. Nicholas Harve

On November 15, 2006, we entered into aplepment agreement with Mr. Harvey pursuant to \Wwhie agreed to serve as our Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Theesgnent provides for an initial base salary of $280,and the opportunity to earn an annual
cash incentive award based on performance withget&alue equal to 30% of Mr. Harvey's annual (sdary.

Mr. Harvey's agreement also provides thhisiemployment is terminated without cause ordsgns with good reason, he will receive
months' salary in severance payments, payablecioréa@nce with the payroll practice then in effectg the continuation of health insurance at
no cost to him for six months and all options whiabuld have vested in the six months following stermination shall become immediately
exercisable. If our company is acquired, 50% ofthé unvested options will become immediately e@sind exercisable.
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Transaction Bonus Plan

We have adopted a 2013 Employee Bonus Btahge Bonus Plan, to encourage certain emplogete Company, including certain of
the Company's executive officers, to focus thaerdion and efforts on the financial and operatigioals of the Company, with the purpose of
compensating the employees at the time of, andrinection with, the sale of the Company to a thady. The Bonus Plan provides that upon
the consummation of an "event of sale," as defindle Company's certificate of incorporation, epalticipating employee under the Bonus
Plan who is then employed by the Company or wanitetted without cause, died or was terminated dwksability within three months prior
to the event of sale will receive a bonus paymemhfthe Company equal to the employee's pro ratégopof a bonus pool amount equal to
6.5% of the total amount otherwise payable to aldérs of shares of capital stock of the Comparmgoimnection with the event of sale. The prc
rata portion of the Bonus Pool payable to eachqipating employee is generally based on the emgatsypercentage of all shares of the
Company's common stock and securities convertittteshares of the Company's common stock (otherpheferred stock) held by all
participating employees. Payments made to anygizating employee under the Bonus Plan are maéde @ducting the aggregate value of al
proceeds otherwise legally available for distribntio the employee as a result of the event ofisakespect of any shares of the Company's
common stock or securities convertible into shafeahe Company's common stock held by the emplaydlee time of the event of sale.

The Bonus Plan will terminate upon theieatlto occur of (a) an underwritten public offgriof our common stock, (b) the listing of our
common stock for trading on a national securitieshange and (c) December 31, 2014, unless thenatimin date is extended with the
unanimous approval of our board of directors. Trens and provisions of the Bonus Plan may be antkraael the Bonus Plan may be
terminated, prior to an event of sale by our baxrdirectors or a committee thereof, provided thatpercentage used in calculating the
aggregate bonus pool amount may only be increagadive unanimous approval of our board of dirextor

Retirement Plans

We maintain a defined contribution retirernplan which is tax-qualified under Section 401¢k}he Internal Revenue Code. The plan
allows participants to defer a portion of their aahcompensation, subject to certain limitationpased by the Internal Revenue Code. Our
named executive officers are eligible to partiapiatour 401(k) plan on the same basis as all eyeplo generally. During 2013, we did not
provide matching or profit sharing contributionghe plan for any employees.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at 2013 Fiscal Year Enc

The following table sets forth informatimgarding the outstanding equity awards held bynamned executive officers as of
December 31, 2013.

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards:
Number of Number of Number of
Securities Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised Option Option
Options (#) Options (#) Unearned Exercise Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Options (#) Price Date
Robert E. Wart — — — — —
C. Richard Lyttle 108,33. — — $ 15C 10/28/1:
91,84t — — $ 0.9 7/12/17
202,67. — — $ 1.2 5/8/1¢
86,37¢ — — $ 1 12/3/1¢
156,34t 121,60:(1) — $ 32 11/6/2:
Andrew J. Fromkir — — — — —
Michael S. Wyzg: 765,00 765,00((2) — $ 3.8¢ 1271402
Louis Brennel 175,70( 175,70((3) — $ 3.8¢ 12/14/2:
— — 62,70((4) $ 3.8¢ 12/14/2:
B. Nicholas Harve 53,38¢ — $ 0.9C 7/12/17
63,33t — $ 1.2 5/8/1¢
26,99: — $ 1.2 12/3/1¢
48,85¢ 37,99¢5) $ 3.2z  11/6/2:

(1)  This stock option vested as to 6.25% of the undeglghares on October 1, 2011 and as to 6.25%o0bf Sltares on the
first day of each calendar quarter thereafter. djpten will vest in full if we terminate Dr. Lyttle service relationship
with us.

(2)  This stock option vests as to 25% of the underlghgres on December 5, 2012 and as to 6.25% ofshiarhs on the fir
day of each calendar quarter thereafter. This optidl continue to vest based upon their originasting terms while
Mr. Wyzga provides advisory services to us (ordiarmonths following his resignation date if welgarterminate
Mr. Wyzga's advisory services) during the AdvisBeriod (described above) and will remain exercesén three montt
following expiration of this period.

(3)  This stock option vested as to 25% of the undeglghares on November 9, 2012 and as to 6.25% bfshares on the
first day of each calendar quarter thereafter.

(4)  This stock option vests, if at all, upon the dai&t the board of directors resolves that an NDAofar Abaloparatide-SC
product has been submitted to the FDA on or poa $pecified date.

(5)  This stock option vests as to 6.25% of the undeglyhares on October 1, 2011 and as to 6.25% bfshares on the fir
day of each calendar quarter therea

2013 Director Compensation

The following table summarizes the comp&oraearned by our non-employee directors durint32Mo director who is also an employee
receives additional compensation for providing clioe
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services. Historically, we have not had any forpuicy governing the compensation of directorstéad negotiating compensation for
individual directors at the time they commence piimg services. Mr. Graves, Mr. Hughes and Mr. Aash each receive an annual cash
retainer of $7,500 and a meeting fee of $1,50(pard or committee meeting attended. None of dugradirectors receive cash compensatior
for providing director services to us.

During 2013, we did not grant equity-baaerds as compensation to any of our non-emploiyeetdrs.

Fees Earned o All Other

Paid in Cash Compensation Total
Director Name $) ($) ®)
Alan H. Auerbach(1 7,50( — 7,50(
Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.D.(z — — —
Kurt C. Graves(3 15,00( — 15,00(
Owen Hughes(4 6,50( — 6,50(
Morana Jova-Embiricos, Ph.D.(5 — 160,00((8) 160,00(

Martin Minchbach, Ph.D.(¢ — — _
Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.(i — — —

1)

)
®)

(4)
()
(6)
()

(8)

As of December 31, 2013, Mr. Auerbach held no stehkrds and options to purchase 256,666 sharas of o
common stock.

As of December 31, 2013, Dr. Gadicke held toclsawards or option awards.

As of December 31, 2013, Mr. Graves held no steckrds and options to purchase 256,666 shares afopamor
stock.

As of December 31, 2013, Mr. Hughes held no staeckrds or option awards.
As of December 31, 2013, Dr. Jovan-Embiricos heldtock awards or option awards.
As of December 31, 2013, Dr. Miinchbach held nokstaeards or option awards.

As of December 31, 2013, Dr. Stoner held no stegkrds and options to purchase 60,000 shares afasumon
stock.

Represents consulting fees paid to Dr. JovauiEcos in 2013. For additional information, s&ettain
Relationships and Related Party Transactions, aretr Independen—Transactions with Director" belo

We have adopted a non-employee directopemsation policy that will become effective upoa listing of our common stock on a
national securities exchange. The policy providesibn-employee directors to receive an annual etsiner of $25,000 plus one or more
additional annual cash retainers ranging from $500510,000 for service on a board committee, elsag grants of options to purchase
30,000 shares of our common stock upon commeneingcg with us (vesting over a four-year period)l 49,000 shares of our common stock
annually thereafter (vesting within one year ofngya
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andVlanagement

The following table sets forth informaticegarding beneficial ownership of our common staslof February 19, 2014 by: (i) each persor
known by the Company to be the beneficial ownecudated in accordance with Rule 13¢#)(1) promulgated under the Exchange Act of n
than 5% of the outstanding shares of common s{@gleach director and named executive officerhaf Company; and (iii) all officers and
directors as a group. Unless otherwise statedenable or its footnotes, the person and entitsésd below have the sole voting power and
investment power with respect to the shares st farxt to one's name. Unless otherwise notechdideess of each stockholder below is c/o
Radius Health, Inc., 201 Broadway, 6th Floor, Cadg®, MA 02139.

Percentage o

Shares Converted
Beneficially Percentage o Common
Owned Title of Class Class(1)(a) Stock(1)(b)
Robert Ward (Chief
Executive Officer,
President and Directo 97,1942) Common Stocl 10.(%
Converted Common Sto 0.2%
B. Nicholas Harvey
(Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
Treasurer and
Secretary 233,43(3) Common Stocl 21.€%
Converted Common Sto 0.5%
Michael S. Wyzg: 956,25((6) Common Stocl 52.1%
Converted Common Sto 2.1%
C. Richard Lyttle, Ph.D 746,98(7) Common Stocl 47.%
Converted Common Sto 1.6%
Andrew J. Fromkir —(4) Common Stocl 0.C%
Converted Common Sto 0.C%
Louis Brennel 197,664(5) Common Stocl 18.4%
Converted Common Sto 0.4%
Ansbert K. Gadicke, M.L
(Director) 11,193,75(8) Common Stocl 92.7%
162,81(9) Series B Preferred Stoi 23.2%
384,26.(10)Series /1 Preferred Stoc 40.9%
402,11411)Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 40.9%
53,33(12)Series /3 Preferred Stoc 37.5%
Converted Common Sto 24.€%
Alan H. Auerbach
(Director) 256,66¢(13) Common Stocl 22.€%
Converted Common Sto 0.6%
Kurt C. Graves (Directot 235,27{(14) Common Stocl 21.1%
Converted Common Sto 0.5%
Owen Hughes (Directo —(15) Common Stocl 0.C%
Converted Common Sto 0.C%
Morana Jovan-Embiricos,
Ph.D. (Director; 8,303,47(16) Common Stocl 90.4%
338,65 Series -2 Preferred Stoc 81.4%
325,62° Series B Preferred Stor 46.4%
Converted Common Sto 18.2%
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Martin Minchbach, Ph.L
(Director)

Elizabeth Stoner, M.D.
(Director)

Entities affiliated with
MPM
Capital
200 Clarendon St
54th Fl. Boston,
MA 02116

The Wellcome Trust
Limited as
trustee of The
Wellcome Trus
215 Euston Roa
London NW1 2BE
England

Entities affiliated with F2
Bioscience

HealthCare Ventures
VI, L.P.
47 Thorndike Stree
Suite B:-1
Cambridge, MA 0214.

Entities affiliated with
Saints Capita
475 Sansome Stre
Suite 185(
San Francisco, CA
94111

BB Biotech Ventures
I, L.P.
Traflagar Cour
Les Banque
St. Peter Pol
Guernsey
Channel Island
GY1 3QL

Entities affiliated with
Oxford Bioscience
Partners
222 Berkley Stree
Suite 165(

Percentage o

Shares Converted
Beneficially Percentage o Common
Owned Title of Class Class(1)(a) Stock(1)(b)
2,628,69/(17) Common Stocl 74.%%
12,217(18)Series k-2 Preferred Stoc 2.5%
32,56%(19) Series B Preferred Sto 4.€%
84,53¢(20)Series /1 Preferred Stoc 9.C%
105,16:(21)Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 10.7%
Converted Common Sto 5.8%
55,00((22) Common Stocl 5.2%
Converted Common Sto 0.1%
11,193,75(23) Common Stocl 92.7%
162,81:(24) Series B Preferred Stoi 23.2%
384,26.(25)Series /1 Preferred Stoc 40.9%
402,11426)Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 40.9%
53,33/(27)Series /3 Preferred Stoc 37.5%
Converted Common Sto 24.€%
3,129,09(28) Common Stocl 78.1%
76,56€(29)Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 8.1%
210,32! Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 21.%%
Converted Common Sto 6.9%
8,303,47(16) Common Stocl 90.4%
338,65 Series [-2 Preferred Stoc 81.4%
325,62 Series B Preferred Sto 46.4%
Converted Common Sto 18.2%
2,492,38((31) Common Stocl 75.8%
58,95{(32)Series /1 Preferred Stoc 6.2%
98,27¢ Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 10.(%
63,66!  Series /3 Preferred Stoc 44.%
Converted Common Sto 5.5%
2,023,04(33) Common Stocl 70.1%
49,12°(34)Series /1 Preferred Stoc 5.2%
109,71435)Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 11.2%
25,234(36) Series /-3 Preferrec 17.7%
Converted Common Sto 4.5%
2,628,69:37) Common Stocl 74.%%
12,21 Series [-2 Preferred Stoc 2.9%
32,56 Series B Preferred Stor 4.€%
84,53((38)Series /1 Preferred Stoc 9.C%
105,16:  Series /2 Preferred Stoc 10.7%
Converted Common Sto 5.8%
1,471,89(39) Common Stocl 62.€%
109,71(40)Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 11.2%
25,23{(41)Series /3 Preferred Stoc 17.7%



Boston, MA 0211¢ Converted Common Sto 3.2%
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Percentage o

Shares Converted
Beneficially Percentage o Common
Owned Title of Class Class(1)(a) Stock(1)(b)
Healthcare Private Equity
Limited Partnershi 834,39442) Common Stocl 48.71%
Edinburgh One 20,41¢  Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 2.2%
Morrison Stree 56,08¢ Series /-2 Preferred Stoc 5.7%
Edinburgh EH3 8BE Converted Commo 1.8%
U.K.
Brookside Capital Partne
Fund, L.P. 2,357,17(43) Common Stocl 72.8%
c/o Bain Capital, LLC 81,40° Series B Preferred Sto 11.€%
John Hancock Towe 122,82( Series /1 Preferred Stoc 13.1%
200 Clarendon Stre: Converted Common Sto 5.2%
Boston, MA 0211¢
Biotech Growth N.V. 3,374,74(44) Common Stocl 79.5%
Asset Management
BAB N.V. 65,12t Series I-2 Preferred Stoc 15.7%
Ara Hill Top Building, 97,68¢ Series B Preferred Sto 13.9%
Unit A-5 122,82( Series /1 Preferred Stoc 13.1%
Pletterijweg Oost : Converted Common Sto 7.4%
Curacgao, Dutch
Caribbear
Ipsen Pharma SA 188,97(45) Common Stocl 17.7%
65, quai Georges Gor: 17,32¢  Series /-1 Preferred Stoc 1.8%
92100 Boulogne
Billancourt Converted Common Sto 0.4%
France
Stavros C. Manolage 91,04( Common Stocl 10.4%
35 River Ridge Circls Converted Common Sto 0.2%
Little Rock, AR 72227
Nordic Bioscience 5,025,54/(46) Common Stocl 85.1%
Herlev Hovedgade 2C 6,44:  Series /-5 Preferred Stoc 100.(%
2730 Herlev 496,11: Series /-6 Preferred Stoc 100.(%
Denmark Converted Common Sto 11.1%
General Electric Capital
Corporation 66,96¢(47) Common Stocl 7.1%
6,14( Series /1 Preferred Stoc 0.7%
Converted Common Sto 0.1%
Oxford Finance LLC 66,96((48) Common Stocl 7.1%
133 N. Fairfax Stree 6,14( Series /1 Preferred Stoc 0.7%
Alexandria, VA 2231+ Converted Common Sto 0.1%
Louis O'Dee 193,08’ Common Stocl 22.(%
566 Main Stree Converted Common Sto 0.4%
Hingham, MA 0204:
Michael Rosenbla 44,80: Common Stocl 5.1%
130 Lake Ave Converted Common Sto 0.1%
Newton, MA 0245¢
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Percentage o
Shares Converted
Beneficially Percentage o Common
Owned Title of Class Class(1)(a) Stock(1)(b)
John Katzenellenbogen
Trust 56,065(49) Common Stocl 6.4%



704 West Pennsylvania
Avenue
Urbana, lllinois 6180:

Chris Miller
11 Edgar Walker Cou
Hingham, MA 0204:

John Thomas Potts, J
Massachusetts General
Hospital
149 13th Street, MC

1494005
Charlestown, MA
0212¢-2000

Raymond F. Schina:
1860 Montreal Roa
Tucker, GA 3008:

All Officers and Director:
as a group (14
individuals)

(1)

(1)

(2)
3)

23,104,71

Converted Common Sto

63,85:¢ Common Stocl
Converted Common Sto

Common Stocl
Converted Common Sto

92,28:(50)

50,31¢51) Common Stocl
1,067 Series B Preferred Stou
1,487 Series /-1 Preferred Stoc
1,52¢ Series /-2 Preferred Stoc
414 Series /-4 Preferred Stoc
Converted Common Sto

Common Stocl
Converted Common Sto

7.3%

10.4%

5.4%
0.2%
0.2%
0.2%
10.4%%

96.5%

0.1%

0.1%

0.2%

0.1%

50.8%

(a) Because shares of preferred stock vote togetitie common stock on an as-converted basis theepgages of beneficial ownership
reported in this column do not reflect the benafiowner's fully-diluted voting percentage of outtsianding capital stock. See Note (1]
(b). Because each stockholder of the Company &ty po certain agreements with the other stocldmsladf the Company, which
agreements contain, among other things, certaingyaigreements and limitations on the sale of thleéires of common stock, each
stockholder of the Company may be deemed to benabmieof a "group,"” within the meaning of Sectiorfd)83) of the Exchange Act.
The percentages of beneficial ownership presemntduis column are calculated in accordance witheRidd-3(d)(1) promulgated under
the Exchange Act, excluding in the case of eaclefi@al owner, the shares held by any other bereftavner, as to which each
beneficial owner disclaims beneficial ownership.

(b) A more accurate reflection of each benefioiaher's fully-diluted voting percentage is theirgentage of the preferred stock and
the common stock voting together as a single chssyming the conversion of all issued and outstgrehares of preferred stock and
the exercise of all outstanding stock options aadants exercisable within 60 days after Febru@r2014 (the "Converted Common
Stock"). For purposes of this calculation, the Camphas assumed that each share of the seesoBvertible preferred stock conve
into ten shares of common stock. In order to prewadcurate disclosure of the relevant beneficialerahip percentage of each
beneficial owner included in this table we havefegh each such beneficial owner's fully-dilutesineership percentage (calculated in
accordance with Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange ActhefConverted Common Stock in this column. See Di(@).

Consists of 97,199 options to purchase our comrtamk @nticipated to be exercisable within 60 ddyerdebruary 19, 2014.

Includes 203,432 options to purchase our commarksioticipated to be exercisable within 60 daysrafebruary 19, 2014 and 30,000

shares of our common stock.
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(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

(8)

No options to purchase our common stock are aamtieghto be exercisable within 60 days after Felpriiy 2014.
Consists of 197,662 options to purchase our comstmek anticipated to be exercisable within 60 dafySebruary 19, 2014.
Consists of 956,250 options to purchase our comstmek anticipated to be exercisable within 60 d&yer February 19, 2014.

Includes 680,317 options to purchase our commark sinticipated to be exercisable within 60 daysrafebruary 19, 2014 and 66,666
shares of our common stock, held by the Cecil Rithgttle Grantor Retained Annuity Trust. Mr. Ldtis a trustee of the Cecil Rich
Lyttle Grantor Retained Annuity Trust and may berded to beneficially own these securities. Benaffizivnership information is
based on information known to the Company and &®&dke 13D filed with the SEC on January 27, 201Hbwlthcare Private Equity
Limited Partnership, Lloyds Banking Group plc, St Widows Investment Partnership Group Limitechwafrley Healthcare Private
Equity Limited, Raymond F. Schinazi, David E. Th@uop Revocable Trust, Hostetler Family Trust UTD8322, Karl Y. Hostetler an
Margaretha Hostetler, Co-Trustees, H. Watt Gredidririchman Trust Dated 2/6/83, Douglas D. Richm@n-Trustee and Eva A.
Richman, Co-Trustee, Breining Family Trust DatedyAst 15, 2003, Dennis A. Carson, Jonnie K. Westbevocable Trust, Dated
March 17, 2000, Jonnie K. Westbrook, Trustee, $&@. Manolagas, Michael Rosenblatt MD, Patrici&&senblatt, Dr. John Potts, Jr
and Susanne K. Potts Irrevocable Trust for Stephdotts dated 6-15-05, John Thomas Potts MD, Johfatzenellenbogen Trust
Under Agreement Dated August 2, 1999, John A. Ketltenbogen PhD, Bart Henderson, Board of Trustééise University of
Arkansas, Benjamin C. Lane, Ruff Trust, F. Brons@am Wyck, Trustee, H2 Enterprises, LLC, Stavroutaukteni PhD, Robert L. Jilka
PhD, Robert S. Weinstein MD, Teresita M. BelliddRIDotty Paquin, Thomas E. Sparks Jr., Samuel Hiayles O'Brien PhD, Alwyn
Michael Parfitt MD, Barnett Pitzele, Benita S. Katellenbogen PhD, Kelly Colbourn, Socrates E. Paglas MD, Tonya D. Goss, Tl
Kent C. Westbrook Revocable Trust, Dated March2DD0, Kent C. Westbrook, Trustee, Maysoun Shordafiathan Guerriero, E.
Kelly Sullivan, Cecil Richard Lyttle, Louis O'DeBrian Nicholas Harvey, and Christopher Miller.

Includes 89,677 shares of common stock issuabla apoversion of 8,222 shares of Company SeriesPheterred Stock, 132,998
shares of common stock issuable upon conversid2,dP4 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferred S8&E57 shares of common
stock issuable upon conversion of 2,985 shareoffany Series A-3 Preferred Stock issued to MPM/Bidures 1lI, L.P. ("BV HlI"),

in the Merger (as defined below), 74,973 shareafmon stock issuable upon conversion of 6,874eshafr Company Series A-1
Preferred Stock issued to BV Il at subsequenticlssof the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stawdrfting, 51,030 shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 5,103shafr Company Series B Preferred Stock, and 1%5f&8s of common stock
issuable upon the exercise of common stock warrar83,804 shares of common stock issuable upowetsion of 122,290 shares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 1,978,118 stafreommon stock issuable upon conversion of Bllshares of Company
Series A-2 Preferred Stock, and 484,211 sharesrofrion stock issuable upon conversion of 44,395%shafr Company Series A-3
Preferred Stock issued to MPM BioVenturesQIR, L.P. ("BV Ill QP"), in the Merger, 1,115,100ashs of common stock issuable uj
conversion of 102,238 shares of Company SeriesPAeferred Stock issued to BV Il QP at subsequkasiregs of the Company's
Series A-1 Preferred Stock financing, 758,990 shafeommon stock issuable upon conversion of Bsfire of Company Series B
Preferred Stock, and 189,748 shares of common steakble upon the exercise of common stock weaardi®,723 shares of common
stock issuable upon conversion of 10,335 shar@oaoipany Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 167,170 stdfresmmon stock issuable
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upon conversion of 15,327 shares of Company Sar2®referred Stock, and 40,922 shares of comnmksssuable upon
conversion of 3,752 shares of Company Series AeBePed Stock issued to MPM BioVentures 1ll GmbHC&. Beteiligungs
K.G. ("BV Il KG"), in the Merger, 94,235 shares cdmmon stock issuable upon conversion of 8,648eshat Company
Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BV Il KG @vsequent closings of the Company's Series A-JResf Stock financing,
64,140 shares of common stock issuable upon coiowen$ 6,414 shares of Company Series B PrefertedkSand 16,035
shares of common stock issuable upon the exertisenamon stock warrants; 40,279 shares of commmeksssuable upon
conversion of 3,693 shares of Company Series Aefefed Stock, 59,737 shares of common stock i$sugdon conversion of
5,477 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferred Stouk,14,615 shares of common stock issuable uporecsion of 1,340
shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred Stock issubtPM BioVentures Il Parallel Fund, L.P. ("BVIIPF"), in the Merger,
33,658 shares of common stock issuable upon canwen$ 3,086, shares of Company Series A-1 Prede®teck issued

to BV lll PF at subsequent closings of the CompaBgries A-1 Preferred Stock financing, 22,910eshaf common stock
issuable upon the conversion of 2,291 shares offaomSeries B Preferred Stock, and 5,728 sharesmimon stock issuable
upon the exercise of common stock warrants; 25s828es of common stock issuable upon conversi@i368 shares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 38,294 shdresnomon stock issuable upon conversion of 3,5Hteshof Company
Series A-2 Preferred Stock, and 9,369 shares ofremmstock issuable upon conversion of 859 shar€oofpany Series A-3
Preferred Stock issued to MPM Asset Managementshove 2003 BVIII LLC ("AM LLC") in the Merger, 21/ shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 1,978gsha Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issuédvd LC at
subsequent closings of the Company's Series Aferfeed Stock financing, 14,680 shares of commoaoksissuable upon the
conversion of 1,468 shares of Company Series BeResf Stock, and 3,670 shares of common stockh$sug@on the exercise
of common stock warrants; 588,983 shares of comstmrk issuable upon conversion of 54,001 shar&€oafpany Series A-1
Preferred Stock, and 2,009,508 shares of commak s&euable upon conversion of 184,242 shares ofgamy Series A-2
Preferred Stock issued to MPM Bio IV NVS Stratelgind, L.P. ("MPM NVS") in the Merger, 660,260 steaoé common stock
issuable upon conversion of 60,536, shares of Cagnaries A-1 Preferred Stock issued to MPM NVSudisequent closings
of the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stock fimamcr16,380 shares of common stock issuable uppodhversion of 71,638
shares of Company Series B Preferred Stock, an®9%%hares of common stock issuable upon the isees€ common stock
warrants. MPM BioVentures Il GP, L.P. ("BV Ill LP'and MPM BioVentures Il LLC ("BV3LLC") are the dict and indirect
general partners of BV IIl, BV Il QP, BV Il KG,rad BV Il PF. MPM BioVentures IV GP LLC ("BV IV GB"and MPM
BioVentures IV LLC ("BV4LLC") are the direct anddirect general partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is thergral Partner

of BV Il LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Nichol&alakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Nah&imon and Kurt
Wheeler are the Members of BV3LLC and the managefsgV LLC. All members of BV3LLC share all power tmte, acquire,
hold and dispose of all shares and warrants. Eachlyar disclaims beneficial ownership of the seimsriéxcept to the extent of
their pecuniary interest therein. BV4ALLC is the Mgimng Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke EyiTodd Foley,
John Vander Vort, James Paul Scopa and Vaughn MaKare the Members of MPM BioVentures IV LLC.|Ahembers shat
all power to vote, acquire, hold and dispose ofh#ires and warrants. Each member disclaims b&iefienership of the
securities except to the extent of their pecuniiatgrest therein. Each entity mentioned above andsadicke disclaim
beneficial ownership of all shares not held byrihin of record. Beneficial ownership informatiabased on information
known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEG/ay 7, 2013 by BV Ill, BV Ill QP, BV Il KG, BV Il PF, AM LLC,
MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, LukeEvnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael
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(9)

(10)

Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas Simon Ill, DenHisnner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, James FBagpa and John
Vander Vort.

Includes of shares 5,103 of Company Series B Regfédtock issued to BV llI; 75,899 shares of Conyp@eries B Preferred Stock
issued to BV Il QP; 6,414 shares of Company SaBi€seferred Stock issued to BV Il KG; 2,291 stzané Company Series B
Preferred Stock issued to BV Ill PF; and 1,468 shaf Company Series B Preferred Stock issued td_A®L and 71,638 shares of
Company Series B Preferred Stock issued to MPM NBXSIII LP and BV3LLC, are the direct and indiregtneral partners

of BV Ill, BV Il QP, BV Ill KG, and BV |ll PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the direct and indirect gehetners of MPM NVS.
BV3LLC is the General Partner of BV Il LP. Ansh&adicke, Luke Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michaeir8netz, Dennis Henner,
Nicholas Simon and Kurt Wheeler are the MembeB\WWLLC and the managers of AM LLC. All members ghatl power to vote,
acquire, hold and dispose of all shares and warr&#ich member disclaims beneficial ownership efsicurities except to the exten
their pecuniary interest therein. BV4LLC is the Mgimng Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke EyrmTodd Foley, John
Vander Vort, James Paul Scopa and Vaughn M. Kadliarthe Members of MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All mbers share all power to
vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares aadants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownershipe securities except to the
extent of their pecuniary interest therein. Eaditmentioned above and Dr. Gadicke disclaim bierafownership of all shares not
held by it or him of record. Beneficial ownershiffarmation is based on information known to us argthedule 13D filed with the
SEC on May 7, 2013 by BV 1lI, BV Il QP, BV IIl KGRV Il PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC,
Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos;iMiel Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas SimonDignnis Henner, Todd Foley,
Vaughn M. Kailian, James Paul Scopa and John Vavider

Includes of 8,222 shares of Company Series A-leffed Stock issued to BV Il in the Merger, and/@,8hares of Company Series A-
1 Preferred Stock issued to BV Il at subsequerginhs of the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Siioekcing; 122,290 shares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to B@RIin the Merger, and 102,238 shares of ComparigsSa-1 Preferred Stock
issued to BV Il QP at subsequent closings of thenBany's Series A-1 Preferred Stock financing; 3® shares of Company SerieslA-
Preferred Stock issued to BV Ill KG in the Mergand 8,640 shares of Company Series A-1 Prefermek $tsued to BV Il KG at
subsequent closings of the Company's Series Afeffed Stock financing; 3,693 shares of CompanyeSek-1 Preferred Stock issued
to BV Ill PF in the Merger, and 3,086 shares of @amy Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BV llla@PBubsequent closings of the
Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stock financingb& ghares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stosketto AM LLC in the

Merger, and 1,978 shares of Company Series A-leResf Stock issued to AM LLC at subsequent closofghe Company's Series AA-
Preferred Stock financing; and 54,001 shares of jizmy Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to MPM Nivehé Merger, and 60,536
shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issubtPM NVS at subsequent closings of the CompaBglies A-1 Preferred Stock
financing. BV Ill LP and BV3LLC, are the direct amitlirect general partners of BV Ill, BV Il QP, BM KG, and BV Ill PF. BV

IV GP and BV4LLC are the direct and indirect gehegatners of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the General PartoéBV Il LP. Ansbert
Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michaeiif8hetz, Dennis Henner, Nicholas Simon and Kurt gléreare the Members of
BV3LLC and the managers of AM LLC. All members shail power to vote, acquire, hold and disposdiaftares and warrants. Each
member disclaims beneficial ownership of the séiesrexcept to the extent of their pecuniary irgeteerein. BVALLC is the Managil
Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin,dbioFoley, John Vander Vort, James Paul Scopa andifaM. Kailian are the
Members of MPM

158




(11)

(12)

BioVentures IV LLC. All members share all poweniate, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares aadants. Each member
disclaims beneficial ownership of the securitiesept to the extent of their pecuniary interestefrerEach entity mentioned
above and Dr. Gadicke disclaim beneficial ownersdfipll shares not held by it or him of record. B&cial ownership
information is based on information known to us artichedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 7, 2013

by BV Iil, BV 1ll QP, BV Il KG, BV Il PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Il LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4ALLC, LukeEvnin,
Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael SteitanKurt Wheeler, Nicholas Simon Ill, Dennis Henrieodd Foley,
Vaughn M. Kailian, James Paul Scopa and John Vavider

Includes 12,194 shares of Company SeriesPAe®erred Stock issued BV Il in the Merger; 184 3bares of Company Series A-2
Preferred Stock issued to BV Ill QP in the Merdés,327 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferred S¢sdled BV 11l KG in the
Merger; 5,477 shares of Company Series A-2 PrefeSteck issued to BV Ill PF in the Merger; 3,51as of Company Series A-2
Preferred Stock issued to AM LLC in the Merger; d18d,242 shares of Company Series A-2 PreferreckSssued to MPM NVS in
the Merger. BV Il LP and BV3LLC, are the directdaimdirect general partners of BV Ill, BV IIl QP Ml KG, and BV llI

PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the direct and indirgeneral partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the Gend?altner of BV IIl LP.
Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos;iMiel Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Nicholas Simonkamti Wheeler are the
Members of BV3LLC and the managers of AM LLC. Alembers share all power to vote, acquire, hold aspgbde of all shares and
warrants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownprehthe securities except to the extent of theaymiary interest therein. BV4LLC
is the Managing Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadickeke Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, Jamas|Bcopa and Vaughn |
Kailian are the Members of MPM BioVentures IV LL&II members share all power to vote, acquire, laoid dispose of all shares and
warrants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownprehihe securities except to the extent of thecuymiary interest therein. Each
entity mentioned above and Dr. Gadicke disclaimefieral ownership of all shares not held by it antof record. Beneficial ownership
information is based on information known to us artsichedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 7, 20¢3W IIlI, BV Il QP,

BV Il KG, BV Il PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV IIl LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadiek Nicholas
Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nickdamon 1lI, Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn Milkan, James Paul Scopa
and John Vander Vort.

Includes 2,985 shares of Company Series AeBRed Stock issued to BV 1l in the Merger; 85Xhares of Company Series A-3
Preferred Stock issued BV IIl QP, in the Merger,52 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred Statie@sto BV 11l KG, in the
Merger; 1,340 shares of Company Series A-3 Prafeteck issued to BV Ill PF, in the Merger; and 8b@res of Company Series A-3
Preferred Stock issued to AM LLC in the Merger. BM_P and BV3LLC, are the direct and indirect gesigoartners of BV Ill, BV Il
QP, BV Il KG, and BV Ill PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLCra the direct and indirect general partners of MRWE. BV3LLC is the
General Partner of BV Ill LP. Ansbert Gadicke, Lukenin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Deitenner, Nicholas Simon
and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3LLC andrti@nagers of AM LLC. All members share all powevadbe, acquire, hold and
dispose of all shares and warrants. Each membaaufiss beneficial ownership of the securities extefthe extent of their pecuniary
interest therein. BV4ALLC is the Managing MembeB&f IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Todd Foldghn Vander Vort, James
Paul Scopa and Vaughn M. Kailian are the Membeid@i BioVentures IV LLC. All members share all pawe vote, acquire, hold
and dispose of all shares and warrants. Each medidaims beneficial ownership of the securitiesept to the extent of their
pecuniary interest therein. Each entity mentiortealva and Dr. Gadicke disclaim beneficial ownersifip
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(13)
(14)
(15)

(16)

(17)

all shares not held by it or him of record. Beniafiownership information is based on informatiarown to us and a
Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 7, 2013 hyIB, BV 1ll QP, BV Il KG, BV Ill PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Il LP,
BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BVALLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadie, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt \Wlae Nicholas
Simon Ill, Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. ki, James Paul Scopa and John Vander Vort.

Consists of 256,666 options to purchase ouarroon stock anticipated to be exercisable withil&gs after February 19, 2014.
Consists of 235,278 options to purchase our comstmek anticipated to be exercisable within 60 deyer February 19, 2014.
No options to purchase our common stock have bemrag to Mr. Hughes.

Includes 3,386,510 shares of common stock issugida conversion of 338,651 shares of Company SBri2$referred Stock,
3,256,270 shares of common stock issuable uponecsion of 325,627 shares of Company Series B Reef&tock, and 1,660,696
shares of common stock issuable upon the exertisenamon stock warrants. Morana Jovan-EmbiricahésDirector of F2

Capital Ltd, which is Investment Adviser to F2 Bience Ill L.P, F2 Bioscience IV L.P. and F2 Bionteres V L.P. (collectively

"F2"). F2 Bioscience GP Ltd is the General Partfd¥2 Bioscience Il L.P.. F2 Bioscience IV GP liscthe General Partner of F2
Bioscience IV L.P.. The members of F2 Biosciencel@Pand F2 Bioscience IV GP Ltd are Katherine §ttey and Globeways
Holdings Limited. The beneficial owner of Globewaysldings Limited is Dr Morana Jovan-Embiricos. B® Ventures GP Ltd is
General Partner of F2 Bio Ventures V L.P.. The sotamber of F2 Bio Ventures GP Ltd is Globeways liwd Limited (beneficially
owned by Dr Morana Jovan-Embiricos). All memberarshall power to vote, acquire, hold and disposallcfhares and warrants. Each
member disclaims beneficial ownership of the séiesrexcept to the extent of their pecuniary irgetkerein. F2 Capital Limited
provides investment advisory services to F2. Bemafownership information is based on informatkmmown to us and a Schedule 13D
filed with the SEC on May 3, 2013 by F2 Biosciethité..P., F2 Bioscience GP Ltd, F2 Capital Limitddprana Jovan-Embiricos and
Katherine Priestley.

Includes 122,110 shares of common stock issualda apnversion of 12,211 shares of Company SerigsPBeferred Stock and
325,630 shares of common stock issuable upon timeecsion of 32,563 shares of Company Series B Regfé&tock issued to BB
Biotech Ventures Il L.P. ("BBBV LP"); 475,497 sharef common stock issuable upon conversion of 43db@res of Company
Series A-1 Preferred Stock (the "BBBV LP A-1 PrederStock"), and 1,146,991 shares of common s&stkable upon conversion of
105,162 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferreck$together with the BBBV LP A- Preferred Stock the "BBBV LP Shares") iss
to BBBV LP in the Merger, 446,528 shares issuaplenuconversion of 40,940 shares of Company SerigddReferred Stock issued to
BBBYV LP at subsequent closings of the Company's&eSé-1 Preferred Stock financing, and 111,936 ehaf common stock issuable
upon the exercise of common stock warrants. BBdgiotvVentures GP (Guernsey) Limited ("BBBV Limiteds)the General Partner of
BBBV LP. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux, and Ben Moajya the directors of BBBV Limited. Dr. Minchbatie Senior Investment
Advisor Private Equity at Bellevue Asset Managen®®t advises Asset Management BAB N.V. ("AMB NV"hw, pursuant to a
services agreement with BAM AG, advises the dinecté BBBV Limited mentioned above. Jan BootsmadahMahieux and Ben
Morgan share all voting and investment power olkerBBBV LP shares. Each of the foregoing, excepBBR.P in the case of the
BBBYV LP Shares, disclaims beneficial ownershiptaf BBBV LP Shares except to the extent of theiup&ry interest therein, if any.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infatimn known to us and a Schedule 13D filed with$E&C on December 29, 2011 by
BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal MahieBen Morgan, and Martin Minchbach.
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Includes 12,211 shares of Company Series B-2 Peef&tock issued to BBBV LP. Voting and investmamiver with respect to these
shares is shared by the general partners of thit 8BBV Limited is the General Partner of BBBV LRn Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux
and Ben Morgan are the directors of BBBV Limited. Bliinchbach, the Senior Investment Advisor Priieqeiity at Bellevue Asset
Management AG, advises Asset Management BAB NAMB NV") who, pursuant to a services agreement \WitkM AG, advises
the directors of BBBV Limited mentioned above. Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux and Ben Morgan share iiggand investment power
over the BBBV LP shares. Each of the foregoingepx®&BBYV LP in the case of the BBBV LP Shares, ldisas beneficial ownership
of the BBBV LP Shares except to the extent of thetuniary interest therein, if any. Beneficial @mship information is based on the
information known to us and a Schedule 13D filethwie SEC on December 29, 2011 by BBBV LP, BBBYhited, Jan Bootsma,
Pascal Mahieux, Ben Morgan, and Martin Miinchbach.

Includes 32,563 shares of Company Series B Pref&teck issued to BBBV LP. Voting and investmenivpowith respect to these
shares is shared by the general partners of thits 8BBV Limited is the General Partner of BBBV LRn Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux
and Ben Morgan are the directors of BBBV Limited. Bliinchbach, the Senior Investment Advisor Priieqeity at Bellevue Asset
Management AG, advises Asset Management BAB NAMB NV") who, pursuant to a services agreement \d@tkM AG, advises
the directors of BBBV Limited mentioned above. Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux and Ben Morgan share @iigand investment power
over the BBBV LP shares. Each of the foregoingepx@BBV LP in the case of the BBBV LP Shares, ldisas beneficial ownership
of the BBBV LP Shares except to the extent of tpetuniary interest therein, if any. Beneficial @nghip information is based on the
information known to us and a Schedule 13D filethwiie SEC on December 29, 2011 by BBBV LP, BBB¥hitéd, Jan Bootsma,
Pascal Mahieux, Ben Morgan, and Martin Miinchbach.

Includes 43,596 shares of Company Series A-1 RexfeStock issued to BBBV LP in the Merger, and 40,8hares of Company
Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BBBV LP assgbient closings of the Company's Series A-1 RegfeStock financing. Voting
and investment power with respect to these shargisared by the general partners of this fund. BBBWited is the General Partner of
BBBV LP. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux and Ben Mogayarthe directors of BBBV Limited. Dr. Minchbathe Senior Investment
Advisor Private Equity at Bellevue Asset Managen’®t advises Asset Management BAB N.V. ("AMB NV"hw, pursuant to a
services agreement with BAM AG, advises the dinecté BBBV Limited mentioned above. Jan BootsmadahMahieux and Ben
Morgan share all voting and investment power olkerBBBV LP shares. Each of the foregoing, excepBBR.P in the case of the
BBBYV LP Shares, disclaims beneficial ownershiptaf BBBV LP Shares except to the extent of theiup&ry interest therein, if any.
Beneficial ownership information is based on tHermation known to us and a Schedule 13D filed wlith SEC on December 29, 2(
by BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal MahieBen Morgan, and Martin Miinchbach.

Includes 105,162 shares of Company SeriePAeferred Stock issued to BBBV LP in the Mergeutilg and investment power with
respect to these shares is shared by the genena¢rsaof this fund. BBBV Limited is the Generalrfar of BBBV LP. Jan Bootsma,
Pascal Mahieux and Ben Morgan are the directoBB&V Limited. Dr. Miinchbach, the Senior Investméwmlvisor Private Equity at
Bellevue Asset Management AG, advises Asset ManageBAB N.V. ("AMB NV") who, pursuant to a servicagreement with BAM
AG, advises the directors of BBBV Limited mentioradgbve. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux and Ben Maigare all voting and
investment power over the BBBV LP shares. Eaclhefforegoing,
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except BBBV LP in the case of the BBBV LP Sharéscldims beneficial ownership of the BBBV LP Shaggsept to the exte
of their pecuniary interest therein, if any. Benigi ownership information is based on the inforimraknown to us and a
Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on December 29,1281 BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal Malx, Ben
Morgan, and Martin Minchbach.

Consists of 55,000 options to purchase oarrmon stock anticipated to be exercisable withid&gs after February 19, 2014.

Includes 89,677 shares of common stock issuabla apoversion of 8,222 shares of Company SeriesPheterred Stock, 132,998
shares of common stock issuable upon conversid2,d04 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferred S8%Kk57 shares of common
stock issuable upon conversion of 2,985 shareoifany Series A-3 Preferred Stock issued to MPM/Bidures 111, L.P. ("BV 1lI"),

in the Merger (as defined below), 74,973 shareafmon stock issuable upon conversion of 6,874eshafr Company Series A-1
Preferred Stock issued to BV Il at subsequentictssof the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stawdriting, 51,030 shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 5,103shafr Company Series B Preferred Stock, and 15f&Bs of common stock
issuable upon the exercise of common stock warrar883,804 shares of common stock issuable upowersion of 122,290 shares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 1,978,118 stafreommon stock issuable upon conversion of Bllshares of Company
Series A-2 Preferred Stock, and 484,211 sharesrofron stock issuable upon conversion of 44,395shafr Company Series A-3
Preferred Stock issued to MPM BioVenturesQIR, L.P. ("BV Ill QP"), in the Merger, 1,115,100ashs of common stock issuable uj
conversion of 102,238 shares of Company SeriePAeterred Stock issued to BV Il QP at subsequksiregs of the Company's
Series A-1 Preferred Stock financing, 758,990 shafeommon stock issuable upon conversion of Bsfire of Company Series B
Preferred Stock, and 189,748 shares of common steakble upon the exercise of common stock waydiR,723 shares of common
stock issuable upon conversion of 10,335 shar€oafpany Series A-Preferred Stock, 167,170 shares of common ststkable upo
conversion of 15,327 shares of Company Series fefeRed Stock, and 40,922 shares of common ssstlkable upon conversion of
3,752 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred Séscled to MPM BioVentures Il GmbH & Co. BeteiligymK.G. ("BV Il KG"), in
the Merger, 94,235 shares of common stock issugia conversion of 8,640 shares of Company Serg®peferred Stock issued to
BV Il KG at subsequent closings of the Companygses A-1 Preferred Stock financing, 64,140 shafemmmon stock issuable upon
conversion of 6,414 shares of Company Series BeRegf Stock, and 16,035 shares of common stochlidswpon the exercise of
common stock warrants; 40,279 shares of commork gsoable upon conversion of 3,693 shares of Comfaries A-1 Preferred
Stock, 59,737 shares of common stock issuable apowersion of 5,477 shares of Company Series Aefeed Stock, and 14,615
shares of common stock issuable upon conversidrEd0 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred Ssscled to MPM BioVentures
[l Parallel Fund, L.P. ("BV Illl PF"), in the Merge33,658 shares of common stock issuable uponession of 3,086, shares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to B¥YHIat subsequent closings of the Company's S&vieBreferred Stock financing,
22,910 shares of common stock issuable upon theecsion of 2,291 shares of Company Series B PedeBtock, and 5,728 shares of
common stock issuable upon the exercise of comnomk svarrants; 25,828 shares of common stock igsugion conversion of 2,368
shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 3&Bfres of common stock issuable upon converg$idibal shares of Company
Series A-2 Preferred Stock, and 9,369 shares ofremmstock issuable upon conversion of 859 shar€oofpany Series A-3 Preferred
Stock issued to MPM Asset Management Investors BM8 LLC ("AM LLC") in the Merger, 21,573 sharesf common stock
issuable upon conversion of 1,978, shares of CoynBanes A-1 Preferred Stock issued to AM LLC dismquent closings of the
Company's Series A-1
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Preferred Stock financing, 14,680 shares of comstock issuable upon the conversion of 1,468 shafr€@mpany Series B
Preferred Stock, and 3,670 shares of common s#sclable upon the exercise of common stock warra88983 shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 54,00feshaf Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock, and®230®8 shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of 184,24peshof Company Series A-2 Preferred Stock issu®tRM Bio IV NVS
Strategic Fund, L.P. ("MPM NVS") in the Merger, 6880 shares of common stock issuable upon conved§i60,536, shares
of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to MiPKE at subsequent closings of the Company's SAriefreferred Stoc
financing, 716,380 shares of common stock issuajpde the conversion of 71,638 shares of CompangSBrPreferred Stock,
and 179,095 shares of common stock issuable ugoexiércise of common stock warrants. MPM BioVerguheGP, L.P. ("BV
[l LP") and MPM BioVentures Il LLC ("BV3LLC") arghe direct and indirect general partners of BYBY Il QP, BV Ill
KG, and BV Il PF. MPM BioVentures IV GP LLC ("BW GP") and MPM BioVentures IV LLC ("BV4LLC") are ¢hdirect
and indirect general partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLGhe General Partner of BV Il LP. Ansbert Gadickeke Evnin,
Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Herdeholas Simon and Kurt Wheeler are the Membb&BV3LLC and the
managers of AM LLC. All members of BV3LLC share pdlwer to vote, acquire, hold and dispose of afref and warrants.
Each member disclaims beneficial ownership of Hmisgties except to the extent of their pecuniatgriest therein. BVALLC is
the Managing Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadickake Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, James Baopa and
Vaughn M. Kailian are the Members of MPM BioVentsit®’ LLC. All members share all power to vote, aicguhold and
dispose of all shares and warrants. Each membaaiufiss beneficial ownership of the securities extefthe extent of their
pecuniary interest therein. Each entity mentiormolva and Dr. Gadicke disclaim beneficial ownersifipll shares not held by
or him of record. Beneficial ownership informatisrbased on information known to us and a Schetiikfiled with the SEC
on May 7, 2013 by BV Ill, BV Il QP, BV Il KG, BMII PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BVALLC,
Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos;iMiel Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas SimonDi&énnis Henner, Todd
Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, James Paul Scopa and ¥&#nder Vort.

Includes of shares 5,103 of Company Series B Reafedtock issued to BV llI; 75,899 shares of Conypaearies B Preferred Stock
issued to BV Il QP; 6,414 shares of Company SaBi®eferred Stock issued to BV Il KG; 2,291 stsapé Company Series B
Preferred Stock issued to BV lll PF; and 1,468 skaf Company Series B Preferred Stock issued td_ A, and 71,638 shares of
Company Series B Preferred Stock issued to MPM NBXSIII LP and BV3LLC, are the direct and indireggtneral partners of BV
[, BV Il QP, BV Il KG, and BV Ill PF. BV IV GPand BVA4LLC are the direct and indirect general peng of MPM NVS. BV3LLC
is the General Partner of BV Il LP. Ansbert Gadickuke Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael SteirmmBennis Henner, Nicholas
Simon and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3LL@ #re managers of AM LLC. All members share all po¥o vote, acquire,
hold and dispose of all shares and warrants. Eaghbar disclaims beneficial ownership of the seimsriéxcept to the extent of their
pecuniary interest therein. BV4LLC is the Managiigmber of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin,dioFoley, John

Vander Vort, James Paul Scopa and Vaughn M. Kadiarthe Members of MPM BioVentures IV LLC. All mbers share all power to
vote, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares asndants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownershthe securities except to the
extent of their pecuniary interest therein. Eaditementioned above and Dr. Gadicke disclaim bisndfownership of all shares not
held by it or him of record. Beneficial ownershigdrmation is based on information known to us ar8tchedule 13D filed with the
SEC on May 7, 2013 by BV Iil, BV lll QP, BV Il KGRV Ill PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Il LP,
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BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadie, Nicholas Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt \&lbe Nicholas
Simon Ill, Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. likai, James Paul Scopa and John Vander Vort.

Includes of 8,222 shares of Company Series A-lelfmed Stock issued to BV Il in the Merger, and78,8hares of Company Series A-
1 Preferred Stock issued to BV Il at subsequergings of the Company's Series A-1 Preferred Sioekicing; 122,290 shares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BQRIin the Merger, and 102,238 shares of ComparigsSa-1 Preferred Stock
issued to BV Il QP at subsequent closings of tbenfany's Series A-1 Preferred Stock financing; 3® shares of Company SerieslA-
Preferred Stock issued to BV Ill KG in the Mergand 8,640 shares of Company Series A-1 Prefermek $tsued to BV Il KG at
subsequent closings of the Company's Series A{fefed Stock financing; 3,693 shares of CompanyeSek-1 Preferred Stock issued
to BV lll PF in the Merger, and 3,086 shares of @amy Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to BV lllaPBubsequent closings of the
Company's Series A-1 Preferred Stock financingb@ ghares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stosketsto AM LLC in the

Merger, and 1,978 shares of Company Series A-leResf Stock issued to AM LLC at subsequent closofghe Company's Series A-
Preferred Stock financing; and 54,001 shares of ji2omy Series A-1 Preferred Stock issued to MPM Nivehé Merger, and 60,536
shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock issubtPM NVS at subsequent closings of the Compaaglies A-1 Preferred Stock
financing. Voting and investment power is sharethwlr. Gadicke and the other general partnersedetunds. BV Il LP and
BV3LLC, are the direct and indirect general parsnegrBV I, BV 1ll QP, BV Ill KG, and BV Ill PF. B/ IV GP and BV4LLC are the
direct and indirect general partners of MPM NVS.RY.C is the General Partner of BV Il LP. Ansberadicke, Luke Evnin, Nichole
Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Nah&imon and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3lan@ the managers of
AM LLC. All members share all power to vote, acguinold and dispose of all shares and warrant Eeenber disclaims beneficial
ownership of the securities except to the extetheif pecuniary interest therein. BVALLC is thefdging Member of BV IV GP.
Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vandert, James Paul Scopa and Vaughn M. KailiarttaeeMembers of MPM
BioVentures IV LLC. All members share all poweniate, acquire, hold and dispose of all shares amdants. Each member disclaims
beneficial ownership of the securities except dhktent of their pecuniary interest therein. Bexafownership information is based
on information known to us and a Schedule 13D filétth the SEC on May 7, 2013 by BV III, BV Il QBV 1l KG, BV Il PF,

AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV IIl LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakalghael
Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas Simon lll, DenHisnner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, James Fagpa and John Vander V¢

Includes 12,194 shares of Company Series A-2 RegfeStock issued to BV Il in the Merger; 181,3®des of Company Series A-2
Preferred Stock issued to BV Ill QP, in the MerBr327 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferred S¢scled to BV 11l KG in the
Merger; 5,477 shares of Company Series A-2 Prafeteck issued to BV Il PF, in the Merger; 3,5hhres of Company Series A-2
Preferred Stock issued to AM LLC in the Merger; 418d,242 shares of Company Series A-2 PreferreckSssued to MPM NVS in
the Merger. All voting and investment power is gtbwith Dr. Gadicke and the other general partoétiese funds. BV IIl LP and
BV3LLC, are the direct and indirect general parsnagiBV IIl, BV 1l QP, BV lll KG, and BV IIl PF. B/ IV GP and BVA4LLC are the
direct and indirect general partners of MPM NVS.RYC is the General Partner of BV Il LP. Ansberadicke, Luke Evnin, Nichole
Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Neh&imon and Kurt Wheeler are the Members of BV3lan@ the managers of
AM LLC. All members share all power to vote, acgyinold and dispose of all shares and warrant Eenber disclaims beneficial
ownership of the securities except to the extetheif pecuniary interest therein. BV4LLC is
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the Managing Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadickake Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, James Baopa and
Vaughn M. Kailian are the Members of MPM BioVentsit®’ LLC. All members share all power to vote, aicguhold and
dispose of all shares and warrants. Each membelaiiiss beneficial ownership of the securities ext¢efthe extent of their
pecuniary interest therein. Beneficial ownershipimation is based on information known to us ar®thedule 13D filed with
the SEC on May 7, 2013 by BV I, BV Il QP, BV IKG, BV Ill PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP,
BVALLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Gal#ds, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nicholas &intil, Dennis
Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn M. Kailian, James Pawolpd and John Vander Vort.

Includes 2,985 shares of Company Series AeRed Stock issued to BV 1l in the Merger; 85Zhares of Company Series A-3
Preferred Stock issued to BV Il QP in the Mergg752 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferred Sssded to BV 11l KG, in the
Merger; 1,340 shares of Company Series A-3 PrafeBteck issued BV Il PF, in the Merger; and 858rsis of Company Series A-3
Preferred Stock issued to AM LLC in the Merger. ¥dting and investment power is shared with Dr. iGleeland the other general
partners of these funds. BV Il LP and BV3LLC, #ne direct and indirect general partners of BVBY, 11l QP, BV Ill KG, and BV llI
PF. BV IV GP and BV4LLC are the direct and indirgeneral partners of MPM NVS. BV3LLC is the Gend?altner of BV IIl LP.
Ansbert Gadicke, Luke Evnin, Nicholas Galakatos;ziMiel Steinmetz, Dennis Henner, Nicholas Simonkati Wheeler are the
Members of BV3LLC and the managers of AM LLC. Alembers share all power to vote, acquire, hold aspgbde of all shares and
warrants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownprehthe securities except to the extent of theaymiary interest therein. BV4LLC
is the Managing Member of BV IV GP. Ansbert Gadickeke Evnin, Todd Foley, John Vander Vort, Jamas|Bcopa and Vaughn |
Kailian are the Members of MPM BioVentures IV LL&II members share all power to vote, acquire, laoid dispose of all shares and
warrants. Each member disclaims beneficial ownprehihe securities except to the extent of theoymiary interest therein. Beneficial
ownership information is based on information kndamis and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on Ma3013 by BV IIl, BV il

QP, BV Il KG, BV lll PF, AM LLC, MPM NVS, BV Ill LP, BV3LLC, BV IV GP, BV4LLC, Luke Evnin, Ansbert @ake, Nicholas
Galakatos, Michael Steinmetz, Kurt Wheeler, Nickdamon 1lI, Dennis Henner, Todd Foley, Vaughn Milkan, James Paul Scopa
and John Vander Vort.

Includes 278,366 shares of common stock issuatda apnversion of 25,522 shares of Company SeriésPheferred Stock, and
2,293,993 shares of common stock issuable uponecsion of 210,325 shares of Company Series A-Z2eed Stock issued to The
Wellcome Trust Limited as trustee of The Wellconmast in the Merger, and 556,731 shares of commmeksssuable upon conversion
of 51,044 shares of Company Series A-1 PreferradkSssued to The Wellcome Trust Limited as truste€he Wellcome Trust at
subsequent closings of the Company's Series AfefPee Stock financing. Responsibility for the aities of the Wellcome Trust lies
with the Board of Governors of The Wellcome Trushited, which is comprised of William Castell, KBavies, Peter Davies,
Christopher Fairburn, Richard Hynes, Anne JohnBarderick Kent, Eliza ManninghaBuller, Peter Rigby and Peter Smith. The Bc
of Governors share all voting and investment pomigr respect to the shares held by The WellcomeatTltimited as trustee of the
Wellcome Trust. Beneficial ownership informatiorbased on information known to the Company andhe&ale 13D filed with the
SEC on December 23, 2011 by The Wellcome Trustteithas trustee of The Wellcome Trust.

Responsibility for the activities of the Walime Trust lies with the Board of Governors of Tiellcome Trust Limited, which is

comprised of William Castell, Kay Davies, Peter 2ay Christopher Fairburn, Richard Hynes, Anne dohnRoderick Kent, Eliza
Manningham-Buller, Peter Rigby and Peter Smith. Bbard of Governors share all voting and investnpenter
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with respect to the shares held by The WellcomesfTrimited as trustee of the Wellcome Trust. Beriafiownership
information is based on information known to ther@any and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on Bées 23, 2011 by
The Wellcome Trust Limited as trustee of The WetleoTrust.

Includes 2,279,380 shares of common stoakalde upon conversion of 227,938 shares of CompBanies B-2 Preferred Stock and
569,845 shares of common stock issuable upon tareise of common stock warrants issued to F2 Béows IV, L.P., 1,107,130
shares of common stock issuable upon conversidi@f713 shares of Company Series B-2 Preferreck @tatt 276,783 shares of
common stock issuable upon the exercise of comnomk svarrants issued to F2 Bio Ventures V, L.Pd 8256,270 shares of comrr
stock issuable upon conversion of 325,627 shar€oofpany Series B Preferred Stock and 814,068 slafiommon stock issuable
upon the exercise of common stock warrants issmu&@ tBioscience Ill, L.P. Morana Jovan-Embiricothis Director of F2 Capital Ltd,
which is Investment Adviser to F2 Bioscience IIPI|_.F2 Bioscience IV, L.P. and F2 Bio Ventures \R L(collectively "F2"). F2
Bioscience GP Ltd is the General Partner of F2 8ee Il L.P.. F2 Bioscience IV GP Ltd is the @eaxd Partner of F2 Bioscience
IV L.P.. The members of F2 Bioscience GP Ltd andBk&science IV GP Ltd are Katherine Priestley ando8ways Holdings Limited.
The beneficial owner of Globeways Holdings Limiisdr. Morana Jovan-Embiricos. F2 Bio Ventures G& ik General Partner of F2
Bio Ventures V L.P.. The sole member of F2 Bio \(eas GP Ltd is Globeways Holdings Limited (beneifiigi owned by Dr. Morana
Jovan-Embiricos). All members share all power tteyacquire, hold and dispose of all shares andants. Each member disclaims
beneficial ownership of the securities except tdhktent of their pecuniary interest therein. Fpi@hLimited provides investment
advisory services to F2. Beneficial ownership infation is based on information known to us andte8ale 13D filed with the SEC
on May 3, 2013 by F2 Bioscience Il L.P., F2 Biesaie GP Ltd, F2 Capital Limited, Morana Jovan-Eib# and Katherine Priestley.

Includes 83,113 shares of common stock and 214B8des of common stock issuable upon conversid®,661 shares of Company
Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 1,071,908 shares ofmmmstock issuable upon conversion of 98,278 slar€empany Series A-2
Preferred Stock, 694,365 shares of common stocklids upon conversion of 63,663 shares of Compang$SA-3 Preferred Stock
issued to HealthCare Ventures VII, L.P. ("HCVVII)the Merger, and 428,663 shares of common ststkable upon conversion of
39,302 shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred S¢scled to HCVVII at subsequent closings of the Gany's Series A-1 Preferred
Stock financing. HealthCare Partners VII, L.P. ('PM3I") is the General Partner of HCVVII. The Gendpartners of HCPVII are
James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Harold R. Werner, Johittééchild, Christopher Mirabelli, Ph.D., and fustine Lawlor. The General
Partners of HCPVII share all voting and investnyaawer on behalf of HCPVII. Beneficial ownershipanfation is based on
information known to the Company and a Schedule fifgD with the SEC on January 3, 2012 by HCVVICPRVII, James H.
Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Harold R. Werner, John W. Litillelc Christopher Mirabelli, Ph.D., and Augustinavidor.

HealthCare Partners VII, L.P. ("HCPVII") is the Geal Partner of HCVVII. The General Partners of NMORre James H. Cavanaugh,
Ph.D., Harold R. Werner, John W. Littlechild, Ckojsher Mirabelli, Ph.D., and Augustine Lawlor. TBGeneral Partners of HCPVII
share all voting and investment power on behaHl©PVIl. Beneficial ownership information is basadinformation known to the
Company and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC ownidey 3, 2012 by HCVVII, HCPVII, James H. Cavanaugh.D., Harold R.
Werner, John W. Littlechild, Christopher Mirabelh.D., and Augustine Lawlor.
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Includes: (i) 15,173 shares of common stock (thBPQV Common Shares") held directly by OBP 1V; (187,803 shares of common
stock (the "OBP IV Conversion Shares" and, togetithy the OBP IV Common Shares, the "OBP |V SaBhsires") issuable to OBP
IV upon the conversion of 48,641 shares of Comenyes A-1 Preferred Stock held directly by OBP 108,628 shares of Company
Series A-2 Preferred Stock held directly by OBPahd 24,983 shares of Company Series A-3 Prefetaak 8eld directly by OBP 1V;
(i) 151 shares of common stock (the "mRNA Il CoomShares") held directly by mRNA II; (iv) 19,91Hdases of common stock (the
"mRNA Il Conversion Shares" and, together withti@NA || Common Shares, the "mRNA Saints Il SharésSyable to mRNA I
upon the conversion of 486 shares of Company SArie®referred Stock held directly by mRNA 11, 1®08hares of Company

Series A-2 Preferred Stock held directly by mRNAn 250 shares of Company Series A-3 Preferreck$ild directly by mRNA 1.
The OBP IV Saints Shares and the mRNA Saints If&hare referred to herein as the "Saints Shafés.'Saints Shares are indirectly
held by Saints LP, a member of OBP IV and Saint€ Lthe sole general partner of Saints LP, andrttizidual managers of

Saints LLC. The individual managers of Saints L€ Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kennetts8wyer. The individual
managers of Saints LLC share all voting and investrpower on behalf of Saints LLC. Additionallyhet than with respect to the
common stock issuable upon the conversion of th@448shares of Company Series A-1 Preferred Steltkdirectly by OBP 1V and
the 486 shares of Company Series A-1 PreferreckSteld directly by mRNA Il, the Saints Shares amgiriectly held by OBP LP, a
member of OBP IV. The mRNA Il Shares are indirettdid by mRNA LP, a member of mMRNA Il. The Saintefs are indirectly he
by (i) OBP Management 1V, the sole general partriezach of OBP LP and mRNA LP and (ii) Jonathanrfg and Alan Walton, the
individual general partners of OBP Management Bhathan Fleming and Alan Walton, the individual gieh partners of OBP
Management IV, share all voting and investment pawebehalf of OBP Management IV. Each of the @#iand individuals
mentioned above disclaim beneficial ownership withie meaning of Section 16 of the Exchange Aditberwise of such portion of
the Saints Shares in which such entity or individhas no actual pecuniary interest therein. Berafawnership information is based
information known to the Company and a Schedule filgD with the SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mMRNMAMRNA Fund I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonafflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qivah, and Kenneth B.
Sawyer.

Includes: 48,641 shares of Company SeriesPheferred Stock held directly by OBP IV (the "OBPA-1 Shares"), and 486 shares of
Company Series A-1 Preferred Stock held directlyrtBNA 11 (together with the OBP IV A-1 Shares, tt8aints A-1 Shares"). The
Saints A-1 Shares are indirectly held by Saintsd miember of OBP 1V and mRNA I, Saints LLC, théesgeneral partner of

Saints LP, and the individual managers of Saint€ LThe individual managers of Saints LLC are SElatsted, David P. Quinlivan,
and Kenneth B. Sawyer. The individual managersairfitS LLC share all voting and investment powebehalf of Saints LLC. Each
entity mentioned above and Messrs. Halsted, Qunland Sawyer disclaim beneficial ownership withima meaning of Section 16 of
the Exchange Act or otherwise of such portion ef #aints A-1 Shares in which such entity or indigichas no actual pecuniary
interest therein. Beneficial ownership informatierfbased on information known to the Company aBdledule 13D filed with the
SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA I, mMRNA Fund®BP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, JoaatRleming, Alan
Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KethnB. Sawyer.

Includes: 108,628 shares of Company Series A-Z2Ref Stock held directly by OBP IV (the "OBP IV2Shares") and 1,090 shares

of Company Series A-2 Preferred Stock held direlafiynRNA Il (together with the OBP IV A-2 Sharelet'Saints A-2 Shares"). The
Saints A-2 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Manay# IV, the sole general partner of each of OBP LP

167




(36)

(37)

and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton,itltévidual general partners of OBP Management 1&n& LP, a
member of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saints LLC, the sgkneral partner of Saints LP; and Scott Halste#&jdR. Quinlivan, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers of SdihiC. Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton, the indiill general partners
of OBP Management |V, share all voting and investnpwer on behalf of OBP Management IV. Scott ibalsDavid P.
Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individualhagers of Saints LLC share all voting and investnpemer on behalf of
Saints LLC. Each of the entities and individualshtaed above disclaim beneficial ownership witthia meaning of Section .
of the Exchange Act or otherwise of such portiothef Saints A-2 Shares in which such entity oniittlial has no actual
pecuniary interest therein. Beneficial ownershipimation is based on information known to the Campand a Schedule 13D
filed with the SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNAMRNA Fund Il, OBP Management IV, Saints LP,8aiLLC,
Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, D&i®uinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes: 24,983 shares of Company Series A-3 Regfestock held directly by OBP 1V (the "OBP IV AShares"); and 250 shares of
Company Series A-3 Preferred Stock held directlytBNA 11 (together with the OBP IV A-3 Shares, tt8aints A-3 Shares"). The
Saints A-3 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Manag# IV, the sole general partner of each of OBRah&® mRNA LP; Jonathan
Fleming and Alan Walton, the individual generaltpars of OBP Management IV; Saints LP, a memb&@B® |V and mRNA II;
Saints LLC, the sole general partner of Saintsdtfé} Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KeniietBawyer, the individual
managers of Saints LLC. Jonathan Fleming and Alaift&l, the individual general partners of OBP Maragnt 1V, share all voting
and investment power on behalf of OBP Managemengsbott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and KennettsBwyer, the individual
managers of Saints LLC share all voting and investpower on behalf of Saints LLC. Each of thetegtiand individuals mentioned
above disclaim beneficial ownership within the niegrof Section 16 of the Exchange Act or othervdssuch portion of the Saints A-
3 Shares in which such entity or individual hasantual pecuniary interest therein. Beneficial owghgr information is based on
information known to the Company and a Schedule filgD with the SEC on May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRMAMRNA Fund I,
OBP Management IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonaflaming, Alan Walton, Scott Halsted, David P. Qivah, and Kenneth B.
Sawyer.

Includes 122,110 shares of common stock issualda apnversion of 12,211 shares of Company Seri2sPBeferred Stock and
325,630 shares of common stock issuable upon tmeeesion of 32,563 shares of Company Series B Regfé&tock issued to BB
Biotech Ventures Il L.P. ("BBBV LP"); 475,497 sharef common stock issuable upon conversion of 8db@res of Company
Series A-1 Preferred Stock (the "BBBV LP A-1 PrederStock”), and 1,146,991 shares of common s&stkable upon conversion of
105,162 shares of Company Series A-2 Preferreck$together with the BBBV LP A- Preferred Stock the "BBBV LP Shares") iss
to BBBV LP in the Merger, 446,528 shares issuaplenuconversion of 40,940 shares of Company SerigddReferred Stock issued to
BBBYV LP at subsequent closings of the Company'&eSé-1 Preferred Stock financing, and 111,936 ehaf common stock issuable
upon the exercise of common stock warrants. BBdgiotvVentures GP (Guernsey) Limited ("BBBV Limiteds)the General Partner of
BBBV LP. Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux, and Ben Moajya the directors of BBBV Limited. Dr. Minchbatie Senior Investment
Advisor Private Equity at Bellevue Asset Managen®®t advises Asset Management BAB N.V. ("AMB NV"hw, pursuant to a
services agreement with BAM AG, advises the dinecté BBBV Limited mentioned above. Jan BootsmadahMahieux and Ben
Morgan share all voting and investment power okierBBBV LP shares. Each of the foregoing, excepBBR.P in the case of the
BBBYV LP Shares, disclaims beneficial ownershiptef BBBV LP Shares
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except to the extent of their pecuniary interestein, if any. Beneficial ownership informationbased on information known to
us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on Dece@®e2011 by BBBV LP, BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsmadeal Mahieux,
Ben Morgan, and Martin Miinchbach.

BB Biotech Ventures GP (Guernsey) Limited ("BBB\Wiited") is the General Partner of BBBV LP. Jan Bowd, Pascal Mahieux, a
Ben Morgan are the directors of BBB Limited andrshell investment and voting power with respedhiese shares. Additionally,
Martin Miinchbach, the Senior Investment Advisov®ié Equity at Bellevue Asset Management AG, advisseset Management

BAB N.V. ("AMB NV") who, pursuant to a services agment with BAM AG, advises the directors of BBBWhiited, may be deemed
to have voting and investment control over the shaeld by BBBV LP given such advisory role. Eatthe foregoing, except

BBBYV LP in the case of the BBBV LP Shares, disckineneficial ownership of the BBBV LP Shares exd¢ejthe extent of their
pecuniary interest therein, if any. Beneficial owaigp information is based on information knowritte Company and a Schedule 13D
filed with the SEC on December 29, 2011 by BBBV BBBV Limited, Jan Bootsma, Pascal Mahieux, Ben §éor, and Martin
Minchbach.

Includes the OBP IV Shares and the mRNA Hi8b. The OBP IV Shares are indirectly held by @BPa member of OBP IV. The
MRNA |l Shares are indirectly held by mRNA LP, amzer of mRNA 1l. The Oxford Shares are indirectBlchby OBP Management
IV, the sole general partner of each of OBP LPmfRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton, thevidlial general partners of
OBP Management IV; Saints LP, a member of OBP I mRNA II; Saints LLC, the sole general partnefSaints LP; and Scott
Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawtleg,individual managers of Saints LLC. Jonathamfihg and Alan Walton, the
individual general partners of OBP Management h4re all voting and investment power on behalf BPOManagement IV. Scott
Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawtfeg,individual managers of Saints LLC share alingpand investment power on
behalf of Saints LLC. Each of the entities and wdlials mentioned above disclaim beneficial ownigrghithin the meaning of
Section 16 of the Exchange Act or otherwise of umtiion of the OBP IV Shares and mRNA Fund Il ®san which such entity or
individual has no actual pecuniary interest therBeneficial ownership information is based on infation known to the Company and
a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 27, 204 DIBP 1V, mRNA II, mRNA Fund Il, OBP Management I18aints LP,

Saints LLC, Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walton, Scotistéal, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes: 108,628 shares of Company Seri@sPheferred Stock held directly by OBP IV and 1,88@res of Company Series A-2
Preferred Stock held directly by mRNA 1. The Oxdok-2 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Manageni¢nthe sole general partner
of each of OBP LP and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming/Alad Walton, the individual general partners of@®Blanagement IV;

Saints LP, a member of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saint<l_the sole general partner of Saints LP; andt3¢alsted, David P. Quinlivan,
and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managersairfitS LLC. Jonathan Fleming and Alan Walton, trghiidual general partners of
OBP Management IV, share all voting and investnpemter on behalf of OBP Management IV. Scott HalsBalid P. Quinlivan, and
Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individual managers of SdihiC share all voting and investment power on HedfeSaints LLC. Each of the
entities and individuals mentioned above disclagnddicial ownership within the meaning of Secti@af the Exchange Act or
otherwise of such portion of the Saints A-2 Shameghich such entity or individual has no actuatyaary interest therein. Beneficial
ownership information is based on information knadathe Company and a Schedule 13D filed with tB€ ®n May 27, 2011 by OBP
IV, mMRNA II, mMRNA Fund Il, OBP Management |V, SasntP,
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Saints LLC, Jonathan Fleming, Alan Walton, Scotistéal, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer.

Includes: 24,983 shares of Company Series A-3 RegfeStock held directly by OBP 1V and 250 shae€ampany Series A-3
Preferred Stock held directly by mRNA 1. The Oxdok-3 Shares are indirectly held by OBP Manageniénthe sole general partner
of each of OBP LP and mRNA LP; Jonathan Fleming/Alad Walton, the individual general partners of@®Blanagement IV;

Saints LP, a member of OBP IV and mRNA II; Saint<l_the sole general partner of Saints LP; andt3¢alsted, David P. Quinlivan,
and Kenneth B. Sawyer, as the individual managegamts Capital Granite, LLC. Jonathan Fleming Afah Walton, the individual
general partners of OBP Management IV, share @ihg@nd investment power on behalf of OBP Manageamé Scott Halsted, Davi
P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth B. Sawyer, the individmalnagers of Saints LLC share all voting and inmestt power on behalf of

Saints LLC. Each of the entities and individualsnti@ed above disclaim beneficial ownership wittiia meaning of Section 16 of the
Exchange Act or otherwise of such portion of then8aA-2 Shares in which such entity or individhak no actual pecuniary interest
therein. Beneficial ownership information is basedinformation known to the Company and a Schei8[@ filed with the SEC on
May 27, 2011 by OBP IV, mRNA II, mRNA Fund Il, OB®Ranagement IV, Saints LP, Saints LLC, Jonathan FgmAlan Walton,
Scott Halsted, David P. Quinlivan, and Kenneth 8w$ger.

Includes 222,675 shares of common stock issuatda apnversion of 20,416 shares of Company SeriésPheferred Stock, and
611,724 shares of common stock issuable upon csioveof 56,086 shares of Company Series A-2 PrdeBtock. Healthcare Private
Equity Limited Partnership ("HPELP") is a limitedinership which has one general partner, Wavéikslthcare Private Equity
Limited ("Waverley GP") and one limited partnerp8ish Widows plc. As general partner, Waverley @R authority under the
HPELP limited partnership agreement ("LPA") to coatdand manage the business of HPELP. Andrew Nogewatd Archie Struthers
are the directors of Waverly GP and share all efuibting and investment power over the sharesiweldPELP. The controlling
shareholder of Waverley GP is SWIP Group Limiteke Tiltimate controlling entity of SWIP Group Linttés Lloyds Banking

Group plc, a public listed company with many shatéérs. The board of directors of Lloyds Bankingo@y plc consists of nine non-
executive directors (Sir Winifried Bischoff, Lorclich, Anita Frew, Glen Moreno, David Roberts, Tdthy Ryan Jnr, Martin Sciclu
and Anthony Watson) and three executive directArgédnito Horta-Osorio, G Truett Tate and Tim Tookelhe Chairman (Sir
Winifried Bischoff) is responsible for leadershiptbe board. The Group Chief executive (Antonio tdeDsorio) is responsible for the
day to day management of the business of LloydkiBgrGroup plc, in accordance with the strategy kmndy term objectives approved
by the board. The nine non-executive directorstaree executive directors of Lloyds Banking Grolpgn not have any sole or shared
voting or investment power with respect to the shdreld by HPELP. Beneficial ownership informati®based on information known
to us and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on Bla3013 by HPELP, Waverly GP, Scottish Windows ployds Banking

Group plc, Christopher K. Glass, M.D., Maria Grutdyand Kathleen Welch.

Includes 814,070 shares of common stock idsugon conversion of 81,407 shares of Companig$8rPreferred Stock, 1,339,585
shares of common stock issuable upon conversida22820 shares of Company Series A-1 PreferreckSame 203,518 shares of
common stock issuable upon the exercise of comnumk svarrants. Brookside Capital Investors, L.Br@okside Investors") is the
sole general partner of Brookside Capital PartRrersd, L.P. ("Partners Fund"). Brookside Capital sigement, LLC is the sole general
partner of Brookside Investors. The control persafrBrookside Capital Management are Executive Cidtemmembers:
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Dewey J. Awad, Domenic J. Ferrante, Matthew V. Maiin, William E. Pappendick IV and John M. Toussalhe Executive
Committee members share all voting and investmewep on behalf of Brookside Capital Management, LBEneficial
ownership information is based on information kndemis and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC orrisaly 14, 2014 by
Partners Fund.

Includes 651,250 shares of common stock idsugon conversion of 65,125 shares of Companie$8r2 Preferred Stock, 976,880
shares of common stock issuable upon conversi®7,688 shares of Company Series B Preferred S198R9,585 shares of common
stock issuable upon conversion of 122,820 shar€oofpany Series A-1 Preferred Stock, and 407,08B:shof common stock issuable
upon the exercise of common stock warrants. Bio@awth N.V. ("Biotech Growth") is a wholly-ownedilssidiary of BB Biotech AG
("BB Biotech"). The directors and executive offis@f BB Biotech are Dr. Erich Hunziker, Chairmarm &irector; Dr. Clive Meanwel
Vice Chairman and Director; and Prof. Dr. Dr. Kldtsein, Director. The directors and executiveasffs of Biotech Growth are

Dr. Clive Meanwell, Statutory Director; Rudy Lebtarstatutory Director; and Hugo Jan van Neutegeatufry Director. Beneficial
ownership information is based on information kndathe Company and a Schedule 13D filed with tB€ ®n May 3, 2013 by BB
Biotech and Biotech Growth. The directors and ekeewfficers of BB Biotech and Biotech Growth shaill voting and investment
power with respect to these shares.

Includes 188,972 shares of common stock issuatda apnversion of 17,326 shares of Company SeriésPheferred Stock. Ipsen
Pharma SAS ("Ipsen Pharma") is a société par actonplifiée organized under the laws of Franceiarsdwhollyowned subsidiary ¢
Ipsen S.A. ("Ipsen"), a société anonyme organizettuthe laws of France. Ipsen's majority shareraklMayroy, a société anonyme
organized under the laws of Luxembourg. The dimscamd executive officers of Ipsen Pharma are @ipiee Jean, Director; Claude
Bertrand, Director; Etienne De Blois, Director; Ripe Robert-Gorsse, Director; Eric Drape, Diregtlaire Giraut, Director; Jean
Fabre, Director; Jean-Pierre Dubuc, Director; Didleron, Director; and Marc De Garidel, Presiddtite directors of Ipsen are Marc
De Garidel, Director and Chief Executive Officemme Beaufour, Director; Henri Beaufour, Directoeri# Couffin, Director; Antoine
Flochel, Director; Gérard Hauser, Director; Piévtartinet, Director; René Merkt, Director; Yves Ramold, Director; Klaus- Peter
Schwabe, Director and Christophe Vérot, Directdre €xecutive officers of Ipsen are Claire Giradigihe de Blois, Christophe Jean,
Claude Bertrand, and Eric Drape. The directors afiy are Anne Beaufour, Antoine Flochel, BeecheT34, Bee Master B.V.
Holding BV, Henri Beaufour, Klaus Peter Schwabel dean-Pierre Diehl. The directors and officergpeén, Mayroy and Ipsen
Pharma share all voting and investment powers nggpect to these shares. Beneficial ownershiprimdtion is based on information
known to the Company and a Schedule 13D filed #i¢hSEC on June 23, 2011 by Ipsen Pharma and Ipsen.

Includes 64,430 shares of common stock issuabla apoversion of 6,443 shares of Company SeriesPAeferred Stock and
4,961,110 shares of common stock issuable uponetsion of 496,111 shares of Company Series A-GeRexd Stock held by Nordic
Bioscience Clinical Development VII A/S ("Nordic N). Nordic VII beneficially owns 9.6% of the FulRiluted Shares. Nordic VIl is
a wholly- owned subsidiary of Nordic Bioscienceridal Development A/S ("Nordic A/S"). Nordic A/Swgholly-owned subsidiary of
Nordic Bioscience Holding A/S ("Nordic Holding").dxdic Holding is majority owned by C.C. ConsultiA¢S ("C.C. Consulting").
Claus Christiansen, MD, and Bente Riis Chrstiaresh own 50% of C.C. Consulting and share all gadind investment power with
respect to these shares. The entities and indilgdnantioned above disclaim beneficial ownershithefshare except to the extent of
their pecuniary interest therein. Beneficial owhgrsnformation is based on information known te thbompany and a Schedule 13D
filed with the SEC on January 6, 2014 by Nordic.VII
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Consists of 66,968 shares of common stock, issugla conversion of Warrants to purchase 6,140eshafrCompany Series A-1
Preferred Stock.

Consists of 66,968 shares of common stoskaisle upon conversion of Warrants to purchaseOgstidres of Company Series A-1
Preferred Stock. Oxford Finance LLC is a single-rhemnimited liability company, whose sole membe®igord Holdco LLC. Under
its limited liability company agreement, the busis@ffairs and activities of Oxford Holdco LLC atieected by and controlled by its
board of directors. The Oxford Holdco LLC boarddafectors is composed of three directors appoibte8umitomo Corporation (Tet
Egushi, Kentaro Hori and Rishi Gaind), three diseztappointed by Welsh Carson Anderson & Stower($&alraynor, Thomas A.
Scully, and Chris W. Solomon) and J. Alden Philkrid/, the President and CEO of Oxford Finance LBg.action of its sole membe
Oxford Finance LLC has established a Credit Congmittomposed of its President and CEO, its Chiefadipg Officer and its Senior
Vice President, Credit and Portfolio. These posgiare currently held by Mr. Philbrick, Timothy Bex and Hans S. Houser,
respectively. The Oxford Finance LLC Credit Comeastis authorized to make all decisions concerriegrivestments of Oxford
Finance LLC including, without limitation, any sale exercise of the warrants owned by it and, dreised, any sale of the shares ol
stock resulting from such exercise.

Includes (i) 15,627 shares of common stock heltlbyKatzenellenbogen and (ii) 40,438 shares of comistock held by the John A.
Katzenellenbogen Trust Under Agreement Dated Augu$899 (the "Katzenellenbogen Trust"). Mr. Kagiembogen is the trustee of
the Katzenellenbogen Trust. The Katzenellenbogestimay be deemed to beneficially own the sharkestyeMr. Katzenellenbogen.
Beneficial ownership information is based on infatimn known to the Company and a Schedule 13D filigh the SEC on January 27,
2012 by Healthcare Private Equity Limited Partngrshloyds Banking Group plc, Scottish Widows Intraent Partnership Group
Limited, Waverley Healthcare Private Equity Limifd/Raymond F. Schinazi, David E. Thompson Revocahlst, Hostetler Family
Trust UTD 3/18/92, Karl Y. Hostetler and Margarettastetler, Co-Trustees, H. Watt Gregory Ill, Ri@mTrust Dated 2/6/83,
Douglas D. Richman, Co-Trustee and Eva A. Richn@anTrustee, Breining Family Trust Dated August4803, Dennis A. Carson,
Jonnie K. Westbrook Revocable Trust, Dated Marct2000, Jonnie K. Westbrook, Trustee, Stavros hd¥sgas, Michael Rosenblatt
MD, Patricia E. Rosenblatt, Dr. John Potts, Jr &odanne K. Potts Irrevocable Trust for StephandtisRiated 6-15-05, John Thomas
Potts MD, John A. Katzenellenbogen Trust Under &grent Dated August 2, 1999, John A. Katzenellenb&de, Bart Henderson,
Board of Trustees of the University of Arkansaspfaein C. Lane, Ruff Trust, F. Bronson Van Wycku3tee, H2 Enterprises, LLC,
Stavroula Kousteni PhD, Robert L. Jilka PhD, Rolg&erVeinstein MD, Teresita M. Bellido PhD, Dottygeén, Thomas E. Sparks Jr.,
Samuel Ho, Charles O'Brien PhD, Alwyn Michael RaNID, Barnett Pitzele, Benita S. Katzenellenbogéi, Kelly Colbourn,
Socrates E. Papapoulos MD, Tonya D. Goss, The KeWestbrook Revocable Trust, Dated March 17, 28@dt C. Westbrook,
Trustee, Maysoun Shomali, Jonathan Guerriero, Hy Isaillivan, Cecil Richard Lyttle, Louis O'Dea, iBn Nicholas Harvey, and
Christopher Miller.

Includes (i) 23,048 options to purchase our comstonk anticipated to be exercisable within 60 dafyer February 19, 2014,

(ii) 48,942 shares of common stock held by Dr. $attd (iii) 20,291 shares of common stock heldhegyDr. John Potts, Jr. and Susa
K. Potts Irrevocable Trust for Stephen K. Potteda-15605 (the "Potts Trust"). Dr. Potts is a trusteehaf Potts Trust. Dr. Potts may
deemed to beneficially own the shares held by titessHrust. Beneficial ownership information is éd®n information known to the
Company and a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC ondey 27, 2012 by Healthcare Private Equity LimiRadtnership, Lloyds Bankii
Group plc, Scottish Widows Investment Partnershipup Limited,
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Waverley Healthcare Private Equity Limited, Rayméndchinazi, David E. Thompson Revocable Trusstetter Family Trus
UTD 3/18/92, Karl Y. Hostetler and Margaretha Htlste Co-Trustees, H. Watt Gregory Ill, Richman 3rDated 2/6/83,
Douglas D. Richman, Co-Trustee and Eva A. Richm@anTrustee, Breining Family Trust Dated August4803, Dennis A.
Carson, Jonnie K. Westbrook Revocable Trust, Ditacth 17, 2000, Jonnie K. Westbrook, Trustee, $&@. Manolagas,
Michael Rosenblatt MD, Patricia E. Rosenblatt, Imtn Potts, Jr and Susanne K. Potts Irrevocablgt TauStephan K. Potts
dated 6-15-05, John Thomas Potts MD, John A. Katlembogen Trust Under Agreement Dated August 2919ohn A.
Katzenellenbogen PhD, Bart Henderson, Board oft€assof the University of Arkansas, Benjamin C. &aRuff Trust, F.
Bronson Van Wyck, Trustee, H2 Enterprises, LLCyBiala Kousteni PhD, Robert L. Jilkka PhD, Robert\&instein MD,
Teresita M. Bellido PhD, Dotty Paquin, Thomas Eai®p Jr., Samuel Ho, Charles O'Brien PhD, Alwyn el Parfitt MD,
Barnett Pitzele, Benita S. Katzenellenbogen PhDlyK&olbourn, Socrates E. Papapoulos MD, Tonya Bs<; The Kent C.
Westbrook Revocable Trust, Dated March 17, 2000t Ke Westbrook, Trustee, Maysoun Shomali, Jonathaerriero, E.
Kelly Sullivan, Cecil Richard Lyttle, Louis O'DeBrian Nicholas Harvey, and Christopher Miller.

Includes 10,670 shares of common stock ideugion the conversion of 1,067 shares of Compamie$B Preferred Stock, 16,218
shares of common stock issuable upon the conveosid#87 shares of Company Series A-1 Preferredk$16,622 shares of common
stock issuable upon the conversion of 1,524 stafr€@ampany Series A-2 Preferred Stock, 4,140 sh@reemmon stock issuable upon
the conversion of 414 shares of Company SeriesPAeferred Stock, and 2,668 shares of common stsckable upon the exercise of
common stock warrants. Beneficial ownership infdiorais based on information known to the Compamy a Schedule 13D filed

with the SEC on January 27, 2012 by HealthcareaRizquity Limited Partnership, Lloyds Banking Goqlc, Scottish Widows
Investment Partnership Group Limited, Waverley ezlre Private Equity Limited, Raymond F. Schin®ayid E. Thompson
Revocable Trust, Hostetler Family Trust UTD 3/18/®arl Y. Hostetler and Margaretha Hostetler, Coskees, H. Watt Gregory |ll,
Richman Trust Dated 2/6/83, Douglas D. Richman,T@gstee and Eva A. Richman, Co-Trustee, BreiningikaTrust Dated

August 15, 2003, Dennis A. Carson, Jonnie K. WestbiRevocable Trust, Dated March 17, 2000, Jonni¢/Kstbrook, Trustee,
Stavros C. Manolagas, Michael Rosenblatt MD, Patiic Rosenblatt, Dr. John Potts, Jr and Susanfois Irrevocable Trust for
Stephan K. Potts dated 6-15-05, John Thomas PddsJehn A. Katzenellenbogen Trust Under Agreemeate® August 2, 1999, John
A. Katzenellenbogen PhD, Bart Henderson, BoardrogtEes of the University of Arkansas, Benjami&he, Ruff Trust, F. Bronson
Van Wyck, Trustee, H2 Enterprises, LLC, Stavroutauteni PhD, Robert L. Jilka PhD, Robert S. Weindt#D, Teresita M. Bellido
PhD, Dotty Paquin, Thomas E. Sparks Jr., SamuelJHarles O'Brien PhD, Alwyn Michael Parfitt MD, Beitt Pitzele, Benita S.
Katzenellenbogen PhD, Kelly Colbourn, Socratesapapoulos MD, Tonya D. Goss, The Kent C. WestbfRekocable Trust, Dated
March 17, 2000, Kent C. Westbrook, Trustee, Maysshiomali, Jonathan Guerriero, E. Kelly SullivanciCRichard Lyttle, Louis
O'Dea, Brian Nicholas Harvey, and Christopher Mille
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Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table provides information oar equity compensation plans as of December @113:2

Number of securities to Weighted-average Number of securities remaining

be issued upon exercise exercise price of available for future issuance

of outstanding options, outstanding options, under equity compensation plans
warrants and rights warrants and rights (excluding securities reflected in column (a))

Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity

compensatio

plans

approved by

security

holders 3,800,94: $ 3.0¢ 3,266,56!
Equity

compensatio

plans not

approved by

security

holders — — —
Total 3,800,94. $ 3.0¢ 3,266,56!

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

Transactions with Related Persons

Since January 1, 2013, we have engagdtkifotlowing transactions with our directors, extaoei officers and holders of more than five
percent of our voting securities, and affiliatesromediate family members of our directors, exeautfficers and holders of more than five
percent of our voting securities. We believe thiavfthese transactions were on terms as favorableould have been obtained from unrelatec

third parties.

Series B Preferred Stock Financing

On April 23, 2013, certain accredited irees entered into a Series B Convertible PrefeBttk and Warrant Purchase Agreement,
pursuant to which we consummated a first closingnehy in exchange for aggregate proceeds of appaigly $43.0 million, it issued
700,098 shares of our series B convertible prefesteck and warrants to purchase up to a total %0248 shares of common stock. On
May 10, 2013, we consummated a second closing iéneexchange for aggregate proceeds of approgin&0.1 million, we issued 1,137
shares of our series B convertible preferred stmekwarrants to purchase up to a total of 2,848shaf common stock.

174




The following table sets forth the numbgslaares of our series B convertible preferredksaow common stock warrants that were issue
in the two closings:

Shares of

series B Common stock
Name(1) preferred stock warrants
F2 Biosciences lll, L.P 325,62" 814,06¢
Entities affiliated with MPM Capital(z 162,81 407,03«
Biotech Growth N.V. 97,68¢ 244,22(
Brookside Capital Partners Fund, L. 81,40% 203,51¢
BB Biotech Ventures | 32,56:¢ 81,40¢
Raymond F. Schina: 1,067 2,66¢
The Richman Trus 70 17¢E
Total 701,23! 1,753,09.

Q) See "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Overeend Management and Related Stockholder Matterstbre
information about shares held by these entities.

(2) Consists of 5,103 shares issued to MPM BioVentlitek.P, 75,899 shares issued to MPM BioVenturlé€JP,L.P.,
6,414 shares issued to MPM BioVentures Il BmbH & Beteiligungs KG, 2,291 shares issued to MPM RioNres IlI
Parallel Fund, L.P., 1,468 shares issued to MPMeABENagement Investors 2003 BVIII LLC and 71,6B8rss issued
to MPM Bio IV NVS Strategic Fund, L.}

Series B-2 Preferred Stock Financing

On February 14, 2014, February 19, 2014Frsiatuary 24, 2014, certain accredited investotared into a Series B-2 Convertible
Preferred Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreemergyugant to which we issued 417,615 shares of oues&A2 convertible preferred stock and
warrants to purchase up to a total of 1,044,03%shaf common stock in exchange for total aggregaieeeds of approximately $25.6 millic

The following table sets forth the numbgsloares of our series B-2 convertible preferredlsand common stock warrants that were
issued:

Shares of

series B-2 Common stock
Name(1) preferred stock warrants
F2 Biosciences IV, L.P 227,93t 569,84!
F2 Bio Ventures V, L.P 110,71: 276,78
Biotech Growth N.V. 65,12¢ 162,81:
BB Biotech Ventures Il, L.P 12,21 30,52¢
Raymond F. Schina: 1,62¢ 4,07(
Total 417,61t 1,044,03"

(1)  See "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Overeend Management and Related Stockholder Matterstibre
information about shares held by these enti

Transactions with Director

On July 24, 2013, we entered into a Coirsyhgreement with Morana Jovan-Embiricos, Ph.Dmember of our board of directors. We
refer to this agreement as the Consulting Agreentamsuant to the Consulting Agreement, Dr. JovarbiEicos agreed to provide financial
and strategic consulting services as may be reggidst Radius, and such other consulting servicesagsbe reasonably requested by Radius,
from time to time from July 1, 2013 until June 2014. We agreed to pay
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Dr. Jovan-Embiricos an aggregate consulting femash of $160,000, of which $80,000 was paid on 30ly2013 and the remaining $80,000
was paid on October 2, 2013.

On January 23, 2014, we entered into auding agreement with Orbit Advisors Limited, oetrbit Agreement, a Swiss company, or
Orbit, and Dr. Jovan-Embiricos and an agreementitexting the Consulting Agreement dated July 24, 30he Orbit Agreement is effective
as of January 22, 2014 and will continue in effedil December 31, 2014 or until its earlier teration in accordance with its terms. Pursuant
to the Orbit Agreement, Orbit has agreed to profilgiencial and strategic consulting services as bmyequested by Radius, and such other
consulting services as may be reasonably requbgtBédius, from time to time during the term. Weeagl to pay Orbit an aggregate
consulting fee in cash of $400,000 in four equataliments of $100,000 on each of January 31, 2Dirke 30, 2014, September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2014. The Orbit Agreement containtomesry provisions, applicable to both Orbit and Imvan-Embiricos, as Orbit's
representative under the Orbit Agreement, regarttiagreatment of our confidential information assignment of inventions, as well as an
obligation of Orbit and Dr. Jovan-Embiricos to soficit, during the Term and for a period of onarthereafter, any person or entity engagec
by us as an employee, customer or supplier ofppsutant or advisor to, us to terminate that parglationship us.

Our Stockholders' Agreement

The stockholders' agreement among us andtockholders, which is filed as an exhibit testhéport, provides our stockholders with
certain resale, demand and piggyback registratgiris. The registration rights provisions of owctholders' agreement also contains
customary cross-indemnification provisions, pursuamhich we are obligated to indemnify the sejlstockholders in the event of material
misstatements or omissions in a registration stamem@ttributable to us, and the selling stockhadee obligated to indemnify the us for
material misstatements or omissions attributabt@éom.

Policies and Procedures for Related Party Transaains

Our board of directors has adopted a writetated person transaction policy to set forthghlicies and procedures for the review and
approval or ratification of related person trangand. This policy covers, with certain exceptiorsferth in ltem 404 of Regulation S-K under
the Exchange Act, any transaction, arrangemerglationship, or any series of similar transacti@msangements or relationships in which we
were or are to be a participant, where the amowatived exceeds $120,000 and a related personrail bave a direct or indirect material
interest, including, without limitation, purchasefsgoods or services by or from the related pemaentities in which the related person has a
material interest, indebtedness, guarantees obtedaess and employment by us of a related person.

As provided by our audit committee chareer, audit committee is responsible for reviewimg approving any related party transaction.
Director Independence

Our board of directors has determined &iiaif our directors, other than Mr. Ward, are ipdedent directors, as defined by the applicablc
rules and regulations of the SEC. In making sudhrdenation, the board of directors consideredréiationships that each such non-employe
director has with our company and all other facis @ircumstances that the board of directors deawledant in determining their
independence, including the beneficial ownershipwfcapital stock by each non-employee director.

There are no family relationships among a@ihgur directors or executive officers.

176




For additional information regarding oureditors and their committee memberships see Raltelin 10, "Directors, Executive Officers
and Corporate Governance."

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

Ernst & Young LLP provided audit servicestie Company consisting of the annual audit ofGbepany's 2013 financial statements
contained in the Company's Annual Report on ForaK Hihd reviews of the financial statements contdiimethe Company's Quarterly Reports
on Form 10-Q for fiscal year 2013. The followingplsummarizes the fees of Ernst & Young LLP biledhe Company for the last two fiscal
years.

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
Fee Category 2013 % of Total 2012 % of Total
(dollars in thousands)
Audit Fees(1 $ 382 90.9% $ 36€ 61.(%
Audit-Related Fees(z 2C 4.7% 224 37.%%
Tax Fees(3 21 5.C% 1C 1.7%
Total Fees $ 424 10% $ 60C 10%

Q) Audit fees consist of fees for the audit of our @alrfinancial statements and review of the intdiimancial statements
included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q dgriiscal year 2013.

(2) Audit-related fees consist of fees for assoeasnd related services that are reasonably reiatix performance of the
audit and the review of our financial statements$ &hich are not reported under "Audit Fees". Auditated fees
reported in fiscal years 2013 and 2012 relateéa¢view of registration statements on Form S-Tdinds on Form 8-K.

(3) Tax fees consist of fees for tax compliance, taka@dand tax planning services. Tax complianceisesy which relate to
the review of our U.S. tax returns, accounted 8,800 and $10,000 of the total tax fees for figear 2013 and 2012,
respectively

The Audit Committee has adopted a formdicga@oncerning approval of audit and non-auditgsss to be provided to the Company by
its independent registered public accounting fimst & Young LLP. The policy requires that all\gees to be provided by Ernst &
Young LLP, including audit services and permittediarelated and non-audit services, must be pmeyed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee pre-approved all audit and non-asaeivices provided by Ernst & Young LLP duringc$2013 and fiscal 2012.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES.
(a) Financial Statements

The following financial statements and depgentary data are included in Part Il of Iteml&diof this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimg 95
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 96
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loghdorears ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 201 97
Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock, Redekn@dmvertible Preferred Stock and
Stockholders' Deficit for the years ended Decen3de2013, 2012 and 20: 98
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Deme®ih 2013, 2012 and 20 10C
Notes to Financial Statemer 101

(b) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have baaitted because they are not applicable or areagpiired, or because the information requ
to be set forth therein is included in the consaihd financial statements or notes thereto.

(c) Exhibits
The Exhibit Index follows the signature padiereof and is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rbgistrant has duly caused this annual r¢
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedeti@o duly authorized.

RADIUS HEALTH, INC.

By: /sl ROBERT E. WARD

Robert E. Ward
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: February 26, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this annual report haslstgned by the following persons on behal
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ies indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl ROBERT E. WARD President, Chief Executive Officer
and Director (Principal Executive February 26, 2014
Robert E. Wart( Officer)

/s/ B. NICHOLAS HARVEY Chief Financial Officer (Principal

Accounting and Financial Officer)

February 26, 2014
B. Nicholas Harve

/sl ALAN H. AUERBACH

Director February 26, 2014
Alan H. Auerbact
/s/ ANSBERT K. GADICKE
Director February 26, 2014
Ansbert K. Gadick
/s/ KURT C. GRAVES
Director February 26, 2014
Kurt C. Graves
/sl OWEN HUGHES
Director February 26, 2014
Owen Hughe!
/sl MORANA JOVAN-EMBIRICOS
Director February 26, 2014

Morana Jova-Embiricos
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Signature

/sl MARTIN MUNCHBACH

Martin Miinchbact

/sl ELIZABETH STONER

Elizabeth Stone

Director

Director

Title
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February 26, 2014




Exhibit No.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

2.1(8)

3.1(41)

3.2(7)

4.1(12)

4.2(28)

4.3(18)

10.1(8)*

10.2(12)*

10.5(21)*

10.4(33)

10.5(33)

10.€(6)

10.%(36)

10.(8)

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated April 25, 2

Certificate of Incorporation, as amended,ludaitg the Certificate of Designations of
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series @eRvertible Preferred Stock,
Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series @aofivertible Preferred Stock,
Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock and Serigs@onvertible Preferred Stock
filed by the Company with the Secretary of Stat¢hefState of Delaware on May
2011, as amended, and the Certificate of Desigmatid Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock filed by the Company with the Steyeof State of the State of
Delaware on April 23, 201

By-Laws, as amende

Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agreerdated as of May 17, 2011, as
amended, by and among the Company and the stoesgidrty theretc

Third Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agese, dated April 23, 2013, by and
among the Company and the stockholders party th

Fourth Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agreerdatdd February 14, 2014,
and among the Company and the stockholders patgtts

Clinical Trial Services Agreement and Work 8taent NB-1, dated March 29, 2011,
by and between the Company, as successor to Riddalth, Inc., and Nordic
BioScience Clinical Development VII A/

Clinical Trial Services Agreement Amendmerd.N to Work Statement NB-1,
effective as of December 9, 2011, by and betweerCdmpany and Nordic
Bioscience Clinical Development VII A/

Clinical Trial Services Agreement Amendmert. to Work Statement NB-1,
effective as of June 18, 2012, by and between tmepany and Nordic Bioscience
Clinical Development VII A/S

Clinical Trial Services Agreement Amendment Nldo Work Statement NB; datec
November 6, 2013, by and between the Company andit\Bioscience Clinica
Development VII A/S

Clinical Trial Services Agreement Amendment Bao Work Statement NB; datec
November 6, 2013, by and between the Company andit\Bioscience Clinics
Development VII A/S

Amended and Restated Stock Issuance Agreentete] May 16, 2011, by and
between the Company, as successor to Radius Healthand Nordic BioScience
Clinical Development VII A/S

Letter Agreement, dated as of December 6, 20 and between the Company and
Nordic Bioscience A/¢

Side Letter, dated March 29, 2011, by and beiwtbe Company, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Nordic BioScience Clinidavelopment VII A/S
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10.5(22)

10.1((22)*

Amendment, dated as of July 26, 2012, to Satter Agreement, dated March 29,
2011, by and between the Company and Nordic Biasei€linical Development V
A/IS

Letter of Intent, dated as of July 26, 20&,and between the Company and Nordic
Bioscience Clinical Development VII A/



10.11(24)

10.14(26)*

10.15(26)*

10.14(26)

10.15(8)*

10.16(8)*

10.1%(8)*

Letter of Intent, dated as of October 22, 20i2and between the Company and
Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII A

Work Statement NB-2, dated February 21, 2@3and between the Company and
Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII/A

Work Statement NB-3, dated February 21, 2@}3and between the Company and
Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII/A

Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 21, 2@lABmended and Restated Stock
Issuance Agreement, dated as of May 16, 2011, Bypatween Radius Health, Inc.
and Nordic Bioscience Clinical Development VII A

License Agreement, dated September 27, 20p%Bnbl between the Company, as
successor to Nuvios, Inc., and SCRAS SAS, on baliia$elf and its Affiliates

Pharmaceutical Development Agreement, dataedadis 2, 2006, by and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., @adifBur Ipsen Industrie SA

Amendment No. 1 to Pharmaceutical Developnfgreement, dated January 1,
2007, by and between the Company, as successa@diogHealth, Inc., and
Beaufour Ipsen Industrie SA

10.1¢8) License Agreement Amendment No. 1, dated Sdperh?, 2007, by and between
the Company, as successor to Radius Health, Imd.S&€RAS SAS

10.148)* Amendment No. 2 to Pharmaceutical Developnfgreement, dated January 1,
2009, by and between the Company, as successa@diogHealth, Inc., and
Beaufour Ipsen Industrie SA

10.2((8)* Amendment No. 3 to Pharmaceutical Developnfagreement, dated June 16, 2010,
by and between the Company, as successor to Rddalth, Inc., and Beaufour
Ipsen Industrie SA!

10.21(13)* Amendment No. 4 to Pharmaceutical Developmfggreement, entered into as of
December 15, 2011, by and between the Company aadf8ur Ipsen
Industrie S.A.S

10.249) License Agreement Amendment No. 2, dated May2011, by and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc.,@@hIPharma SA

10.2%9) Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock Issuakgeement, dated May 11, 2011, by
and between the Company, as successor to RadilithHea., and Ipsen Pharma
SAS

10.2428) Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and WarPairchase Agreement, dated
April 23, 2013, by and among the Company and tiedtors listed therei

10.258) Development and Manufacturing Services Agredndated October 16, 2007, by
and between the Company, as successor to RadilihHea., and LONZA
Sales Ltd., including Amendment No. 1, dated May2(®.1.
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10.2¢(40) Amendment No. 2, dated January 30, 2014 ,@dvelopment and Manufacturing
Services Agreement, by and between the Company@NZA Sales Ltd.

10.2%(8)* Work Order No. 2, dated January 15, 2010, ihgt Between the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and LONZA Satds

10.2¢8)*  Amendment No. 3 to Work Order No.2, dated Dmber 15, 2010, by and between

the Company, as successor to Radius Health, Ind.|. ®@NZA Sales Ltd



10.2(14)*

10.3((8)*

10.35(8)*

10.34(8)*

10.35(8)*

10.34(8)*

10.35(8)*

10.3¢(8)*

10.37(8)*

10.3¢(8)*

10.3¢(8)*

10.4((8)*

10.4(8)*

10.47(19)*

Work Order No. 4, dated December 23, 2011abg between the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and LONZA Satds

Development and Clinical Supplies Agreememtiedl June 19, 2009, by and among
the Company, as successor to Radius Health, Ind.3& Co. and 3M Innovative
Properties Cc

Amendment No. 1, dated December 31, 2009, to th®8Nelopment Agreement,
and among the Company, as successor to RadiushHeedlt, and 3M Co. and 3M
Innovative Properties Ci

Amendment No. 2, dated September 16, 201¢hédBM Development Agreement,
by and among the Company, as successor to RadalthiHec., and 3M Co. and 3M
Innovative Properties Ci

Amendment No. 3, dated September 29, 201€hedBM Development Agreement,
by and among the Company, as successor to RadalthHec., and 3M Co. and 3M
Innovative Properties Ci

Change Order Form—Amendment No. 5, dated Fatyrd, 2011, to the 3M
Development Agreement, by and among the Comparsy@asessor to Radius
Health, Inc., and 3M Co. and 3M Innovative PropesiCo.

Amendment No. 4, dated March 2, 2011, to theBevelopment Agreement, by and

among the Company, as successor to Radius Headthand 3M Co. and 3M
Innovative Properties Ci

Change Order Form #6, dated June 20, 201theé®M Development Agreement, by
and between the Company and

Change Order Form #7, dated August 2, 2011h@a3M Development Agreement,
by and between the Company and

Change Order Form #8, dated July 28, 2011h¢o3M Development Agreement, by
and between the Company and

Addendum to Change Order Form #8, dated Au@6s2011, to the 3M
Development Agreement, by and between the Compiathy3 i

Change Order Form #9, dated August 12, 20d1h¢ 3M Development Agreement,
by and between the Company and

Change Order Form #10, dated October 3, 2t the 3M Development Agreement,
by and between the Company and

Change Order Form #12, dated February 232 2filthe 3M Development
Agreement, by and between the Company anc
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10.45(15)*

10.44(23)*

10.45(23)*

10.46(25)*

Change Order Form #13, dated May 1, 2012h¢o3M Development Agreement, by
and between the Company and

Change Order Form #14, dated August 15, 2012 &@Hkh Development Agreemel
by and between the Company and

Change Order Form #15, dated July 16, 2012, t@kh&®evelopment Agreement, |
and between the Company and

Amendment No. 5, dated December 14, 2012efattive as of November 30, 2012,
to the 3M Development Agreement by and betweelCtirapany and 3M and
Change Order Form #19, entered into on Octobe2022, to the 3M Development
Agreemen



10.4%(8)* Laboratory Services and Confidentiality Agresmh dated March 31, 2004, by and
between the Company, as successor to Nuvios,dnd.Charles River
Laboratories, Inc

10.4¢8)  First Amendment to Laboratory Services and @lamttiality Agreement, dated
November 7, 2008, by and between the Company,@essor to Radius Health, Ir
and Charles River Laboratories, |

10.4¢8)* Letter of Payment Authorization, dated NovemB®@, 2010, by and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., had€> River Laboratories
Preclinical Services Montréal In

10.5((8)* Letter of Payment Authorization, dated Febyuar2011, by and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., dad€s River Laboratories
Preclinical Services Montréal In

10.5)(27)* Amended Letter of Payment Authorization, da@anuary 20, 2012, by and between
the Company and Charles River Laboratories,

10.52(27)* Amended Letter of Payment Authorization, dbkday 1, 2012, by and between the
Company and Charles River Laboratories,

10.5%27)* Amended Letter of Payment Authorization, daSeptember 14, 2012, by and
between the Company and Charles River Laboratdries

10.5423)* Letter of Payment Authorization, dated Septem24, 2012, by and between the
Company and Charles River Laboratories,

10.5527)* Letter of Payment Authorization, dated Novem5, 2012, by and between the
Company and Charles River Laboratories,

10.5¢@8)* License Agreement, dated June 29, 2006, bytetdeen the Company, as successor
to Radius Health, Inc., and Eisai Co., L

10.5%(9) Series A-1 Purchase Agreement, dated Aprie®3,1, by and among the Company,
as successor to Radius Health, Inc., and the lorebsted therein, as amenc

10.5¢(16) Amendment No. 1 to Series A-1 Convertible &mefd Stock Purchase Agreement,
dated May 11, 201

10.5¢1) Redemption Agreement, by and between MPM AdtioisCorp. and MPM Asset
Management LLC, dated April 25, 20
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10.6((2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. (f/k/a Nuvios, Inc.) Z0Dong-Term Incentive Plan, assumed in

the Mergel

10.61(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. First Amendment to 2Q08g-Term Incentive Plan effective as
of December 15, 2006, assumed in the Me

10.62(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. Second Amendment to 208183-Term Incentive Plan effective
as of March 28, 2008, assumed in the Me

10.6%(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. Third Amendment to 2Q@®g-Term Incentive Plan effective
of November 14, 2008, assumed in the Me

10.642) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentivarPForm of Stock Option
Agreemen

10.65(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. (f/k/a Nuvios, Inc.) Z00Dong-Term Incentive Plan Stock Optit
Agreement, dated October 28, 2004, by and betweefbdmpany, as successor to
Nuvios, Inc., and Richard Lyttle for Option No.-103



10.6€(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incent®lan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweeg@tmpany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Richard Lyttle for Optida. 07-08

10.67(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentRlan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between thepaay, as successor to Rac
Health, Inc., and Richard Lyttle for Option No.-09

10.6¢(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incent®lan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betwee@ampany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Richard Lyttle for Optido. 0¢-14

10.6¢(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentRlan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated February 15, 2006, by and betthee@ompany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'Dea for Option NE-07

10.7((2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incent®lan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweegRtmpany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'Dea for Option N¢-07

10.71(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentRlan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between thepaay, as successor to Rac
Health, Inc., and Louis O'Dea for Option No-05

10.7%(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incent®lan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betwee@ampany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Louis O'Dea for Option N§-10

10.7%(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. (f/k/a Nuvios, Inc.) Z0Dong-Term Incentive Plan Stock Optit
Agreement, dated December 16, 2003, by and bettheeGompany, as successor to
Nuvios, Inc., and Gary Hattersley for Option No-001

10.742)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incent®lan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated February 15, 2006, by and bettfee@ompany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hattersley for Optian 0¢€-02

10.7%(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentRlan Incentive Stock Option

Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweegRtmpany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hattersley for Optiam 03-06
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10.7€(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentRlan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between thepaay, as successor to Rac
Health, Inc., and Gary Hattersley for Option No-08

10.77(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentRlan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betwee@ampany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Gary Hattersley for Optiam 0¢-13

10.7¢2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incent®lan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated July 12, 2007, by and betweegRtmpany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Nick Harvey for Option 19G-09

10.7¢(2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentRlan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated May 8, 2008, by and between thmep@ay, as successor to Rac
Health, Inc., and Nick Harvey for Option No.-06

10.8((2)(3) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incent®lan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement, dated December 3, 2008, by and betwee@ampany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Nick Harvey for Option 196-11

10.81(3)(9) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentRlan Stock Option Agreement, dated
October 12, 2010, by and between the Company aad Alierbach for Option



No. 1¢-01

10.8%(3)(9) Radius Health, Inc. 2003 Long-Term IncentRlan Stock Option Agreement, dated

October 12, 2010, by and between the Company aad Alierbach for Option
No. 1(-02

10.854) Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive P
10.8430) Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive Planaagendec
10.85%4) Form of Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity IncentivarPStock Option Agreeme
10.8¢(4) Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive P&tock Option Agreement, dated
November 7, 2011, by and between the Company amdduGraves for Optio
No. 11-01
10.8%(4) Radius Health, Inc. 2011 Equity Incentive P&tatutory Stock Option Agreement,
dated November 7, 2011, by and between the ComgaaKurt C. Graves for
Option No. 1-02
10.8¢31) Radius Health, Inc. 2013 Employee Bonus F
10.8¢(2) Employment Letter Agreement, dated July 2, 2@34and between the Company, as
successor to Nuvios, Inc., and C. Richard Edmurttid.
10.9((11) Transition Agreement, dated November 30, 20%1and between the Company and
C. Richard Edmund Lyttl
10.91(19) First Amendment to Transition Agreement, ddtebruary 29, 2012, by and between
the Company and C. Richard Edmund Ly
10.94(19) Consulting Agreement, dated February 29, 28¢2nd between the Company and
C. Richard Edmund Lyttl
10.9%(35) Letter Agreement, dated as of November 2632B¢ and between the Company and
C. Richard Lyttle, Ph.C
186
Exhibit No. Description
10.9432) Consulting Agreement, dated July 1, 2013, by andiden the Company and More
Jovar-Embiricos
10.9539) Letter agreement, dated January 22, 2014 desthe Company and Morana Jovan-
Embiricos
10.9¢(2) Employment Letter Agreement, November 14, 2@§3and between the Company,
as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Gary Hattel
10.9%(2) Employment Letter Agreement, dated January2806, by and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., an&lO'De¢
10.9¢2) Employment Letter Agreement, dated NovemberDBg, by and between the
Company, as successor to Radius Health, Inc., ahddBolas Harve!
10.9¢(34) Executive Employment Agreement, dated as ofédtber 12, 2013, by and between
the Company and Andrew J. Froml
10.10((34) Executive Employment Agreement, dated as ofddtber 12, 2013, by and between
the Company and Michael A. Metzc
10.104(37) Executive Employment Agreement, dated as afeer 12, 2013, by and between

10.104(11)

the Company and Robert We

Letter Agreement, dated December 1, 2011 noyteetween the Company and



Michael S. Wyzg:i

10.103(17) Employment Letter Agreement, dated Novemb@0d,1, by and between the
Company and Louis Brenn

10.10438) Separation Agreement and Release, datedJnafry 8, 2014, by and between the
Company and Louis Brenner, M.

10.10%(15) Employment Letter Agreement, dated March 21,2 by and between the Company
and Michael Franke

10.10¢[34) Separation and Release Agreement, dateddsvafmber 11, 2013, by and between
the Company and Michael Frank

10.10%(34) Separation and Release Agreement, datedMswamber 11, 2013, by and between
the Company and Michael S. Wyz

10.10434) Letter Agreement, dated as of November 1132B¢ and between the Company and
Michael S. Wyzg:

10.10439) Consulting Agreement, dated as of January 22, 20dtyeen the Company and O
Advisors Limited

10.11((2) Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 20yl and between the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Ansbert Klicke

10.111(2) Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 20yl and between the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and C. Richardugd Lyttle

10.1142) Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 20yl and between the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Martin Miach

10.11¥2) Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 20yl and between the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Jonathanitfde
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10.1142) Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 20yl and between the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Kurt Gri

10.11%2) Indemnification Agreement, dated May 17, 20yl and between the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Elizabethe®

10.11¢22) Indemnification Agreement, dated October 12,8®y and between the Company,
as successor to Radius Health, Inc., and Alan Aagh

10.117%(17) Indemnification Agreement, dated December(d,12 by and between the Company
and Michael S. Wyzg

10.1142) Indemnification Agreement, dated November 02 by and between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and MicRasknblatt, M.D

10.1142) Indemnification Agreement, dated November 02 by and between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Chhstoplirabelli

10.12((2) Indemnification Agreement, dated November 102 by and between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Augastawlor

10.12%(2) Indemnification Agreement, dated November 1002 by and between the
Company, as successor to Nuvios, Inc., and Edwarschli, M.D.

10.12%28) Indemnification Agreement, dated April 23, 30by and between the Company and

Owen Hughe!



10.124(28)

10.1247)

10.12%(7)

10.12¢(2)

10.127(28)

Indemnification Agreement, dated April 23, 30by and between the Company and
Morana Jova-Embiricos

Consent to Sublease, dated January 14, 20ldndwmong the Company, as
successor to Radius Health, Inc., Sonos, Inc. Banddway/Hampshire Associates
Limited Partnershij

Sublease, dated January 14, 2011, by and betiheeCompany, as successor to
Radius Health, Inc., and Sonos, |

Amended and Restated Warrant to Purchase Consttomk, dated May 17, 2011, by
and between the Company, as successor to RadilithHea., and SVB Financial
Group

Form of Warrant to Purchase Shares of ComntockSssued by the Company to
certain investors and attached schedule with dk

10.12§2)(3) Warrant to Purchase Series A-1 Convertibefd?red Stock, dated May 17, 2011, by

and between the Company, as successor to RadilthHea., and Leerink
Swann LLC

10.12412) Warrant to Purchase Series A-1 ConvertiblédPred Stock issued by the Company
to Leerink Swann LLC on November 18, 2(

10.13((12) Warrant to Purchase Series A-1 ConvertiblédPred Stock issued by the Company
to Leerink Swann LLC on December 14, 2(

10.131(5) Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 23, 2@idth General Electric Capital
Corporation as agent and a lender, and Oxford Em&ahC as a lende
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10.13%19) First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemeéated February 27, 2012, by and
among the Company, General Electric Capital Cotpmrand Oxford Finance LL!

10.13%20) Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemdated May 29, 2012, by and
among the Company, General Electric Capital Cotpmraand Oxford Finance LL!

10.13429) Consentto Loan and Security Agreement, damd 30, 2013, by and between the
Company and General Electric Capital Corporatioagent and lender, and Oxford
Finance I, LLC and Oxford Finance Funding Trust2-1, each as a lend

10.13%5) Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issuethbyCompany to General Electric
Capital Corporation in the principal amount of ogt.2,500,00(

10.13¢5) Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issuethbyCompany to Oxford
Finance LLC in the principal amount of $3,125,(

10.13(5) Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issuethbyCompany to Oxford
Finance LLC in the principal amount of up to $9,30®

10.13410) Promissory Note, dated May 23, 2011, issuethbyCompany to Oxford
Finance LLC in the principal amount of up to $6,Z8D

10.135) Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series @anvertible Preferred Stock, dated May
2011, issued by the Company to GE Capital Equitgstment:

10.14((5) Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series @anvertible Preferred Stock, dated May
2011, issued by the Company to Oxford Finance |

10.14(10) Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 GtibleePreferred Stock, dated

November 21, 2011, issued by the Company to GEt&ldpguity Investment



10.144(10)

10.145(20)

10.14420)

10.14%(7)

23.1(41)

31.1(41)

31.2(41)

32.1(41)

32.%(41)

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 GtihleePreferred Stock, dated
November 21, 2011, issued by the Company to OxXfamence LLC

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 Gtiblepreferred stock, dated May 29,
2012, issued by the Company to GE Capital Equie$tment:

Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series A-1 Gtibleepreferred stock, dated May 29,
2012, issued by the Company to Oxford Finance |

Lease by and between Broadway Hampshire Agssciamited Partnership and
Radius Health, Inc. 201 Broadway Cambridge, Masssetts, dated July 15, 20

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registétablic Accounting Firn
Certification by CEO pursuant to Rule 13a-}4(@a15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Se80@ of the Sarbanéxley Act
of 2002

Certification by CFO pursuant to Rule 13a-)4(al5d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Se80@ of the Sarban&3xley Act
of 2002

Certification by CEO pursuant to 18 U.S.C.tRec1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification by CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C.t#er1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 200z
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101.INS(41) XBRL Instance Documet

101.SCH41) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL(41) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.LAB(41) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRK41) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

101.DEK41) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

* Confidential treatment has been granted witlpeesto redacted portions of this exhibit. Redagtedions of this exhibit
have been filed separately with the SEC.

Q) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repororm 8-K filed on April 29, 2011.

(2) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporffarm 8-K filed on May 23, 2011.

(3)  Share numbers and per share prices are preseet@&bperse Split completed by Radius Health, IndVlay 17, 2011.
(4) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &tate on Form S-1/A filed on November 7, 2011.
(5) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporft@arm 8-K filed on May 27, 2011.

(6) Incorporated by reference to our Periodic Repoifform 10-Q/A filed on October 24, 2011.
@) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repofform 8-K/A filed on September 30, 2011.
(8) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoffamm 8-K/A filed on October 24, 2011.

9) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repor-orm 8-K/A filed on November 7, 2011.
(10) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on November 23, 2011.

(11) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2011.

(12) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on December 15, 2011.

(13) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2011.

(14) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfemm 8-K filed on December 30, 2011.

(15) Incorporated by reference to our Quarterly ReponrEorm 10-Q filed on May 4, 2012.

(16) Incorporated by reference to our Registration &tate on Form S-1 filed on June 23, 2011.
(17) Incorporated by reference to our Registration $tatg on Form S-1 filed on February 6, 2012.
(18) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporf@mm 8-K filed on February 14, 2014.

(19) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporff@arm 8-K filed on February 29, 2012.

(20) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporf@m 8-K filed on June 4, 2012,

(21) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on June 22, 2012.

(22) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on August 1, 2012.

(23) Incorporated by reference to our Registration $tatd on Form -1/A filed on September 28, 201
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(24) Incorporated by reference to our Registration $tateg on Form S-1/A filed on November 7, 2012.
(25) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfemm 8-K filed on December 20, 2012.
(26) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporff@rm 8-K filed on February 26, 2013.
(27) Incorporated by reference to our Annual Report om10-K filed on March 15, 2013.

(28) Incorporated by reference to our Current Riepo Form 8-K filed on April 25, 2013.

(29) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on May 14, 2013.

(30) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on June 7, 2013.

(31) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on June 26, 2013.

(32) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on July 30, 2013.

(33) Incorporated by reference to our quarterly ReporEorm 10-Q filed on November 14, 2013.
(34) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfemm 8-K filed on November 15, 2013.
(35) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoiffamm 8-K filed on November 29, 2013.
(36) Incorporated by reference to our Current Reporfamm 8-K filed on December 12, 2013.
(37) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoiffamm 8-K filed on December 17, 2013.
(38) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repofemm 8-K filed on January 8, 2014.

(39) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repoifform 8-K filed on February 3, 2014.

(40) Incorporated by reference to our Current Repo Form 8-K filed on February 11, 2014.

(41) Filed herewith
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 388300) of Radius Health, Inc. of our report
dated February 26, 2014, with respect to the firdistatements of Radius Health, Inc. includechis Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Boston, Massachusetts
February 26, 2014
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Exhibit 31.1
Certifications
I, Robert E. Ward, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRadius Health, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdnstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princijples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have ais@mifole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2014 /sl ROBERT E. WARD

Robert E. Ward
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2
Certifications
[, B. Nicholas Harvey, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRadius Health, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdnstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princijples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have ais@mifole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 26, 2014 /s/ B. NICHOLAS HARVEY

B. Nicholas Harvey
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretal
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of RedHealth, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K fbeffiscal year ended December 31, 2013
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisseinthe date hereof (the "Report"), I, Robert E&rtl certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sasb@rkey Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations
of the Company.

/sl ROBERT E. WARD

Robert E. Ward
President and Chief Executive Offic
February 26, 201

A signed original of this written statemesadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.

1




QuickLinks
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 13505ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of RedHealth, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K fbeffiscal year ended December 31, 2013
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the "Report"), I, B. Nichdtasvey, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sask@rkey Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ B. NICHOLAS HARVEY

B. Nicholas Harvey

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary

February 26, 201

A signed original of this written statemesadgiuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.
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